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To Our Stockholders:

Fiscal Year 2008 was the first full year operating as a combined ¢ompany since Quantum’s acquisition
of ADIC in August. 2006. During the year, we completed the integration, made significant progress in
improving our core operating model and further refined our strategic focus. As a result, today Quantum
is a $1 billion storage company with a tape business that is more profitable than it has been in recent
years and that is centered on the strongest segments of the tape market. In addition, we have a growth
platform in disk and software that encompasses data de-duplication,:one of the hottest areas of. storage.

Qur strategy moving forward is'to build on this foundation and further enhance our ability to deliver
backup, recovery and archive solutions that extend. from remote and distributed offices at the edge to
central data centers at the core. This will involve deeper integration of our disk, tape, and sofiware
assets, as well as common management, broad-based security, and comprehensive service and support.
All of this, along with our long-standing expertise in data protection, positions Quantum very well as
storage administrators continue to struggle with the ever-increasing growth of data, shrinking backup
windows, demand for faster restores, compliance and security issues, power and coolmg costs, and
ongoing budget and resource constraints. : IR '

The past year was primarily about transitioning to this new strategy:

e We shifted our investments to create greater growth potential, reducing and.optimizing tape
R&D while increasing'investment in disk and software development and our branded sales
and marketing capabilities.

e We moved away from lower margin business and focused on ‘higher margin sales:
opportunities, as reflected by an increase in branded revenue.

* We took a significant amount of cost out of the combined business.

e We introduced our new DXi7500 enterprise disk backup system with policy-based de-
duplication and replication, which serves as the anchor for our DXi-Series platform.

As a result of these actions, we demonstrated significant improvement in our financial model. Driven by
a solid increase in gross margins and continued management of expenses, both operating income and net
income for FYO08 were the highest they’ve been in five years, when intangibles amortization, stock-based
compensation, acquisition-related expenses and debt refinancing costs are excluded. In addition, we
showed strong cash generation and improved our debt structure, paying down debt and refinancing on
more favorable terms. As of the end of FY08, we had reduced our ADIC acqulsmon related debt by 32
percent in just a little over 19 months.

While we feel very good about this progress, we fell short of our goals for growing our overall branded
business and our disk and software revenue. Addressing these gaps is our top priority this year, and we
believe the recent general availability launch of DX17500, software licensing agreement with EMC, and
changes we’ve made in Sales and Marketing will all help in this regard.

With the launch of the DXi7500, we can now provide customers with end-to-end de-duplication and
replication through a single family of disk-based solutions that also integrates closely with tape and,
together, can all be deployed under a common management system. In addition, beyond providing the
capacity, performance, scalability and availability requnred in enterprise environments, the DXi17500 is
the first solution in the industry that provides policy-based de-duplication. Highlighting the flexibility of
the DXi7500, this means that customers can choose the de-duplication method that best meets their needs
for a specific backup job instead of being constrained by the limitations other vendors impose with a “one
size fits all” approach. :



Our leadership in de-duplication technology is also reflected in EMC’s decision to license our de-
duplication and replication software, which builds on the strong relationship we already have through
EMC’s reselling of our midrange and enterprise tape libraries. As EMC has stated, they.looked at the
target-based de-duplication.software of all the major players in the market and concluded that Quantum’s
technology was clearly best suited to meet the needs of their customers, EMC has incorporated this
software into three new products, which will generate licensing revenue for Quantum. '

Finally, we expect to grow our branded revenue through various changes we’ve made in Sales and
Marketing. This includes realigning our North American Sales organizational structure to create stronger
territories with greater opportunity to win deals, improving our lead generation - program, better
leveraging the DXi specialist team we created last year to support end-to-end solution sales and
implementation, and enhancing our engagement with top channel partners, independent software vendors
and server virtualization providers. ' : -

In closing, despite some of the challenges we had over the past year, there is much that we accomplished,
and we laid the foundation for greater success in FY09. We have a clearly defined strategy and set of
priorities, are well-positioned in one of the highest growth segments of storage (data de-duplication), and
have a unique combination of assets and expertise to address the evolving challenges customers face in
backup, recovery and archive — challenges which they continue to identify as among their top pain points
in storage. Our focus in the coming year is to leverage these strengths and opportunities to generate
higher-margin branded revenue growth while continuing to execute on our.core operating model.

We thank you for your continued support. ‘ : ..

Rick Belluzzo

Safe Harbor Statement under the. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993 for Quantum.Corporation

This letter contains certain "forward-looking" statements within the meaning of the Private Securitics Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Specifically, the
statements relating to; (1) our expectations regarding growing our business; (2) our expectations regarding the performance of cur products, including the
DXi7500; and (3) our expectations regarding future revenue, including our branded business revenue andl our revenue generated from our new licensing
arfangement with EMC, are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Safe Harbor. These statements are based on management’s current
expectations and are subject 1o risks and uncertainties that could ‘cause actual results to differ materially. Factors that could cause actuat results to differ
materially from those described herein include, but are not limited to, operational difficulties, unforeseen technical limitations, unexpected material deviation
in product operation, the ability of competitors to introduce new solutions that compete more successfully with our selutions, unexpected changes in market
conditions and unanticipated changes in customers’ needs or requirements. More detailed information about these risks, and addittonal risks, are set forth
under "Risk Factors” on pages |11-22 in the Company's Form 10-K for the annual period ended March 31, 2008 included with this letter. Quantum expressly
disclaims any ebligation to update or alter its forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.




QUANTUM CORPORATION

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON
) August 19, 2008

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Quantum Corporation (the “Company” or
“Quantum”), a Delaware corporation, will be held on Tuesday, August 19, 2008 at 8:00 a.m., Pacific Daylight Time, at
Quantum’s corpérate headquarters at 1650 Technology Drive, San Jose, CA 95110, for the following purposes:

. To elect nine directors recommended by the Board to serve until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until
their successors are elecied and duly qualified;

2. To authorize the Company’s Board of Directors to select and file one of several possible amendments to the
Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation which would effect a reverse stock split, pursuant to
which any whole number of outstanding shares of the Company’s Common Stock between and including four and
twelve would be combined tnto one share of such stock; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.

Only stackholders of record at the close of business on June 20, 2008 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting
and any adjournment thereof,

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. However, to ensure your representation at the
meeting, you are urged to vote, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy as promptly as possible in the postage-prepaid envelope
enclosed for that purpose. Any stockholder attending the meeting may vote in person even if he or she previously returned a
Proxy.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
Shawn D. Hall
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

San Jose, California
June 27, 2008




QUANTUM CORPORATION

PROXY STATEMENT

INFORMATION CONCERNIN(j SOLICITATION AND VOTING

General

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of Quantum Corporation (the “Company” or “Quantum”) for use at the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held August 19, 2008 at 8:00 a.m., Pacific Daylight Time, or at any adjournment or
- postponement, thereof (the “Annual Meeting” or “Meeting”), for the purposes set forth herein and in-the accompanying Notice

of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be held at the Company’s corporate headquarters at 1650
" Technology Drive, San Jose, CA 95110, The Company’s telephone number is {408) 944-4000 and the- Internet address for its
website is http://www.quantum.com.

These proxy solicitation materials were first made available to,the Company"s stockholders on or about June 27, 2008. A
copy of the Company’s Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 (“Fiscal 2008”), including
financial statements, was similarly made available to the stockholders of the Company prier to or concurrently with this Proxy
Statement. : .

Record Date; Outstanding Shares o ce L L

Stockholders of record at the close of business on June 20, 2008 (the “Record Date”) are entitled to notice of and to vote at
the Meeting. At the Record Date, 206,969,995 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, $0.01 par value (the “Common
Stock™), were issued and outstanding. The closing: price of the Common Stock on the Record Date, as reported by the New
York Stock Exchange, was $1.55 per share.
Revocability of Proxies '

b
'

Any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it at any time before it is voted. Proxies
may be revoked by (i) filing a written notice of revocation bearing a later date than the proxy with the Secretary of the
Company (currently Shawn D. Hall) at or before the taking of the vote at the Meeting, (i} duly executing a later dated proxy
relating to the same shares and dehvcrmg it to the Secretary of the Company at or before the taking of the vote at the Annual
Meeting or (iii) attending the Meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the Meeting will not in and of itself
constitute a revocation of a proxy). Any written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy must be delivered to the Secretary of
the Company at or before the taking of the vote at the Meeting. : X

Voting and Solicitation ) - . ,

Each share of Common Stock has one vote, as provided in the Company’s. Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation. Accordingly, a total of 206,969,995 votes may be cast at the Meeting. Holders of Common Stock vote together
as a single class on all matters covered by this Proxy Statement. For voting with respect to the election of directors,
stockholders may cumulate their votes. Cumulative voting will allow you to allocate among the director nominees, as you see
fit, the total number of votes equal to the number of director positions to be filled multiplied by the number of shares you hold. ..
For example, if you own 100 shares of Common Stock, and there are nine directors to be elected at the Annual Meeting, you
could allocate 900 "FOR" votes (nine times one hundred) among as few or as many of the nine nominees to be voted on at the
Meeting as you choose. Sce “PROPOSAL ONE — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS — REQUIRED. VOTE " C

In addition to using the accompanying proxy card, stockholders of record with Internet access may submit proxies by
following the “Vote by Internet” instructions on their proxy cards. Most stockholders who hold shares beneficially in street
name may vote by accessing the website spcc1f' ed on the votmg instructions card provided by their broker, trustee or nominee.

. The cost of soliciting proxies will be bome by the Company The Company has not rctamcd the services of a sohc1tor The
Company may reimburse brokerage firms and other persons representing beneficial owners of shares for their expenses in
forwarding solicitation material to such beneficial owners, Proxies may be solicited by certain of the Company’s directors,
officers and regular employees, without additional compensation, personally or by telephone, email or otherwise.




Stockholder Proposals (Other than for Nominees to the Board of Directors)

Proposals of stockhelders of the Company which are to-be presented at the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders for
the year ended March 31, 2009 must be received by the Secretary of the Company no later than March 4, 2009 to be considered
for inclusion in the proxy materials relating to that meeting. -

Altemnatively, under the Company’s Bylaws, a proposal that the stockholder does not seek to include in the Company’s
proxy materials for the 2009 annual meeting must be received by the Secretary of the Company not less than sixty (60) days
nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the meeting; provided, however, that in the event that less than seventy (70) days notice
or prior public disclosure of the date of the meeting is given or made to stockholders, notice by the stockholder to be timely
must be so received not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the day on which such notice of the date of
the annual meeting was mailed or such pubiic disclosure was made. The stockholder’s submission must include the information
specified in the Company’s Bylaws. E )

Proposals not meeting the requirements of the preceding paragraphs will be considered untimely and will not be
entertained at the 2009 annual meeting. Stockholders should contact the Secretary of the Company in writing at 1650
Technology Drive, Suite 800, San Jose CA 95110, to make any submission or to obtain additional information as to the proper
form and content of submissions.

As of the date of this proxy statement, the Company has not been notified by any stockholder of his or her intent to present
a stockholder proposal from the floor at this year’s Annual Meeting. The proxy card submitted with this Proxy Statement
grants the proxy holders discretionary authority to vote on any matter (other than stockholder proposals relating to nominees to
the Board of Directors) properly brought before the Annual Meeting.

Stockholder Proposals (for Nominees to the Board of Directors)

Nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors of the Company may be made by a stockholder of the
Company entitled to vote in the election of directors at the' meeting who complies with the notice procedures set forth in the
Company’s Bylaws. Such nominations, other than those made by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, shall be made
pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary of the Company. To be timely, a stockholder’s notice must be delivered to
or mailed and received at the principal executive offices of the Company not less than twenty (20) days nor more than sixty
(60) days prior to the meeting. The stockholder’s submission must include the information specified in the Company’s Bylaws,

Proposais not meeting the requirements of the preceding paragraph will be considered untimely and will not be entertained
at the 2009 annual meeting. Stockholders should contact the Secretary of the Company in writing at 1650 Technology Drive,
Suite 800, San Jose CA 95110, to make any subimission or to obtain additional information as to the proper form and content of
submissions.

The Company has not been notified by any stockholder of his or her intent to present any stockholder proposals for
nominees to the Board of Directors from the floor at this year’s Annual Meeting.

Quorum; Abstentions; Broker Non-Yotes

A majority, of the shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the Record Date will constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at the Annual Meeting.

While there is no-definite statutory or case law authority in Delaware as to the proper treatment of abstentions, the
Company believes that abstentions should be counted for purposes of determining both (i) the presence or absence of a quorum
for the transaction of business and (ii) the total number of shares entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting (*Votes Cast™) with
fespect to a proposal (other than a proposal relating to the election of directors). In the absence of controtling precedent to the
contrary, the Company intends to treat abstentions in this manner. Accordingly, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote
against the proposal (other than a proposal relating to the election of directors).

Broker non-votes (i.e., votes from shares held of record by brokers as to which the beneficial owners have given no voting
instructions) will be counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business,
but wili not be counted for purposes of determining the number of Votes Cast with respect to the particular proposal on which
the broker has expressly not voted. Accordingly, broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of the voting on a proposal that
requires a majority of the Votes Cast. A broker non-vote will make a quorum more readily attainable, but the broker non-vote
will not otherwise affect the outcome of the vote on a proposal. '




Section 16(a). Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s Section 16 officers, directors and persons who own more than
tenr percent {10%) of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities to file reports of ownership and changes in
ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Such executive officers, directors and greater than ten-
percent stockholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish the Company with copies of all forms that they file pursuant to
Section 16(a). Based solely on its review of the copies of such reports received by the Company. or on written representations
from certain reporting persons, the Company believes that all required filings were timely made during Fiscal 2008, except for
one report for Mr. William Britts and one report for Mr. Stephen Dalton, each disclosing one transaction. These late filings
resulted in no liability to the individuais under Section 16(b).

t

PROPOSAL ONE

" ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Nominees

There are nine nominees for election to the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) this year. All of the nominees are
currently serving on the Board. Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the
nominees named below. Each nominee has consented to be named as a nominee in the Proxy Statement and to serve as a
director if elected. In the event that additional persons are nominated at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxy holders
intend to vote all proxies received by them in such a manner (in accordance with cumulative voting) as will ensure the election
of as many of the nominees listed below as possible (or, if new nominees have been designated by the Board, in such a manner
as to elect such nominees). In such event, the specific nominees for whom such votes will be cumulated will be determined by
‘the proxy holders. The Company is not aware of any reason that any nominee will be unable or will decline to serve as a
director. The term of office of each person elected as a director will continue until the next annual meeting of stockholders or
until a successor has been elected and qualified. There are no arrangements or understandings between any director or
executive officer and any other person pursuant to which he or she is or was to be selected as a director or off‘ icer of the

Company v

-
’

The Board’s key roles include, but are not limited to: (i) the selection and evaluation of the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer (*CEQO”), and overseeing CEO succession planning; (i) advising the CEO and management on Company strategies;
(tii) reviewing and approving the CEO’s objectives; (iv) approving acquisitions, divestitures and other significant corporate
actions; (v) advising the CEO on the performance of senior management, and significant organizational changes, including
succession planning; and (vi) approving the annual operating financial plan,




The names of the nominees and certain information about them as-of June 1, 2008, are set forth below,

Director -

Name of Nominee Age Since Principal Occupation Since
Paul R. Auvil I11* 44 2007 Chief Financial Officer, Proofpoint, 2006

. . ’ ~r Chief Executive Offjcér of Quantum, 2002
Richard E. Belluzzo >4 2002 Chairman of the Board of Quantum, 2003 ,

. Chairman of the Board of Line 6, 2005
Michael A. Brownf 49 1995 Former Chairman of Quantum, 2003
Thomas S. Buchsbaum*{ 58 2005 Independent Consultant, 2005
Edward M. Esber, Jr.*t 55 1988 General Partner, The Halo Funds, 2006
Elizabeth A. Fetter+ ‘ 49 2005 Former Prqsident, Chief Executive Officer and Director of Jacent

Technologies, 2007

Joseph A. Marengi+ 54 2007 Venture Partner, 2007
Bruce A. Pasternack+ 60 2007 Venture Partner, CMEA Ventures, 2007 ' .
Dennis P. Wolf* 55 2007 Former Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,

MySQL, AB, 2008

* Member of the Audit Committee.
+ Member of the Leadership and Compensation Committee.

-+ Member of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committce.

Except as set forth below, each of the nominees has been engaged in his or her principal eccupation described above during
the past five years. There are no family relationships between any directors or executive officers of the Company.

Mr. Paul R. Auvil I has served as Chief Financial Officer of Proofpoint, Inc., a provider of messaging security solutions,
since March 2006. Before Proofpoint, Mr. Auvil was an entrepreneur-in-residence for six months with Benchmark Capital, a
venture capital firm, from October 2006 to March 2007. From August 2002 to July 2006, Mr. Auvil was Chief Financial
Officer of VMware, Inc. Prior to joining VMware, Mr. Auvil served four years as Chief Financial Officer at Vitria Technology.
Earlier in his career, he spent ten years at VLSI Technology, ultimately becoming vice president and general manager of the
Internet and Secure Products Division, Mr. Auvil is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,

Mr. Richard E. Belluzzo has been Chicf Executive Officer since joining the Company in September 2002 and Chairman of
the Board since July 2003. Before joining Quantum, from September 1999 to May 2002, Mr. Belluzzo held senior management
positions with Microsoft Corp., most recently President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to Microsoft, from January 1998 to
September 1999, Mr. Belluzzo was Chief Executive Officer of Silicon Graphics, Inc. Before his tenure at Silicon Graphics,
from 1975 to January 1998, Mr. Belluzzo was with Hewlett-Packard, most recently as Executive Vice President of the
computer organization. Currently Mr. Belluzzo is a rnember of the board of directors of PMC-Sierra and JDS Uniphase.

Mr. Michael A. Brown served as Chief Executive Officer of Quantum from September 19935 to September 2002 and as
Chairman of its Board of Directors from May 1998 to July 2003. From 1993 to September 1995, he was President of the
Company’s desktop group, from 1992 to 1993 he was Chief Operating Officer responsible for the Company’s hard disk drive
business, and from 1984 to 1992 he held various marketing position with the Company. Mr. Brown also serves as Chairman of
the board of directors of Line 6 and on the boards of Nektar Therapeutics and Symantec Corporation. Mr. Brown is the Chair
of the Company’s Corporate Governance and Nominating Committec.




Mr. Thomas S. Buchsbaum has been an independent consultant since March 2005, From March 1997 to March 2005, Mr.
Buchsbaum served as vice president of the U.S. Federal Business Segment, as well as Vice President and General Manager of
the K12 and Higher Education customer segments of Dell, Inc. Before Dell, Mr. Buchsbaum spent ten years at Zenith Data
Systems, a computer manufacturing company, until February 1997, where he was General Manager for the federal systems
business unit and General Manager of the state and local government and education segments. From 1989 to 2004, Mr.
Buchsbaum served on the board of directors and the compensation commitiee of Group | Software, Inc., an application
software provider. Mr. Buchsbaum also serves as an advisor to the board of Dick Blick Holdings and is a member of the
Advisory Board of Augmentix Corp. Mr. Buchsbaum is the Board’s lead independent director and ds a member of ‘the
Company’s Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee and the Audit Committee.

Mr. Edward M. Esber Jr. has served as General Partner of the Halo Funds since December 2006, as Chairman and
President of The Esber Group, a strategy consulting firm, since February 1991, and has been an angel investor in The Angels
Forum since 1997. Mr. Esber also serves on the boards of directors of iTaggit, Inc. and Panterra Networks, Mr. Esber is a
member of the Company’s Corporate, Governance and Nominating Committee and the Audit Compmittee. N

Ms. Elizabeth A. Fetter served as President and Chief Executive Officer and a director of .Iacent Teehnolog:es Inc., an
order automation company for the restaurant industry from March 2007 to September 2007. Previously, from October 2001 to
November 2004 she served as President and Chief Executive Officer, and a director, of QRS Corp., a retail supply chain
software and services company. Prior to joining QRS from Marcl 1999 to April 2001, Ms. Fetter was Président, Chief
Executive Officer, and a director, of NorthPoint Communications, a broadband services company and from January 1998 to
March 1999 was Vice President and General Manager of the Consumer Services Group at US. West (now Qwest), a
telecommunications company. Before US West, she was an officer at SBC/Pacific Bell, where she held a number of senior
leadership positions. Ms. Fetter also serves on the board of directors of Symmetricom, Inc. and several non-profit
organizations. Ms. Fetter is the Chair of the Company’s Leadership and Compcnsatlon Commmee ‘

Mr. Joseph A. Mareng: has been employed asa venrure partner. for Austin Vcntures a venture capital fi nn since August
2007. His focus is on the hardware and software industry. Prior to joining Austin Ventures he worked for Dell Inc. from June
1997 to March 2007, serving as Senior Vice President of the Corporate Business Group for four years before becoming Senior
Vice President of Dell Americas and later Senior Vice President of the Commercial Business Group. Previously, Mr. Marengi
served in various executive leadership roles at Novell Systems, Inc., most recently as President and Chief Operaung Officer of
Channels. Prior to Novell, Mr. Marengi held various executive, sales and information managemcnt positions in the technology
and defense industries. Mr. Marengi also serves on the board of directors. of Hovnanian Enterpnses Inc. .Mr. Marengi is a
member of the Company’s Leadership and Compensatlon Commitice._

Mr. Bruce A. Pasternack served as pre51dent and Chief Exccutwe Ofﬁcer of Special Olympics, from May 2005 1o May
2007. Prior to that, Mr. Pasternack served as senior vice pre31dent and managing partner at Booz Allen Hamiltoh from 1976 to
May 2005, where he was the founding partner of the company’s global Organization and Strategic Leadership Center, led its
San Francisco and Silicon Valley business and was a member of the board of directors. Earlier in his career, he served as
associate administrator for Policy and Program Management in the U.S. Federal. Energy Administration (now Department of
Energy). Mr. Pasternack also serves on the boards of BEA Systems, Symyx Technologies and Codexis Inc., as well as the
board of trustees of The Cooper Union. Mr. Pasternack is.a member of the Company’s Leadership and , Compensation
Committee. NI o }

Mr. Dennis P. Wolf served as Executive Vice President and Ch1el' Financial Officer 'for MySQL, AB, an open source
database company from July 2005 to February 2008, where he was responsible for managing the company's f inance operations
untit MySQL was acquired by Sun Microsystems. From March 2005 through June 2005, Mr. Woif served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Hercules Technology Growth Capital, including during the _company’s initial public
offering. From February 2003 to June 2005, Mr. Wolf served as Chief- Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of
Omnicell, Inc., where he was responsible for finance, operations and research and development Prior to Omnicell, Mr. Wolf
held financial management positions for public high technology companies including Credence Systems, Centigram, Apple
Computer, and Sun Microsystems. He also currently serves on the board of Codexis, and has been a board member and chair of
the audit committee for Nasdag-listed companies including Komag and Vitria Technology Mr. Wolf is the Chair of the
Company’s Audit Committee.




Board Independence

Quantum's Corporate Governance Principles provide that a majority of the Board shall consist of independent directors,
The Board has determined that none of the director nominees standing for election, except for Richard E. Belluzzo, has a
material relationship with Quantum (either directly or as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organization that has a
relationship with Quanturn) and is independent within the meaning of Quantum s director independence standards set forth in
Quanfum’s Corporate Governance Principles, a copy of which may be found on our website located at
http://www.quantum.com, by clicking “Investors” from the home page and selecting “Corporate Governance.” These standards
reflect all applicable regulations, including the rules of the New York Stock Exchange and the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Board Meetings and Committees

The Board of Directors of the Company held a total of eight (8) meetings during Fiscal 2008. In addition, in Fiscal 2008,
the non-management directors held four (4) meetings without management present. During Fiscal 2008, all of our directors
standing for election attended at least 75% of the meetings of the Board and the meetings of committees, if any, upon which
such director served. All of our directors are expected to attend each meeting of the Board and the committees on which they
serve and are encouraged to attend annual stockholder meetings, to the extent reasonably poss:ble All of our directors who
were elected at our 2007 annual meeting attended our 2007 annual mecting.

The Company has an Audit Committee, a Le'ldCI‘Ship and Compensation Committee, and a Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee. Thomas S. Buchsbaum is the Company’s Iead mdependem director and as such presides at the non-
management directors’ meetings.

'

The Audit Committee of the Board currently consists of Mr. Denni$ P. Wolf, Chair of the commitiee, Mr. Paul R. Auvil,
Mr. Thomas S. Buchsbaum and Mr. Edward M. Esber, Jr. all of whom are independent directors and financially literate, as
defined in the applicable New York Stock Exchange listing standards and SEC rules and regulations. Our Board has determined
that Dennis P. Wolf is an audit committee financial expert as defined by SEC rules. The Audit Committee, which gencrally
meets at least twice per quarter, once prior to quarterly earnifgs releases and again prior to the filing of the Company ]
quarterly and annual reports with the Securities and Exchange Comniission, appoints the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm and is responsible for approving the services performed by the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm and for reviewing and evaluating the Company’s accounting principles and its systems of internal
accounting controls. At cach meeting, the Audit Committee first meets with Company management and the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm in order to review financia! results and conduct other appropriate business. Then,
the Audit Committee typically meets with the Company’s independent registered public accounting fitm, without the presence
of management. The Audit Committee held a total of eight (8) meetings during Fiscal 2008,

' The Leadeérship and Compensation Committee of the Board is currently composed of Ms.-Elizabeth A. Fettet, Chair of the
committee, Mr. Joseph A, Marengi and Mr. Bruce A. Pasternack, all of whom are independent directors, as defined in the
applicable New York Stock Exchange listing standards.. The Leadership and Compensation Committee generally meets in
conjunction with Board meetings and at other times as deemed necessary by the committee or the Board. The Company’s lead
- “independent director typically attends the committee meetings. The committee held a total of five (5) meetings during Fiscal
2008. The committee operates under a written charter that is reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. The committee’s
charter was last reviewed and approved on January 30 2008. The committee's primary mission is to ensure the Company
provides appropriate leadership and compensation pmg,rams to enable the successful execution of its corporate strategy and
objectives and to ensure the Company's programs "and practices are market competitive and consistent with corporate
governance best practices. The committee’s primary objectives are to (1) review and approve the Company’s compensation
philosophy, strategy and practices, (2) review and make recommendations to the Board regarding executive and non-employee
director compensation programs and (3) review the’ Company's strategy and practices relating to the attraction, retention,
development performance and successwn of its l(.adershlp team The committee’s primary responsibilities under the charter
mclude

Evaiuation, Strategy & Policies

e Review and approve annuaily the Company's compensation philosophy, strategy and practices.
" s Review the Company's strategy for managing its employees worldwide, including actions and programs which support
the Company’s pay-for-performance philosophy and human resources strategy.
. » Oversee and review the development and succession plans of the CEO's direct reports and all other vice presidents.
o Review and approve, at least annually, the goals and objectives of the CEQ.
e Evaluate, at least annually, the performance of the CEOQ in relation to the established goals and objectives.

6




CEO &IExecutive Compensat.ion .

+  Conduct an annual review of the CEQ's compensation package and, either as a Committee (or together with the other
independent directors, as directed by the Board, but without the presence of the CEQ or other members of the
‘management team) determine and approve all clements:of the CEO's compensation to ensure it is reasonable,
performance-based and atigned with the Company's strategic plans and objectives. -

* Review and approve the performance objectives of the executive officers and vice presidents under the Executive
Officer Annuat Incentive Plan ("Incentive Plan"} or'the Quantum Incentive Plan ("QIP") in accordance with the terms
of the Incentive Plan or the QIP to ensure consistency with the Company's strategic plans and objectives. The
Committee shali also review the Incentive Plan or QIP penodlcaﬂy for contmued effecuveness and recommend any
modifications to the Board.

¢ Oversee, at least annually, the evaluation of the executwc offi icers and vice pre&dents in relanon to the established
objectives.

* Review and approve the compensatxon packages for the executive officers {other than the CEO) and vice presidents
(mcludmg all "plan” compensatlon as such term is defined in Item 402 of Reégulation S-K promulgated by the
Securitics and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), to be provided to the executive officers and vice presidents).

¢ Review and approve all employment contracts, consulting contracts, change of control agreéments, special termination
arrangements or retirement arrangements to be paid to non-employee directors, the CEQ, the executive officers and all
other Company vice presidents. ‘

e Review and approve the impact of change in control and other transactions on overall compensation plans; and make

- recommendations to the Board regarding any special compensation actions related thereto. :

Incentive Plans

* Review and approve the general terms and provisions of any short-term or long-term incentive plans for aII other

Company employees.

¢ Administer the Company's various stock incentive plans. In the administration of such plans, the Committee may,
pursuant to authority delegated by the Board, (1) grant awards to individuals eligible for such grants (including grants
to individuals subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act in compliance with Rule, 16b-3.promulgated thercunder), and
(2) amend such awards. The Committee shall also make recommendations to the Board with respect to amendments
to the plans and changes in the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder and shall review the plans' impact on
sharcholder value and dilution. . .
¢ Review executive compensation plans as they pertain to the executive officers and al] other vice preSIdents to

understand and consider their compliance with IRC 162(m).

Committee Review & Reports

e Review annually the adequacy of its Committee Charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for
approval. ‘ '

e  Conduct an annual performance evaluation of the Committee. - < -
Review and make recommendations to the Board regarding all Board compensation programs. '

e Produce written reports to the Board regarding recommendations of the Comimittee submitted to the Board for action,
and copies of the written minutes of its meetings. The Committee may also report and/or communicate any matters to
outside agencies and stockholders, as appropriate, and respond to shareholder concerns.

e Review and discuss with the Company’s Management the Compensation, Discussion & Analysis ("CD&A") required
by Item 402 of Regulation S-K promuigated by the SEC. _ .

»  Recommend to the Board that the CD&A be included in the Company's annua} report or proxy statement.

e Prepare the required compensation committee report for inclusion in the Company's annual report or proxy statement.

¢  Oversee the preparation by Management of all disclosures required by Item 402 of Reguldtlon S- K mcludmg the
tabular presentations and related narrative discussions.

The committee has the power to delegate its authority to the Company’s management or to a subcomniittee {subject to
limitations of applicable law and provided that the committee may not delegate its authority as it relates to the compensation of
the CEO and the other Section 16 officers), but did not do so during Fiscal 2008. The committee is also empowered to hire
outside consultants and advisors in connection with performing its duties.




The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is currently composed of Mr. Michael A. Brown, Chair of the
committee, Mr, Thomas §. Buchsbaum and Mr. Edward M. Esber, Jr., all of whom are independent directors, as defined in the
applicable New York Stock Exchange listing standards. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, which meets
at least twice annually, assists the Board by identifying and recommending prospective director nominees, develops corporate
governance principles for Quantum, advises the Board on corporate governance matters, including composition, procedures and
committees, recommends to-the Board a lead independent director, oversees the ¢valuation of the Board, considers questions of
possible conflicts of interest of Board members and of senior executives and oversees and reviews the process for succession
planning of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee will consider
nominees recommended by stockholders pursuant to the procedures outlined in the Company’s Bylaws and as set forth herein.
The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee held four (4) meetings during Fiscal 2008.

Each of our committees is governed by a written charter, copies of which are posted on our website. The Internet address
for our website is http://www.quantum.com, where the charters may be found by clicking “Investors™ from the home page and
selecting “Corporate Governance.” A free printed copy of the charters also is available to any stockholder who requests it from
Quantum’s Investor Relations Department at the address stated below in the Section of this Proxy Statement entitled
“Communicating with the Company” or who submits an online request by visiting the Company’s website at
http://www.quantum.com, where the request form may be found by clicking “Investors” from the home page and selecting
“Contact Investor Relations,” ’ '

Director Education

The Company’s Corporate Governance Principles encourage directors to pursue ongoing education and development
studies on topics that they deem relevant given their individual backgrounds and committee assignments. In Fiscal 2008, one
director attended an 1SS-accredited director education program.

Consideration of Director Nominees
Stockholder Recommendations and Nominations
Recommendations

It is the policy of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee to consider recommendations for candidates to the
Board from stockholders. A stockholder that desires to recommend a candidate for election to the Board must direct the
recommendation in writing to Quantum Corporation, attention: Company Secretary, 1650 Technology Drive, San Jose, CA
95110. The letter must include the candidate’s name, contact information, detailed biographical data, relevant qualifications (in
light of Quantum’s established director considerations, as described below), information regarding any relationships between
the candidate and Quantum, a statement from the recommending stockholder in support of the candidate, references and a
written indication by the candidate of her or his willingness to serve, if elected.

Nominations

A stockholder that desires to nominate a person directly for election to the Board must meet the deadlines and other
requirements set forth in Section 2.5 of Quantum’s Bylaws and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Quantum’s Bylaws can be found- on our website. The Internet address for our website is
http;//www.quantum.com, where the Bylaws may be found by clicking “Investors” from the home page and then selecting
“Corporate Governance.”

Identifying and Evaluating Nominees for Director

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee uses the following procedures to idéntify and evaluate individuals
recommended or offered for nomination to the Board:

e  The committee regularly reviews the current composition and size of the Board.

e The committee annually evaluates the performance of the Board as a whole and the performance and qualifications of
individual members of the Board eligible for re-election at the annual meeting of stockholders.

e Inevaluating and identifying candidates, the committee has the authority to retain and terminate any third party search
firm that is used to identify director candidates and has the authority to approve the fees and retention terms of any
search firm.
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Specific considerations include 1'he following:

The committee reviews the qualifications of any candidate who has been properly recommended or nominated by a
;Stockholder, as well as any candidate who has been identified by management, individual members of the Board or, if
'the committee determines, a search firm. Such review may, in the committee’s discretion, include a’review solely of
information provided to the committee or may also include discussions with persons familiar with the candidate, an
interview with the candidate or other actions that the commmee deerns proper, including the retention of third parties
to review potential candidates.

The committee will .evaluate each candidate in light of the general and specific considerations that follow. The
committee evaluates all nominees, whether or not recommended by a stockholder, in the same manner, as described in
this Proxy Statement.

After rev1ewm§, and considering all candidates presented to the commlttee the committee will recommend a slate of
director nominees to be approved by the full Board. :

The committee will endeavor to promptly notify, or cause to be notified, all dlrector candidates of its decision as to
whether to nominate such individual for election to the Board.

General Considerations

A candidate will be considered in the context of the current perceived needs of the Board as a whole. Generaily, the
Corporate Governance and Nominating Comumittee ‘believes that candidates and nominees must reflect a Board that is
comprised of directors who (i) are predominantly independent, (ii) are of high integrity, (iii) have qualifications that will
increase overall Board effectiveness and (iv) meet other requirements as may be required by applicable rules, such as financial
literacy or financial expertise with respect to audit committee members.

Specific Considerations

'

The current size and composition of the Board and the needs of the Board dnd its committees. o
Previous experience serving on a public company board or as a member of the senior management of a public
company.

. Whether the -candidate would be an mdcpendem director as defined under all apphcable regulations, including the
rules of the NYSE and the SEC,
The possession of such knowledge, experience, skills, expertise. and dwersnty so as to enhance the Board‘s ability to
manage and direct the affairs and business of the Company.
Key personal characteristics such as strateglc thinking, objectivity, independent Judgmcm lmegnty, intellect and the
courage to speak out and actively participate in meetings.
Knowledge of, and familiarity with, information technology.
The absence of conflicts of interest with the Company’s business. .
A willingness to devote a sufficient amount of time to carry out his or her duties and respohsibilities effectively,
including, at a minimum, a commitment to attend at least six Board meetings per year and to serve on a committce.
Commitment to serve on the Board for an extended period of time.- .
Diversity of thinking or background. T
Such other factors as the Corporate Governance and Nominating Commitice may consider appropriate.

The Company believes that all of the nominees for election to our Board meet the general and specific considerations
outlined above. . . . N

. . !
All of the nominees for election to our Board have previously served as Quantum directors.




Communications to ¢the Board

~ Stockholders, employees and other interested parties may ‘contact the Board,.the Company’s lead independent director, the
non-management directors as a group or any of our directors by writing to them c/o Quantum Corporation, attention: Company
Secretary, 1650 Technology Drive, Suite 800, San Jose CA 95110, or by email at Boardoﬂ)irectors@Quantum com, If any
such interested parties wish to contact the Board, a member of the Audit Committee, the Coimpany’s lead independent director,
our non-management directors as a group or any of our directors to report a concem about Quantum’s conduct or about
questionable accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, such parties may do so anonymously by using the
address above and designating the communication as “confidential.” Alternatively, concerns may be reported anonymously by
phone or via the world-wide-web to the following toli-free phone number or Internet address 1-866-ETHICSP ‘(1-866-384-
4277); www.ethicspoint.com. These resources are opetated by Ethicspoint, an external third-party vendor that has trained
professionals to take calls, in confidence, and to report concerns to the appropriate persons for proper handling.
Communications raising safety, security or privacy concems or that otherwise relate to improper activities will be addressed in
an appropriate manner.

Director Compensation

.. During the first and second.quarters of Fiscal 2008, each dircctor who was not an employee of the Company (each, a
*Nonemployee Director”) received quarterly retainers of $10,500 and an additional quarterly retainer of $1,875 for each
committee on which he or she served. The retainers were paid 75% in cash and 25% in restricted stock units. The restricted
stock units vest 50% upon grant and 50% after one year from the grant date, provided that the director continues to be a
member of Quantum’s Board at that time,

During the third and fourth quarters of Fiscal 20008, Nonemployee Directors received quarterly retainers of $10,000 and an
additional quarterly retainer of $1,875 for serving on the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, of $2,500 for
serving on the Leadership and Compensation Committee and of $3,125 for serving on the Audit Committee, alt of which were
,paid in cash. . ) ) ] .

In addition, during the first and second quarters of Fiscal 2008, the Chair of cach Board committce and the lead
independent director received the following quarterly retainers, all of which were paid in cash: $2;500 for the Chair of the
Audit Committee and for the lead independent director and $1,875 for the Chair of the Leadership and Compensation
Committee and for the Chair of the Govenance and Nominating Committee. For the third and fourth quarters of Fiscal 2008,
these quarterly retainers were modified and paid as follows: $6,250 for the lead independent director, $1,875 for the Chair of

" the Audit Committee and for the Chair of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee and $1,250 for the Chair of
the Leadership and Compensation Committee. No per-meeting fees are paid.

During Fiscal 2008, each Nonemployee Director also received an annual grant of stock options and restricted stock units
under the Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on August 17, 2007 (the ‘Plan™), which was
approved by the Company’s stockholders at the 2003 and the 2007 annual meetings of Stockholders. Each Nonemployee
Director was provided with the opportunity to elect to receive the annual grant solely as restricted stock units, or 50% in stock
options and 50% in restricted stock units, The Board, in its discretion, selects Nonemployee Directors to whom options and/or
restricted stock units may be granted, the time or times at which such options and/or restricted stock units may be granted, the
number of shares subject to each grant and the period over which such options become exercisable. During Fiscal 2008,
Michael A. Brown;, Thomas S. Buchsbaum, Alan L. Earhart, Edward M. Esber, Jr. and Elizabeth A. Fetter each received an
option to purchase 33,000 shares of Commeon Stock and 11,000 restricted stock units. Joseph A. Marengi received an option to
purchase 11,000 shares of Common Stock and 3,667 restricted stock units. Bruce A. Pasternack and Dennis P. Wolf each
received an option to purchase 5,500 shares of Common Stock and 1,833 restricted stock units. All options were granted at an
exercise price of $3.30. The options and the restricted stock units vest as follows: 25% vests on each of December 1, 2007,
March i, 2008, June 1, 2008 and September 1, 2008.

In addition to the option grant to Mr. Marengi described in the immediately preceding paragraph, in connection with Mr.
Marengi’s appointment to Quanturn’s board of directors on May 21, 2007, he received an option to purchase 45,000 shares of
Common Stock at a per share exercise price of $3.09, of which 22,500 vested on June 1, 2008 and the remaining 22,500 will
vest quarterly in equal installments over the following year, and an option to purchase 5,000 shares at a per share exercise price
of $3.21, of which 2,500 shares vested on June 1, 2008 and the remaining 2,500 shares will vest quarterly in equal installments
over the following twelve months. In addition, he received a total of 26,687 restricted stock units, 1,687 of these units vested
on September 1, 2007, 12,500 will vest on September 1, 2008 and the remaining 12,500 will vest quarterly in equat installments
over the following year.
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In addition to the option grant to Messrs, Pasternack and Wolf described above, in connection with Mr. Pasternack’s and
Mr. Wolf’s joining Quantum’s board of directors on July 12, 2007, each received an option to purchase 45,000 shares of
Common Stock at a per share exercise price of $2.83, of which 22,500 will vest on July 1, 2008 and the remaining 22,500 will
vest quarterly in equal installments over the following year, and an option to purchase 5,000 shares of Common Stock at a per
share exercise price of $3.21, of which 2,500 shares will vest on July 1, 2008 and the remaining 2,500 shares will vest quarterly
in equal installments over the following year. In addition, each received a total of 25,943 restricted stock units. 943 of the
restricted stock tnits vested on September 1, 2007, 12,500 will vest on September 1, 2008 and the remaining 12,500 will vest
quarterly in equal installments over the following vear.

Paul R. Auvil Il was appointed to Quantum’s board of directors effective August 23, 2007. During Fiscal 2008, Mr. Auvil
received an option to purchase 50,000 stock options at an exercise price of $3.21 and 25,000 restricted stock units. 50% of the
option and of the restricted stock units will vest on September 1, 2008 and the remainder of the option and the restricted stock
units will vest quarterly in equal installments over the following year.

All options granted to Nonemployee Directors in Fiscal 2008 contain the following terms: (i) the exercise price per share of
Common Stock was 100% of the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date the option was granted; (ii)
the options expire seven years after the date of grant; and (iii) the option may be exercised only while the director remains a
director or within 3 years after the date the dircctor ceases to be a director of the Company, or such longer period as may be
determined by the administrator of the Plan,

The Board generally may amend or terminate the Plan at any time and for any reason, except that the Board will obtain
stockholder approval for material amendments to such plan, as required by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange.

Employee directors receive no additional compensation for their service on the Board or on committees of the Board.
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Compensation paid to the Nonemployee Directors during Fiscal 2008 is set forth in the following Director Compensation
Table. :

Change in Pension

' : . . Value and
. Nonqualified
Fees Earned  Stock Non Equity Deferred
or Paid in Awards Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Name Cash ) - B6) Awards®” Compensation Earnings Compensation  Total
Auvil i, Paul R. $26,250 © $23242  $18,243 $0 $0 % 0 $ 67,735
Brown, Michael A. $48,875 $30,219 $32.326 $0 $0 $ 0 $111,420
Buchsbaum, Thomas S.  $67,625 $30,433  $50472 30 . 80 $ 0 $148,530
Earhart, Alan L. $38,563  $10,363  $21,695 $0 ' $0 $ 0 $ 70,621
Esber, Ir., Edward M. $57,000  $27,736  $39,799 0 $0 $5 0 $124,535
Fetter, Elizabeth A. $47,938  $30,989  $45,547 $0 $0 $ 0 $124,474
Marengi, Joseph A, $38,922 $37,183 $33,466 $0 80 $ 0 $109,571
Partridge, John M. $13,922  ($7.289)%  ($27,532)* $0 S0 . $39,900%  $ 19,001
Pasternack, Bruce A. $34,281 $31,208 $24 485 50 $0 $ 0 $ 89,974
Wheelwright, Steven C.  $18,219  ($8,394)* ($22,966)* $0 $0 $39,900%  $ 26,759
Wolf, Dennis P. $37,406  $31,208  $24,485 $0 $0 $ 0 $ 93,099
* Negative amounts causéd by forfeitures of restricted stock units and of stock options upon resignation as a director of the Quantum board.
(M Fees Earned or Paid in Cash include the following:
Committee Lead Independent

Name Bourd Reainer | Retamer - Retafner Retainer __ Paidin Cash

Auvil I1I, Paul R.® $20,000 $ 6,250 $ 0 $ 0 $26,250

Brown, Michael A. $35,750 $ 6,562.50 $6,562.50' h) 0 $48,875

Buchsbaum, Thomas S. $35,750 $15,625 $ 0 $16,250 $67,625

Earhart, Alan L.’ $25,750 $ 5,938 $6,875 $ 0 $38,563

Esber, Jr., Edward M. $35,750 $18,437.50“  $2,812.50® $ 0 $57,000

Fetter, Elizabeth A. $35,750 $ 7,813 $4,375@ § 0 $47,938

Marengi, Joseph A.® $31,813 $ 7,109 s 0 § 0 $38,922

Partridge, John M. $11,813 $ 2,109 $ 0 s 0 $13,922

Pasternack, Bruce A, $27,875 $ 6,406 $ 0 S 0 $34,281

Wheelwright, Steven C.%  §11,812.50 $ 4,218.75 $ 937.50 $ 1,250 $18,219

Wolf, Dennis P."V $27,875 $ 4,531 $5,000 $ 0 $37,406

(a) The retainers reflect partial years of service.

(@ Values represent dollar amounts recognized in Fiscal 2008 and are calculated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123R (“SFAS No. 123R™). Assumptions underlying the valuation are included in the Company’s Annval Report on Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 13, 2008.

3 Includes portion of annual board, committee and committec chair retainers paid in restricted stock units.




+ (&) On August 28, 2006 in connection with the annualdirector compensation cycle; John Partridge and Steven Wheelwright were cach granted
35,000 stock options at $2.00 per share, the fair market value of Quantum’s common stock on the date. of grant, that were to vest on the one year
anniversary of the grant datc. Because Messrs. Partridge and Wheclwnght did not seck rc—elemon to the board last year, their board service
ended effeetive on the date of last year’s annual meeting of stockholders, August 17, 2007, and their stock options did not vest. Since Massrs.
Partridge and Wheelwright had fulfilled their duties for their full year of scrvice, the Board determined that it was fair and appropriate to
compensate them for the value of these stock options as if they had vested on August 28, 2007, The closing price of Quantum’s commeon stock
on August 28, 2007 was $3.14. Therefore, the Board approved and the Company paid to Messrs. Partridge and Wheelwrlght cash amounts equal
tothe gexcess of the fair market valie of Quantum commgon stock on August 28, 2007 over the per share exercise price of the options (i.e., $3 14 -
$2.00% $I 14y multiplied by 35, 000 sharcs or $39,900 to edch 1nd1v1dual

Leadership and Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partiéipatinn in Compensation Decisions

The members of the Company’s Leadership and Compensation Commiittee are Ms. Elizabeth A. Fetter, Chair of the
committee, Mr. Joseph A. Marengi and Mr. Bruce A. Pasternack. No member of the Leadership and Compensation Committee
is currently, nor has any been at any time since the formation of the Company, an officer or employee of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries. Likewise, no member of the Leadership and Compensation Committee has entered into a transaction, or
series of similar transactions, inwhich they will have a direct or ihdirect material interest adverse to the Company.

Required Vote

Each stockholder voting in' the election of directors may cumulate such stockholder’s votes and give one candidate a
number of votes equal to thé'number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to which the stockholder’s
shares are entitled. Alternatively, a stockholder may distributé the stockholder’s votes-ori the same principle among as many
candidates as the stockholder would like, provided that votés' cannot-be cast for more than nine (9) candidates. However, no
stockholder shall be entitled to-cumulate votes for a candidate unless such candidate’s ndme has been properly placed in
nomination according to the Company’s Bylaws, notice of the intention to cumulate votes is received at the principal executive
offices of the Company at least twenty (20), and no more than sixty (60}, days prior to the Annual Meeting and a proxy card
has been submitted to the Company in accordance with this Proxy Statement. The proxy holders may exercise discretionary
authority to cumulaté votes and to allocate such votes among management § nomlnees in the event that additional persons are
" nominated at the Annual Meeting for election of cltrectors : '

v
L]

If a quorum is present and voting, the nine nominees for director receiving the highest number of votes will be elected to
the Board. Votes-withheld from any director aré counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum, but
have no other legal effect under Delaware law, See “Quorum; Abstentions; Broker Non-Votes.”

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” EACH OF THE NOMINEES LISTED ABOVE.

i
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PROPOSAL TWO

TO AUTHORIZE THE COMPANY’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO SELECT AND FILE ONE OF SEVERAL
POSSIBLE AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY’S AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF
INCORPORATION WHICH WOULD EFFECT A REVERSE STOCK SPLIT, PURSUANT TO WHICH ANY
WHOLE NUMBER OF OUTSTANDING SHARES OF THE COMPANY’S COMMON STOCK BETWEEN AND
INCLUDING FOUR AND TWELVE WOULD BE COMBINED INTO ONE SHARE OF SUCH STOCK.

Overview K : : L
Our Board of Directors has considered amendments to the: Gertificate which would effect a reverse stock split of all
outstanding shares of Common Stock at-an exchange ratio ranging from-one-for-four to one-for-twelve. The Board of Directors
has recommended that these proposed amendments be presented to the stockholders for approval You are'now being asked to
" approve this Proposal which would authorize the following: ‘
1) The Board of Dlrectors would be allowed to choose a rangc betwecn and 1noludmg 4:1 and 12:1 for a reverse stock
' split. ‘

2) The number of authorized number of shares of Comrmon Stock and Preferred Stock of the Company would be reduced
in the same proportion to the reduction in-outstanding common shares. '
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3} Ewven with stockholder approval of this proposal, the Board of Directors would not be obligated to pursue the reverse
stock split. Rather, directors would have the flexibility to decide whether or not a reverse stock split (and at what
ratio) would be in the best interests of the Company. '

Upon receiving stockholder approval, the Board of Directors will have the sole discretion pursuant to Section 242(c) of
the Delaware General Corporation Law to elect, as it determines to be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders,
whether or not to effect a reverse stock split, and if so, the number of shares of Common Stock between and including four and
twelve which will be combined into one share of Common Stock, at any time before the next annual meeting of stockholders.
The board believes that stockholder approval of these amendments granting the Board of Directors this discretion, rather than
approval of a specified exchange ratio, provides the Board of Directors with maximum flexibility' to react to then-current
market conditions and, therefore, is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

The text of the form of proposed amendments to the Certlﬁcate is attached hereto as Appendix A. By approving these
amendments, stockholders will approve a series of amendments to the Certificate pursuant to which any whole number of
outstanding shares between and including four and twelve would be combined into one share of Common Stock, and authorize
the Board of Directors to file only one such amendment, as determined by the Board of Directors in the manner described
herein, and to abandon each amendment not selected by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may also elect not to
undertake any reverse split.

If approved by the stockholders, and following such stockholder approval, the Board of Directors determines that
effecting a reverse stock split is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, the reverse stock split will become
effective upon filing one such amendiment with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The amendment filed thereby
will contain the number of shares selected by the Board of Directors within the limits set forth in this proposal to be combined
into one share of Common Stock.

If the Board of Directors elects to effect a reverse stock split fotlowing stockholder approval, the number of issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock would be reduced in accordance with an exchange ratio determined by the Board of
Directors within the limits set forth in this proposal. Except for adjustments that may result from the treatment of fractional
shares as described below, each stockholder will hold the same percentage of the outstanding Common Stock immediately
following the reverse stock split as such stockholder held immediately prior to the reverse stock split. The par value of the
Commen Stock would remain unchanged at $0.01 per share. The amendment would also proportionally change the number of
authorized shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock.

Reasons for the Reverse Stock Split

The Board of Directors believes that a reverse stock split is desirable for a number of reasons. First, the Board of
Directors believes that a reverse stock split may enable the Company to meet the continued listing rules of the New York Stock
Exchange. Second, the Board of Directors believes that a reverse stock split could improve the marketability and liquidity of

the Common Stock.

Minimum Per Share Price. Although Quantum’s trading price is currently above the minimum trading price required of

the New York Stock Exchange, Quantum believes that approval of this Proposal Two would significantly reduce Quantum’s

risk of not meeting this continued listing standard in the future.

Potential Increased Investor Interest. The Board of Directors also believes that the increased market price of the
Common Stock expected as a result of implementing a reverse stock split will improve the marketability and liquidity of the
Common Stock and will encourage interest and trading in the Common Stock. Because of the trading volatility often associated
with low-priced stocks, many brokerage houses and institutional investors have internal policies and practices that either
prohibit them from investing in low-priced stocks or tend to discourage individual brokers from recommending low-priced
stocks to their customers. Some of those policies and practices may function to make the processing of trades in low-priced
stocks economically unattractive to brokers. Additionally, because brokers’ commissions on low-priced stocks generally
represent a higher percentage of the stock price than commissions on higher-priced stocks, the current average price per share

.of Common Stock can result in individual stockholders paying transaction costs representing a higher percentage of their total

share value than would be, the case if the share price were substantially higher. Tt should be noted that the liquidity of the
Common Stock may be harmed by the proposed reverse split given the reduced number of shares that would be outstanding
after the reverse stock split. The board is hopeful, however, that the anticipated higher market price will reduce, to some extent,
the negative effects on the liquidity and marketability of the Common Stock inherent in some of the policies and practices of
institutional investors and brokerage houses described above.
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The Board of Directors does not intend for this transaction to be the first step in a serics of plans or proposals of a “going
private transaction” within the meaning of Rule .13e-3 of the Securities Exchange Act. - .

The Reverse Stock Split May Not Result i an Increase in the Per Share Price of the Common Stock; There Are Other
Risks Associated With the Reverse Stock Spllt

. The Board of Directors expects that a reverse stock split of the Common Stock will increase the market price of the
Common Stock. However, the Company cannot be certain whether the reverse stock split would increase the trading price for
the Common Stock. The history of similar stock split combinations for companies in like circumstances is varied. There is no
assurance that:

« the trading price per share of Common Stock after the reverse stock split would rise in proportion to the reduction in the
number of pre-split shares of Common Stock outstanding before the reverse stock split;

« the reverse stock split would result in a per share price that would attract brokers and investors who do not trade in
lower priced stocks; and

» the market price per post-split share would either exceed or remain in excess of the $1.00 minimum bid price as
required by the New York Stock Exchange or that the Company would otherwise meet the requirements of the New
York Stock Exchange for continued inclusion for trading on the New York Stock Exchange.

.

The market price of the Common Stock would also be based on Quantum’s performance and other factors, some of
which are unrelated to the number of shares outstanding. If the reverse stock split is consummated and the trading price of the
Common Stock declines, the percentage decline as an absolute number and as a percentage of the Company’s overall market
capitalization may be greater than would occur in the absence of the reverse stock split. Furthermore, the liquidity of the
Common Stock could be adversely af‘fectcd by the reduced number of shares that would be outstandmg after the reverse stock
split. :

Board Discretion to Implement the Revérse Stock Split ,
If the reverse stock split is approved by the stockholders, it will be effected, if at all, only upon a determination by the
Board of Directors that a reverse stock split (with an exchange ratio determined by the Board of Directors as described above)
is in the best interests of the Company and its stockhoiders. Such determination shall be based upon certain factors, including
meeting the listing requirements for the New York Stock Exchange, existing and expected marketability and liquidity of the
Common Stock, prevailing market conditions and the likely effect on the market price of the Common Stock. Notwithstanding
approval of the reverse stock split by the stockholders, the Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, abandon all of the
proposed amendments and determine prior to the effectiveness of any filing with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware
not to effect the reverse stock split prior to the next annual meeting of stockholders, as permltted under Section 242(c) of the
Delaware General Corporation Law. If the Board of Directors fails to lmplement any of the reverse stock splits prior to the next
annual meeting of stockholders, stockholder approval again would be required prior to implementing any reverse stock split.

Principal Effects of the Reverse Stock Split

Afier the effective date of the proposed reverse stock split, each stockholder will own a reduced number of shares of
Common Stock. However, the proposed reverse stock split will affect all stockholders uniformly and will not affect any
stockholder’s percentage ownership interest in the Company (except to the extent that the reverse split would result in any of
the stockholders owning a fractional share as described below). Proportionate voting rights and other rights and preferences of
the holders of Common Stock will not be affected by the proposed reverse stock split (except to the extent that the reverse split
would result in any stockholders owning a fractional share as described below). For example, a holder of 2% of the voting
power of the outstanding shares of Common Stock  immediately prior to the reverse stock -split would continue to hold
approximately 2% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of Common Stock immediately after the reverse stock split.
The number of stockholders of record also will not be affected by the proposed reverse stock split (except to the extent that the
reverse split would result in any stockholders owning only a fractional share as described below).




Tréatment of Fractional Shares

The proposed reverse stock split will also reduce the number of shares of Common Stock available for issuance under the
Company’s 1993 Long Term Incentive Plan, Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan, and Amended Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, in proportion to the exchange ratio selected by the Board of Directors within the limits set forth in this proposal.
The Company also has outstanding stock option, restricted stock and restricted stéck unit awards pursuant to'which shares of
Common Stock will be issued or released upon exercise or vesting, as applicable, under one or more of the following plans: the
Company’s 1993 Long Term Incentive Plan, Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan, Supplemental Stock Option Plan,
1996 Board of Directors Stock Option Plan, Amended Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Advanced Digital Information
Corporation 1999 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan, Advanced Digital Information Corporation 1996 Stock Option Plan and
ADIC-Rocksoft Employee Retention Pool Share Plan. Under the terms of the applicable stock plan and award agreement, the
number of shares subject to outstanding stock option, restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards will be proportionately
reduced by the exchange ratio selected by the Board of Directors within the limits set forth in this proposal. In addition, the
exercise price of each outstanding stock option will be proportionately increased by the exchange ratio selected by the Board of
Directors within the limits set forth in this proposal.

If the proposed reverse stock split is implemented, it will increase the number of stockholders of the Company who own
“odd lots” of less than 100 shares of Common Stock. Brokerage commission and other costs of transactions in odd lots are
generally higher than the costs of transactions of more than 100 shares of Common Stock.

The Common Stock is currently registered under Section 12(b} of the Securities Exchange Act, and the Company is
subject to the periodic reporting and other requirements of the Securities Exchange Act. The proposed reverse stock split will
not affect the registration of the Common Stock under the Securities Exchange Act. If the proposed reverse stock split is
implemented, the Common Stock will contmue to be reported on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “QTM™.

Effective Date

The proposed reverse stock split would become effective as of 5: 00 p.m. Eastern time on the date of filing of a certificate

" of amendmerit to the Certificate with the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. On the effective date, shares

of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior thereto will be combined and converted, automatically and without
any action on the part of the stockholders, into new shares of Common Stock in accordance with the reverse stock split ratio
determined by the Board of Directors within the limits set forth in this proposal.

]

No scrip or fractional shares would be issued if, as a result of the reverse stock split, a registered stockholder would
otherwise become entitled 1o a fractional share. Instead, the Company would pay to the registered-stockholder, in cash, the

_ value of any fractional share interest arising from the reverse stock split. The cash payment would equal the fraction to which

the stockholder would otherwise be entitled multiplied by the closing sales price of the Common Stock as reported on the New
York Stock Exchange, as of the effective date. No transaction costs would be assessed to stockholders for the cash payment.
Stockholders would not be entitled to receive interest for the period of time between the effective date of the reverse stock split

~and, the date payment'is made for their fractional shares.

If you do not hold sufficient shares of pre-split Common Stock to receive at least one post-split share of Common Stock
and you want to hold the Common Stock after the reverse stock split, you may do so by faking either of the following actions
far enough in advance so that it is completed before the reverse stock split is effected:

e Purchase a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock so that you would hold at least that number of shares
of Common Stock in your account prior to the implementation of the reverse stock split.that would entitle you to
receive at least one share of Common Stock on a post-split basis; or

o - If applicable, consolidate your accounts so that you hold at least that number of shares of Common Stock in one
account priot to the reverse stock split that would entitle you to at least one share of Common Stock on a post-
split basis. Common Stock held in registered form (that is, shares held by you in your own name on the
Company’s share register maintained by its transfer agent) and Common Stock held in “street name” (that is,
shares held by you through a bank, broker or other nominee) for the same investor would be considered held in
separate accounts and would not be aggregated when implementing the reverse stock split. Also, shares of
Common Stock held in registered form but in separate accounts by the same investor would not be aggregated
when implementing the reverse stock split.




After the reverse stock split, then current stockholders would have no further interest in the Company with respect to
their fractional shares. A person otherwise entitled to a fractional share interest would not have any voting, dividend or other
rights in respect of their fractional interest except to receive the cash payment as described above. Such cash payments would
reduce the number of post-split stockholders to the extent that there are stockholders holding fewer than that number of pre-
- split shares within the exchange ratio that is determined by the Board of Directors as described above. Reducing the number of
post-split stockholders, however, is not the purpose for this Proposal Two.

Stockholders should be aware that, under the escheat laws of the various jurisdictions where stockholders reside, where
Quantum is domiciled and where the funds for fractional shares would be deposited, sums due to stockholders in payment for
fractionat shares that are not timely claimed after the effective time may be required to be paid to the designated agent for each
such jurisdiction. Thereafier, stockholders otherwise entitled to receive such funds may have to seek to obtain them directly
from the state to which they were paid.

Effect on Non-registered Stockholder ;

Nen-registered stockholders holding Common Stock through a bank, broker or other nominee should note that such
banks, brokers or other nominees may have different procedures for processing the consolidation than those that would be put
in place by the Company for registered stockholders, and their procedures may result, for example, in differences in the precise
cash amounts being paid by such nominees in licu of a fractional share. If you hold your shares with such a bank, broker or
other nominee and if you have questions in this regard, you are encouraged to contact your nominee.

Exchange of Stock Certificates

As soon as practicable after the effective date, stockholders will be notified that the reverse split has been effected. The
Company’s transfer agent will act as “exchange agent” for purposes of implementing the exchange of stock certificates.
Holders of pre-reverse split shares will be asked to surrender to the exchange agent certificates representing pre-reverse split
shares in exchange for postreverse split shares and payment in lieu of fractional shares (if any) in accordance with the
procedures 1o be set. forth in a letter of transmittal to be sent by the Company. No new post-reverse split shares -and no
payments in lieu of fractional shares will be issued to a stockholder until such stockhelder has surrendered such.stockholder’s
outstanding certificate(s) together with the properly completed and executed letter of transmittal to the exchange agent.

STOCKHOLDERS SHOULD NOT DESTROY ANY PRE-SPLIT STOCK CERTIFICATE AND SHOULD NOT
SUBMIT ANY CERTIFICATES UNTIL THEY ARE REQUESTED TO DO SO.

Accounting Consequences : . N .

The par value per share of Common Stock would remain unchanged at $0.01 per share after the reverse stock split. As a
result, on the effective date of the reverse split, the stated capital on the Company’s balance sheet attributable to the Common
Stock will be reduced proportionally, based on the exchange ratio of the reverse stock split, from its present amount, and the
additional paid-in capital account shall be credited with the amount by which the stated capital is reduced. The per share
Commeon Stock net income or loss and net book value will be increased because there will be fewer shares of Common Stock
outstanding. Payment of cash for the fractional shares will reduce our cash balances with a corresponding reduction to
additional paid-in capital. We do not anticipate the cost of the fractional share payments will be significant, nor do we
anticipate any impact from this payment on our debt covenants. We will reclassify prior period per share amounts and the
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the effect of the reverse stock split for any prior periods in our financial
statements and reports such that prior periods are comparable to current period presentation. The Company does not anticipate
that any other accounting consequences would arise as a result of the reverse stock split.

No Appraisal Rights
Our stockholders are not entitled to dissenters’ or appraisal rights under either Delaware or California corporate law,

respectively, with respect to the proposed amendments to the Certificate to effect the reverse split, and Quantum will not
independently provide the stockholders with any such right.
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Material Federal U.S. Income Tax Consequence of the Reverse Stock Split

The following is a summary of certain material United States federal income tax consequences of the reverse stock
split to the Company’s stockholders, docs not purport to be a complete discussion of all-of the possible federal income tax
consequences of the reverse stock split and is included for general information only. Further, it does not address any state, local
or foreign income or other tax consequences. Also, it does not address the tax consequences to stockholders that are subject to
special tax rules, such as banks, insurance companies, regulated investment companies, personal holding companies, foreign
entities, nonresident alien individuals, broker-dealers and tax-exempt entities. Other stockholders may also be subject to
special tax rules, including but not limited to: stockholders who received Common Stock as compensation for services or
pursuant to the exercise of an employee stock option, or stockholders who have held, or will hold, stock as part of a straddle,
hedging, or conversion transaction for federal income tax purposes. This summary also assumes you are a United States holder
(defined below) who has held, and will hold, shares of Common Stock as a “capital asset,” as defined in the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (i.e., generally, property held for investment). Finally, the following discussion does not address the
tax consequences of transactions occurring prior to or after the reverse stock split (whether or not such transactions are in
connection with the reverse stock split) including, without limitation, the exercise of options or rights to purchase Common
Stock in anticipation of the reverse stock split.

The tax treatment of a stockholder may vary depending upon the particular facts and circumstances of such
stockholder. You should consult with your own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences of the reverse stock split. As
used herein, the term United States holder means a stockholder that is, for federal income tax purposes: a citizen or resident of
the United States; a corporation or other entity taxed as a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United
States or any state, including the District of Columbia; an estate the income of which is subject to federal income tax regardless
of its source; or a trust that (i) is subject to the primary supetvision of a U.S. court and the control of one of more U.S. persons
or (ii) has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

The following discussion is based on the Code, applicable Treasury Regulations, judicial authority and administrative
rulings and practice, all as of the date hereof. The Internal Revenue Service could adopt a contrary position. In addition, future
legislative, judicial or administrative changes or interpretations could adversely affect the accuracy of the statements and
conclusions set forth herein.- Any such changes or interpretations could be applied retroactively and could affect the tax
consequences described herein.  No ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or opinion of counsel has been obtained i
connection with the reverse stock split.

Other than the cash payments for fractional shares discussed below, no gain or loss should be recognized by a
stockholder upon such stockholder's exchange of pre-reverse stock split shares of Common Stock for post-reverse stock split
shares of Common Stock pursuant to the reverse stock split. The aggregate tax basis of the post-reverse stock split shares
received in the reverse stock split (including any fraction of a post-reverse stock split share deemed to have been received) will
be the same as the stockholder's aggregate tax basis in the pre-reverse stock split shares exchanged therefor. The stockholder's
holding period for the post-reverse stock split shares will include the penod durmg which the stockholder held the pre-reverse
stock split shares surrendered in the reverse stock split.

In general, stockholders who receive cash in exchange for their fractional share interests in the post-reverse stock split
shares as a result of the reverse stock split will recognize gain or loss based on their adjusted basis in the fractional share
interests repurchased. The receipt of cash instead of a fractional share of Common Stock by a United States holder of Common
Stock should generally result in a taxable gain or loss to such holder for federal income tax purposes based upon the difference
between the amount of cash received by such holder and the adjusted tax basis in the fractional shares as set forth above. Such
gain or loss should generally constitute a capital gain or loss and would constitute long-term capital gain or loss if the holder's
holding period is greater than one year as of the effective date.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

You may be subject to information reparting with respect to any cash received in exchange for a fractional share of
Common Stock in the reverse stock sptit. Holders who are subject to information reporting and who do not provide appropnate
information when requested may also be subject to backup withholding at a rate of 28%. Any amount withheld under such
rules is not an additional tax and may be refunded or credited against your United States federal income tax liability, provided
that the required information is properly furnished in a timely manner to the Internal Revenue Service.
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THE PRECEDING DISCUSSION IS INTENDED ONLY AS A SUMMARY OF CERTAIN FEDERAL INCOME TAX
CONSEQUENCES OF THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT AND DOES NOT PURPORT TO BE A COMPLETE ANALYSIS
OR DISCUSSION OF ALL POTENTIAL TAX EFFECTS RELEVANT THERETO. YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR
OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE PARTICULAR FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL, FOREIGN, AND OTHER TAX
CONSEQUENCES OF THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT, IN LIGHT OF YOUR SPECIFIC CIRCUMSTANCES.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THIS PROPOSAL.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes the overall philosophy and material elements of compensation
provided to the Company’s named executive officers for Fiscal 2008.

Compensation Objectives and Philosophy

The Leadership and Compensation Committee (the “Committee™) believes that Quantum's exécutive compensation
program should facilitate achievement ofithe Company's short- and long-term goals. To this end, the Committee aims to attract
and retain the best executive talent to accomplish these objectives. The Committee believes that the valuc of the Lompensanon
program should be heavily connected to overall corpurate and individual performance.

Consequently, the Companys exec_:utwe compensatlon program is designed to offer target cash and equity compensation
opportunities at market-competitive levels and to reward superior performance with above-market compensation. Company
performance, as measured by corporate financial targets and share price, will determine annual and long-term compensation
levels. Actual annual executive compensation is expected to be below market competitive levels if the Company does not
achieve its performance objectives, as has been the case in recent years. The Committee believes that this program aligns the
interests of executives with those of stockholders in promotmg the creation of long-term stockholder value.

]

Process for Determmmg Executlve Compensatlon

Role_of the Leadership and Compensat;on Commltte - The Leadership and Compensation Committee oversees and
approves all compensation and benefit arrangements for the Named Executive Officers (“NEOs”). In the case of the
compensation of the CEQ, the Committee reviews and approves the CEQ’s compensation package together with the other
independent members of the Board of Directors. A substantial portion of the Committee’s work relates to the determination of
total compensation levels for the Company’s executive officers and the evaluation of Company and executive performance.
The Committee considers a variety of factors when determining total compensation amounts, These factors include
recommendations by the CEO and other members of management, recommendations by the Committee’s independent
compensation consultants and competitive studies and analyses prepared by the independent consultants and management.

Role of Independent Consultants — During Fiscal 2008, the Committee retained Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc. and
Compensia, Inc., both of whom are independent executive compensation consulting firms (together, the “independent
consultants™), to provide advice on market competitiveness (both in terms of the Company’s peer groups and the broader
technology market), current trends and developments and specific program design recommendations relating to executive
compensation. In previous years, Frederic W. Cook & Co. also provided the Committee with detailed annual studies regarding
competitive pay practices for key employees. The independent consuitants only provide services to the Company that are
directly related to the Committee’s own responsibilities.

Role of Management — Management provides recommendations to the Committee on issues such as target compensation
levels,” compensation program design, annual corporate financial performance targets and evaluations of executive and
Company performance. In Fiscal 2008, the Committee also had access to competitive data prepared by management when
determining annual and long-term compensation levels. While the Committee carefully considers all recommendations made
by members of management, ultimate authority for all compensation decisions regarding the Company’s NEQOs rests with the
Committee (and, in the case of CEQ compensation, together with the other independent members of the Board of Directors).
Certain members of management, including the CEO; CFO and VP of Human Resources attend Committee meetings and
participate in the Committee’s discussions and deliberations. However, the members of management are not present when the
Committee discusses and determines their compensation.

Competitive Benchmarking ~ The Committee considers various sources of competitive data when determining executive
compensation levels including compensation data from two public company peer groups and various Radford surveys of
technology companies.

.19




For Fiscal 2008, the primary public company peer group consisted of the following companies:

Atmel _
Brocade Communications
Cypress Semiconductor
Hutchinson Technology
Imation

Integrated Device Technology
Komag

Micrel

Microchip Technology
Network Appliance

Qlogic

Sandisk

Silicon Laboratories
Silicon Storage Technology
Synaptics

Western Digital

The selection of companies in the primary peer group was prepared and recommended by Frederic W. Cook & Co. The
Committee has used substantially the same primary peer group for competitive benchmarking for a number of years, with only
minor modifications due to acquisitions or mergers. Although many of the peers-are larger in terms of market capitalization
than Quantum, the Committee believes that these companies supply meaningful points of comparison for compensation
purposes based primarily on revenue size and industry. The range of revenue for the primary peer group is approximately 5250
million to $5 billion with a median of approximately $980 million. : ‘

During Fiscal 2008, the Committee again approved the use of a second competitive public company peer group. for
compensation comparisons. This second group, which is used primarily for equity compensation comparison purposes, was
approved in recognition of the fact that many companies in the primary group significantly exceeded Quantum’s size in terms
of market capitalization, The selection of companies in the secondary peer group was prepared and recommended by Frederic
W. Cook & Co. based primarily on market capitalization ahd industry. The range of market capitalization for the secondary
peer group is approximately $275 million to $1.2 billion with a median of approximately $712 million.

For Fiscal 2008, the secondary public company peer group consisted of the fo!lowiné vcompanies:

Adaptec

Apgilysys

Black Box
Brightpoint |
Checkpoint Systems
CTS

Hutchinson Tech
Inter-Tel

Komag

MTS Systems
Plantronics

Plexus
Powerwave
Rackable Systems
Radisys ‘ ) . ,
STEC

Tekelec

Viasat

Elements of Compensation ¢

Set forth below is a discussion of each element of compensation, how each amount is determined and how each element
fits into the overall compensation philosophy. .
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Base Salary

The Leadership and Compensation Committee believes that it is necessary to provide base salaries to enable Quantum to
secure the services of key executive talent. Base salaries are typically reviewed as part of the annual compensation review
process and are adjusted in accordance with individual performance, promotions and competitive practice. As in previous

years, in Fiscal 2008, the Committee benchmarked and generally positioned base salaries:at approximately the competmve :

median usmg both pubhshed surveys and peer group data, A

In June 200‘? the Commntee together with the Board of Directors, increased the base salary of Mr. Belluzzo for Flscal
2008 from $675,000 to $700, 000 in recognition of the results generated by Mr, Belluzzo in Fiscal 2007, particularly with
respect to his leadership in successfully consummating the merger of the Company with Advanced Digital Information
Corporation, and.to better position Mr. Belluzzo’s base salary competitively with CEOs of other high technology companies.
Mr. Betluzzo's base salary, as adjusted, is slightly above the median of the base salaries for other CEOs in the Company’s peer

group and in the broader technology industry.

The Committee did not adjust the base salaries of Mr. Gacek and Mr. Britts for Fiscal 2008 as the Committee determined
that Mr. Gacek’s base salary was competitively positioned at the market median while Mr. Britt’s base salary was positioned
slightly above the, market median. However, in lieu of any base salary adjustment and in recognition of the results achieved by
Mr. Gacek and Mr. Britts in connection with the successful integration and synergy activities related to the merger of Quantum
and Advanced Digital Information Corporation, the Committee approved the payment of cash bonuses of $25,000 to Mr. Gacek
and $20,000 to Mr. Britts in June 2007.

i .

'A!so in June 2007, the Committee approved an increase in the base salary of Mr. Hall for Fiscal 2008 from $250,071 to
$275,000 and in the base salary of Ms. Barrett for Fiscal 2008 from $223,415 to $234,586. The adjustments in the base salaries
of Mr. Hall and Ms. Barrett were in recognition of their individual performance during Fiscal 2007, and were intended to better
position their base salaries compentlvely with-their peers in other high technology compames as the base salaries of both were
determined to be below the 25 percentlle of their peers.

The base salary of Mr, Matthews was not adjusted in Fiscal 2008 as Mr. Matthews terminated employment with -the
Company effective April 30, 2007. The base salary of Mr. Dalton was increased for Fiscal 2008 from $275,000 to $325,000 in
June 2007 in connection with the Company’s restructuring of its engineering organization. At that time, Mr. Dalton was
promoted to Senior Vice President, Engineering and assumed responsibility for the entire engineering organization. The
increase in Mr. Dalton’s base salary was in recognition of his increased responsibilitics and better positioned his base salary
competitively with his peers internally and well as with his peers in other high technology compames ‘As is discussed below,
Mr. Dalton terminated employment with the Company effective February 7, 2008, :

" In June 2008, the Committee completed its annual review of the base salaries for Mr. Beliuzzo and the other NEOs. In
reviewing the base salaries, the Committee took into account the Company s financial performance for Fiscal 2008, the individual
performance of the NEOs for Fiscal 2008 and the positioning of the NEOs’ base salaries in relation to the market median (using
both the Company s primary peer group and survey data for the techno]ogy industry). The Committee does not have a pre-defined
framework that determines which of these factors may be more or less important, and the emphasis placed on specific factors
may vary among the NEOs. Ultimately, it is the Committee’s judgment of these factors that forms the basis for determining
the compensation of the CEO and the other NEOs. Based on the combination of these factors, the Committee made no change
. to Mr. Belluzzo’s base salary for Fiscal 2009 (which remains at $7OQ,000). For the other NEOs, the Committee increased Mr.
Gacek’s base salary by 5.72% or $20,020 to $370,024, made no change to Mr. Britts’ base salary (which remains at $350,004),
increased Mr. Hall’s base salary by 5 46% or $15 015 to $290,018 and increased Ms Barrett’s base salary by 5.72% or $13,418
to $248,004. . : . .

Annual Cash Bonus

Overview.

. For Fiscal 2008, all of the NEOs were eligible to receive annual cash bonuses under Quantum’s Executive Officer
Incentive Plan (the “Executive Officer Incentive Plan”). The Executive Officer. Incentive Plan is an annual cash incentive plan
which is intended to provide competitive cash compensation opportunities to participants while supporting the Company’s
philosophy of pay-for-performance. The Executive Officer Incentive Plan supports this phllosophy by tying annual cash
compensation levels to both Company and individual performance.
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Target Awards

‘Each NEO has a target annual bonus award under the Executive Officer Incentive Plan that.is defined as a percentage of
his or her base salary. Target awards are typically.reviewed as part of the annual compensation review process and are adjusted
in accordance with competitive practice. The Committee determined that the target awards for each of the NEOs was
competitively positioned at the market median and, therefore, did not adjust any of the target awards. For Fiscal 2008, target
awards for the NEOs were as follows: Mr. Belluzzo, 100% of base salary, Mr, Gacek, 70% of base salary, Mr. Britts, 70% of
base salary, Mr. Hall, 40% of base salary and Ms. Barrett, 40% of base salary. Neither Mr. Matthews, who had an incentive
‘target of 70% of base salary, nor Mr. Dalton, who had an incentive target of 60% of base salary, were ellgnble to receive a cash
bonus for Fiscal 2008 as both terminated: their employment prior to the end of Fiscal 2008 S '

Actual payouts under the Executive Officer Incentive Plan may be above target in the event of superior Company “or
individual performance. The Executive Officer Incentive Plan provides for a cap on the maximum award that may be paid. -

Determination of Actual Awards and Performance Metrics

Actual awards under the Executive Officer Incentive Plan for the CEQ are determined based on a combination of Company
achievement of pre-defined quarterly and annual financial goals and the CEO’s achievement of pre-defined individual
performance goals For Fiscal 2008, the CEQ’s performance goals consisted of: (1) improving the Company’s capital structure
(by reducing the Company’s quarterly interest cost}; (2) growing the Company’s branded business; (3) making organizational
‘and investment changes to align with the Company revised business strategy; and (4) maintaining revenue in tape drives, media
and other segments. These goals were weighted 30%, 30%, 20% and 20%, respectively. Actual awards under the Executive
Officer Incentive Plan to the other NEOs are determined based on a combination of Company achievement of the pre-defined
quarterly and annual financial goals as well as the assessment of individual performance.

A Company-wide bonus pool is established annually based on the achievement of quarterly and annual. financial
performance goals. This bonus pool funds both the Executive Officer Incentive Plan and the Quantum Incentive Plan (the
“QIP”). The QIP is an annual cash incentive plan under which all non-commissioned employees of the Company, including the
non-executive vice presidents of the Company, are eligible to participate in the QIP. At the end of the year, the CEO proposes
an allocation of the funded bonus pool to all participants in the Executive Officer Incentive Plan (other than to himself) based
on his assessment of individual and Company performance over the fiscal year. The-Committee determines the bonus, if any,
payable to the CEQ from the funded bonus poot and also approves all bonus payments recommended by the CEO to each of the

NEOs under the Executive Off‘ icer Incentive Plan as well as to the Company’s non-exetutive vice pre51dents under the QIP.
.

For Fiscal 2008, funding of the bonus pool for the Executive Officer lncentlve Plan and the QIP was based upon
achievement of quarterly and annual Non-GAAP operating income goals. The Committee believes that Non-GAAP -operating
income is the most appropriate measure of the Company’s financial performance. Non-GAAP operating income is defined as
operating income minus restructuring charges acquisition transition-related expenses, amortization of intangibles and stock-
based compensation charges. The specific quarterly and annual Non-GAAP operating income goals were set at the begmnmg
of thé fiscal year as part of the establishment of the Company’s Annual Operating Plan, The Annual’ Operating Plan is
generally discussed extensively between the Board and the Company s senior management team before it is approved by the
" ‘Board. The specific quarterly and annual Non-GAAP operating income goals for Fiscal 2008 were set at levels that the
Commlttee beheved would require a hlgh level of performance to achieve.

For Fiscal 2008, the Company achleved the quarterly operating income goal in QU but failed to achieve the goal for all
other quarters. In addition, the Company did not achieve the annual Non-GAAP operating income goal. Notwithstanding the
CEO’s satisfactory performance versus his individual performance goals, the Committee determined that no bonus would be
paid to the CEO for Fiscal 2008 based on the Company’s overall financial performance for the fiscal year. Morcover, based on
these financial results, no bonuses were earned by or paid to any pamc1pants in the Executive Officer Incentive Plan or the QIP,
including to any of the NEOs, for Fiscal 2008.

For Fiscal 2009, the Committee has determined to continue to use Non-GAAP operating income as the performance
measure for the Executive Officer Incentive Plan and the QIP. The specific quarterly and annual non-GAAP operating income
goals for Fiscal 2009 have again been set as part of the Company s Annual Operating Plan. As was the case for Fiscal 2008,
the Committee believes that the specific Non-GAAP: operating income goals are attainable but that the achievement of these
goals will require a high level of performance. In addition, for the CEO under the Executive Officer Incentive Plan, the CEO
* and Committee together have established. the following key individual performance goals: (1) accelerate the Company’s
disk/software business; (2) sustain the Company’s tape leadership; (3)-drive greater branded revenue; (4) define and expand the
Company's edge-to-core data protection strategy; and (5) improve quality and customer satisfaction.
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Equity Compensation . ]

© Overview
All NEOs are eligible to receive long-term incentive compensatlon under the Company s 1993 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(“LTIP”). Equlty awards are granted to executives under the LTIP to i) provide at-risk equity compensation consistent with the
Committee’s pay-for-performance philosophy and ii) align executives’ and sharcholders’ interests by providing executives with
significant cquity stakes in the Company.

H:stoncally, the Company has granted equity compensatlon pr:marlly in the form of stock options. A]lhough the
Committee believes that stock options remain an appropriate vehicle for providing executives with the incentive to increase the
Company’s share price, and are consistent with the Committee’s pay-for-performance philosophy, the Committee undertook an
initiative beginning in Fiscal 2007 to reduce the dilution, burn rate and recognized expense resulting from grants of equity
awards. Consequently, the Committee determined that a portion of awards made to the CEQ and other NEOs would be in the
form of restricted stock units (“RSUs™).

During Fiscal 2008, the Company granted both time-vesting RSUs and stock options to the NEOs. Time-vesting RSUs are
intended to both retain executives and provide direct alignment between executive and sharcholder interests. Stock options are
primarily intended to provide the NEOs with the incentive to increase the Company’s stock price. Compared to stock options,
RSUs limit the increase in dilution from outstanding equity awards because fewer shares are granted while delivering the same
economic value. Both the time-vesting RSUs and the stock ‘options granted to the NEOs in Fiscal 2008 will vest in equal
annual installments over three years.

In determmmg the size of annual equity awards, the Commmee does not establish specific market targets for the NEOs but
considers the size and value of grants awarded to executive officers at peer companies, the size and value of grants awarded to
executive officers at other high technology companies as reported in various surveys, Company and individual performance,
current outstanding equity awards held by the NEOs and the projected impact on stockholder dilution and burn rate. As
reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table, the Committee approved the following equity grants to the NEOs in Fiscal
2008:

Stock Options  Grant Date Value RSUs Grant Date Value

Mr. Belluzzo 720,000 £898,992 - 240,000 $760,800
Mr. Gacek 225,000 $280,935 75,000 $237,750
Mr. Britts 225,000 $280,935 75,000 $237,750
Mr. Hall - 105,000 $131,103 35,000 $110,950
Ms, Barrett 105,000 $131,103 35,000 $110.950
Mr, Datlton 890,000 $1,052,364 80,000 $253,600

The Committee did not consider the values shown in the Summary Compensation Table for Option and Stock Awards in
determining the size of new awards. . These values represent expense for past and current year awards accrued during the Fiscal
2008 under FAS 123R. The Committee does not believe this value to be a.meaningful measure of compensation received by the
NEOs during the year as it is calculated purely for financial reporting purposes. Rather, the Committee considers the grant date
value of the equity awards (as shown above and as reported in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table) to be a more
meaningful representation of the compensation received by the NEQs during the year for the equity awards. Other than the
equity grant to Mr. Dalton (which was provided primarily in connection with his promotion to Senior Vice President,
Engineering) the Committee believes that the size and type of the equity grants provided to the NEOs are competitive with the
size and type of equity grants provided within its peer groups and within the high technology industry for similarly sized and

-performing compames -

In Fiscal 2008, the Committee approved an extension of the post-termination exercise period applicable to outstanding
options held by Mr. Belluzzo, from three (3) months to twelve (12) months in the event of his retirement as Chief Executive
Officer, or from the Board of Directors, if later. The Committee determined that providing Mr. Belluzzo with a longer post-
termination exercise period for his stock options following retirement was both consistent with market practice and would
allow Mr. Belluzzo to exercise his outstanding stock options in an orderly manner following his retirement from the Company.
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In June 2008, the Committee approved certain equity grants to the NEOs for Fiscal 2009. In determining the form of the
equity grants, the Committee considered the same factors it considered when making the Fiscal 2008 equity grants to the
NEOs. In this regard, the Committee considered three factors to be of most importance. First, the Committee determined that
it was important to provide the equity grants in a form that would further the Company’s initiative to reduce its annual burn
< rate. Second, the Committee determined that it was important to provide the equity grants in a form that would have immediate
and meaningful retention value to the NEOs. And third, the Committee determined that the equity grants would need to be
made in a form that would support and further the Company’s pay-for-performance philosophy. Based on these considerations,
the Committee approved an immediate grant of time-vesting RSUs to each of the NEOs. The Committee determined that the
time-vesting RSUs would constitute 70% of the NEOs’ targeted Fiscal 2009 equity grant and would vest 50% one year from
the date of grant and 50% two years from the date of grant. As for the remaining 30% of the NEOs targeted Fiscal 2009 equity
grant, the Commiitee determined that this portion of the equity grant would be made in the discretion of the Committee after the
completion of Fiscal 2009. The Committee expects to grant RSUs to the NEOs for Fiscal 2009 performance if the Company
achieves certain performance goals to be established by the Commmee

Although the Committec does not utilize any specific formula or have any pre-established targets for determining the size
of the individual equity grants to the NEOs, the Committee considers individual performance for the prior fiscal year to be the
key factor in determining the targeted size of the equity grants. Based on its review of the NEOs’ individual performance for
Fiscal 2008, the Committee approved the following grants of time-vesting RSUs to the NEOs for Fiscal 2009: Mr. Gacek
(122,500 RSUs); Mr. Britts (87,500 RSUs); Mr. Hall (52,500 RSUs) and Ms. Barrett (52,500 RSUs). The Committee also
currently expects to grant Mr. Belluzzo an equity compensation award during Fiscal 2009, The form and other details of the
award have not yet béen determined but it currently is expected that the award will be designed to be consistent with the
Company’s pay-for-performance compensation philosophy. It is further expected that any such grant will take into account the
considerations noted above, and will be intended to create a direct link between Mr. Belluzzo’s long-term compensation and the
long-term interests of the Company’s shareholders. However, as of the date of the printing of this proxy statement, the
Committee had made no determination as to the size, vesting or other specific terms of any Fiscal 2009 grant to Mr. Belluzzo.

The Committee continually monitors the appropnate form and des:gn of equity awards. In the future, it may select different
award types to further align pay and performance.

Timing & Pricing of Equity Awards

The Company has never had, and does not intend to establish, a policy to intentionally backdate or coordinate stock option
grants with the public release of material information.

The Company does not have an established schedule for the granting of equity awards. Instead, the Company makes
awards from time to time as necessary. In Fiscal 2007 the Committee instituted a policy that all stock option grants would be
approved either at a regularly scheduled Committee meeting or by unanimous written consent on the last business day of each
month, or as close as reasonably possible to the last business day of the month. In Fiscal 2008, the Committee revised this
policy to provide that all stock option grants will be approved either at a regularly scheduled Committee meeting or by
unanimous written consent on the first business day of each month, or as close as reasonably possible to the first business day
of the month. The actual grant date for equity awards under this policy is the tater to occur of the first day of the month or the
day the last member of the Committee approves in writing the equity award grant.

As reqmred by the 1993 Long-Term' Incentwe Plan, the exercise pr1ce for all stock option awards granted is set as the
closing share price on the date of grant.

Benefits and Perqguisites

Employee Stock Purchase Plan - The Company offers all employees, including the NEOs, the ability to acquire Company
stock through a tax-qualified employee stock purchase plan. This plan allows employees to purchase Company stock at a 15%
discount relative to the market price. The Committee believes that tax-qualified employee stock purchase plans are a cost
cfficient methed of encouraging employee stock ownership.

Health and Welfare Benefits - The Company ogfers health, welfare and other benefit programs to substantially all
employees. The Company shares the cost of health and welfare benefits with its employees, the cost of which is dependent on
the level of coverage an employee elects. The health and welfare benefits offered to each of the NEOs are identical to those
offered to other full time employees.
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.Perquisites - The Company offers company-paid financial counseling and- tax preparation services to-all vice presidents,
including each of the NEQs. Covered executives are entitled to receive up to $6,000 in their initiai year of participation, and an
additional $3,500 per year thereafter. The Committee considers- this expense to be minimal and appropriate given the level of

'the participants’ responsibilities. The Company does not prov:de any other perqmsntes to the NEOQs that.are not available to all
other full time employees. - . . :
Retirement Benefits - All US-based employces, including the NEQs, are eligible to participate in the Company’s tax-
“qualified 401(k).Savings Plan. ‘Participants may defer cash compensation up to statutory IRS limits and receive a matching
. Company contribution. . Pammpants direct their-own investments-in the Company’s- tax- -qualified 401(k) Savmgs Plan, which
" does not mc]ude Company stock - : _ S

*

The Company also has a non-tax quallﬁed deferred compensatlon plan Wthh allows select employees mcludmg all of the
NEOs, to contribute.a portion of their base salary and annual bonuses to an irrevocable trust for the purpose.of deferring federal
and-state income taxes. Participants direct the deemed investment of their deferred accounts among a select group of investment
funds, which does not include Company stock. The deemed investment accounts mirror the investment options available under
the Company’s 401(k) plan. Participants’ deferred accounts are credited with interest based on their deemed investment
selections. Participants may change their investment elections on a daily basis, the same as they may under the Company’s
- 401(k) plan. The Company does not make employer or matching contributions to the deferred accounts under. the .non-tax
qualified deferred compensation plan. The Company offers the non-tax qualified deferred compensatlon plan as a competitive
practice to enable it to attract and retain top talent.

Lo M
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Change in Control Severance Policy, Employment Agreements and Severance Agreements
The Company has entered into change of control agreements with all NEOs whereby in the event that there is'a “change of
‘control” of the Company (which'is defined in' the Agreements to include, among other things, a merger or sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company or a reconstitution of the Company’s'Board) and, within 18 months of the change
of control, there {5 ah “Involuntary Termination” of such.executives” employment, thén the executives are entitled to specified
severance compensation and benefits. The Agréements define “Involuntary Termination™” to include, among other things, any
termination of the executive by the Company wnthout ‘cause” or:a significant reduction of the-executive’s duties without such
© executive’s express written consent, ‘ ! to '

For the CEO, the principal severance benefits are as follows: (1} a lump sum payment equal to 300% of the CEO’s then
established base compensation; (2) a“lump sum payment equal to 300% of the average of the CEO’s actual annual bonuses
received over the previous two (2) years; (3) payment of COBRA premiums for twelve (12) months; (4) vesting of any
unvested equny-based compensation award then held by the CEO; and (5y if applicable, a gross-up payment in the amount of
any excise tax incurred by the CEQ.as a result of the benefits received under the Agreement. For the other Named Executive
Officers the principal benefits are: (1) a lump sum equal to 200% of the executive’s then established base compensation; (2} a
lump sum payment equal to 200% of the average of the executive’s actual annual bonuses received over the previous two (2)
years; (3) payment of COBRA premiums for twelve (12) months; (4) vesnng of any unvested equity-based compensation award
then held by the executive; and (5) if applicable, a gross-up payment in the amount of any excise tax incurred by the executive
as a result of the benefits received under the Agreement. . .

The purpose of the Agreements is to ensure that the Company will have the continued dedication of its executives by
providing such individuals with ¢ompensation arrangements that are competitive with those of its peer group, to provide
sufficient incentive to the individuals to remain with the Company, to enhance their financial security, as well as protect them
against unwarranted termination in the event of a change of control. The Board believes that this policy serves the best
interests of stockholders because it eliminates management’s self-interest considerations during a potential change of control at
a cost that is both appropriate and reasonable.

The Company has also entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Belluzzo, Gacek, Britts and Matthews.
However, as described below, Mr. Marthews has terminated employment and entered into a severance agreement, which
supersedes his employment agreement. The employment agreements with Messrs. Belluzzo, Gacek and Britts provide for
minimum base salaries, target annual incentive bonuses, and stock option, and restricted, stock/restricted stock unit grants.
These employment agreements also provide for the payment of severance benefits in the event of a qualifying termination of
employment thal is not associated with a change of control. If Mr, Belluzzo.is constructively terminated or involuntarily
terminated by the Company other than for “cause”, he will receive a payment in the amount of 18 months base salary subject 1o
his execution of a separation agreement and general release. [f Messrs. Gacek and Britts are “Involuntarily Terminated” (as
defined in their respective change of control agreements) in a context.other a change in control, they will each be entitled to
receive a payment equal to 52 weeks of base salary subject to the execution of a separation-agreement and general release.
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_ During Fiscal 2008, the employment of Messts. Matthews and Dalton terminated with the Company. The employment of
Mr. Matthews terminated effective April 30, 2007 and the employment of Mr. Dalton terminated effective February 7, 2008. )

The Company entered into a severance, agreement with Mr. Matthews in accordance with the terms of his employment
agreement. The severance payment and benefits payable to Mr. Matthews pursuant to this severance agreement were detailed
in the Company’s 2007 proxy statement. ‘

3
“ - f

.- The Company entered into a severance agreement with Mr. Dalton. The Company entered into the severance agreement
with Mr. Dalton in order to obtain certain non-compete, confidentiality, non-disclosure, non-disparagement and non-solicitation
agreements from Mr. Dalton. Pursuant to this severance agreement, Mr. Dalton received a cash severance payment of
$181,250, payable bi-weekly (which is an amount equal to 26 weeks of annual basé salary plus one additional week for each of
his 3 weeks of service with. the Company), health care continuation for six months, continuation of group term life insurance
coverage for 60 days at Mr. Dalton’s expense, continuation of the lease payments on Mr. Dalton®s leased home through August
31, 2008, forgiveness of Mr. Dalton’s repayment obligation on certain of his relocation expenses and six months of
outplacement services. In addition, the Company agreed to provide for the continued vesting of Mr. Dalton’s stock options and
restricted stock units through September. 1, 2008 in accordance with the original vesting schedules applicable to those stock
options and restricted stock units and to extend the 90-day post-termination-exercise period to December 31, 2008 for all of Mr.
- Dalton’s stock options which were: vested as of *his termination date plus-those stock options that will vest on or before
September 1,2008. T g e '

Estimaied Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

The following table provides information concerning the estimated payments and benefits that would be provided in the
circumstances described above for Messrs. Belluzzo, Gacek, Britts, Hall and Ms. Barrett. Payments and benefits are estimated
assuming that the triggering event took place on the last business day of Fiscal 2008 (March 31, 2008), outstanding equity
awards were not assumed or substituted for in connection with a change in control, and the price per share of the Company’s
common stock is the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange as of that date ($2.14). There can be no assurance that a
triggering event would produce the same or similar results as those estimated below if such event occurs on any other date or at
any other price, or if any other assurmption vsed to estimate potential payments and benefits is not correct. Due to the number
of factors that affect the nature and amount of any potential payments or benefits, any actual payments and benefits may be
different.

¥

Potential Payments Upon: )
Involuntary Termination Not
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Involuntary Termination within 18 Associated with a Change of
Name o Type of Benefit Months After a Change of Control ' Control

Richard E. Belluzzo Cash Severance Payments $2,100,000 $1,050,000
Vesting Acceleration™ . $781,100 . 50
Continued Coverage of Employee Benefits™ $17.981 $0
Tax Gross-up™’ $0 50
Total Termination Benefits. $2,899,081 $1,050,000
Jon W. Gacek Cash Severance Payments $866,201 $350,004
Vesting Acceleration' $552,333 $0
Continued Coverage of Employee Bepefits® $17,981 50
Tax Gross-up™ $0 $0
Total Termination Benefits.- $1,436,515 $350,004
* William C. Britts " Cash Severance Payments $861,201 $350,004
Vesting Acceleration’” $552,333 50
Continued Coverage of Employee Benefits'™ $5,980 $0
Tax Gross-up™ $0 $0
Total Termination Bengfits: $1,419,514 $350,004
Shawn D. Hall Cash Severance Payments‘ $550,000 $0
Vesting Acceleration™ | $129.414 80
Continued Coverage of Employee Benefits®? $17,981' $0
Tax Gross-up™ - ‘ $0 $0
Total Termination Benefits: $697,395 50
Barbara L. Barrett Cash Severance Payments $469,172 $0
Vesting Acceleration'” . $119,626 $0
Continued Coverage of Employee Benefits® $5,980 $0
Tax Gross-up™ $0 $0
Total Termination Benefifs: $594,778 $0




Reflects the aggregate market value of unvested option grants, restricted stock awards and restricted stock unit awards. For unvested option grants,
aggregate market value is computed by multiplying (i) the difference between $2.14 and the exercise price of the option, by (ii) the number of shares
underlying unvested options at March 31, 2008. For restricted stock unit awards, aggregate market value is computed by multlplymg (i) 82.14, by
(i) the number of unvested restricted stock units at March 31, 2008. For restricted stock awards, aggregate market value is computed by
multiplying (i) the difference between $2.14 and the purchase price of the shares of restricted stock ($0.01), by (ii) the number of unvested shares of
vestricted stoek ot March 31, 2008, In the event of vesting acceleration or other modifications of share-based awards, we account for such
modifications following SFAS [23R. . )

Assumes continued coverage of employee benefits at the Fiscal 2008 COBRA premium rate for health, dentai, and vision coverage.

@ Assuming that the triggering event took place on the last business day of Fiscal 2008 (March 31, 2008) and the price per share of the Company’s
common stock is the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange as of that date (32.14), we do not believe that any of the NEOs would have
received an amount of benefits that would have constituted parachute payments under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code subject to the
excise tax imposed by Scction 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, none of the NEOs would huve received any payment to pay such
excise tax or any additional payments 1o pay taxes arising as a result of such tax.

8]
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The following table provides information concerning the severance payment and benefits payable to Mr. Dalton pursuant
to the severance agreement described above. The severance payment and benefits paid to Mr. Matthews pursuant to his
severance agreement were detailed and described in the Company’s 2007 proxy statement.

Name Type of Benefit Dellar Value!
Stephen Dalten Cash Severance Payments $181,250
Centinued Coverage of Employce Benefits'® $9,538
Centinued Lease Payments™ $57,000
Foregiveness of Relocation Expenses™ . $162,275
Outplacement Services™ . ) 54,750
Total Termination Benefits® - $414.813

™ Reflects the terms of the severance agreement between the Company and Mr. Dalton described above; however, does not reflect a dollar value

associated with the extension of the post-termination exercise period of Mr. Dalton's vested stock options as described above,

Assumes continued coverage of employee benefits at the Fiscal 2008 COBRA premium rate for health, dental, and vision coverage.

Represents the aggregate lease payments made by the Company on Mr. Dalton’s behalf for the lease on Mr. Dalton’s home from March 1, 2608
through August 31, 2008.

Represents the total value of the relocation expenses paid and foregiven by the Company pursuant to Mr. Dalton’s severance agreement,
Outplacement services are valued based on the aggregate cost to the Company of providing such services for the length of time specified in Mr.
Dalton’s severance agreement.

Although Mr. Dalton terminated on February 7, 2008, after the last day of Fiscal 2008, Mr. Dalten is no longer eligible to receive benefits pursuant
to his change of contrel agreement. Consequently, the quantification of Mr. Dalton’s severance benefits described in the table is limited to the value
of his severance benefits under his severance agreement and does not include the value of any severance benefits to which he would have been
entitled under his change of control agreement had he remained employed with the Company and a triggering event under such agreement had
occurred.

(2}
{3
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Share Ownership Guidelines

While the Committee encourages executive share ownership, Quantum does not currently require that executives own a
minimum number of shares of the Company’s stock.

Tax Deductibility of the Named Executive Officers Compensation

The Executive Officer Incentive Plan allows the Committee to pay compensation that qualifies as “performance-based”
under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 162(m)”). While the Company currently seeks to preserve
deductibility of compensation paid to the NEOs under Section 162(m), flexibility to provide compensation arrangements
necessary to recruit and retain outstanding executives is maintained. In particular, full preservation of tax deductibility may not
be possible if non-performance-based restricted stock units continue to play a significant role in the executive compensation
programs since such restricted stock units are not deemed to be performance-based under Section 162(m). No amount of the
compensation paid to the NEOs in Fiscal 2008 was determined to be non-deductible under Section 162(m).
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Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 409A™) imposes additional significant taxes in the event that an
executive officer, director or service provider receives “deferred compensation” that does not meet the requirements of Section
409A. Section 409A applies to traditionat nonqualified deferred compensation plans, certain severance arrangements and equity
awards. As described above, the Company maintains a non-tax qualified deferred compensation plan, has entered into
severance and change of control agrecments with the NEOs, and does grant equity awards. However, to assist in the avotdance
of additional tax under Section 409A, the Company structures its equity awards in a manner intended to comply with the
applicable Section 409A requirements. With respect to the non-tax qualified deferred compensation plan and the severance and
change of control agreements, the Company completed a review of the plan and these agrcements in tight of the final
regulations issued by the Internal Revenue Service and Treasury under Section 409A and has ‘amended the plan and such
agreements as necessary to comply with Section 409A. '

REPORT OF TRE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE'

We. the Leadership and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, have reviewed and discussed the
Compcensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A™) within the Executive Compensation section of this Proxy Statement with
the management of the Company. Based on such review and discussion, we have recommended to the Board of Directors that
the CD&A be included as part of this proxy statement on Schedule 14A.

Submitted by the Leadership and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors:

Elizabeth A. Fetter, Chair
. . Joseph A. Marengi
. Bruce A. Pasternack

! This report of the Leadership and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors shall not be deemed “soliciting material.” nor is it to be filed with the
SEC. nor incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether made
before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table lists the annual compensation for our CEQ, CFO and our three other most highly compensated
executive officers for:Fiscal 2008, Also.included in the table are two. former executive officers of the Company, Stephen P.
Dalton, who-was Senior Vice President, Engineering through February 7, 2008 and Howard L. Matthews, Ill, who was
President and Chief Operating Officer through April 30, 2007.

Summary Compensation Table
Change in Pension
. Value and
Nongqualified.
Stock Option Non-Equity Deferred All Other
Awards Awards Incentive Plan Compensation Compen-

Name and Title ~ Year Salary" Bonus®? & 4 Compensatign'® Earnings'® sation'” Total
Richard E. Belluzzo 2008 § 694,231 3 0 3 477,617 31442462 S0 $0 $ 10,167 $2,624.477
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer 2007 5 669,231 $ 0 % 175296 § 563,650 $0 $0 $ 10,168 $1.418,345
Jon W. Gacek 2008 § 350,004  §25000 $ 316300 § 507,590 $0 ' $0 $ 6,600 $1,205,500
Executive Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer 2007 5 208,043  $843,000 $ 154,590 § 264,308 $0 30 <% 235 $1,472,297
William C. Britis 2008 § 350,004 € 20000 § 327804 § 507,788 %0 %0 s 0 $£1,205.594
Executive Vice President, Sales,

Marketing and Service 2007 5 208,656  $843,000 $ 154,590 $ 262,064 50 $0 $ 0 $1,468,310
Shawn D. Hall 2008 $ 269,249 § 05 88808 § 52447 '$0 T s $ 7281 & 417,785
Vice President, General Counsel

and Secretary

Barbara L. Barrett 2008  $ 232008 % 0% 74472 5 55026 $0 $0 § 6.131 § 367.637
Vice President

Human Resources

Stephen P. Dalton 2008 $ 273462 % 0 % 204,265 5 164,288 $0 $0 $274,389 $ 082,004
Former Senior Vice President,

Engineering

Howard L. Matthews, i 2008 % 0 % 0% 189357 § 94732 50 30 $430,386 $ 714475
Former President and Chief

Qperating Officer 2007 $350005 § 0% 93964 § 598991 30 %0 $ 28,089 $1,071,049

M The amounts incleded in the Salary column for Fiscal 2008 represent the dobar value of the cash base salaries camed in Fiscal 2008, Further detail related to

base salaries fellows:

Mr. Belluzzo's anpual base salary increased from $675,000 to $700,000 in June of 2007,

The annual base salaries of Mr. Gacek and M. Britts were not increased during Fiscal 2008,

Mr. Hall’s annual base salary increased from $250,071 to $275,000 in June of 2007.

Ms, Barrett’s annual base salary increased from $223.415 to $234,586 in June of 2007.

For Mr, Dalton, the figure represents base salary paid through Mr. Dalton’s last day of active employment on February 7, 2008.

®  The bonuses paid to Mr. Gacek and Mr. Britts in Fiscal 2008 were in lieu of any adjustment to their base salaties during Fiscal 2008.

" The amounts included in the "Stock Awards" column for Fiscal 2008 represent the compensation cost recognized by the Company in Fiscal 2008 related

to non-option equity awards to the executive officers, computed in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, without regard to forfeiture assumptions. The
amounts . for Mr. Dalion and Mr. Matthews alse include the SFAS No. 123R share-based compensation expense recorded in Fiscal 2008 for the
accelerated vesting of certain non-option equity awards as provided for in their respective termination agreements. Assumptions used in the calculation of
the fair value of non-option equity awards are included under “Stock Incentive Plans and Share-Based Compensation™ in the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 13, 2008,
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The amounts included in the "Option Awards" column for Fiscal 2008 represent the compensation cost recognized by the Company in Fiscal 2008 related
to stock option awards 1o the executive officers, computed in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, without regard to forfeiture assumptions. The amotunt for
Mr. Belluzzo also includes the SFAS No. 123R sharc-based compensation expense recorded in Fiscal 2008 for the extension of the post-termination
exercise period in the event of his retirement from Quantum in the future. The amounts for Mr, Dalton and Mr. Matthews also include the SFAS No.
123R share-based compensation expense recorded in Fiscal 2008 for the extension of the post-termination exercise period for certain stock option awards
as provided for in their respective termination agreements.. Assumptions used in the calculation of stock option fair values are included under “Stock
Incentive Plans and Share-Based Compensation” in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 13, 2008.

No bonuses were paid under the Company’s Executive Annual incentive Plan to the Named Executive Officers in Fiscal 2008.

There is no Change in Pension Value and no Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Earnings reportable as the Company does not mainiain a defined
benefit or actuarial pension plan nor were there any above market or preferential eamings on compensation that was deferred.

The amounts listed in Ail Other Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2008 consist of the following:

’

401(k) Matching

Name : Contributions - Severance Payments Financial Planning®™ Other Comp
Richard E. Belluzz s 6,667 $ 0 3 3,500 $ 0

Jon W, Gacek S 6,600 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
William Brins b 0 3 0 3 0 $ 0 !
Shawn D. Hall s 6,801 - 3 0 g 480 $ 0
Barbara L. Barrett b3 5,911 $ 0 $ 220 $ 0
Stephen P. Dalton 5 0 - §  59,008% s 0 § 215381
Howard L Matthews [I1 $ 687 $ 420,199 $ 9,500 $ 0 )

ta)
(b)
(c)
[¢H)

Payments include reimbursement for financial counseling and tax preparation services.

Payments include severance and accrued vacation pay as provided for in Mr. Dalton’s termination agreement.

Payments include relocation assistance and reimbursement of relocation expenses.

Payments include severance, one month of salary continuation, COBRA benefits and accried vacation pay as provided for in Mr. Matthews’
termination agreement.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

'

The followmg table presents information on plan-based awards granted dunng Fiscal 2008 All equ1ty awards spec1ﬁed in this
table were made pursuant to thé 1993 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

] . .
‘ AllOther  All Other '
Stock Option
Awards: Awards:  Exercise
Estimated Future Payouts Under  Estimated Future Payouts Under Number Number of or Base
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards " Equity Incentive Plan Awards” of Shares  Securities  Price of
of Stock  Underlying Option
Grant  Threshold  Target  Maximum Threshold Target Maxlmum or Units Options  Awards Grant Date

Name Date ()] ($) s #) {#) (#) W ($/Sh)  Fair Value
Richard E. Belluzze  6/30/2007 — . — B — —_ — 720,000  $3.07  §898,5920
6/30/2007 — — — S — — 240,000 @ —— §3.17  $760,800

, S — $700,000 — _— = — — — —_ —_
Jon W. Gacek 6/30/2007 - — - —: L - — 225,000  $3.17  $280,9357
- 6/30/2007 — — — — e — 75,0009 — $3.17  $237,750

— $245,003 — —_ — e — e — —
- William C. Britts 613072007 - — — — — —_ — 225,000  $3.17  $280,9350
6/30/2007 - — — — — — 75,000 — $3.17  $237,750

- $245,003 - — — — — — — —
Shawn D, Hall 6/30/2007 - — . — — - — 105,000 '$3.17  $131,1039
6/3072007  — — — — — — 35000 — $3.17  $110,950

— $110,001 T — - = — e — —
Barbara L. Barrett  6/30/2007 — — — - — —_ — 105,000 $3.17  $131,103®
6/30/2007 — — — — — — 35,000 — $3.17  $110950

o — $ 93,834 — — — — — — — —
Stephen P. Dalton  6/07/2007 — — — — — — — 650,000 5294  $752.7009
6/30/2007 — e — — — - — 2400007 $3.17  $299,664%
6/30/2007 — — — — — — £0,000 - $3.17  $253,600

Howard L.

Matthews 111"

" Amounts reflect target paymenis under the Company s Executive Annual Incentive Plan, No amounts were paid to any of the NEOs under the Executive

Annual Incentive Plan for Fiscal 2008 performande.

) In Fiscal 2008, there were no equity incentive plan awards made to any of the NEQs.

' The grant date fair value for option awards has been computed in accordance with SFAS No, 123R. The assumptions included in the model are included
under “Stock I[ncentive Plans and Share-Based Compensation™ in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchangc
Commission on June 13, 2008. The fair values for Messrs. Daltoh and Matthews'include the SFAS No. 123R modification expense recorded in Fiscal
2008 for the accelerated vesting of certain non-opnon equity awards and extension of the post-termination exercise penod for certain stock option awards,
in each case as prowdcd for in their respective tefmination agreements.

¥ Stack options will vest over a period of three (3) years in three equal installments (subject to continued employment): 33% will vest on each of July 1,
2008, July 1, 2009 and July 1, 2010. The options remain exercisable for seven years from the date of grant, unless terminated earlier in accordance with
their respective terms. [n the event of terminatioi of employment, the exercise period is one year if termination of employment is due to death or disability
and ninety days for any other termination of service. The stock gptions granted ta Mr. Belluzzo will remain exerclsahie for ane year following tenmination
of employment if termination is due to retirement.

' Restricted stock units will vest over a period of three (3) years in three equal installments (subject to continued employrnent) as follows: 33% will vest on
each of July I, 2008, July 1, 2009, and July 1, 2010.

" In connection with Mr. Dalton’s termination of employment on February 7, 2008, the Company agreed to the vesting of 162,500 of Mr. Dalton’s options
on June |, 2008, and to the vesting of an additional 13,541 of Mr. Dalton’s options on each of July !, 2008, August 1, 2008 and September 1, 2008. The
Company also agreed to extend the post-termination exercise period for all such options to December 31, 2008. The grant date fair value of that portion of
Mr. Dalion’s stock option grant that will vest pursuant to Mr. Dalton’s severance agreement is $235,216.

™ In connection with Mr, Daiton’s terminatien of employment on February 7, 2008, the Company agreed to the vesting of 80,000 of Mr. Dalton's options on
tuly 1, 2008 and to the extension of the post-termination exercise period for such options to December 31, 2008. The grant date fair value of that portion
of Mr. Dalton"s stock option grant that will vest pursuant to Mr. Dalton’s severance agreement is $99,888.

®In connection with Mr. Dalton’s termination of employment on February 7, 2008, the Company agreed to the vesting of 26,667 of Mr. Dalton's restricted
stock units on July 1, 2008. The grant date fair value of that portion of Mr. Dalton’s restricted stock unit grant that will vest pursuant to Mr. Dalton’s
severance agreement is $84,534,
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) Mr, Matthews' employment with the Company terminated on April 30, 2007. No equity awards were granted to Mr. Matthews in Fiscal 2008.

% There is no specific maximum amount under the Company's Executive Annual Incentive Plan for any of the named executive officers. However, the plan
provides that no participant’s actual award under the plan may. for any period of three consecutive fiscal years, exceed $15,000,000 or 6,000,000 shares.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End 2008

The following table provides information with respect to outstanding stock options and RSUs held by the named executive

officers as of March 31, 2008.

C e -Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Incentive
, - Plan
R Awards: Equity
Equity Number Incentive Pl
Incentive of Awards.
Plan Market Unearned Market Val
Awards: Value of Shares, or Payout
Number of Number of Number of Sharesor  Units, or Value of
Securities Securities Securities Number of Units of Other Unearned
Underlying Underlying Underlying Shares or Stock Rights Shares, Unit
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Units of That That or Other
Options Options Unearned Option Option Stock That  Have Not  Have Not Rights Tha
# (#) Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Vested Vested Have Not
Name Exercisable Unexercisable # Price (§) Date Vested (#) ()] (2] Vested ($)
Richard E. Belluzzo -- 720,000 - $3.17 6/30/14  240000%"  $513,600 - .
395,833 @ 604,167 Y - $2.15 73113 125000 $267,500 - -
1,000,000 - - $3.78 312714 - - - -
1,000,000 - - $3.78 312/14 - - - -
. 134680 - - $2.97 9/03/12 - - - -
1,865,320 - - $2.97 9/03/12 - - - -
Jon W. Gacek - 225,000 - £3.17 6/30/14 75,000 $160,500 - -
525,416 ™ 474,584 419 - $2.15 8/22/13 50,000 $107,000 - -
179,268 11 - - $1.71 $/13/13 13333349 $285333 - -
119,512 92, - - $1.52 8/13/14 - - . - -
239,024 0% . - $1.46 8/22/10 - - - -
William C. Britts - 225,000 " - $3.17 6/30/14 75,0007 §160,500 - -
179.268 % - - $1.71 8/13/13 50,000 $107,000 - -
525,416 ™ 474,584 " - $2.15 8/22/13 133,333 §285333 - -
239,024 - - $1.46 8122110 - - - -
119,512 %" - - . 8152 8/13/14 - - - -
Shawn D. Hall - 105,000 @ - $3.17 630714  35,000%%  £74,900 - -
' 11,6662 . 583400 Y $2.92 6/28/12 22,500 4% §48150 - -
27,5007 12,500 @7 - . $262 5/31/12 29795 6364 - -
32,083 %% 29179 - . 5293 701711 - - -
45,000 ¥ - - $2.95 7/29/08 - - - -
40,000 @ - - $2.08 73112 - - - -
33,000 ©" - - $6.70 5/02/12 . - - -
16,500 ©2 - - $6.70 5/02/12 - - - -
21,8750 - $9.70 7131411 - - - -
312509 - - $9.70 W31/11 - - - -
25,139 49 . - $13.28 1731711 - - - -
4,861 ©¢ - - $13.28 131411 - - - -
1,973 47 - - . $12.4953 6/21/10 - - - -
3,521 0% - - $9.5625 62110 - - - -
228 13 - - $8.7879 111410 - - - -
. 2360 - $8.7879 11710 - - - -~
. 504 - - $8.6875 1/11/10 - - - -
500 4 - - . $8.6875 1/11/10 - - - -
7334% - — 7 5183125 8/31/09 - - . -
22504 - - $£7.8267 8/31/09 - - - -
Barbara L. Barrett T 105,000 ¥9 .- ' §3.17 6/30/14 35000 $74900 - -
’ 13,333 9% 6,667 = §2.92 6/28/12 17.500%7  §137450 - -
34,375 0 15,625 %9 - $2.62 5/31/12 3400 5 7276 - -
28,8751 2,625 61 - $2.93 701411 - - - -
40,000 #2 - - $2.95 7129/08 - - - -
20.000 ¥¥ - - 82,98 827112 - - - -
10,000 #¥ - - $2.08 31712 - - - --
5,00019 - - $6.70 5/02/12 - - - -
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Option Awards . Stock Awards

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards: Equity
Equity ' * Number Incentive Plan
Incentive . ' . . of Awards:
Plan Market Unearned  Market Value
Awards: ) Value of Shares, or Payout
Number of Number of Number of . Shares or Units, or Value of
Securities Securities Securities Number of Units of Other Unearned
Underlying Underlying Underlying | Shares or Stock Rights Shares, Units,
Unexercised Unexercised ° Unexercised ' ’ : Units of That That or Other
Options Options Unearned Option Option Stock That HaveNot  Have Not Rights That
(#) # Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Vested . Vested Have Not
Name Exercisable Unexercisable # Price ($) Date Vested (#} () (#) Vested ($)
10,0007 - $6.70 5/02/12 - - - -
7,5008™ - - - £9.70 7131711 - - -- -
2,800 -- - $9.56 6/21/10 - - - -
1,2755% -- - $12.50 6/21/10 = - - -
66740 - - $8.69 BRI - - - -
100" - - $8.69 1/11/t0 - - - -
4612 Coe - $8.79 1111/10 - - - -
30463 - - $8.79 1111710 - - -- -
600" - - - . %1724 4127109 - - - -
2',’4_“"5 ! - - . $6.90 4/27/09 - - - -
Stephen P. Dalton - 240,000 $3.17 123408 26,667  §57067 . - -
- £50,00070 .- $2.94 12/31/08 40,000 $85600 ., - -
50,0001 100,060 -- $2.38 ° 12/31/08 - -
! 34,3759 15,6257 - $2.62 12/31/08 - - - -
115,625 34,375 . - . $2.76 . 12/31/08 -, - -- -

Howard L.
Matthews 1§ - - - - - . - R -

720,000 options granted 6/30/07; vest annually,in equal installments over three years (subject to continued emploj;.mem) beginning 7/1/07.

@ 1,000,000 options granted 7/31/06; vest monthly in equal installments over four years (subject to continued employment) beginning 8/1/06.

® 1,000,000 options granted 3/12/04; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 3/1/04. |

1,000,000 options granted 3/12/04; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 3/1/04.

134,680 options granted 9/3/02; 25% vested on 9/1/03 with 75% vesting monthly in equal installments over three years beginning 9/1/03.

™ 1,865,320 options granted 9/3/02; 25% vested on 9/1/03 with 75% vesting monthly in equal installments over three years beginning 9/1/03.

™ 240,000 RSU's granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equal installments over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/07.

® 250,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06; vest annually in equal installments over two years (subject to continued employment) beginning 9/1/06.

@ 225,000 options granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equal installments over three years {subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/07,

ae 1,000,000 options granted 8/22/06; 33% vested on 8/22/07 with 67% vestmb monthly in cqual installments over two years (subject to
continued employment} beginning 08/22/07!

an- 179268 options granted 8/22/06; 75% vested on 8/22/06 and 25% vested on 8/25/06.
42 119,512 options granted 8/22/06; 50% vested on 8/22/06 and 50% vested an 8/25/06.

<3919 024 option-s granted 8/22/06; 25% vested on 8/22/06 and 75% vestcd on 8/25/06.

U9 75,000 RSU's granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equai installments over three years (subject to continued employment} beginning 7/1/07.

9 100,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06; vest annually in equal installments over two years (subject to continued employment) beginning 9/1/06.

ae) 200,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06; vest annuaily in equal installments over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 9/1/06.

Gn 225,000 options granted 6/30/07; vest annually int equal installments over three years (subject to continued employmcnt‘)' beginning 7/1/07.

@ 179,268 options pranted 8/22/06; 75% vested on 8/22/06 and 25% vested on 8/25/06.

9 1,000,000 options granted 8/22/06; 33% vested on 8/22/07 with 67% vesting monthly in equal installments over two years' (subject to
continued employment) beginning 08/22/07,

@0 239,024 options granted 8/22/06; 25% vested on 8/22/06 and 75% vested ori 8/25/06

@ 119,512 optmm ;,ramcd 8/22/06; 50% vcsted on 8/22/06 and 50% vested on 8/251‘06

2 75,000 RSU's granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equal ingtallmenis over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/07.

@9 100,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06; vest annually in equal installments over two years (subject to continued employment) beginning 9/1/06.

@0 200,000 RSU’s pranted 8/22/06; vest annually in equal installments over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 9/1/06.

@) 105,000 options granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equal installments over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/07.

@ 17,500 options granted 6/28/05; vest monthly in equal installments over four years (subject to continued.employment) beginning 7/1/05,
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40,000 opticns granted 6/2/05; vest monthly in equal installments over four years (subject to continued employrment) beginning 6/1/05.
35,000 options granted 6/7/04; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 7/1/04.

45,000 options granted 7/29/03; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 7/1/03.

50,000 options granted 7/31/02; vested monthly in equal instaliments over four years beginning 7/1/02.

33,000 options granted 5/2/02; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 4/1/02.

16,500 options granted 5/2/02; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 4/1/02.

21,875 options granted 7/31/01; vested monthly in equal installments ove.r three years beginning 7/1/01.

3,125 options granted 7/31/01; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 7/1/01.

25,139 options granted 1/30/01; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 1/1/01.

4,861 options granted 1/30/01; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning §/1/01.

1,973 options granted 6/21/00; vested monthly in eqﬁal installments over four years beginning 4/1/00.

4,333 options granted 6/21/00; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 4/1/00.

456 options granted 1/11/00; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00,

46 options granted 1/11/00; vested annually in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

100 options granted 1/11/00; vested annually in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

1,000 options granted 1/11/00; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

733 options granted 8/31;;99; 25% vested on 9/1/00 with 75% vesting monthly in equal installments over three years beginning 9/1/00.
335 options granted 8/31/99; 25% vested on 9/1/00 with 75% vesting monthly in equal installments over three years beginning 9/1/00.
35,000 RSU's granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equal installments over three years (subject to continued émployment) beginning 7/1/07.
45,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06; vest annually in equal installments over two years (subject to continued employment) beginning 9/1/06.
5,950 RSA's granted 6/28/05; vest annually in equal installments over four years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/05.
105,000 options granted 6/30/07; vest ann{mlly in equal installments over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/07.
20,000 options granted 6/28/05; vest monthly in equal installments over four years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/05.
50,000 options granted 6/2/03; vest monthly in equal instaliments over four years (subject to continued employment) beginning 6/1/05.
31,500 options granted 6/7/04; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 7/1/04,

40,000 options granted 7/29/03; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 7/1/03.

20,000 options granted 8/27/02; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 8/1/02.

10,000 options granicd' 7/31/02; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 7/1/02.

5,000 options granted 5/2/02; vested monthly in equal installments over four yedrs beginning 4/1/02.

10,000 options granted 5/2/02; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 4/1/02.
7,500 options granted'7/31/01; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 7/1/01.
2,800 options granted 6/21/00; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 4/1/00.

"1,275 options granted 6/21/00; vested monthly in equal installments over four years beginning 4/1/00.

667 oplions granted 1/11/00; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

100 options granted 1/1 1/00; vested annually in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

46 options granted 1/11/00; vested annually in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

304 options granted 1/11/00; vested monthly in equal installments over two years beginning 1/1/00.

600 options granted 4/27/99; 25% vested on 4/1/00 with 75% vesting monthly in equal instaliments o;fer three years begmmng 4/1/00.
274 options granted 4/27/99; 25% vested on 4/1/00 with 75% vesting monthly in equal installments over three years beginning 4/1/00.
35,000 RSUI's granted 6/30/07; vest annually in equal installments over three years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/07.
35,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06; vest annually in equal installments over two years (subject to continued employment} beginning 9/1/06.
6,800.RSA's granted 6/28/05; vest annually in equal installments over four years (subject to continued employment) beginning 7/1/05..

240,000 options granted 6/30/07; 80,000 shares vest on 7/1/08, remaining shares forfeited.

650,000 options granted 6/7/07; 162,500 shares vested on 6/1/08 with an additional 40,625 vesting monthly through 9/1/08, remaining shares
forfeited.

150,000 options granted 11/16/06; 37,500 shares vested on 11/1/07 with an additional 31,250 vesting monthly.in equal installments through
9/1/08, remaining shares forfeited.

50,000 options granted 6/2/05; 40,625 shares vesting monthly in equal installments through 9/ 1/08, remaining shares forfeited.

150,600 opuons granted 3/22/05; 37,500 shares vested on 2/1/06 wnh an additional 96,875 vesting monthly in equal instatlments through
9/1/08, remaining shares forfeited.

80,000 RSU's granted 6/30/07; 26,667 shares vest on 7/1/08, remaining shares forfeited.
80,000 RSU's granted 8/22/06, 40,000 shares vested on 9/1/07, remaining shares vest on 9/1708.
Mr. Matthcws” employment with 'Quantum erided on April 30: 2007,

Note: The table above reflects a $2.14 share price at Fiscal 2008 end (March 31, 2008).
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2008

. | .
The following table provides information on stock option exercises and restricted stock and restricted stock unit vesting

during Fiscal 2008. | , . .
Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Acquired Value Realized *  Shares Acquired Value Realized
Name on Exercise (#)  on Exercise (§) " on Vesting (§) ~ on Vesting ($) ?
Richard E. Belluzzo — — 125,000 $ 407,500
Jon W. Gacek ) 89,634 § 195,402 - 116,667 $ 380,334
William C. Britts 239,024 $ 294,000 116,667 S 380,334
Shawn D. Hall — - : 26,321 $ 85501
Barbara L. Barrett — ] — 21,300 $ 69,134
Stephen P. Dalton - — . —_ ’ 45,000 $ 148,050
Howard L. Matthews III 993,750 5 464,099 - 37,500 $ 102,750

()
(4]

Value calculated is the difference between the market price of-the underlying securities at exercise and the exercise or base price of the options.
Value is calculated by multiplying the number of shares of stock by the market value of the underlying shares on the vesting date,

)

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

The following table provides information on contributions made to the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan during

Fiscal 2008.
Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Executive _ ) Interest or Other Withdrawals/ Balance of
Contributions Company Earnings Accrued Distributions Executive’s
in Last Fiscal  Contributions in . in Last Fiscal During Last Account at Last
Name ) Year Y Last Fiscal Year ~ Year' Fiscal Year Fiscal Year End
Howard L. Matthews 111 $6,058 @ $0 $562 $18,896 $0

)

, No Nenqualified Deferred Compensation contributions were made by any other executive officer during Fiscal 2008.
@

None of the contributions or eamnings reported here are reflected in the Summary Compensation Table above.

The Company’s Nonqualified Deferred Cdmpensation Plan is discussed further under the section entitled “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis - Retirement Benefits.”
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REPORT OF FTHE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS®

The Audit Committee was established primarily to: i) provide oversight of Quantum’s accounting and financial reporting
processes and the audit of Quantum’s financial siatements; and ii) assist the Board of Directors in the oversight of: (a) the
integrity of Quantum’s financial statements; (b) Quantum’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c) the
independent registered public accounting firm’s performance, qualifications and independence; and (d) the performance of
Quantum’s internal audit function. -

*The Audit Committee, after appropriate review and discussion, determined that it had fulfilled its responsibilities under the
Charter this year. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Consolidated Financial Statements for Fiscal 2008 with
management and the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm; and management represented to the Audit
Committee that Quantum’s Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. This review included a discussion with management of the quality, not merely the acceptability, of Quantum’s
accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant estimates and judgments, and the clarity of disclosure in Quantum’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Audit Committee discussed with the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, “Communication
with Audit Committees”, including the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit
Committee received from the independent registered public accounting firm the written disclosures and the letter from the
auditors required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, “Independence Discussions with Audit Committees”. In
reliance on these views and discussions, and the report of the Company’s independeiit registered public accounting firm, the
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board, and the Board has approved, the inclusion of the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements in Quantum’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2008 for filing with the SEC.

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dennis P. Wolf, Chair
Paul R. Auvil

Thomas S. Buchsbaum
Edward M. Esber, Ir.

"' AUDIT AND AUDIT-RELATED FEES

The foliowing table shows the fees billed for various professional services by Emst & Young LLP for Fiscal 2008 and
fiscal year 2007: o .

Amounts in thousands - ' - . Fiscal Year
‘ 2008 2007
Audit Fees'V $ 2,420 % 3,273
Audit-related Fees®? 14 14
Tax Fees™ : 191 303
All Other Fees - -
Total , . ) 2625 % 3,590

2 This report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors shall not be deemed “soliciting material,” nor is it to be deemed filed with the SEC, nor
incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, us amended, or the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation Janguage in any such filing.
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™ Audit fees include the audit of Quantum’s annual financial statements, review of financial statements included in Quantum’s Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with foreign statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years and include services in connection’ with assisting the Company in its compliance with its
obligations under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related regulations, Audit fees also include advice on audit and accounting matters
that arose during, or as a result of, the audit or the review of interim financial statements, including the application of proposed accounting rules,
statutory audits required by non-U.S. jurisdictions and the preparation of an annual “management letter” containing ebservations and discussions on
internal control matters.

@ This category consists of assurance and refated services performed by Emst & Young LLP that are reasonably related to the performance of the

audit or review of Quantum’s financial statements and are not reported above in “Audit Fees.” Al such services were approved by the Audit
Committee, either through pre-approval or specific project approval. :

" This category consists of professional services rendered by Emst & Young LLP for tax compliance and tax consulting. The tax compliance services
principally include preparation and/or review of various tax returns, assistance with tax return supporting documentation and tax return audit
assistance. The tax consulting services principaily include advice regarding mergers and acquisitions, intemational tax structure and other strategic
tax planning opportunities. All such services were approved by the Audit Committee, either through pre-approval or specific project approval.

In accordance with Audit Committee policy and the requirements of law, all services to be provided by the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y™), are pre-approved by the Audit Committee. This
is to avoid potential conflicts of interest that could arise if the Company received specified non-audit services from its auditing
firm. Annually, the Audit Committee pre-approves appropriate audit, audit-related and tax services (which are listed on a
general approval schedule) that E&Y may perform for the Company. Where such services are expected to require more than
ten hours of billable E&Y senior partner {(or the equivalent) time, the Company must notify the Audit Committee of E&Y’s
performance of such services. For all services to be performed by E&Y that are not specified in the general pre-approval
schedule, the Company must obtain specific engagement approval from the Audit Committee for such services in advance. The
Audit Committee has delegated to a subcommittee (comprised solely of members of the Audit Committee) the authority to
receive all notifications and requests relating to E&Y’s performance of services for the Compdny. The Audit Committee will
review and make changes to the services hsted under the general approval schedule on an annual ba51s and otherwise from time
to time as necessary. o

. Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP attended all regular meetmgs of the Audit Committee in Fiscal 2008. The Audit
Commlttee believes that the provision of services by Emnst & Young LLP described above is compatlble with maintaining Ernst
& Young LLP’s independence from the Company.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets fonh as of June 2,°2008 certain mformatmn with respect to the beneficial ownership of the
Company’s Common Stock by (i) each person known by the Company to be'the beneficial owner of more than five percent of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock, (ii) each of the Company’s directors, (iii) each of the Named Executive Officers and
(iv) all current directors and executive ofﬁcers as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the business address for the beneficial
owners listed below is 1650 Technology Drive, Suite 800, San Jose, CA 95110,

t

. . o o : Apﬁroximate
Number of Shares Percentage of
. Beneficially Owned"” Shares Owned®
Name o . .
Clearbridge Advisors, LLC 13,011,913 @ 6.29 %

399 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Noonday Asset Management, L.P. 12,100,876 @ 585%
227 West Trade Street, Suite 2140 ‘
Charlotte, NC 28202 N . . . ' .
Nordea Investment Funds S.A. : 11,892,100 © 5.75 %
672, rue de Neudorf, Findel, P.O. Box 782
L-2017, Luxembourg . ) )
NWQ Investment Management Company, LLC 28,962,914 © 14.00 %
2049 Century Park East, 18th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 9006 : . ‘
Private Capital Management, L.P. 39,655,934 @ 19.16 %
8889 Pelican Bay Blvd., Suite 500
Naples, FL 34108 : '
Tennenbaum Capital Partners, LLC ' 11,659,770 - ® 5.63%
2951 28™ Street, Suite 1600 '
Santa Monica, CA 90405
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Paul R, Auvil Il o 9 *

Barbara L. Barrett : 215,109 (® *
Richard E. Belluzzo ] o 4,932,841 (D 238%
William C. Britts - x 1,617,552 "2 . *
Michael A. Brown 175,116 *
Thomas S. Buchsbaum 122,497 ¥ *
Stephen P. Dalton 546,447 *
..Edward M. Esber, Jr. : ... 341452 19 *
Elizabeth A, Fetter 99,704 (7 *
Jonathan W. Gacek ‘ 1,274,887 ¥ *
Shawn D. Hall ) ' 378,145 U *
Joseph A. Marengi : ' 37,688 @ *
Howard L. Marthews, I 90,903 ©" *
Bruce A. Pasternack . - ‘ . A 31,443 2 *
Dennis P, Wolf o - 31,443 & »
All directors and executive officers as a group (14 persons) 9,895,227 ¥ 478 %

e

2

h

4

G

(L)

(K]

)

(9

10y

oy

i
Less than 1%.

Except pursuant to applicable community property laws or as indicated in the footnotes to this table, to the Company’s knowledge, each stockholder

_ identified in the table possesses sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by such

stockholder. .

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 206,951,851 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of June 2, 2008, Beneficial ownership is

" determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, based on factors including voting and investment power with respect to shares. Shares of

Common Stock subject to options currently exercisable, or exercisable within 60 days after June 2, 2008, arc considered beneficially owned by the
holder. but such shares are not deemed outstanding for the purpeses of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

[nformation is based on Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008 by ClearBridge Advisors, LLC
and Smith Barney Fund Management LLC, affiliated Delaware limited liability companies. ClearBridge Advisors, LLC has shared voting power with
respect to 11,365,758 shares and shared dispositive power with respect to 12,915,213 shares, Smith Bamey Fund Manageiment LLC has shared
voting and dispositive power with respect to 96,700 shares.

Information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 24, 2008 by Noonday Asset Management,
L.P and Noonday G.P. (U.S.}, L.L.C.,-both Detaware limited partncrship and investment advisors, Noonday Capital L.L.C., a Delaware limited
liability company that is the general partner of the two investment advisors, David 1. Cohen, Saurabh K. Mitaal and Andrew J.M. Spokes (each of
whom are. managing members of the two investment advisors and the Noonday general partner) and certain other affiliated limited liability companies
and limited liability partnerships. Theé reporting persons beneficially own, in aggregate, {i) 7,250,300 shares of Company common stock and {ii)
$21.000,000 in principal amount of 4.375% Convertible Subordinated Notes due August 1, 2010 of the Company. ' ‘

Information is based on Schedule 13G/A, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comumission on February 14, 2008 by Nordea Investment Funds

" §.A., a company organized in Luxembourg,

Information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008 by NWQ Investment
Management Company, LLC, an investment advisor and a Delaware limited liability corporation. NWQ states in such filing that the securities of the
Company reported on such Schedule ¥3G/A are beneficially owned by clients of NWQ Investment Management Company, LLC.

Information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2008 by Private Capital Management,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“PCM™. PCM has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to 7,005,050 shares and shared- voting and
dispositive power with respeet to 32,650,884 shares. PCM exercises shared voting authority with respect to shares held by those PCM clients that
have delegated proxy voting authority to PCM. Such delegation may be granted or revoked at any time at the client’s discretion. PCM disclaims
beneficial ownership of shares over which it has dispositive power and disclaims the existence of a group.

Information is based on a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 28, 2008 by Tennenbaum Capital Partners,
LLC, an investment advisor and a Delaware limited liability company (“TCP”). Tennenbaum Multi-Strategy Master Fund, a fund managed by TCP,
has the right to receive and the power to direct the receipt of dividends from, or the proceeds from the sale of, the 11,659,770 shares. TCP serves as
investment advisor to a fund that is the registcred holder of $50,720,000 in principal amount of 4.375% Convertible Subordinated Notes due August
1, 2010 of the Company. 11,659,770 represents the aggregate number of shares of Company common stock into which TCP’s convertible promissory
notes may convert.

Paul R. Auvil 111 was appointed to Quantum’s board of directors effective August 23, 2007. Nonc of his stock options or restricted stock units are
vested or exercisable a1 June 2, 2008 or within sixty (60) days thereafter.

Represents 23,377 shares of Common Stock, of which 3,400 shares are restricted shares, 11,667 restricted stock units that will vest on July, 1, 2008
and 180,065 shares subject to Common Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days thereafter. The restricted shares are
scheduled 10 vest as follows: 1,700 shares on each of July 1, 2008 and July 1, 2009, provided that Ms. Barrett continues to be employed by Quantum
on that date.

Represents 112,841 shares of Common Stock, 80,000 restricted stock units that will vest on July 1, 2008 and 4,740,000 shares subject to Common
Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days thercafier.
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U} Represents 342,665 shares of Common Stock, 25,000 restricted stock units that will vest on July 1, 2008 and 1,249,887 shares subject to Common
Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty {(60) days thereafter,

43 Represents 93,118 shares of Common Stock, and 81,998 shares subject to Common Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60)

days thereafter.

% Represents 37,643 shares of Common Stock, and 84,854 shares subject 1o Common Stock optlons exercisable at June, 2, 2008, or within sixty (60)

days thereafter.

9 Represents 13,739 shares of Common Stock, 26,667 restricted stack units that will vest on July 1, 2008 and 506,041 shares subject o Common Stock
options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days thereafter.

6 Represents 108,385 shares of Common Stock, and 233,067 shares subject to Common Stock options that were exercisable at June 2, 2008 or within

sixty (60) days thereafter. The Esber Family Trust beneficially owns 80,000 shares.

" Represents 24,642 shares of Common Stock, and 75,062 shares subject to Common Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60)

days thereafier.
018}

Represents 25,000 restricted stock units that will vest on July 1, 2008 and 1,249,887 shares subject to Common Stock opuons exercisable at June 2,
2008, or within sixty (60) days thereafter. .

¢

Represents 54,570 shares of Common Stock, of which 2,974 shares are restricted shares, 11,667 rcstrictcd stock units that will vest on July 1, 2008
and 311,908 shares subject to Common Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days thereafter. The restricted shares are
scheduled to vest as follows: 1,487 shares on each of July 1, 2008 and July 1, 2009, provided that Mr. Hall continues to be employed by Quantum on
that date.

9

@ Represents 4,438 shares of Common Stock, and 33,250 shares subject to Common Stock options exercisable at Junc 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days
thereafter.

@0 Represents shares of Common Stock.

5 Represents 2,318 shares of Common Stock, and 29,125 shares subject to Common Stock optiens exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days
thereafier,

&% Represents 2,318 shares of Common Stock, and 29,125 shares subject to Common Stock options exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days
thereafter.

@2h Represents 910,957 shares of Common Stock, some of which are restricted shares; and 180,001 restricted stock units and 8,804,269 shares subject 1o
Common Stock options vested or exercisable at June 2, 2008, or within sixty (60) days thereafter.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

The Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its executive officers, directors and certain significant
employees containing provisions that are in some respects broader than the specific indemnification provisions contained in the
General Corporation Law of Delaware. These agreements provide, among other things, for indemnification of the executive
officers, directors and certain significant employees in proceedings brought by third parties and in stockholder derivative suits.
Each agreement also provides for advancement of expenses to the indemnified party.

The Company has entered into a change of control agreement with Gerald G. Lopatin (“Mr. Lopatin”) who was hired on
March 3, 2008 as the Company’s Senior Vice President of Engineering. The material terms of Mr. Lopatin’s change of control
agreement are the same as for the Company’s other NEOs and are described above in the CD&A under “Change in Control
Severance Policy, Employment Agreements and Severance Agreements.”

The Company has entered into agreements with its Nonemployee Directors whereby in the event that there is a “change of
control” of the Company (which is defined in the agreements to include, among other things, a merger or sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company or a reconstitution of the Company’s Board) and, on or within 18 months of the
change of control, the Nonemployee Director’s performance of services as a Board member terminates other than as a result of
death or Disability (as defined in the Agreement), then, to the extent that any portion of any equity-based compensation awards
held by such Director is not vested at the time of termination, all such unvested awards will automatically vest.

Procedures for Reviewing and Approving Related Party Transactions

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code™) requires that the Company’s employees, officers and
directors should avoid conducting Company business with a relative or significant other, or with a business in which a relative
or significant other is associated in any significant role unless disclosed to and approved by the Company’s General Counsel in
advance. 1If the proposed relationship involves the Company’s directors or executive officers or is determined by the
Company’s General Counsel to be material to the Company (or, if applicable, Securities and Exchange Commission or New
York Stock Exchange rules. require approval by the Audit Committee), the Audit Committee of the Board must review and
approve the matter in writing in advance of any such related party transactions.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH®

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders of the Company’s Common Stock at March 31,
2008, for the period since March 31, 2003, to the cumulative total return over such period of (i) the NASDAQ Composite
Index, and (ii) the $ & P Computer Storage & Peripherals Index. The graph assumes the investment of $100 on March 31, 2003
in Common Stock and in each of the indices listed on the graph and reflects the change in the market price of the Common
Stock relative to the changes in the noted indices at March 31, 2004, March 31, 2005, March 31, 2006, March 31, 2007 and
March 31, 2008. The performance shown below is based on hlslorlcal data and is not indicative of, nor intended to forecast,
future price performance of the Common Stock. ‘

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* -

Among Quantum Corporation, The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The S&P Computer Storage & Peripherals Index 1
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* $100 invested on 3/31/03 in stock or index- mcludlng reinvestment of d|V|dends
Fiscal year ending March 31.

Copyright © 2008, Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw—Hlll Companles nc. All nghts reserved.
WWW. researchdatagroup com/S&P.htm

+
i

. . 3 - |

3 This section is not * ‘soliciting m:mrml “ is not deemed filed with the SEC, and is not to be mcorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended., or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after thé date hereof and irrespective of any
general incorporation language in any such filing.
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COMMUNICATING WITH THE COMPANY

We have from time-to-time received calls from stockholders inquiring about the available means of communication with
the Company. If you would like to receive information about the Company, without charge, you may use one of these
convenient methods:

¢ To view the Company’s website on the Internet, use the Company’s Internet address located at www.quantum.com.
The Company’s website includes product, corporate and financial data, job listings, recent earnings releases, a delayed
stock price quote, and electronic files of this Proxy Statement and the Company’s Form 10Ks, Form 10Qs, and Annual
Reports to Stockholders. Internet access has the advantage of providing you with recent information about the
Company throughout the year. The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Company’s Corporate
Govemnance Principles can also be found on the Company’s website at lLittp://www.quantum.com, by clicking
“Investors” from the home page and selecting “Corporate Governance.” Requests to receive by mail a free copy of
printed financials and of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and its Corporate Governance
Principles can also be submitted by contacting the Company’s Investor Relation Department at the address stated
below or on-line by visiting the Company’s website at http:/www.quantum.com, where the request form may be
found by clicking “Investors” from the home page and selecting “Contact Investor Relations.”

¢ To reach our Investor Relations Department, please call or send correspondence to:

Quantum Corporation

Atiention: Investor Relations Department
1650 Fechnology Drive

Suite 800

San Jose, CA 95110

Tel (local): 408-944-4450
Fax: 408-944-6544
Email: IR@quantum.com

OTHER MATTERS
The Company knows of no other matters to be submitted at the Annual‘Meeling_ Any proposal that a stockholder intends
to submit for consideration at the Annual Meeting must be received by the Secretary of the Company within the timeframes
specified in the Company’s Bylaws and must include the information specified in the Bylaws. If any other matters properly

come before the Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote the shares they
represent as the Board of Directors may recommend.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mg 400

Shawn D, Hall
Dated: June 27, 2008 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary
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Appendix A
FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF QUANTUM CORPORATION L

A Delaware Corporation

Quantum Corporation, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Stite of Delaware (the
“Corporation”), hereby certifies that;

1.
2.

The name of this Corporation is Quanturn Corporation,

The date of filing of this Corporation’s original Certificate of [ncorporation with the Secretary of State
of Delaware was January 28, 1987.

Pursuant to Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, this Certificate of Amendment
hereby amends the provisions of the Corporation’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
by deleting the first paragraph of Article [V and substituting therefor a new first paragraph to read in
its entirety as follows:

“This Corporation is authorized to issue two classes of shares to be designated, respectively, Common
Stock and Preferred Stock. The total number of shares of Common Stock that this Corporation is
authorized to issue is |1,000,000,000 divided by any number between 4 and 12, inclusive]*, with a par
value of $0.01 per share, and the total number of shares of Preferred Stock that this Corporation is
authorized to issue is f20,000,600 divided by any number between 4 and 12, inclusivef*, with a par
value of $0.01 per share. Effective as of 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on the date this Certificate of
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation is filed with the Secretary of
State of the State of Delaware, each fbetween four (4) and mwelve (12, inclusive)]* shares of the
Corporation’s Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, issued and outstanding shall, automatically
and without any action on the part of the respective holders thereof, be combined and converted into
one (1) share of Common Stock, par value $0.0] per share, of the Corporation. No fractional shares
shall be issued and, in lieu thereof, any holder of less than one (1) share of Common Stock shall be
entitled to receive cash for such holder’s fractional share based upon the closing sales price of the
Corporation’s Common Stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange, as of the date this
Certificate of Amendment is fited with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The Board of
Directors of the corporation, subject to any restrictions contained in Delaware Law, the Bylaws, any
preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights of any outstanding class or series
of preferred stock of the Corporation and any qualifications or restrictions on the Common Stock
created thereby, may declare and pay dividends upon the shares of its capital stock. The directors of the
corporation may set apart out of any of the funds of the corporation available for dividends a reserve or
reserves for any proper purpose and may abolish any such reserve.” :

This Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation has been
duly adopted by the stockholders of the Corporation in accordance with the provisions of Section 242
of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

* These amendments approve the combination of any whole number of shares of Common Stock between and including
four (4) and twelve (12) into one (1) share of Common Stock. By these amendments, the stockholders would approve
each of the nine amendments proposed by the Board of Directors. The Certificate of Amendment filed with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware will include only that amendment determined by the Board of Directors to
be in the best interests of the Corporation and its stockholders. The other eight proposed amendments will be
abandoned pursuant to Section 242(c) of the Delaware General Corporation Law. The Board of Directors may also
elect not to do any reverse split in which case all nine proposed amendments will be abandoned. In accordance with
the resolutions to be adopted by the stockholders, the Board of Directors will not impletnent any amendment providing
for a diffcrent split ratio.




.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Quantum Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation to be signed by Shawn D. Hall, its Secretary and General Counsel, this day of
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QUANTUM CORPORATION

Shawn D. Hall o : '
Secretary and General Counsel
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UNITED STATES

' SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549 ‘

|ZI. ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008

OR
] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECUR_]TIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 1-1344%

QUANTUM CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

" Delaware X - " 942665054
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) . ' . {L.R.S. Employer Identification No.}
1650 Technology Drive, Suite 800, San Jose, California - - . 95110 . '
{Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (408) 944-4000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each ¢lass Name of each exchange on which registered
QUANTUM CORPORATION-DLT & STORAGE SYSTEMS GROUP COMMON STOCK ~ NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SERIES B JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE
Securities registered pursuant te Section 12(g) of the Act:
4.375% CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES DUE 2010

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a well-knowh seasoned issuer, as defined in Ru]e 405 of the Securities
Act. YESO NO = . '
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe:Act. ' YES O NO .

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. YES X NO [0

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Ttern 405 of Regu[atlon S-K (229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and wiil not be contained, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part 1l of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer. (See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Large accelerated filer (0 Accelerated filer X Non-accelerated filer O Smalier Reporting Company O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). YES O NO X

The aggregate market value of Quantum Corporation’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share, held by nonaffiliates of the Registrant
was approximately $394 million on September 30, 2007, the last day of the Registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter,
based on the closing sales price of the Registrant’s common stock on that date on the New York Stock Exchange. For purposes of this
disclosure, shares of common stock held by persons who hold more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock and shares held
by officers and directors of the Registrant have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination of
affiliate status is not necessarily conclusive. . .

As of the close of business on June 2, 2008, there were approximately 207.0 million shares of Quantum Corperation’s common stock
issued and outstanding,

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on August 19, 2008, which the Registrant
will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fi scal year covered by this report, is
incorporated by reference in Part [l of this Form 10-K to the extent stated herein.
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PART I

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securmes Act of 1933 as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements in this report
usually contain the words “will,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “expect”, “believe” or similar expresstons and variations or
negatives of these words. All such forward-looking statements including, but not limited to, (1) our expectation that we will
continue to derive a substantial majority of our revenue from products based on our tape technology; (2) our expectations
regarding the amounts and timing of any future restructuring charges, including cost.savings resulting therefrom; (3) our
belief that strong competition in the tape drive, tape media and tape automation systems markets will result in further price
erosion; (4} our belief that we have sufficient resources to cover the remaining tax liability under the Tax Sharing and -
Indemnity Agreement with Maxtor; (5) our Belief that our existing cash and capital resources will be sufficient to meet all
currently planned expenditures, repayment of debt, and sustain our operations for the next 12 months; (6) our expéctation
that we will return to profitability; (7) our goals for future operating performance, including our revenue growth, amount
and mix, our expectations regarding revenue, gross margin and operating expenses for fiscal 2009 and our cash flows;

(8) our belief that our ultimate liability in any infringement claims made by any third partics against us will not be material
to us; (9} our belief that we may make additional acquisitions in the future; {10) our expectations about the timing and
maximum amounts of our future contractual payment obligations; (11) our belief that our total foreign exchange rate
exposure is not significant; (12) our expectations regarding the benefits of our acquisition of Advanced Digital Information
Corporation (*ADIC™); (13} our expectations regarding the amount and timing of recognized compensation costs related to
our equity awards; (14) our expectations relating to our growth within disk-based backup, software and services markets,
(15) our expectations regarding our ongoing efforts to reduce our cost structure, including facilities and workforce
reductions, (16) our research and development plans and focuses, including our continued investment in building out our’
disk-based backup product line, striving to provide superior edge-to-core data protection and management solutions,
enhancing our tape automation solutions, and closely integrating our products to provide compelling solution for our
customers; and {17) our business objectives, key focuses, opportunities and prospects are inherently uncertain as they are
based on management’s expectations and assumptions concerning future events, and they are subject to numerous known -
and unknown risks and uncertainties. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance. on these forward-looking ‘
statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. As a result, our actual results may differ matenially from the forward- .-
looking statements contained herein. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those described herein
include, but are not limited to, (1) the amount of orders received in future petriods; (2) our ability to timely ship our
products; (3} uncertainty regarding information technology spending and the corresponding uncertainty in the demand for
tape drives and tape automation products; (4) our ability to realize anticipated benefits from the ADIC acquisition; (5) our ~
ability to achieve anticipated pricing, cost and gross margin levels, particularly on tape drives, given lower volumes and
continuing price and cost pressures; (6) the successful execution of our strategy to expand our businesses into new
directions; (7) our ability to successfully introduce new products; (8} our ability to achieve and capitalize on changes in
market demand; (9) our ability to pay down the principal and interest on our indebiedness; (10} the availability of credit on
terms that are beneficial to us; (11) our ability to maintain supplier relationships; and (12) those factors discussed under
“Risk Factors” in Item 1A. of this Annual Report 'on Form 10-K. Our forward-looking statements aré not guarantees of
future performance. We disclaim any obligation to update information in any forward-looking statement.
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ITEM 1. Business
Business Description o o

Quantum Corporation (“Quantum”, the “Company”, “us” or “we”) (NYSE; QTM) founded in 1980, is a leading global
storage company specializing in backup, recovery and archive solutigns. Combining focused expertise, customer-driven -
innovation, and platform independence, we provide a comprehensive, integrated range of disk, tape and software solutions
supported by our sales and service organization. We work closely with a broad network of value-added resellers (“VARs”),
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) and other suppliers to meet customers’ evolving data protection needs. Our
stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “QTM.” _ - . '

We are dedicated to backup, recovery and archive solutions and strive to provide focused expertise, customer-driven
innovation and platform independenge that competitors cannot match. We believe our combination of expertise,.innovation
and platform independence allows us to solve customers’ data protectlon and retention issues more easily, effectively and
securely. In addition, we have the global scale and scope to support our worldwide customer base.




We offer a comprehensive range of solutions in the data storage market providing performance and value to organizations
of all sizes. We have a broad portfolio of disk-based backup solutions, tape libraries, autoloaders and tape drives and media.
Our data management software provides technology for shared workflow applications and multi-tiered archiving in high-
performance, large-scale storage environments. We also feature software options with product that provide disk and tape
integration capabilities with our core de-duplication and replication technologies. In addition, our service plan includes a
broad range of coverage optlons to provide the level of support for the widest possible range of information technology
(“IT™) environments, with service available in more than 100 countries.

Strategy Update

In fiscal 2008, we continued implementation of a number of actions to improve our future performance and establish a
strong foundation for us'to compete in the storage solutions market with a focus on backup, recovery and archive. We have
been focused on three primary objectives: (1) to expand market access, mainly by building a stronger branded business;

(2) to create a stronger growth platform, particularly by expanding our disk-based backup systems and software businesses;
and (3) to improve our financial position, taking advantage of cost reduction actions and enhanced revenue and profit
opportunities, With our acquisition of Advanced Digital Information Corporation (“ADIC”) in fiscal 2007 and further
integration of the companies in fiscal 2008, we have expanded our market access, increased our product offerings,
integrated technology from bath companies into ¢xisting and new products and created opportunities for growth. We
continued to streamline our operations to control costs while introducing new products and gaining market acceptance on
our newer products. '

" While continuing to develop and introduce new products in the storage market, we have also continued to take steps to

reduce costs in order to return to profitability and rationalize our operations following various acquisitions. Over the last
several years our business has experienced increased competition from other data storage and computer equipment
manufacturers and a continuously challenging operating environment as evidenced by both operating and net losses. In
recent years, the difficult market conditions often created pressures that resulted in generally lower unit prices, lower unit
sales, or both. We have taken numerous cost reduction actions and have acquired companies with complementary
technologies to increase our market share, improve our competitive position and offset the impact of recent financial trends.
These steps are aimed at returning us to profitability.

Customers’ backup, recovery and archive challenges are complex and rapidly evolving, and the need for a category expert
is essential to success. We believe that our global scale and vertical integration in tape products, along with our growing
branded business and decreasing our cost structure, position us to build a strong, profitable storage systems business and
improve our results of operations.

We are focused on two key strategies. Qur first key strategy is to continue to develop our growth platform beyond tape with
solutions that include disk, software and services that are optimized for tiered storage environments. Qur second key
strategy is to build on our tape business by capitalizing on our unique position as an independent developer of tape drives,
tape media and automation systems. We plan to leverage our disk-based backup solutions, tape automation systems and
software solutions, including our de-duplication; replication and data movement technology, to deliver integrated data
protection and management offerings across the distributed enterprise. We believe a strong position in disk-based backup
systems can bring benefits to our tape automation systems and software sales efforts as customers are more likely to engage
with us on a broad basis for a complete solution.

We have 4 common customer base in the enterprise and larger mid-range business segment whose storage needs are met by
our tape automation and disk-based data protection solutions. Qur strategy is to grow this market segment with our current
product and service offerings to meet these customers’ growing needs. Further, we expect to grow in targeted vertical
markets as our expanded sales force and channel partners create increased growth opportunities.

Another strategic tenet is to grow revenue in the small and medium business segments. We have a strong portfolio of
products to mect the varied needs of this customer base and will leverage our sales and marketing and channel efforts to
provide tape drives, tape media, entry-level and mid-range tape automation product soiutions and disk-based backup
systems and sbﬁware solutions for small and medium businesses.

We also intend to enhance medla and technology license opportunities by maintaining our current royalty revenue stream
with Linear Tape Open (“LTO” ) royalties to offset declining Digital Linear Tape (“DLT") royalties. To augment our
royalty revenue stream, we continue to build upon our strong intellectual property portfolio and pursue beneficial licensing
opportunities. In fiscal 2008 we announced a licensing agreement with a software OEM partner, under which the OEM
partner has licensed our DXi" -Series data de-duplication and replication enterprise software to deliver its own solution
from which we anticipate royalty revenue in future years.




Our top priority in fiscal 2009 is to grow our branded revenue, particularly our disk-based backup systems and software .
solutions, to improve profitability and increase shareholder value. We continue to believe delivering a better operating .
model, creating more growth potential and reducing much of the negative impact of our outstanding debt are also important
drivers for improving profitability and increasing shareholder value.

Our objectives to achieve these priorities in fiscal 2009 are similar to our fiscal 2008 objectives and include continued focus
on growing the higher margin areas of our business, especially our branded business; research and development efforts that
optimize tape technologies, with continued focus on developing additional and improved disk-based backup systems and
software solutions; continued efforts to reduce costs while retaining a solid execution platform; and continued generation of
cash flow from operations to allow us to pay down our term debt and reduce our interest costs.

Our first éteps to achieving our fiscal 2009 objectives are reflected in our May 2008 announcement of the release of the
DXi7500, a product based on our second generation DXi technology. The DXi7500 is a disk-based backup system with de-
duplication and replication capabilities for large, enterprise customers. We believe the DXi7500 provides the capacity,
performance, scalability and availability required in enterprise environments and is the first solution in the industry to
provide policy-based de-duplication. The DXi7500 has been designed to allow customers to choose the de-duplication
method that best meets their needs for a specific backup job, taking into account disk capamty and backup window
constraints. We believe this product and technology provides us long-term opportunities in the sloragc mdustry

We also see opportunity with the impact of industry consolidation and product transitions, Thns enables us to capitalize on
our strengths to increase our market share in more mature markets and grow our position in newer, high growth markets
within the storage industry. There are numerous risks to the successful execution of our business plans: For a discussion of
some of the risks and uncertainties that impact our business, see “Risk Factors™ in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

lndustry Background

IT departments in businesses and govemment offices face an expandmg set of problems with storing their data. Dlgltlzatlon
has become nearly universal, with a variety of information now relying on digital format as its primary form. This ;
phenomenon applies to business-critical records of all kinds, including documents, images and communications, as well as
to the actual products of entire industries, including rich media production services and television broadcasting.
Intensifying the impact of this data wave is the rise of broadband communications and.the ease of copying and moving
records among users and sites. With a single mouse click, multiple copies of the same file—a picture, a presentation, a
video clip, a spreadsheet—are sent to servers around the world, and copied over and over again.

The net effect is a rapid increase in the total amount of data being stored and managed, an increase that may outpace any
change in fundamental business actlvny The data storage requirements of virtually every company increase year after year,
whether or nat the business is growing,

Adding to the complexity of the data-managcment task are rez__,ulatory and economnic issues. Vlrtually every company has
regulatory requirements from different organizations that recognize the critical value of this data and that mandate both its
long-term preservation and rapid access. Different industries are affected by different regulauons and the interpretation of ’
requirements is not always straightforward; however, organizations of all types recognize the significance of storing and .
protecting their data over time. At the same time, 1T organizations find themselves under pressure to increase operational
efficiencies by doing more with the same, or reduced, staff levels. [T departments have come to expect that every year they
will face the problem of how to manage more data, in more places.

This situation makes it very difficult for many companies to continue to operate in the ways they had in the past, and it
drives a rapidly increasing need for value-add solutions aimed to solve storage problems.

Part of the solution can be found in new technologies associated with storage and with information management:

. Flexible, lower cost, open system client-server platforms using UNIX, Linux and Windows operating systems
. are replacing mainframe environments.
« . Storage media, both fixed and removable, have been deve]oped to provide more capacity and different kinds of
capacity at lower cost. ot .
. Data transmission transports, including Fibre Channel and Internet Protocol have been applled to storage
solutions.
. New networking techniques designed specifically for storage have developed, including Storage Area

Networks (“SAN") and Network Attached Storage (“NAS™). . .




~Each of these technologies, however, can also have the effect of creating additional adoption and integration tasks for IT .

departments under pressure to keep up with the growth of data and the requirements to manage it. Technologies alone,
especially in their early phases, cannot provide the operating leverage that is achieved with a comprehensive data
management solution.

Products

As a leading global specialist in backup, recovery and archive, we provide a comprehensive range of disk, tape and
software solutions supported by a worldwide sales and service organization. Our solutions are designed to provide IT
departments in a wide variety of organizations with innovative and dependable tools for protecting, retaining and accessing
their digital assets. We sell our products via our branded channels and through OEMSs such as Dell, Inc. (“Dell”), Hewlett-
Packard Company (“HP”), Intemnational Business Machines Corporation {“IBM”} and Sun Microsystems, Inc. (“Sun™). We
divide our products into three broad categories, (1) tape automation systems, (2) disk-based backup systems and data
management software and (3) devices and media. The devices and media category includes removable disk drives,
standalone tape drives and media products.

Tape Automation Systems

According to 1DC, Quantum is the world’s leading named supplier of automation shipments.' Qur tape automation portfolio
includes autoloaders and entry-level, mid-range and enterprise libraries. These products integrate tape drives into a system
with automation technology, advanced connectivity and sophisticated management tools. Today, the preferred tape drive
format for automation environments is LTO,

Qur tape libraries range in size from easy-to-use desk-top units suitable for a small office to stc;rage rrlst\mrkmg solutlonTs
that can protect the largest data centers. Our lead mid-range and enterprise libraries, the Scalar i500 " and Scalar 2000
respectively, leverage a common, integrated software management approach called lLayer , which provides momtormg,
alerts and diagnostics, thereby reducing service calls, shortening issue resolution time and reducing the time users spend
managing backup. The Scalar 1500 and Scalar i2000 can also be easily scaled, altowing users to expand the capacity of their
libraries as their data grows. In addition, these products include connectivity options to improve backup performance and
reliability in SAN environments. OQur SuperLoader3™ autoloader has one tape drive and up to 16 cartridges, whereas our
large enterprise-class libraries can hold up to'hundreds of drives and thousands of cartridges. The Scalar 50™ is an entry-
level table library-designed to provide faster more reliable data protection for small and medium sized storage
environments. The Scalar 30 helps siniplify the backup process, integrates with disk and scales easily to help customers
meet challenges of rapid or unplanned data growth. . :

Disk-Based Backup Systems

We offer a broad range of disk solutions for backup and recovery, notably our DXi-Series disk-based backup appliances
featuring data de-duplication and replication technologies: the DXi7500, DXi5500 and DXi3500. Data de-duplication is an
enabling technology that is fundamentally changing the economics of disk storage and data transmission. By greatly
increasing effective disk capacity, data de-duplication enables users to retain backup data on fast recovery disk much longer
than is possible using conventional disk and significantly reduces the bandwidth needed to move data between sites. We
hold a key patent in one of the most common methods of data de- dupllcatlon known as variable-length data de-duplication.

Our DXi-Series appliances use this patented data de-duplication technology to expand the amount of backup data users can
retain on redundant array independent disk systems by 10 to 50 times. The result is a cost-effective means for IT
departments to store backup data on disk for months instead of days, providing high speed restores, increasing available
data recovery points and reducing media management. For disaster recovery in distributed environments, the DXi-Series
appliances also make wide area network (“WAN™) replication practical because of the greatly reduced bandwidth required
with data de-duplication. DXi-Series solutions are integrated appliances that are easy to install and use with leading backup
applications, These appliances provide leading performance and flexible, easy-to-use interface options including NAS,
virtual tape library (*“VTL”) or mixed presentations, along with Fibre Channel or iSCSI connectivity.

Our DXi-Series appliance family provides a combination of enhanced enterprise performance and advanced functionality.
In addition-to data de-duplication, the core set of advanced features of the DXi-Series includes a high performance
embedded file system, support for high speed data compression, asynchronous replication and built-in monitoring and
diagnostic tools. Our DXi-Series products also offer an extensible foundation for future intelligent backup and archive
solutions that will improve data protection for a broad range of customer environments, from remote offices to large
enterprise data centers. The DXi-Series ap;znhances were recently finalists for 2007 product of the year by Tech Target’s

SearchStorage.com and Storage magazine.

IDC QView 2007 . : : :
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In addition to the DXi-Series appliances, we also provide VTL systems for mid-range enterprises with our DX3000 and
DX5000 products and high-performance, highly-scalable VTLs for enterprise environments with our DX30 and DX100
products. We launched one of the first open systems VTL products and the first VTL to provide disk to tape migration in
open systems environments. We built upon and improved our early VTL technology in our current VTL systems. These
VTLs emulate tape librarics to-allgw them to more easily back up and restore ‘data than conventional disk systems without
requiring users to change backup policies or procedures.

Data Management Software

Our data management sofiware helps businesses with Iarge-scale data needs benefit from workflow efficiencies, storage
consolidation and archive management. Designed for open systém computmg environments, our data managemem software
products allow multiple applications to rapidly access a single data set, increasing productivity and maximizing storage -
utilization. They also transparently move data based on business value, reducing storage costs while providing embedded
data protection. For scveral years, organizations within rich media production and broadcasting, the federal government and
science and engineering have utilized our data management software to derive more value from their data while controlling
costs. Many of these customers now rely on our software as a key technology.

-

Designed for data-intensive SAN environments, our flagship software solution is StorNext", data management software that
reduces the time and total cost of managmg data for end-users with large data sets and challenging distributed
environments. StorNext provides high-performance shared access to data across different operating systems and storage
platforms, and based on user-defined policies, it automatically copies and migrates data between different tiers of storage.”
The result is a scalable, high-performance data management solution that is designed to optimize the use of SAN storage
while ensuring the long- term safety and recovcrablhty of data. StorNext 3.0 was chosen asa finalist for 2007 product of the
year by Tech Target’s SearchStorage.com in the storage management software category

Devices and Media

Our device and media products include removable disk devices as well as a broad family of tape drives and media
representing ali major tape technology formats including L.TO, BLT, DAT/DDS and Travan We selt performance line and
value line tape drive devices to meet the varied needs of our customers.

Our GoVault drive is a removable and ruggedized disk-based backup device which combines attributes of disk and tape.
GoVault utilizes a server-embedded dock with removable disk cartridges that can be stored in remote locations for data
retention and disaster recovery. GoVault is desn;,ned to offer small businesses an alternative to other existing data
protection technologies.

We offer tape drives and media based on the LTO format, the leading technology in the mid-range and open systems
enterprise market segment. In fiscal 2008, we launched our L.TO-4 half height (“LTO-4HH™) tape drive. LTO-4HH is .
designed to provide mid-range and enterprise customers with disaster recovery solutions and with cost-effective backup at
the same performance as the full height L.TO-4 tape drives. The LTO-4HH increased both capacity and performance while
also saving space over previous generation LTO products. [t also includes a feature called green mode which reduces power’
consumption by shutting off power to components inside the drive when idle or on standby and has been designed to use
less power when actively operating. Qur performance line DLT tape drive is the DLT-S4, and the latest value line DLT tape
drive is the DLT-V4. DLT-84 provides among the industry’s highest tape capacity and the lowest media cost per gigabyte
(*GB™) of storage availablé today. DLT-V4 offers enterprise-class features with the lowest media cost per GB in its class.
In addition, both DLT-84 and DI.T-V4 feature our DL.TSage™ suite of intelligent data protection tools that include
DLTSage WORM (Write Once, Read Many) and DLTSage Tape Security. Our DAT/DDS tape drives are intended to
provide backup, recovery and archive for sma]l busmesses while our Travan drives offer affordable data protection for
workstations and entry-level servers.

We also sell a full range of storage media offerings to comglement each tape drive technology and satisfy a variety of -
speuﬁc media requirements. Our media includes DLTiape , LTO Ultrium™!, DAT, DDS and Travan data cartridges. Our
media is compatible with our drives, autoloaders and libraries as-well as other industry products. -

For more information about our products, please visit our website at www.guantum.com. The contents of our website are
not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K. - .
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Global Services and Warranty

Our global services strategy is an integral'component of our total customer solution. Service is typically a significant
purchase factor for customers considering data management and storage solutions, and our ability to provide
comprehensive service and support can provide us with a noteworthy competitive adval{tage. In addition, we believe that
our ability to retain long-term customer relationships and secure repeat business is frequently tied directly to our service
capabilities and performance.

Through the combined use of new technology and traditional service components, we believe we can most effectively meet
the dynamic support needs of our customers. StorageCare ™ is our comprehenswe suite of services deSIE;ned 10 best meet
our customers’ requirements for product support. StorageCare services include: StoragcCareGuardlan our remote service
feature; the Customer Service Website, our web support capability; and Online Service Request, an enhanced online service
request tool that includes access to an extensive knowledge base, allowing customers to perform basic troubleshootmg
themselves. We continue to provide conventional support capabilities such as technical support and on-site services.

Our extensive use of technology and innovative, built-in product intelligence allows us to scale our global services
operations to meet the needs of our expanding installed base. We are currently able to provide service to customers in more
than 100 countries, supported by 24-hour, multi-language technical support centers located in North America, Europe and
Asia. We provide our customers with warranty coverage on all of our products. Customers with high availability
requirements may also purchase additional service to extend the warranty period, obtain faster response times, or both, on
our tape automation, disk-based backup systems and software products. We offer this additional support coverage at a
variety of response levels up to 24-hours a day, seven-days-a-week, 365-days-a-year, for customers with stringent high-
availability needs. Qur service revenue includes the sale of hardware service contracts as well as repair, installation,
integration and consulting services. We provide support ranging from repair and replacement to 24-hour rapid exchange to
on-site service support for our mid-range and enterprise-class products.

We generally warrant our hardware and software products against defects for periods ranging from three to 36 months from
the date of sale and provide warranty service on tape drives on a return-to-factory basis. We provide hardware systems
warranty and service from our facility in Colorado Springs, Colorado. Jabil Global Service provides screen and repair
services in Reynosa, Mexice and in Szombathely, Hungary for our products. Benchmark Electronics, Inc. (“BEl") also ' .
provides repair and warranty service for our products in Huntsville, Alabama, Angleton, Texas and Penang, Malaysia. In
addition, we utilize various other third party service providers throughout the world to perform repair and warranty services
for us in order to reach additional geographic areas and industries in a quality and cost-effective manner.

Research and Development

Our research and development teams are working on the next generation disk, tape automation, data de-duplication and data
movement technologies for the backup, recovery and archive markets. We continue to focus our research and development
efforts on integrated software and hardware solutions that offer improvements in the cost of stonng, moving, managing and

protecting large amounts of data.

In fiscal 2008, we significantly enhanced and expanded our disk-based backup and StorNext product families. We rolled
out our first backup products employing our data patented de-duplication technology; this technology also forms the core of
our software de-duplication environment for OEM hardware partners. On the tape and device antomation side we enhanced

our product family. with new half height LTO-4 drives and encryption/key management support to meet market demand for

increased performance, security and scalabiliry.

Going forward, we will continue to invest in building out our disk-based backup product line, striving to provide superior
edge-to-core data protection and management solutions, enhancing our {ape automation solutions, and closely integrating
our products to provide compelling solutions for our customers. Qur DXi product family will be expanded to meet the
breadth of customer needs across the enterprise. Our StorNext file system technology will be enhanced with additional data
management features to enablé wider penetration of the archive and nearline markets. We will continue our research in
LTO technology to enhance our position in the devices and media and tape automation systems markets. During fiscal
2008, we partnered with HP to jointly develop future generation LTO products. We also continue to invest in our
enterprise, mid-range and entry-level tape automation platforms to create 1nn0vat1ve and differentiating technology,
features and solutions.

We are also investing in software to provide superior disk and tape integration as well as highly differentiated end-to-end
storage and data management solutions for the backup and nearline markets. New solutions will be integrated with or
layered on our core de-duplication, file system and replication technologies and focused at the distributed recovery
management, server virtualization and file and email archiving markets.




Our efforts depend on the integration of multtple engmeermg d15c1plmes 1o generate products that competrtrvely meet or
exceed market needs in a timely fashion. Our new product development is frequently stimulated by the availability of.an . -
enhanced or more cost-effective storage capacity device, the emergence of new storage protocols and evolving end-user
requirements as noted above. We are constantly evaluating alternanve technplogies that can be 1ncorporated into our
products and provide us a-competitive advantage. We identify and define new products based on their ability to meet a
perceived market need in a rapidly evolving field. Our sales, marketing, product development engineering, supply chain
and global services organizations all contribute to the process of identifying and implementing advances in technology.

We maintain research and development facilities in Bouldér, Colorado Springs and Englewood, Co]orado Santa Mafia,
Irvine and San Jose, California; Redmond, Washington; Mendota Heights, Minnesota; Richardson, Texas; Hyderabad .
India and Adelaide, Australia as of March 31 2008,
Sales and Marketing "
Our sales and marketing employees are focused exclusively on backup, recovery and archive solutions for our customers.,
The expertise of our sales and marketing professionals enables us to provide tailored advice and targeted solutions for our
end-user customers. Furthermore, Since we offer many different ways of protecting data mvolvmg disk, tape and software,
our recommendations can be broad and are based on ‘what serves the customer best. We rely on our sales force and an array
of channel partners to reach end-user customers, which range in size from small businesses to government 'agencies and
large, multinational corporations. Our products are sold under both the Quantum brand name and the names of various
OEM customers. Our sales operations are based in Redmond, Washington; San Jose and Irvine, California; Munich, - - -
Germany; Paris, France; Smgapore Clty, Smgapore and Shanghai, China, with rebronal and field ofﬁces throughout North
America, Europe and A51a

Quantum Branded Sales Channe'l

For Quantum-branded products, we utilizé VARs, distributors and direct ‘marketing resellers. We also maintain a reseller ,
agreement with EMC Corporation (“EMC”), through which EMC sells Quantum-branded tape libraries to its custorner base
and through its own network of resellers. Additionally, we sell directly to a select number of large corporate entities and
governmental agencies.

’ow . : '
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Our integrated Quantum Alliance™ Reseller Program for the Americas was expanded into Europe and Asia during fiscal
2008. This program aliows our channel partners the option to purchase products directly or through distribution and-access -
to a more comprehensive product line. A key element of Quantum Alliance.is an online sales-assistance tool that simplifies
the process of product selection and ordermg which enables faster system selection, conﬁguratlon and otdering of even the
most sophisticated systems. The program is designed to provide additional benefits to our partners as they grow their’ , . .
business with us.

OEM Relationships

We sell our products to several OEM customers who generally resell our products under their own brand-name and
typically assume responsibility for product sales, end-user service and support. These OEM relationships enable us to reach
end-users not served by our branded distribution channels or our direct sales force. They also allow us to sell to select
geographic or vertical markets where specific OEMs have exceptional strength. We maintain ongoing discussions with.
numerous OEMs, 1nclud1ng, leading systems suppliers, regarding opportunities for our products. We primarity sell our
eéntry-level products through our hardware OEMs. In addition, we also have soﬁware OEM partners

Our OEM fulfillment models vary, but genera]ly require maintaining an inventory of OEM product in th1rd party logistics
centers near the OEM’s manufacturing or distribution facility. In these relationships, we generally maintain title to products
until those products leave the third party logistics location. Service support differs widely from one OEM to another. We
provide support ranging from repair and replacement to 24- hour rapid exchange to on-site service support for our mtd-range
and enterprise-class products :

l'
i

Customers o ) .

Customers for our systems products, including tape automation and disk-based backup systems and data management
software, include Bell Microproducts, Inc., Dell, EMC, HP, IBM and a variety of other resellers, distributors and OEMs to
reach end-user customers from small busmesses to govemment agencies and large, multinational corporations. Software
OEM s include Cray, Inc., EMC, HP and Grass Vailey Group, Jnc. Our devices and media have achieved broad market
acceptance in the mld-range network server market with léading computer equipment manufacturers such

as Dell, HP and Sun.




Because the leading computer equipment manufacturers have a dominant share of the computer systems market into which
our products are incorporated, our sales are concéntrated with several key customers. Greater emphasis on our branded
business in the past two fiscal years has reduced the portion of sdles to our top five customers and distributed our revenues
across a larger number of customers. Sales to our top five customers in fiscal 2008 and 2007 represented 42% of revenue’
compared to 49% of revenue in fiscal 2006. Sales to Dell decreased to 16% of revenue in fiscal 2008, compared to 20% and
18% of revenue in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. Sales to HP decreased to 8% of revenue in fiscal 2008, compared to
9% of revenue in fiscal 2007 and 18% of revenue in fiscal 2006. These sales concentrations do not include revenues from
sales of our media that were'sold'directly to‘our top five customers by our licensees, for which we'earn royalty revenue, ot
revenues from sales of tape libraries sold to these customers by our other OEM tape drive customers.

Through our Quantum Alliance Reseller Program and our branded channels we have expanded our customer base. With our
focus on growing our branded business, we expect to continue to distribute our product revenue across a larger number of
customers.

]

Strategic Licensing Partners

Multiple recording tape media manufacrunng, companies are quahf’ ed and hcensed to manufacture use, offer for sale and
sefl one or more DLTtape and LTO Ultrium media products. License agreements with these companies allow them to
independently sell tape media cartridges for which we receive royalty payments. These strategic license agreements expand
the market for DLTtape and LTO Ultrium medla products and provide customers with multiple channels for obtaining tape
media cartndges

We have entered into various llcensmg agreements with respect to our technology, patents and similar intellectual property.
which provide licensing revenues in certain cases and may expand the market for products and solutions using these
technologies. We licensed certain technology in fiscal 2008 to a software OEM partner, EMC, under which EMC may use
our DXi-Series data de—dupllcanon and replication enterprise software to deliver its own solution. In fiscal 2007, we
hcensed cértain of our patents in a cross-licerisé agreement. Patent cross-license agreements typically do not provide
hcensmg revenue. In prior years, we have entered into cross license agreements for various patents. We anticipate licensing
our technology, patents and similar intellectual property with select licensing partners in the future, expanding the licensing
partner program based on market demand.

Competition e ] .
We are a leading independent supplier of backup, recovery and archive solutions. However, all the markets in which we
participate continue to bé highly competitive, and in some cases, our competitors in one area are customers or suppliers in
another.-Several of our competitors have greater financial, technical, manufacturmg, marketing and other resources than we
do.

In the tape automation market, we primarily compete for mid-range and enterprise reseller and end-user business with Dell,
IBM and Sun as well as HP thfough its OEM relationship with other tape automation suppliers. Competitors for entry-level
and OEM tape automation business include BDT- Products, Inc. and several others that supply or manufacture-similar

products. In addition, disk-based backup products have emerged as a competitive alternative to tape products and selutions.

Our disk-based backup solutions compete with products sold By Data Domain, Inc. (“Data Domain”), EMC, HP, IBM, .
Network Appliance, Inc. and Sun. A number of our competitors also license technology from competing start-up companies
such as FalconStor Software, Inc. and Sepaton, Inc. Qur StorNext software products face competition from Cray, IBM,
Isilon Systems, [nc., Silicon Graphics, Inc. and-Sun.-

At the storage device level, our main competitors in the market for performance tape drives are HP. and IBM. Both
companies develop and sell their own LTO tape drives, which compete with our LTO and DLT-S offerings. Our value line
tape drives, Travan, DAT/DDS and DLT-V, largely compete with those from HP and Tandberg Data, We also face
competition from disk-based alternatives, including removable disk drives at the low-end of the market. Although we have
our own removable disk drive in GoVault, several other companies sell removable disk drives, such as Imation
Corporation, lomega Corporation and ProStor Systems, Inc.

For a discussion of risks associated with competing technologies, see the risk factor in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
titled, “We derive almost all of our revenue from products inc':orporat'mg tape technology. If competition from alternative
storage technologies continues or increases, our busmess financial condition and operating results would be matenal]y and
adversely harmed.”




Manufacturing - B

During fiscal 2008 we:streamlined our manufacturing process, improved our purchasing and logistics process to benefit
from our larger scale and reduced the size of our manufacturing force. Our manufacturing force decreased in fiscal 2008
primarily due to the sale of our Penang, Malaysia manufacturing subsidiary to a contract manufacturer in July 2007, We
continue to evaluate our manufacturing operations strategy for improved efficiency, cost-effectiveness and quality
manufacturing solutions. We also continue strategic sourcing of certain products from quality contract manufacturers.

We utilize contract manufacturers to produce certain of our products and we manufacture various products in our own
facilities. We manufacture certain of our tape automation systems, ali of our disk-based backup systems and complete final
configuration for specified preducts in cur Colorado Springs, Colorado facility. We continue to source tape autornation
systems and spare parts for use by our OEM customers from the Penang, Malaysia facility now owned by a contract
manufacturer. We also source tape automation systems and spare parts from Fotronics in Singapore.

We source most of our tape drives and head assemblies for those drives from Malaysia Some of the head assemblies for
our DLT drives are produced in China, while other drives are produced by contract manufacturers i in Japan and Batam,
Indonesia.

Our recording tape media is manufactured by multiple tape media manufacturing éompanies who are qualified and licensed
to manufacture, use, offer for sale and sell one of more DLTtape and LTO Ultrium media products. In most cases, the
media is produced in Japan and mult1 sourced on a world wide basis.

Backlog

We manufacture our products based on forecasts of customer demand We also place inventory in strateg:c locations in
order to enable certain key customers to obtain products on demand. Orders are generally placed by customers on an as-
needed basis. Product orders are confirmed and, in most cases, shipped to.customers within one week. More complex
systems and product configurations often have longer lead times and may include on-site integration or customer
acceptance. Since we fill the majority of our orders as they, are received, we do not believe our backlog levels are a ,
meaningful indicator of future revenues or are material to an understandmg of our business.

Information Technology and lnfrastructure

We are focused on continuous improvement of our internal business systéems and global information technology
infrastructure. With our acquisitions of Certance Holdings (“Certance”) and ADIC over the past three years, we continue to
intégrate and improve our key business systems to bring the consolidated company onto a single platform designed to
provide more streamlined and scalable processes and support of our global functions. In fiscal 2008, we brought our
Enterprise Resource Planning System (“ERP”) onto a single platform and also integrated two of our primary service
systems onto one platform. We collaborate with several key business partners to mtegrate business-to-business A
communication platforms into our technology infrastructure that are designed to increase the efficiency of critical
transactional processes.

Technology :

We develop and protect our technology and know-how, priricipally in the field of data storage. As of March 31, 2008, we
hold 459 U.S. patents and have 161 pending U.S. patent applications. In general, these patents have a 20-year term from the
first effective filing date for each patent. We also hold a number of foreign patents and patent applications for certain of our
products and technologies. Although we bélieve that our patents and applications have significant value, rapidly changing
computer industry technology means that our future success will also depend heavily on the technical competence and
creative skills of our employees.

1

From time to time, third parties have asserted that the manufacture and sale of our products and services have infringed on
their patents. We conduct ‘ongoing investigations into the assertions and presently believe that either licenses are not
required or that any licenses ultimately determined to be required could be obtained on commercially reasonable terms,
However, we cannot provide assurance that such licenses are presently obtainable, or if later determmed to be required,
could be obtained on commercially reasonable terms.

We have various patént licensing and cross-licensing agreements with other companies including Data Domain; EMC, HP,
IBM, Maxtor and Sun. We may enter into patent cross-licensing agreements with other third parties in the future as part of
our normal business activities. These agreements, when and if entered into, would enable these third part;es to use certain
patents that we own and enable us'to use certain patents owned by these third parties.




Environmental Compliance

We are subject to federal, state, local and international environmental laws and regulations. Compliance with these laws
and regulations has not had a material effect on our capital expenditures, eamings or competitive position. :

Employees

We had approximately 2,050 empl(’)j/ee's worldwide as of March 31, 2008.

Available Information "

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on 'Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to
reports filed pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available on our
website at www.quantum.com generally when such reports are available on the Securities and Exchange Commission
website. The contents of our website are not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

New York Stock Exchange Certifi catmn

We submitted the certification of our Chief Executive Officer required by the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) Llstmg
Standards, Section 303A.12(a), relating to Quantum’s compliance with the NYSE*Corpératc Governance Llslmg Standards,
to the NYSE on September 17, 2007 with no quahﬁcauous

Executive Officers of Quantum Corporation

Set forth below are the names, ages (as of June 1, 2008), posmons and ofﬁce‘; held by, and a bnef account of the business
cxpenence of each executive officer of Quantum. = :

.

_Naﬂ : ﬂ Position with Quantum

Barbara L. Barrett ' 59 Vice President, Human Resources

Richard E. Belluzzo 54 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

William C. Britts 49 ° Executive Vicé President, Sales, Marketing and Service
Jon W. Gacek 46 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Shawn D. Hall 39 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Gerald G. Lopatin | ‘ 49 . Senior Vice President, Engineering

Ms. Barrett joined Quantum in 1999 and has been Vicé President of Human Resources since July 2003. Prior to assuming
her current role, Ms, Barrett held other human resources management positions within the Company, most recently Vice
President, Human Resources of the DLTtape business. Before j joining Quantum, Ms. Barrett held leadership positions at
companies in the telecommunications and utilities industries in a variety of human resource functions, including
compensation, training, consulting and orgamzatmnal development.

Mr. Belluzzo has been Chief Executive Officer since joining the Company in September 2002 and Chairman of the Board
since July 2003, Before joining Quantum, from September 1999 to May 2002, Mr. Belluzzo held senior management
positions with Microsoft Corp., most recently as President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to Microsoft, from January
1998 to September 1999, Mr. Belluzzo was Chief Executive Officer of Silicon Graphics Inc. Before his tenure at Silicon
Graphics, from 1975 to January 1998, Mr. Belluzzo was with Hewlett-Packard, most recently as Executive Vice President
of the computer organization. Currently Mr. Belluzzo is a member of the board of directors of PMC-Sierra, as well as JDS
Uniphase. :

L

Mr. Britis became Executive Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Service in August 2006, upon Quantum’s acquisition
of ADIC. Before joining Quantum, Mr. Britts was the Co-Executive Vice President of Products, Sales and Service at
ADIC. In his 12 years at ADIC, he held numerous leadership positions, including Executive Vice President of Worldwide
Sales and Marketing, Vice President of Sales and Marketing and Director of Marketing. Prior to ADIC, Mr. Britts held a
number of marketing and sales positions at Raychem Corp. and its subsidiary, Elo TouchSystems. .

Mr. Gacek joined Quantum as Execulive Vice President and Chicf Financial Officer in Algust 2006, upon Quantum’s
acquisition of ADIC. Previously, he served as the Chief Financial Officer at ADIC from 1999 to 2006 and also led
Operations during his last two years there. Prior to ADIC, Mr. Gacek was an audit partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
and led the Technology Practice in the firm’s Seattle office. While at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, he assisted several
private equity investment firms with a number of mergers, acquisitions, leveraged buyouts and other transactions.,

Mr. Gacek serves on the board of directors for Loud Technologies, Inc. and HouseValues, Inc.
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Mr. Hall joined Quantum in 1999 as Corporate Counsel and assumned the role of Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary in 2001. Prior to Quantum, Mr. Hall worked at the law firms of Skadden, Arps and Willkie Farr & Gailagher,
where he practiced in the : areas of mergers and acquisitions and corporate ﬂnance representmg numerous’ pubhc and private
technology companies. . S

P
LI

Mr. Loparin joined Quantum in March 2008 as Senior Vice President, Engineering, Before Quantum, Mr. Lopatin was ‘
Senior Vice President, Engineering, Operations and Customer Support and a member of the executive team at ONStor. He
also spent six years at Network Appllance serving as Senior, Vice Pre51dent,, Worldwide Engmccrm5 y and, before that,
General Manager of that company’s Near Store business unit, Prtor to Network Apphance Mr. Lopatin héld leadership
positions at [omega, Samsung Electromcs Scagate and Komag and spent the first nine years ‘of his career at IBM. He is the
inventor of two issued patents, with two other patent applications pending, and has several published inventions.

ITEM IA. Risk Factors - : S S

THE READER SHOULD CAREFULLY CONSIDER THE RISKS-DESCRIBED BELOW, TOGETHER WITH ALL OF
THE OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K, BEFORE MAKING AN
INVESTMENT DECISION. THE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES DESCRIBED BELOW ARE NOT THE ONLY ONES
FACING QUANTUM. ADDITIONAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES NOT PRESENTLY KNOWN TO US OR THAT
ARE CURRENTLY DEEMED IMMATERIAL MAY ALSO IMPAIR.OUR BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS. THIS
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K CONTAINS “FORWARD-LOOKING” STATEMENTS THAT INVOLVE RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES. PLEASE SEE PAGE | OF THIS REPORT FOR ADDITIONAL DISCUSSION OF THESE
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS.

t o,

A large percentage of our sales come from a few customers;-and these customers generally have no minimum or
long-term purchase commitments. The loss of, or a significant reduction in demand frem, one or more key

customers could materially and adversely affect our busmess, fi nanctal condition and operating results.
i

Our sales have been and continue to be concentrated among a few customers. Sales to our top five customers in fiscal 2008
represented 42% of total revenue. This sales concentration does not include revenues from sales of ouf media that our
licensees sold to thcse customers, for which we, earn royalty, revenue. Furthermore, customers are not obligated to purchase
any minimum product volume and our relationships with our customers are terminable at will. In.fiscal 2008, sales to Dell
contributed approximately 16% of our revenue, If we experience a Stgmﬁcam decline in revenue from Dell, we could be .
matenally and adversely affected. : .

i ar ° i

In addition, many of our tape products are prlmarlly mcorporated into Iarger storage Systems or solutions that are marketed
and sold to end-users by our large OEM customérs. Because of this, we have limited market access to these end-ugers,
limiting our ablhty to reach and influence their purchasing decisions. These market conditions further our reliance on these
large OEM customiers. Thus if they were to significantly reduce cancel or delay thetr orders with us, our results of
operations could be materially adversely affected )

We derive almost all of our revenue from products incorporating tape technology. If competition from alternative
storage technologies continues or increases, our business, financial condition and operating results would be- -
materially and adversely harmed

n .

We derive almost all of our revenue from products that mcorporate some form of tape technology and we expectto . -
continue to derive a substantial majority of our revenue from these products for the foreseeable future. As a result, our
future operating results depend on the continued market acceptance of products employing tape drive technology. Our tape
products, including tape drives and automation systems, are increasingly challenged by products using hard disk drive
technology, such as Virtual Tape Libraries (VTL), standard disk arrays and Network Attached Storage (NAS). Hard disk
drives have experienced a trend toward lower prices while capacity and performance have increased. [f disk-based backup
products gain comparable or superior market acceptance, or their costs decline far more rapidly than tape drive and media
costs, the competition resulting from these products would increase as customers migrate toward them. We are working to
address this risk through our own targeted investment in disk-based products and other alternative technologies, but if we
are not successful in our efforts, our business, f'manmal condition and operating results would be materially and adversely
affected. ’




In connection with the acquisition of ADIC, we drew on our credit facility substantially increasing our debt service

obligations and constraining our ability to operate our business. Unless we are able to generate sufficient cash flows
from operations to meet these debt obligations, our busmess financial condition and operating results will be
materially and adversely affected.

In connection with our acquisition of ADIC, we borrowed $496.5 million under our credit facility with'KeyBank in August
2006, adding a significant amount of indébtedness and intetest expense to our obligations. During fiscal 2008, we -
refinanced our acquisition-related debt, repaying KeyBank in full and borrowing $400 million from Credit Su;sse First
Boston on our current credit agreement. As of March 31, 2008, the total amount outstanding under the current credit
agreement was $340 million. Our level of indebtedness presents significant risks to investors, both in terms of the
constraints that it places on our ability to operate our business and because of the possibility that we may not generate
sufficient cash to pay the principal of and interest on our indebtedness as it becomes due.

Our substantial debt could have important consequences, such as:

. Making it more difficult or 1mpossnble for us to make payments o our convertible subordmated notes or any
other indebtedness or obligations;

. Requiring us to dedicate a significant portion of our cash flow from operations and other capital resources to
debt service, thereby reducing our ability to fund working capital, capltal expenditures, rescarch and
development and other ‘cash reguirements; . .

. Requiring us to repay or refinance our convertible subordinated notes early;
+ . Increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions; .
. Limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes and opportunities in, the electronics

manufacturing industry, which may place us at a competitive disadvantage; and

. Limiting our ability to incur additional debt on acceptable terms, if at all.

In addition, there is a risk that we may not be able to repay our debt obligations as they become due. We have incurred
significant losses since 2001. Our ability'to meet our debt service obligations (and fund our working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions, research and developient and.other general corporate needs) will depend upon our ability to
generate sufficient cash flow from operations. We cannot provide assurance that we will generate sufficient cash flow from-
operations to service these debt obligations, or that future borrowings or equity financing will be available to us on '
commercially reasonable terms or at all, or available in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our debt obligations or fund
our other liquidity needs. Unless we are able to maintain ‘our cash flows from operations we may not generate sufficient
cash flow.to service our debt obligations, which would requiire that we reduce or delay capital expenditures and/or sell
assets, thereby affecting our ability to remain competitive and materlally and adversely affecting our business. Such a
failure to repay our debt obligations when due would also result in our default under our loan agreements, which would
give our lenders the right to seize all of our assets. Any such inability to meet our debt obligations would therefore have a
material and adverse effect on our business, financial condmon and results of operations.

Our credit agreement contains various covenants that limit our discretion in the operation of our business, which
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our credit agreement contains numerous restrictive covenants that require us to comply with and maintain certain financial
tests and ratios, thereby restricting our ability to: -

. Incur debt;

. Incur liens;

.~ Redeem or prepay subordinated debt;

*  Make acquisitions of businesses or entities or sell certain assets;
. Make investnients, including loans, guarantees and advances;

. Make capital expenditures beyond a certain threshold;

. Engage in transactions with affiliates;

. Pay dividends or engage in stock repurchases; and

. Enter into certain restrictive agreements,
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Our ability to comply with covenants contained in our credit agreement may be affected by events beyond our control,
including prevailing economic, financial and industry conditions. Even if we are able to comply with all covenants, the
restrictions on our ability to operate our business could harm our business by, among other things, limiting our ability to
take advantage of financings, mergers, acquisitions and other corporate opportunities. In addition, we may seek to refinance
certain of our indebtedness in the future. We cannot assure you that additional financing will be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all.

Our credit agreement is secured by a pledge of all of our assets. If we were to default under our credit agreement and were
unable to obtain a waiver for such a default, the lenders would have a right to foreclose on our assets in order to satisfy our
obligations under the credit agreement. Any such action on the part of the lenders against us could have a materially
adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In prior year periods, we violated certain financial covenants under our credit agrecment and received waivers or
amendments for such violations. If in the future we violate financial covenants, it could materially and adversely
impact our financial condition and liquidity.

If our operating results do not improve in the future and we violate any financial or reporting covenant in our credit
agreement and receive a notice of default letter from our bank group, our credit line could become unavailable, and any
amounts outstanding could become immediately due and payable.

Without the availability of the credit agreement, we would have to rely on operating cash flows and debt or equity
arrangements other than the credit agreement, if such alternative funding arrangements are available to us at all, in order to
maintain sufficient liquidity. If we were not able to obtain sufficient cash from our operations or from these aiternative
funding sources under such circumstances, our operations, financial condition and liquidity would be materially and
adversely affected.

Competition has increased, and may increasingly intensify, in the tape drive and tape automation markets as a
result of competitors introducing products based on new technology standards, which could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations,

We compete with companies that develop, manufacture, market and sell tape drive and tape automation products. The
principal competitors for our tape drive products include Hewlett-Packard, IBM and Sun. These competitors arc
aggressively trying to advance and develop new technologies and products to compete against our technologies and
products. For instance, LTO technology, which was developed by Certance, Hewlett-Packard and IBM, targets the high-
capacity data backup market and competes directly with our products based on Super DLTtape technology. Hewlett-
Packard and IBM thus compete not only with our Super DLTtape products but now compete with the LTO product
offerings that we acquired throug,h our acqutsmon of Certance. This competmon has resulted in a trend, which is expected
to continue, toward lower prices and lower margins eamed on our DLTtape and Super DLTtape drives and media.
Additionally, over the last two years, our DLT and Super DLTtape drives have lost market share to LTO based preducts,
and we cannot provide assurance that our tape technology based products will not continue to lose market share to LTO
based products in the future. These factors, and additional factors, such as the possibility of industry consolidation, when
combined with the current environment of intense competition, which has resulted in reduced shipments of our tape drive
products, could result in a further reduction in our pricés, volumes and margins, which could materially and adversely
impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our tape automation products compete with product offermgs of Dell, EMC, IBM and Sun, which offer tape automation
systems 1ncorp0rat1ng DLTtape and Super DLTtape technology as well as LTO technology. Increased competition has
resulted in increased price competition. If this trend continues or worsens, if competition further intensifies, or if industry
consclidation occurs, our sales and gross margins could decline, which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

From time to time we make acquisitions, such as our 2006 acquisition of ADIC. The failure to successfully integrate
recent or future acquisitions could harm our business, financiat condition and operating results,

As a part of our business strategy, we have in the past and expect in the future to make acquisitions, or significant
investments in, complementary companies, products or technologies, such as our 2006 acquisition of ADIC. If we fail to
successfully integrate such acquisitions, it could harm our business, financial condition and operating results. Risks that we
may face in our efforts to integrate any recent or future acquisitions include, among others:

. Failure to realize anticipated savings and benefits from the acquisition;
. Difficulties in assimilating and retaining employees;
. Potential incompatibility of business cultures;
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. Coordinating geographically separate organizations;

. Diversion of management’s attention from ongoing business concerns;

. Coordinating infrastructure operations in a rapid and efficient manner;

. The potential inability to maximize our financial and strategic position through the successful incorporation of
acquired technology and rights into our products and services;

. Failure of acquired technology or products to provide anticipated revenue or margin contribution;

* - Insufficient revenues to offset increased cxpenses associated with the acquisition;

. Costs and delays in implementing or integrating common systems and procedures;

. Reduction or loss of customer orders due to the potential for market confusion, hesitation and delay;

. Impairment of existing customer, supplier and strategic relationships of either company;

. [nsufficient cash flows from operations to fund the working capital and investment requirements;

. Difficulties in entering markets in which we have no or limited direct pribr experience and where competitors
in such markets have sironger market positions;

. The possibility that we may not receive a favorable return on our investment, the original investment may
become impaired, and/or we may incur losses from these investments;

. Dissatisfaction or performance problems with the acquired company;

. The assumption of risks of the acquired company that are difficult to quantify, such as litigation;

. The cost associated with the acquisition; and

« Assumption of unknown liabilities or other unanticipated adverse events or circumstances.

Acquisitions present many risks, and we may not realize the financial and strategic goals that were contemplated at the time
of any transaction. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to successfully integrate any business, products,
technologies or personnel that we may acquire in the future, and our failure to do so could harm our business, financial
condition and operating results. -

Our operating results depend on new product introductions, which méy not be successful, in which case our
business, financial condition and operating results may be materially and adversely affected.

To compete effectively, we must continuaily improve existing products and introduce new ones, such as our recently
introduced DXi-series products, the Scalar 50, L'TO-4 tape drive, GoVault and enhanced Scalar 1500 and Scalar i2000
products and next generation StorNext software. We have devoted and expect to continue to devote considerable
management and financial resources to these efforts. We cannot provide assurance that:

. We will introduce new products in the time frame we are forecasting;

. We will not experience technical, quality, performance-related or other difficulties that could prevent or delay
the introduction of, and market acceptance of, new products;

. Our new products will achieve market acceptance and significant market share, or that the markets for these
products will continue or grow as we have anticipated;

»  Our new products will be successfully or timely qualified with our customers by meeting customer
performance and quality specifications because a successful and timely customer qualification must occur
before customers will place large product orders; or

. We will achieve high volume production of these new products in a timely manner, if at all.
If we are not successful in timely completion of our new product qualifications and then ramping sales to our key
customers, our revenue and results of operations could be adversely impacted. In addition, if the quality of our products is

not acceptable to our customers, this could result in.customer dissatisfaction, lost revenue and increased warranty and repair
costs. -
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We have taken considerable steps towards reducing our cost structure and may take further cost reduction actions.
The steps we have taken and may take in the future may not reduce our cost structure to a level appropriate in
relation to our future sales and therefore, these antlclpated cost reductlons may be msufﬁclent to bring us back tn
profitability.

In the last four years, we have recorded significant restructuring charges and made cash payments in order to reduce our
cost of sales and operating expenses to rationalize our operations following past acquisitions and in response to adverse
economic, industry and competitive conditions. We may take future steps to further reduce our operating costs. These steps
and additional future restructurings in response to rationalization of operations following future acquisitions, strategic
dectsions or adverse changes in our business and industry may require us to make cash payments that, if large enough,
would materially and adversely affect our liquidity. We may be unable to reduce our cost of sales and operating expenses at
a rate and to a level consistent with a future potential adverse sales environment, which may adversely affect our business,
financial condition and operating results.

: n
'

Our tape media and tape royalty business generates a relatlvelg, high gross margm rate, which sngml‘icantly lmpacts
the total company gross margin rate. If we were to experience a significant decline in the fape media or tape royalty
gross margin rate, our business, financial condition, and operatmg results would be materlally and adverselg '
affected.

Our tape royalty and media gross margin rates and revenues are dependent on many factors, including the following factors:

. The pricing actions of other media suppliers;

. The size of the installed base of tape drives that use our tabe cartridges;

. The performance of our strategic licensing partners, which sell our tape media cartridges;

. The relative growth in units of our newer tape drive product's-, since the associated media cartridges typically

sell at higher prices than the media cartridges associated with older tape drive products; -
. The relative mix of media purchased directly from us as compared to our llcensees
. The media consumption habits and rates of énd- -users;
. The pattern of tape drive retirements; and

. The level of channel inventories.

Competition from other tape technologies has had. a significant negative impact on our income from media as well as on our
sales of tape drives. Similarly, competition among media suppliers has periodically resulted in intense, price-based’
competition formedia sales, which also affects media income. If either of these-competitive factors continues or intensifies,
it would further erode tape drive unit sales, tape drive installed base, media units and media pricing. To the extent that our
Quantum branded media revenue and media royalties depend upon medla pricing and the quantity of media consumed by
the installed base of our tape drives, reduced media prices, or & rediiced installed tape drive base, would result in further
reductions in our Quantum branded media and media royalty revenue and gross margm rates. This would matenally and
adversely affect our business, f'manc1al condition, and reSults of operanons

Third party intellectual property mfrmgement claims could result in substantlal llablllty and significant costs, and,
as a result, our business, financial condition, and operating results may be materially and adversely affected.

From time to time, third parties allege our infringement of a.nd need for a license under their patented or other proprietary
technology. While we currently believe the amount of ultimate liability, if any, with respect to any such actions will not
materially affect our financial position, results of operations, or liquidity, the ultimate outcome of any license discussion or
litigation is uncertain. Adverse resolution of any third party infringement claim could subject us to substantial liabilities and
require us to refrain from manufacturing and selling certain products. In addition, the costs incurred in intellectual property
litigation.can be substantial, regardless of the outcome. As a result; our business, financial condition, and operating results
could be materiatly and adversely affected.

In addition, certain products or technologies acquired or developed by us may include so-called “open source” software.
Open source software is typically licensed for use at no initial charge. Certain open source software licenses, however,
require users of the open source software to license to others any software that'is based on, incorporates or interacts with,
the open source software under the terms of the open source license: Although we endeavor to comply fully with such
requirements, third parties could claim that we are required to license larger portions of our software than we believe we are
required to license under open source software licenses..If such claims were successfui, théy could adversely impact our
competitive position and financial results by providing our competitors with access to sensitive information that may help

15



them develop competitive products. In addition, our use of open source sol’tware may harm our busmess and sub_lect us to
intellectual property claims, litigation or proceedings in the future because:

+  Open source license terms may be ambiguous and m_ay subject us to unanticigated obligati‘ons regarding our
products, technologies and intellectual property; )

. Open source software generally cannot be protected under trade secret law; and

. It may be difficult for us to accurately determine the origin of the open source code and whether the open

source software infringes, misappropriates or violates third party intellectual property or other rights.
As a result of our global manufacturing and sales operations, we are subject to a variety of risks that are unigue to
businesses with international operations of a similar scope, any of which could, individually or in the aggregate have
a material adverse effect on our business: :

A significant portion of our manufacturing and sales operations and supply chain occurs in countries other than the U.S. We
also have sales outside the U.S. In addition, a significant number of our products are manufactured in Malaysia. Similarly,

one of the suppliers of reeordmg heads for our products is located in China. Because of these operations, we are subject to a
number of risks including:

. - &

. Import and export duttes and value- added taxes;

* . Import and export and trade regulation changes that could erode our profit margins or restrict our ability to
transport our products; )

. Political, military, social, and infrastructure risks, especnal]y in emerging or developmg €conomies;

. Potential restrictions on the transfer of funds between countries;

. Natural disasters, mcludmg earthquakes typhoons and tsunamis;

. Inflexible emp]oyee contracts. and employment laws that may make it dlfﬁcult to terminate employees in some

foreign countries in the event of busmess downturns;. o

. Adverse movement of fore1gn currencies against the US, dollar (the currency in which our results are
reported);

. Shortages in component parts and raw materials; and

. The burden and cost of complying with foreign laws.
Any or all of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely on indirect sales channels to market and sell our branded products. Therefore, the loss of or’ deterioration
in our relationship with one or more of our resellers or distributors could negatwely affect our operating results.

We sell the majority of our branded products to value-added resellers ~or VARs, and to direct marketing resellers such as
CDW Corporation, who in turn seli our products to end-users, and to distributors such as Ingram Micro, Tech Data and
others. We also have a growing Telationship with EMC through which we make available our branded products that
complement EMC’s product offerings. The success of these sales channels is hard to predict, particularly over time, and we
have no purchase commitments or long-term orders from them that,assure us of any baseline sales through these channels,
Several of our resellers carry competing product lines that they may promote over our products. A reseller might not
continue to purchase our products or market them effectively, and each reseller determines the type and amount of our
products that it will purchase from us and the pricing of the products that it sells to end-user customers.

Certain of our contracts with our distributors conitain “most favored nation” pricing provisions mandatmg that we offer our
products to these customers at the lowest price offered to other similarly situated customers. kn addition, sales'of our
enterprise-class libraries, and the revenueassociated with the on-site service of those libraries, are somewhat concentrated
in specific customers, including government agencies and government-related companies. Our operating results could be
adversely affected by any number of factors including:

. A change in competitive strategy that adversely affects a reseller’s willingness or ability to distribute our
products; _ ,

. The reduction, delay or bancellauon of order«, or the return of a SIgmﬁcant amount of products;

. The loss of one, or more of such, resellers; or . .

. Any ﬁnanc1al difficultics of such resellers that result in the1r mablllty to pay amounts owed to us.
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Our quarterly operatmg results, could fluctuate mgmf‘ cantly, ‘and past quarterly operating results should not be used
to predict future performance.

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and could fluctuate 51gn1f' cantly in the future. As a
result, our past quarterly operating results should not be used to predict future performance. Quarterly operatmg results
could be materiaily and adversely affected by a number of factors, including, but not limited to:

. Failure to complete shlpments in the last month of a quarter durmg whlch a substantlal pomon of our products
dre typically shipped; or

. Customers canceling, reducmg, deferring or reschedulmg s:gmﬂcant orders as a result of excess mvemory
levels, weak economic conditions or other factors;

. Declines in network server demand;

. Product deve]opmént' and ramp cycles and product performance or QUality issues;

. Reduced demand from our OEM customers; ’

. An inadequate supply of tape media cartridges; . "

. Increased competition.

If we fail to meet our projected quarterly results, our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be
materiatly and adversely harmed.

:

If our products fail to meet our or our customers’ specifications for quality and reliability, our results of operations’
may be adversely impacted and our competitive position may suffer.

Although we place great emphas:s on product quality, we may from time to time experience problems with the performance
of our products. If that occurs, our. operating results could be negatively impacted by one or more of the following factors:

. Increased costs related to fulfillment of our warranty obligations;

. The reduction, detay or cancellation of orders or the return of a significant amount of preducts;
. Focused failure analysis causing distraction of the sales, opcratio}ls, and management teams; or
. The loss of reputation in the market and customer goodwill. '

. Lk

If we fail to meet our projected quarterly results due to quality problems, our business, financial condition, and results of
operations may be materially and adversely harmed. : :

If we do not successfully manage the changes that we have made and may continue to make to our infrastructure
and management, our business could be disrupted, and that could adversely impact our results of operations and
financial condition.

Managing change is an important focus for us. Following the acquisitions of Certance and ADIC, one of our important
initiatives involves combining and integrating the information technology infrastructures of the companies, including our
enterprise resource planning systemis, and adapting our business processes and software to the requirements of the new
organization. Wé are also managing several significant mltlat:ves involving our operatlons including efforts to reduce the
number of contract manufacturers and suppliers we use, the outsourcing of our repair capabilities and the related closing of
our facilities in Dundalk, Ireland and Irvine, Scotland. In addition, we continue to reduce headcount to streamline and
consolidate our supporting functtons as appropriate following past acquisitions and in response to market or competitive
conditions. If we are unable to successfully manage the changes that we implement, and detect and address issues as they
arise, it could disrupt our business and adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property or if others use our proprietary technology wntbout authorization, our
competitive pnsmon may suffer,

Our future success and ability to compete depends in part on our proprictary techno]ogy We rely on a'combination of
copyright, patent, trademark, and trade secrets laws and nondisclosure agrecments to establish and protect our proprietary
technology. We currently hold 499 U.S. patents and have 161 U.S. patent applications pending. However, we cannot
provide assurance that patents will be issued with respect to pending or future patent applications that we have filed or plan
to file or that our patents will be upheld as valid or will prevent the development of competitive products or that any actions
we have taken will adequately protect our intellectual property rights. We generally enter into confidentiality agreements
with our employees, consultants, customers, potential customers, and others as required, in which we strictly limit access
to, and distribution of, our software, and further limit the disclosure and use of our proprietary information. Despite our
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efforts to protect our proprictary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain or use our products or
technology. Our competitors may also independently develop technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to
our technology. In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprletary rights to the same extent as
the laws of the U.S.

Because we may order components from suppliers in advance of receipt of customer orders for our products which
include these components, we could face a material inventory risk,

Although we use third parties to manufacture certain of our products, we also manufacture products in-house. Managing
our in-house manufacturing capabilities presents a number of risks that could materially and adversely affect our financial
condition. For instance, as part of our component planning, we place orders with or pay certain suppliers for components in
advance of receipt of customer orders. We occasionally enter into negotiated orders with vendors early in the
manufacturing process of our storage products to ensure that we have sufficient components for our new products to meet
anticipated customer demand. Because the design and manufacturing process for these components is complicated, it is
possible that we could experience a design or manufacturing flaw that could delay or even prevent the production of the
components for which we previously committed to pay. We also face the risk of ordering too many components, or
conversely, not enough components, since supply orders are generally based on forecasts of customer orders rather than
actual customer orders. In addition, in some cases, we make non-cancelable order commitments to our suppliers for work-
in-progress, supplier’s finished goods, custom sub-assemblies, discontinued (end-of-life) components and Quanturm-unique
raw materials that are necessary to meet our lead times for finished goods. 1f we cannot change or be released from supply
orders, we could incur costs from the purchase of unusable components, either due to a delay in the production of the
components or other supplies or as a result of inaccurately predicting supply orders in advance of customer orders. Our
business and operating results could be materially and adversely affected as a result of these increased costs.

Some of our manufacturing, and our service repair, is outsourced to third party contract manufacturers. If we
cannot obtain our products and parts from these third parties in a cost effective and timely manner that meets our
customers’ expectations, this could materially ard adversely impact our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Some of our tape drives and tape automation products are manufactured for us by contract manufactures. We face a number
of risks as a result of this outsourced manufacturing, including, among others:

[

. Sole source of product supply

In each case, our contract manufacturer is our sole source of supply for the tape drive and/or tape automation
products they manufacture for us. Because we are relying on one supplier, we are at greater risk of
experiencing component shortages, reduced production capacity or other detays in customer deliveries that

could result in customer dissatisfaction, lost sales and increased expenses, which could materially damage
customer relationships and result in lost revenue. :

J Cost and purchase commitments

We may not be able to control the costs we would be required to pay our contract manufacturers for the
products they manufacture for us. They procure inventory to build our products based upon a forecast of
customer demand that we provide. We would be responsible for the financial impact on the contract
manufacturer of any reduction or product mix shifi in the forecast relative to materials that they had already
purchased under a prior forecast. Such a variance in forecasted demand could require us to pay them for
finished goods in excess of current customer demand or for excess or obsolete inventory and generally incur
higher costs. As a result, we could experlc,nce reduced gross margins and larger operatmg losses based on these
purchase commitments.

. Quality and supplier conduct

We will have limited control over the quality of products produced by our contract manufacturers. Therefore,
the quality of the products may not be acceptable to our customers and could result in customer dlssatlsfacnon
lost revenue, and increased warranty costs, In addition, we have limited contrel over the manner in which our
contract manufacturers conduct their business. Therefore, we may face negative consequences or publicity as a
result of a third party’s failure to comply with trade, environmental, or employment regulations.

In addition, many of.our product components and subassemblies are manufactured by other third parties, by whom we may
be.exposed to the same risks. Any or all of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our.business.




We do not control licensee pricing or licensee sales of tape media cartridges. To the extent that our royalty revenue
is dependent on the prices of cartridges sold by our licensees, should these licensees significantly lower prices on the
media products that they sell, such reduced pricing would lower our royalty revenue, which would materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.

We receive a royalty fee based on sales of our 1ape media cartridges by Fuji, Maxell, Imation and Sony. Under our license
agreements with these companies, each of the licensees determines the pricing and number of units of tape media cartr:dges
that it sells. To the extent that our royalty revenue is based on the prices of cartridges sold by our licensecs, our royalty
revenue will vary depending on the level of sales and prices set by the licensees. In addition, lower prices set by licensees |,
could require us to lower our prices on direct sales of tape media cartridges, which would reduce our revenue and margins
on these products. As a result, lower prices on our tape media cartridges would reduce media revenue, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operatmg results.

Poor operating perfﬂrmance may negatively impact our ability to attract and retain employees, which could further
adversely impact our business.

Increased turnover in our employee base or the inability to fitl open headcount rcquisitions due to concerns about our
performance could impair or delay our ability to realize operational and strategic objectives and cause increased expenses
and lost sales opportunities.

Decreased effectiveness of equity compensation could adversely affect our ability to attract and retain employees,
and recent changes in accounting for equity compensation are adversely affectmg earnings.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“EASB”) issucd SFAS No. 123 (rewsed 2004) Share-Based Payment (“SFAS
No. t23R”), which we imptemented at the beginning of fiscal 2007. We are required to recognize compensation expense in
our statements of operations for the fair value of unvested employee stock options at the date of adoption and new stock
options granted to our employees after the adoption date over the related vesting periods of the stock options. The
requirement to expense stock options granted to employees reduces their attractiveness to Quantum because the expense
associated with these grants typically results in future compensation charges. In addition, the expense recorded may not
accurately reflect the value of our stock options because the option pricing models used to estimate fair value were not
developed for use in valuing employee stock options and are based on highly subjective assumptions, inctuding the option’s
expected life and the price volatility of the underlying stock. Alternative compensation arrangements that can replace stock
option programs may also negatively impact profitability. Stock options remain an important employee recruitment and
retention tool, and we may not be able to attract and retain key personnel if we reduce the scope of our employee stock
option program. Our employees are critical to our ability to develop and design systems that advance our productivity and
technology goals, increase our sales and provide support to customers. Accordingly, as a result of the requirement under
SFAS No. 123R to recognize the fair value of stock options as compensation expense, beginning in the first quarter of fiscal
2007, our future results of operations have been adversely impacted. See also Note 4 “Stock Incentive Plans and Share- |
based Compensation” to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our stock price could become more volatile if certain institutional investors were to increase or decrease the number
of shares they own. In addition, there are other factors and events that could affect the trading prices of our
cemmon stock,

Five institutional investors own approximately 49% of our common stock as of March 31, 2008, If any or all of these
investors were to decide to purchase additional shares or to sell some or all of the common shares they currently own, that
may cause our stock price to be more volatile. For example, there have been instances in the past where a shareholder with
a significant equity position begins selling shares, putting downward pressure on our stock price for the duration of their
selling activity. In these situations, selling pressure outweighs buying demand and our stock price declined.

Trading prices of our common stock may fluctuate in response to a number of other events and factors, such as:

. General economic conditions;

. Changes in interest rates;

. Fluctuations in the stock market in general and market prices for higﬁ technology companies in particular;

. Quarterly variations in our operating results;

. New products, services, innovations and strategic developments by our competitors or us, or busmess ' '

combinations and investments by our compemors or us;
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. Changes in financial estimates by us or securities analysts and recommendations by securities analysts;
. Changes in our capital structure, including issuance of additional debt or equity to the public; and

. Strategic acquisitions.

Any of these events and factors may cause our stock price to rise or falt and may adversely affect our business and
financing opportunities.

Some of our production processes and mateérials are environmeéntally sensitive, and new environmental regulation
could lead to increased costs, or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations,

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulations relating to, among other things, the use, storage, discharge and disposal
of chemicals, gases and other hazardous substances used in our manufacturing processes, air emissions, waste discharges,
waste disposal, the investigation and remediation of soil and ground water contamination, as well as requirements for the
design and disposition of and materials used in our products. Recent directives in the European Union imposed a “take
back” obligation on manufacturers for the financing of the collection, recovery and disposal of electrical and electronic
equipment and the use of some heavy metals including lead and some flame retardants in electronic products and
components begirining in July 2006. New European Union legislation that will further restrict aliowdble materials becornes
effective in 2008, and we anticipate that other domestic and international jurisdictions will introduce similar requirements
in the future. We have implemented procedures and will likely continue to introduce new processes to comply with this
legislation. However, this legislation may adversely affect our manufacturing costs or product sales by requiring us to
acquire costly equipment or materials, or to incur other significant expenses in adapting our manufacturing processes or
waste and emission disposal processes. Furthermore, environmental claims or our faiture to comply with present or future
regulations could result in the assessment of damages or imposition of fines against us, or the suspension of affected
operations, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

We are subject to many laws and regulations, and violation of those requirements could materially and adversely
affect our business.

We are subject to numerous domestic and international laws regarding corporate conduct, fair competition, and preventing
coiruption, including requirements applicable to U.S, government contractors. While we maintain a rigorous corporate
ethics and compliance program, we may be subject to increased regulatory scrutiny, significant monetary fines or penalties,
suspension of business opportunities, or loss of jurisdictional operating rights as a result of any failure to comply with those
requirements. Any one of those consequences could materially and adversely impact our business and operating results.

We may be sued by our customers as a result of failures in our products.

We face potential liability for performance problems of our products because our end-users employ our storage
technologies for the storage and backup of important data and to satisfy regulatory requirements. Although we maintain
technology etrors and omissions insurance, our insurance may not cover potential claims of this type or may not be
adequale to indemnify us for all liability that may be imposed. Any imposition of liability that is not covered by insurance
or is in excess of our insurance coverage could harm our business.

In addition, we could potentially face claims for product liability from our customers if our products cause property damage
or bodily injury. Although we maintain generai liability insurance, our insurance may not cover potential claims of this type
or may not be adequate to indemnify us for all liability that may be imposed. Any imposition of liability that is not covered
by insurance or is in excess of our insurance coverage could harm our business.

We must maintain appropriate levels of service parts for maintenance. If we do not have sufficient service parts for
maintenance, we may experience increased levels of customer dissatisfaction. If we have teo much service parts for
maintenance, we may incur financial losses. ‘

We maintain levels of service parts for maintenance to satisfy future warranty obligations and also to eamn service revenue
to repair products for which the warranty has expired. We estimate the required amount of scrvice parts for maintenance
based on historical usage and forecasts of future warranty requirements, including estimates of failure rates and costs to
repair, and out of warranty revenue. Given the significant levels of judgment inherently involved in the process, we cannot
provide assurance that we will be able to maintain appropriate levels of service parts for maintenance to satisfy customer
needs and to avoid financial losses from excess service parts for maintenance. 1f we are unable to maintain appropriate
levels of service parts for maintenance, our business, financial condition, and resuits of operations may be materially and
adversely impacted. '
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Because we rely heavily on distributors and other resellers to market and sell our products, if one or more
distributors were to experience a significant deterioration in its fi nancial condition or its relationship with us, this
could disrupt the distribution of our products and reduce our revenue, which could matenally and adversely affect
our business, financial cond:tlon, and operating results.

In certain product and geographic segments we heavily utilize distributors and value added resellers to perform the _
functions necessary to market and sell our products. To fulfill this role, the distributor must maintain an acceptable level of
financial stability, ¢reditworthiness and the ability to successfully manage business relationships with the customers it
serves directly, Under our distributor agreements with these comparies, each of the distributors determines the type and
amount of our products that it will purchase from us and the pricing of the products that it sells to its customers. If the
distributor is unable to perform in an acceptable manner, we may be required to reduce the amount of sales of our product
to the distributor or terminate the relationship. We may also incur financial losses for product returns from distributors or
for the failure or refusal of distributors to pay obligations owed to us. Either scenario could result in fewer of our products’
being available to the affected market segments, reduced levels of customer satisfaction and/or increased expenses, Wthh
could in turn have a-material and adverse impact on our business, results of operauons and financial condition,

If the future outcomes related to the estimates used in recording tax Ilabllltles to various taxing authorities result in
higher tax liabilities than estimated, then we would have to record tax charges, which could be material.

We have provided amounts and recorded liabilities for probable and estimable tax adjustments that may be proposed by
various taxing authorities in the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions. If events occur that indicate payments of these amounts will
be less than estimated, then reversals of these liabilities would create tax benefits being recognized in the periods when we
determing the liabilities have reduced. Conversely, if events occur which indicate that payments of these amounts will be
greater than estimated, then tax charges and additional liabilities would be recorded. In particular; various foreign
Jjurisdictions could challenge the characterization or transfer pricing of certain intercompany transactions. In the event of an
unfavorable outcome of such challenge, there exists the possibility of a material tax charge and adverse impact on the
results of operations in the penod in Wthh the matter is resolved or an unfavorable outcome becomes probable and
estimable.

Maxtor’s failure to perform under its agreements with Quantum could harm our business, ﬁnancnal condition, and
operating results.

We may have contingent liabilities for some obligations assumed by Maxtor in connection with the disposition of the Hard
Disk Drive group, including liabilities for taxes, real estate and litigation, and Maxtor’s fatlure to perform under these
obligations could result in. signifi icant costs to us that could have a materially adverse impact on our business, financial
condition, and operating resuits. In May 2006, Maxtor was acquired by Seagate, which assumed Maxtor’s defense and
indemniﬁcation obligations.
The disposition of the Hard Disk Drive group may be determined not to be tax-free, which would result in us or our
stockholders, or both, incurring a substantial tax llablhty, which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. :

Maxtor and Quantum have ag_reed not to request a ruling from thé lntcmeil Revenue Service, or any state tax authority
confirming that the structure of the combination of Maxtor with the Hard Disk Drive group will not result in any federal
income tax or state income or franchise tax to Quantum or'the previous holders of the Hard Disk Drive common stock,
Instead, Maxtor and Quantum have agreed to effect the disposition and the merger on the basis of an opinion from our tax
advisor, and a tax opinion insurance policy issued by a syndicate of major insurance companies to us covering up to $340
million of tax loss caused by the disposition and merger.

If the disposition of the Hard Disk Drive group is determined not to be tax-frée and the tax opinion insurance policy does
not fully cover the resulting tax liability, we or our stockholders or both could incur substantial tax liability, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In May 2006, Maxtor was
acquired by Seagate, which assumed Maxtor s defénse and mdemmﬁcatmn obligations.
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The tax opmlon insurance pnlncy issued in conjunctlon with the disposition nf the Hard Disk Drive group does not
cover all circumstances under which the d|spns1tmn could become taxable to us, and as a result, we could incur an
uninsured tax llahlllt}, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

In addition to customary exclusions from its coverage the tax oplmon insurance pollcy does not cover any federal or state
tax payable by us if the disposition becomes taxable to us as a.result of a change in relevant tax law. We could incur an
uninsured tax liability, which could materially and adversuly affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

If we incur an uninsuréd tax liability as a result of the disposition of the Hard Disk Drive group, our financial
condition dnd operatmg results could be negatwelv affected.

If the disposition of the Hard Disk Drive group were determined to be taxable lo Quantum we would not be able to recover
an amount to cover the tax liability either from Maxtor or under the insurance policy in the following circumstances:

. If the tax loss were not covered by the policy because it fell under one of the exclusions from coverage under
the tax opinion insurance policy described above insurance proceeds would not be available to cover the loss;

. If the tax loss were caused by our own acts or ‘those of a third party that made the disposition taxable (for
instance, an acquisition of control of Quantum which began during the one-year period before and nine-month
‘period followmg the closing), Maxtor would not be obligated to mdemmfy us for the amount of the tax
Ildblllty, or

. If Maxtor were required to reimburse us for the amount of the tax liability according to its mdemmﬁcatmn
obligations under the Hard Disk Drive group disposition, but was not able to pay the reimbursement in full, we
would nevertheless be obligated, as the taxpayer, to pay the tax.

In any of these circumstances, the tax payments due from us could be substantial. In order to pay the tax, we would have fo
either deplete our existing cash resources or borrow cash o cover our tax obligation. Our payment of a significant tax prior
to payment from Maxtor under Maxtor’s indemnification obligations, or in circumstances where Maxtor has no payment
obligation, could harm our business, financial condition, and operating results. In May 2006, Maxtor was acquired by
Seagate, which assumed Maxtor’s defense an'd indemnification obligations.

We arc exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, and an adverse change in foreign currency
exchange rates relative to our position in such currencies could have a materially adverse impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. : "

We do not use derivative financial instruments for foreign currency hedging or speculative purposes. To minimize foreign
currency exposure, we use foreign currency obligations to match and offset net currency exposures associated with certain
assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies. Corresponding gains and.losses on the underlying
transaction generally offset the gains and losses on these foreign currency obligations. We have used in the past, and may
use in the future, foreign currency forward contracts to hedge our exposure to foreign currency exchange rates. To the
extent that we have assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency that are inadequately hedged or not hedged at all,
we may be subject to foreign currency losses, yvhlch couldl be significant.

Our international operations can act as a natural hedge when both operating expenses and sale$ are denominated in local
currencies. In these instances, although an unfavorable change in the exchange rate of a foreign ‘currency against the U.S.
dollar would result in lower sales when translated to U.S. dollars, operating expenses would also be lower in these
circumstances. An increase in the rate at which a foreign currency is exchanged for U.S, dollars would require more of that
particular forelgn currency to equal a specified amount of U.S. dollars than before such rate increase. In such cases, and if
we were to price our products and services in that particular foreign currency, we would receive fewer U.S. dollars than we
would have received prior to such'rate increase for the foréign currency. Likewise, if we were to price our products and
services in U.S. dollars while competitors priced their products in a local currency, an increase in the relative strength of the
U.S. dollar would result in our prices being uncompetitive in those markets. Such fluctuations in currency exchange rates
could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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ITEM 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in San Jose, California. We lease facilities in North America, Europe and Asia. The following
is a summary of the significant locations and primary functions of those facilities as of March 31, 2008:

Location * Function

North America '

San Jose, CA Corporate headquarters, sales, research and development
Irvine, CA Administration, sales, service, research and development
Santa Maria, CA Research and development .
Colorade Springs, CO Operations, service, research and development, administration
Boulder, CO Research and development '
Englewood, CO Research and development, service and operations

Redmond, WA Sales, administration, research and development y
Other North America Sales, research and development

Europe

Paris, France Sales

Munich, Germany Sales and service e

Bracknell, UK Sales and service

Northampton, UK Sales and service

Zurich, Switzerland Operations and administration

Other Europe Sales, service and administration

Asia Pacific '

Tokyo, Japan Sales and media procurement center .

Singapore City, Singapore Sales and distribution

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia Administration and customer service

Hyderabad, India Research and development

Shanghai, China Sales :

Adelaide, Australia Research and development

Brisbane, Australia Sales and administration

Other Asia Pacific Sales

L]

ITEM 3. . Legal Proceedings

For information regarding iegal proceedings, refer to Note 19 “Litigation” to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
We did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
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PART 11

ITEM'S. Market for the Reglstrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securitiés

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “QTM.” Prior to November 135, 2006, our
stock traded under the symbol “DSS.” As of June 2, 2008, the closing price of our common stock was $1.66 per share. The
prices per share reflected in the following table represent the range of high and low closing prices for the quarters indicated.

Fiscal 2008 ] ‘ ‘ High Low

First quarter ended June 30, 2007........... RUTU e aera e ferireenrea e $3.29 $ 2.60
Second quarter ended September 30, 2007......cccciiiiiiiniiiii e 3.58 2.83
Third quarter ended December 31, 2007 ..ot 4.15 2.49
Fourth quarter ended March 31, 2008 ................................................ ettt 301 203
Fiscal 2007 High Low

First quarter ended June 30, 2006...........c.coviniriminiene e e 5376 $ 259
Second quarter ended September 30, 2006, 2.66 1.94
Third quarter ended December 31, 2006 ... ..o 2.50 1.98
Fourth quarter ended March 31, 2007 ..o SRSV 272 2.24

Historically, we have not paid cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to pay dividends in the foreseeable
future. Our ability to pay dividends is restricted by the covenants in our credit facility.

As of June 2, 2008, there were 1,619 Quantum stockholders of record including the Depository Trust Company which

‘holds shares of Quantum common stock on behalf of an indeterminate number of beneficial owners.

The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the information '
set forth in our proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commission within 120
days after the end of our fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

This summary of selected consolidated financial information of Quantum for fiscal 2004 to 2008 should be read along with
our Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have acquired companies and
disposed of businesses in addition to certain other items that affect the comparability of the sclected financial information
as described below.

Acquisitions and Dispositions .

On August 22, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Advanced D:gltal Information Corporation (“ADIC”) and on

January 5, 2005, we completed the acquisition of Certance Holdings. The selected information below includes the results of
operations of our acquisitions from their respective acquisition dates. Additional information regarding these acquisitions is
available in Note 5 “Acquisitions” to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. On
October 28, 2002 we completed the disposition of the network attached storage (“NAS”) business. As a result, the selected
financial information below presents results of the NAS business as discontinued operations.

24




Other Items

The results of continuing operations for fiscal 2007 included $14.7 million of purchased in-process research and
development in connection with the acquisitions of ADIC. The results of continuing operations for fiscal 2006 included loss
on settlement charges from two legal settlements of $20.5 million.

For the year ended March 31,

{In thousands, except per-share data) . 2008 ' 2007 2006 2005 2004
Statement of Operations Data: _ . o
Total revenue b 975,702 $1,016,174 $834,287 $794,168 $808,384
Total cost of revenue 656,598 722,789 602,359 558,689 556,725
Gross margin ‘ 319,104 293,385 231,928 235,479 251,659
Loss from operations ‘ ‘ : (8,097) (27,154} (41,481) (9,535) (19,6592)
Loss from continuing operations (60,234) " {64,094) (41,479) (3,496) (63,715)
Income from discontinued operatlons — — — S — 1,693
Net loss ‘ $ -(60,234) § (64,094)  $(41,479) % (3,496)  $(62,022)
Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing

operations £ 030y & (033 § (023 § (0.02y § (0.36)
Basic and diluted net loss per share § (0300 $ (033 $ (©23) 3 (0.02) § (0.33)

' As of March 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance Sheet Data: ‘ . ' ' '
Property and equipment, net ‘ T8 39,27 '$ 50,241 $ 38,748 $ 42,716 $ 40,377
Total assets . 1,065,725 . 1,125,829 663,344 | 724,614 705,558
Short-term debt 4,000 25,000 — — 537
Long-term debt ) 496,000 497,500 160,000 160,000 160,000
ITEM 7. Management’s Discu‘ssiun and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW i

Quantum Corporation (“Quantumn”, the “Company”, “us” or “we”) {NYSE: QTM) founded in 1980, is a leading global
storage company specializing in backup, recovery and archive solutions. Combining focused expertise, customer-driven
innovation and platform independence, we provide a comprehensive, integrated range of disk, tape and software solutions
supported by our sales and service organization. We work closely with a broad network of value-added resellers (“VARs"™),
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) and other suppliers to meet customers’ evolving data protection needs. Our
stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “QTM.”

Business ‘
We earn our revenue from the sale of products, systems and services through our sales force and an array of channel
partners to reach end-user customers, which range in size from small businesses and satellite offices to government
agencies and large, multinational corporations. Our products are sold under both the Quantum brand name and under the
names of various OEM customers. We face a variety of challenges and opportunities in responding to the competitive
dynamics of the technology market which is characterized by rapid change, evolving customer demands and intense
competition, including competition with several companies who are also significant customers.

We offer a comprehensive range of solutions in the data storage market, providing performance and value to organizations
of all sizes. We have a broad portfolio of disk-based backup solutions, tape libraries, autoloaders, and tape drives and
media. Our data management software provides technology for shared workflow applications and muiti-tiered archiving in
high-performance, large-scale storage environments. We also feature software options with product that provide disk and
tape integration capabilities with our core de-duplication and replication technotogies. In addition, our service offerings
include a broad range of coverage options to provide the level of support for the widest possible range of information
technology environments, with service available in more than 100 countries.

4
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In fiscal 2008 we were focused on three primary objectives: to continue to expand market access, mainly by building a
stronger branded business; to create a stronger growth platform, particularly by expanding our disk-based backup systems
and our software businesses; and to improve our financial position, taking advantage of cost savings and enhanced revenue
and profit opportunities from our acquisition of Advanced Digital lnfonnatlon Corporatl(m (*ADIC”) made in the prior
year. ;

We implemented significant changes during fiscal 2008 to better align our investments, cost structure, partnerships and
infrastructure around our strategy. We have worked-to-improve our opcrating model, particularly through our continued
focus on growing the higher margin areas of our business. Qur research and development efforts shified in fiscal 2008 as
we reduced and optimized tape research and development and increased disk-based backup systems and software solutions
research and development. These changes in research and development were intended to drive greater revenue growth
polential. We implemented integration actions to ensure we would be cost competitive while having a solid execution
platform. In addition, we focused on improving operating performance in terms of operating income and generating cash
flow from operations to allow us to pay down our term debt and reduce our interest costs. Implementation of our objectives
was intended to result in improved short term performance while providing greater revenue growth potential,

The results we are reporting for fiscal 2008 demonstrate the progress made to improve our operating model. As a result of
the actions taken in fiscal 2008 we have scen improvement in our gross margins, reflecting a mix of higher margin.
products; reduced operating losses; cash generation capability from operations; and transitions in our research and
development investments to grow our overall branded business, especially our disk-based backup systems and our software
solutions. We did not meet our desired revenue results for fiscal 2008, largely due to lower than planned branded revenue.

Our top priority in fiscal 2009 is to grow our branded revenue, particularly our disk-based backup systems and software
solutions revenues, to improve profitability and increase shareholder value. We continue to betieve delivering a better
operating model, creating more growth potential and reducmg much of the negative impact of our outstanding debt are also
important drivers for improving profitability and increasing shareholder value.

Qur objectives to achieve these priorities in fiscal 2009 are similar to fiscal 2008 and include:

+  Continued focus on growing the higher margin areas of our business, especially our branded business;

. Research and development efforts that optimize tape technologies, with continued focus on developmg,
additional and improved disk-based backup systems and software solutions;

. Continued efforts to reduce costs while retaining a solid execution platform; and

+ . Continued generatlon of cash flow from operations to atlow us to pay down our term debt and reduce our
‘mterest COSts, !

Qur first steps to achlevmg our fiscal 2009 objectives are reflected in our May 2008 announcement of the release of the |
DXi7500, a product based on our second generation DXi technology. The DXi7500 is.a disk-based backup system
featuring de-duplication and replication capabilities for large, enterprise customers. We believe the DXi7500 provides the
capacity, performance, scalability and availability required in enterprise environments and is the first solution in the
industry to provide policy-based de-duplication. The DXi7500 has been designed to allow customers to choose the de-
duplication method that best meets their needs for a specific backup job, taking into account disk capacity and backup
window constraints. We believe this product and technology provides us long-term growth opportunities in the storage
industry. In addition, we announcéd a licensing agreement with a software OEM partner; EMC, under which EMC has
licensed our DXlTM-Senes data de-duplication and repllcatlon enterprlse software to deliver its own soluuon

Customers’ backup, recovery and archive challenges are complex and rapldly evolving, and the need for a category expert

" is essential to success. We believe that our global scale and vertical integration in tape products, along with our growing
branded business and decreasing our cost structure, position us to build a strong, profitable storage solutions business and
improve our results of operations, We plan-to leverage our disk-based backup solutions, tape automation systems and
software solutions, including our de-duplication, replication and data movement technology, to deliver integrated data
protection and management offerings across the distributed enterprise. We believe-a strong position in disk-based backup
systems can bring benefits to our tape automation systems and software. sales efforts as customers are more likely to engage
with us on a broad basis for a complete solution. We recognize there are numerous risks to the successful execution of our
business plans. For a discussion of some of the nsks and uncertainties that impact our busmess see “Risk Factors” in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. - '
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Results

In fiscal 2608, we had total net revenues of $975.7 million, a 4% decrease from fiscal 2007 primarily due to decreased
OEM product revenue. We also had a decrease in our royalty revenue due to lower media unit sales sold through our OEM
customers. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in our service revenue primarily due to the increased
installed base of our branded products. Qur focus on growing our branded business during-the fiscal year is reflected in the
greater proportion of non-royalty revenue from our branded business at 62% in fiscal 2008 compared to 53% in fiscal 2007
and 44% in fiscal 2006. . '

Our gross margin percentage increased 380 basis points in fiscal 2008 to 32.7%, primarily due to the increase in the |
percentage of our product sales through branded channels. Sales of branded products typically generate higher gross
margins than sales to our QEM customers. Our gross margin'on products sold through both branded and OEM channels
increased compared to the prior year as we streamlined production methods, gained purchasing efficiencies and moved
toward a more outsourced model for many of our entry-level and mid-range product offerings. The gross margin percentage
increase was partially offset by a decrease in our royalty revenue,

During fiscal 2008, our research and development efforts brought the release of the Scalar 50 and upgrades to our DXi-
Series products and StorNext software. The DXi-Series products feature our patented data de-duplication technology and
other improved functionality to enhance our disk-based backup solutions. Other new product offerings during the fiscal
year resulting from our research and development efforts included intreduction of LTO-4 offerings and the beta release of
our enterprise disk-based backup appliance, the DXi7500. In fiscal 2008, we also began partnering with a third party on
certain research and development efforts to bring new technology solutions to market more efficiently for both our partner
and us. These efforts were completed while we continued integration efforts on our new product roadmap, reducing gverall
research and development headcount from the prior year and limiting research and development expenses to $89.6 million,
al7% decrease from fiscal 2007.

Our investmem in sales and marketing increased in fiscal 2008 as we expanded our sales team and further developed sales
channels to support our technologically evolving product lines. General and administrative expenses increased in fiscal
2008 to support our larger combined company. Our restructuring charges in fiscal 2008 were primarily related to our global
integration of ADIC and strategic roadmap decisions. Our operating expenses rose to 33.5% of revenues in fiscal 2008 from
31.5% in fiscal 2007, due to decreased revenues, increased sales and marketing expenses and general and administrative
expenditures partially offset by decreased research and development costs.

Interest expense increased in fiscal 2008, driven by costs incurred as a result of refinancing our debt facility at more
favorable rates. The refinancing decreased the additional margin in our interest rate by 50 basis points to 475 basis points
from the prior debt facility’s term and revolving debt rates. In conjunction with our debt refinancing we wrote off $8.1
million of unamortized debt costs related to our prior debt facility and incurred $4.5 million in prepayment fees. We
initially borrowed $496.5 million in August 2006 to acquire ADIC and made principal payments to bring our March 31,
2007 borrowings to $362.5 million. In early fiscal 2008 we increased our borrowings by $50 million on our revolving credit
line. Over the remainder of fiscal 2008 we paid down a net $72.5 million in principal, brmgmg our outstandm;, term debt to
$340.0 million at March 31, 2008, a 32% reduction in our acquisition-related debt.

During fiscal 2008, our operating activities generated positive cash flows of approx1mately $25.7 mllllon Our focus on
cash management remains a top priority. We reduced our outstandmg debt with the cash generated by operations and
provided by investing activities. We continue to focus on our cash conversion cycle, the duration between the purchase of
inventories and services and the collection of cash for the sale of our products and services. Our total cash, cash equivalents
and marketable securities were relatively unchanged between March 31, 2008 and 2007, reflecting our strategy of
maintaining sufficient operating liguidity while reducing outstanding debt.

In fiscal 2009, our focus on cash management will continue to be a top priority in order to allow us to invest in specified
strategic research and development efforts, maintain our sales and service organization and reduce our outstanding debt.
We anticipate additional cost savings within our 2009 operanons from cost management measures taken in fiscal 2007 and
2008. . ;

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations is intended to provide information that will
assist in understanding our financial statements, the changes in certain key items in those financial statements from year to
year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how certain accounting principles, policies and
estimates affect our financial statements,
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL 2008, 2007 AND 2006

Prior to fiscal 2007, we reported two data storage business segments: Tape Drive and Storage Systems. As.a result of -
organizational changes, we began reporting one business segment the first quarter of fiscal 2007. These organizational
changes included the integration of marketing, sales and research and development functions to enhance product
positioning and to lower the cost platforms within our business. As a result of these integration efforts, discrete financial
information for these former segments is no longer tracked below the gross margin level, and management no longer
measures operating performance nor makes resource allocation decisions on a segmented basis.

We began presenting product and service revenue and cost of revenue separately in the first quarter of fiscal 2008, We
made a corresponding reclassification to the Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal 2007 and 2006. See Notes 2
and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in.this Annual Report on Form 10-K: for additional information. The
following discussion and analysis gives effect to this separate presentation.

Revenue
For the year ended March 31, ¢ ' ) Change
2008 < 2007 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
{dollars in thousands) r:‘/:glt;e T re?e::-le -' renf:::lr:e '
Product revenue $714,837 73.3% § 780,323 76.8% $610, 463 73.2% $(65,486) (8.4)% 169,860 27.8 %
Service revenue 160,920  16.5% 121,933  12.0% .95’143 11:4% 38987 32.0% 26,790 282°%
Royalty revenue 99,945 10.2% 113918 11.2% 128,681 15.4% (13,973) (12.3)% (14,763)(11.5)%

Total revenue  $975,702  100.0% $1,016,174 100.0% $834,287 100.0% $ (40,472) (4.0)% $181,887 21.8 %

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Total revenue decreased $40.5 million to $975.7 million-in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 primarily due to decreased
product revenue. Royalty revenues declined $14.0 million, or 12%, while service revenue increased $39.0 million, or 32%,
compared to the prior fiscal year.

Product revenue »

Our product revenue, which includes sales of our hardware and software products sold through both our Quantum branded
and OFEM channels, decreased in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. Revenue from OEM sales decreased $87.3 million,
partially offset by a $21.8 million increase in reventie from branded products, The product revenue de¢rease was primarily
due to a decrease in revenue from devices and media products. Partially offsetting the devices and media decrease were
increases in our disk-based backup systems and software so]utlons revenue and in tape automahon system revenue.

Revenues from software solutions and disk-based backup systems increased $19.0 million to $49 0 million in fiscal 2008
compared to fiscal 2007 primarily due to increased sales of our DXi-Serics disk-based products. Our StorNext software also
contributed to increased revenues in fiscal 2008. By the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, our legacy disk products comprised
less than 10% of revenue from software solutlons ancl disk- based backup systems, and we antlclpate this trend will continue
in fiscal 2009 : .

Tape automation system sales increased $5.2 million to $426.0 mll]mn in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 primarily
due to increased sales of our mid-range tape automation line, including the Scalar 1500, and increased sales of our enterprise
tape automation products, including the Scalar i2000. These increases were offset by decreases in our entry level tape
automation products

Devices, including tape drwes and removable hard drives, and-media product revenues decreased $89.6 million to $239 8
million largely due to decreased sales of mid-range drives sold to OEMs and.to a lesser extent decreased sales of entry level
drives sold to OEMs as our older tape drives reach their end of life. We continued to place emphasis on sales of non-royality
media that bring higher margins and to not pursue volume sales at lower margms resulung in lower overall revenue from
non-royalty media products. ‘
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Service revenue

Service revenue includes revenue from sales of hardware service contracts, product repair, installation and professional

services. Sales of hardware service contracts are typically purchaséd by our customers to extend the warranty or to provide *

faster service response time, or both. Service revenue increased $39.0 million to $160.9 million in fiscal 2008 compared to
fiscal 2007 primarily due to increased service contract revenues from branded customers.

*

[y

Rovyalty revenue

Tape media royalties decreased in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 pridlarily due to lower media unit sales sold through,

our OEM customers. Royalties related to our newer LTO products have been increasing, but at a slower rate than declines

in royalties from our maturing DLT products where we experienced a net reduction in the installed base of DLTtape drives.

We expect LTO royalties will continue to increase as the installed base grows and DLT royaltles will further decline over
tlme as this installed base continues to decrease. .

In fiscal 2008 we added a software OEM licensing partner from which we anticipate ‘royalties in the future. We anticipate
licensing our technology, patents and similar intellectual property to seIect partners in the future, expanding the licensing
partner program based on market demand.

Y

Flscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Total revenue increased $181.9 million to $1,016.2 million in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 pnmanly due to our
acquisition of ADIC, which increased product revenue and to a lesser extent, also increased service revenue. Royalty
revenue decreased $14.8 million, or 12%, compared to lhe prior fiscal year.

'
1

Product revenue

The $169.9 million product revenue increase was primarily due to increased revenue for tape automation systems and to a
lesser extent, increased revenues from disk-based backup systems and software solutions compared to the prior year.
Offsetting these increases in part were declines in devices and.non-royalty media revenue compared to fiscal 2006. Both
branded product revenues and revenue from OEM sales increased in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006, in large part from
our acquisition from ADIC.

Tape automation system sales increased to $420.8 million in fiscal 2007 largely due to our acquisition of ADIC. Our mid-
range tape automation line, including the Scalar 1500, was one of the strongest contributors to total systems revenue in
fiscal 2007, with sales to both branded and OEM customers. In addition, we had revenue increases from sales of our
branded enterprise tape automation products, such as the Scalar 12000 and the PX720.

Revenues from software solutions and disk-based backup systems increased to $30.1 million in fiscal 2007 -compared to
fiscal 2006 primarily due to our acquisition of ADIC. Our StorNext software contributed to increased software revenues
while our enterprise class DX-Series products and the PVX were the products primarily contributing to increased disk-
based backup system revenues during fiscal 2007,

Product revenue from devices, which includes tape drives and removable hard drives, and non-royalty media sales declined
moderately to $329.4 million in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 due to the continuing retirement of older tape drives,
especially our older, entry-level drives sold by OEMs, We also de-emphasized sales of non-royalty media compared to the
prior year due to pricing dynamics in the market that would have resulted in lower margins on the non-royalty'media .
products.

Service revenue

Service revenue increased $26.8 million to $121.9 mitlion in fiscal 2007 primarily due to our acquisition of ADIC. Service
revenue increases typically correlate with increases in our installed product base.

+

Royalty revenue ' . _

Tape media royalnes decreased in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 due primarily to lower sales from media units sold
through our OEM customers. Royalties related to our newer LTO products have been increasing, but at a slower rate than
declines in royalties from our maturing DLT products, where we experienced a net reduction in the installed base of
DLTtape drives. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we recorded $3.3 million in royalty revenue in connection with
licensing certain of our patents related to our de-duplication technology in a cross-license agreement.
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Looking Forward

We anticipate annual revenues to remain relatively flat or increase slightly in fiscat 2009. Within our product revenues, we.
plan to continue to increase our branded product sales in both absolute dollars and as a percentage of product sales and
anticipate decreases in lower margin OEM product revenue..We are focusing on the data storage market segments with
growth opportunities. Products from our software solutions and our disk-based backup systems are targeted to meet the
needs of custorners within these growing market segments. In addition.to the growth of our existing software solutions and
our disk-based backup systems, we anticipate our newer product offerings, such as the DXi7500, will contribute to tevenue
increases in the coming fiscal year. We ‘expect royalty revenues to increase with royalties from our software OEM partially
offset by decreased media royalties. Media royalties are expected to decime sllghlly due to Lhe continued trend of decreased
DLT royaltles mostly offset by increased LTO royalties. . :

Gross Margin® ~ S o e I .
For the year ended March 31, * Change
2008 ) 2007 . 2006 ‘ 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs, 2006
Margin Margin " Margin
(deHars in thousands) Margin Rate Margin Rate Margin’ Rate
Gross margin $319,104 32.7% $293,385 289% $231,928 27.8% $25719 8.8% $61,457 265%

Product gross margin 182,906 25.6% 150,016  192% 71,635 11.7% 32,884 21.9% 78,381 1094 %
Service gross margin 36,496 22.7% 30,351 24.9% 32,124 338%  6,i45 202% (1,773) (5.5)%

[

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

The 380 basis point increase in gross margin percentage in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 was largely due to an
increased proportion of our total non-royalty revenue coming from product sales through branded channels. Revenues from
branded products and services in fiscal 2008 comprised 62% of non-royalty revenue compared to 53% of non-royalty
revenue in fiscal 2007. Sales of branded products typically generate higher gross margins than sales to our OEM customers.
The improvement in gross margin was offset in part by increases in non-cash expenses, including an increase in
amortization of intangible assets of $4.3 million, resulting from a full year of amortization in fiscal 2008 in connection with
our acquisition of ADIC in fiscal 2007, and an increase in share-based compensation of $0.7 million in fiscal 2008.

Product gross margin

In fiscal 2008 we streamlined production methods gamt d purchasing efficiencies and moved toward an outsourced model
for many of our entry level and mid-range product offerings. These actions combined to reduce the cost of both branded
and OEM products. Product margins increased in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 due to the increase in the proportion
of our product sales through branded channels. Additionally, revenue from media and devices was down $89.6 million from
the prior year, contributing to higher margins within both branded and OEM than the prior year. Within both branded and
OEM products, media and devices typically have lower margins.than tape automation, disk and software products.

Service gross margin

Service gross margin dollars increased $6.1 million or approximately 20%; however, service gross margin percentage
decreased approximately 220 basis points in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The decrease in service gross margin
percentage was largely due to the rate of service cost increases outpacing the rate of service revenue increases. Service
revenue and service cost increases in fiscal 2008 were primarily due to our acquisition of ADIC in the second quarter of
fiscal 2007 and the subsequent increase in our installed base of branded products.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

The 110 basis point increase in gross margin percentage in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was largely due our
acquisition of ADIC, which helped increase the percentage of our product sales through branded channels. Revenues from
branded products in fiscal 2007 comprised 53% of non-royalty revenue compared to 44% of non-royalty revenue in the
prior year. Sales of branded products typically generate higher gross margins than sales to our OEM customers. This
improvement in gross margin was partially offset by increases in non-cash expenses such as amortization of intangible
assets of $10.3 million as well as increased share-based compensation and amortization of service parts.

'
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Product gross margin ‘ Lo . ,

Our product gross margin increased compared to the prior year primarily due to increased sales of branded products due to
our acquisition of ADIC"in the second quarter of fiscal 2007. As noted earller sales of branded products typically generate
higher gross margins than sales to our OEM customers. T .

Service gross margin I . : : o T

Service gross margin decreased in fiscal 2007 primarily due to changing our accounting estimate related to the valuation of
service parts for maintenance, In the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we began amortizing all of our service parts for
maintenance on a straight-line basis. Previously, we amortized only the value of our finished goods service parts for-
maintenance and evaluated the difference between cost and market value for our component service parts on a quarterly
basis. Partially offsettmg this decrease to service margin was mcreased service revenue due to our acquisition of ADIC and
the subsequent increase in our mstal]ed base of products.. : _ -

b . ' . L] ' ‘o P . . e K

Looking Forward . . . ‘ e . . L

In fiscal 2009, we anticipate improved gross margins as we continue to increase the percentage of sales through branded -
channels and earn royalty revenue from our software OEM partnership, as well as maintaining our efforts to limit costs. We
also expect our gross margins will improve as a result of ongoing activities to align our operations infrastructure to support
our strategy of focusing on market segments with growth opportumtles and continue to de-emphasize areas that have less |
growth and profit potentlal . ) ) .. o . -
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Research and Develépment Expénsés

For the year ended March 31, Change
2008 2007 - 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
o - oo . i o f . YT . F 7 I E g !
(dollars in thousands) A' of /? of . : % of .
e el revenue revenuce Ll revenue ' - LR —

Research and development § 89,563 9.2% § 107,546 10.6% $100,165 12.0% $ (17,983)(16.7)% $ 7,381 7.4%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Research and development expenses decreased during fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 primarily due to reduced salaries
and benefits from reduced headcount. Decreased project material-costs and external service provider expenses also
contributed to lower research and development expenses. In fiscal 2008, we restructured our research and development
model to focus investments toward our target growth markets of disk-based systems and sofiware solutions development
and reduced investment in tape drive development. In addition, we commenced partnering with a third party on certain
research and development efforts in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 which contributed to reduced research and development
expenses during the remainder of fiscal 2008. The decreased research and deve]opment expenses were partially offset by
increased intangible amortization resultmg from a full year of amomzanon in ﬁscal 2008 in connection w1th our acqulsmon
of ADIC in ﬁsca] 2007. : ' _ ' oo .

e

Fiscal 2007 Compared 1o’ Fiscal 2006

Research and development expenses mcreased durmg fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 pnmarily due to our acquisition
of ADIC. Increases wére also attributable to share-based compensation and amortization of intangibles. The increased
expenses were mostly offset by decreases from cost reduction actions driven by reduced headcount as we integrated- the
ADIC acqulsmon and decreased expenses from product launches completed in the pnor fiscal year.- -

¢ ' e
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Looking Forward

We expect our research and deve]opment expenses will decrease slightly in fiscal 2009 due in part to savings from
partnering with a third party on certain research and development efforts. Qur plans include continued research and
development spending in the growing segments of the data storage solutions market. We intend to emphasize new product
development in both our disk-based backup systems solutions and our software solutions,
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Sales and Marketing Expenses

* For the.year ended March Jl,. Change
2008 2007 2006 . 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
_—(dollars in thousands) n:oe:fle ' re.::-,:lfxe ren{:a:lfne
Sales and marketing $149,367 153%$123,134 12.1%$82,251 9.9% $26,233 21.3%%$40,883 49.7%

Fiseal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

The inciease in sales and marketing ¢xpenses during fiscal 2008 compared to f scal 2007 was primarily due to increased
salaries, benefits and commissions from increased headcount. We have increased our headcount to support sales in branded
channels. Sales through brandéd chanriels typically have higher selling costs than sales to OEM customers. We also had a
$2.5 million increase in amortization of intangibles related to our acquisition of ADIC in August 2006 due to a full year of
amortization in fiscal 2008 compared to approximately seven and a half months of ADIC related intangible amortization in
fiscal 2007, Partially offsetting these increases were decreased advertising and marketing costs in fiscal 2008 compared to
the prior year. :

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

The increase in sales and marketing expenses during fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was primarily dire to our
acquisition of ADIC. Increased salaries, benefits and commissions from increased headcount and increased selling costs,
especially for our branded products, were the major drivers of the increase. In addition, amortization of intangibles
comprised $9.9 million of the increase for fiscat 2007.

Lookmg Forward

In fiscal 2009 we expect our sales and marketing expenqes will increase commensurate with growth of our branded
business as we maintain and expand our customer—facmg sales resources.

General and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended March 31, Change
2008 ) 2007 2006 T 2008vs, 2007 2007 vs. 2006

%of %of % of
revenue revenue revenue

General and-administrative < § 78,789  8.19%6%63,251° 6.2 % $52,358 - 6.3% $15,538 24.6% $10,893 20.8%

[

(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal’ 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

The increase in generai and administrative expenses durmg fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily due to
increased infrastructure costs, including data and telecommunications costs and facility maintenance expenses to support
the larger combined company. We also incurred higher legal expenses in the second half of fiscal 2008 related to our
activities to enforce our intellectual property. Partially offsetting these increases were decreased salaries and benefits due to
completion of integration and business streamlining initiativés that reduced general and administrative headcount.

'

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

The increase in general and admmlstratwe expenses durmg fiscal 2007 compared to fi scal 2006 was pnmanly due to our
acquisition of ADIC. Increases were largely due to additional facilities acquired with ADIC as well as share-based
compensation. These increases were partially offset by decreased spending on outside services.
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Restructuring Charges

+ . T

For the year ended March 31, Change

2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
{dollars in thousands) r:f;:::w : re‘!:'oe::{le H rt:/'neﬁrle
Restructuring charges related
to cost of revenue € 237 — § 900 0.1%$ 512 — 0§ (663(73.)% § 388 758 %
Restructuring charges in
operating expenses 9482 1.0% 11,908 1.2% 18,118 2.2% (2,426)(20.4)% (6,210)(34.3)%

Total restructuring charges  $ 9,719 1.0% $ 12,808 1.3%$ 18,630 2.29%%(3,089)(24.1)% $(5,822)(31.3)%

In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we took steps to reduce costs in an effort to return to profitability and rationalize our
operations following acquisitions. During fiscal 2007, management approved and began executing plans to restructure
certain operations of Quantum and pre-merger ADIC to eliminate redundant costs resulting from our acquisition of ADIC,
implement strategic foadmap decisions and improve efficiencies in operations. The restructuring charges that resulted from
these cost reduction efforts in fiscal 2008 relate to partnering with a third party on certain research and development efforts
and consohdatmg operations supporting our business. Substantially all of our restructuring efforts related to the ADIC and
Certance Holdings (“Certance™) acquisitions have been completed as of March 31, 2008, For additional information and
disclosure of restructuring charges refer to Note 13 “Restructuring Charges” and for additional information regardmg the
ADIC and Certance acquisitions refer to Note 5 “Acquisitions” to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Fiseal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

The decrease in restructuring charges in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily due to incurring a larger portion
of our restructuring charges related to the integration of ADIC in fiscal 2007, including implementation of strategic
roadmap decisions and operational efficiencies. Restructuring expenses related to severance and benefits in fiscal 2008
decreased $5.4 million as the majority of these plans were executed in fiscal 2007. Partially offsetting the decreased
scverance and benefits restructuring expenses were $4.7 million in increased facility restructuring expenses in fiscal 2008.
Fiscal 2008 facility restructuring expense of $3.0 million was primarily due to vacating facilities in Europe. Fiscal 2007 had
a $1.7 million net reversal of facility restructuring charges because we decided to use a previously vacated Colorado famhty
to consolidate U.S.- -manufacturing, repair and service operations.

Fiscal 2007 C-'ompared to Fiscal 2006

The decrease in restructuring charges in fiscal 2007 compared to' fiscal 2006 was primarily due to' lower facilities and
severance and benefits restructuring charges in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 retated to outsourcing certain
manufacturing, repair and service operations and the continued effort to streamline our operations including information
technology, product development and marketing processes following our acquisition of Certance in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005, ,

In-Process Research and Development

We had no in-process research & development (“IPR&D") expenses in fiscal 2008 or fiscal 2006. During fiscal 2007, we
expensed $14.7 million of IPR&D as a result of our acquisition of ADIC in August 2006.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS No.142™), all identifiable assets acquired were analyzed to
determine their fair value, The value assigned to IPR&D of $14.7 million was determined by considering the importance of
- each project to our overall development plan, estimating costs to develop the purchased [PR&D into commercially viable
products estimating the resulting net cash flows from the pr0_|ects when completed and discounting the net cash flows
using a (.IlSCOlmt rate of 18% to thelr present value based on the percentage of completion of the IPR&D projects.

Loss on Litigation Settlement

We had no loss on [itigation settlement expenses in fiscal 2008 or fiscal 2007, During fiscal 2006, we entered into a legal
settlement and patent cross license agreement with Storage Technology Corporation resulting in a charge of $18.6 million.
We also entered into another legal settlement for $1.9 million during fiscal 2006.
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Interest Income and Other, Net

For the vear ended March 31, Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs, 2007 2007 vs, 2006
i % of % of % of
(douﬂm_ﬂ revenue revenue revenue

Interest income and other, net $ 6,008 0.6% $8,746 0.9% $11,376 1.4% $(2,738)(31.3 )% $(2,630)(23.1)%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

The decrease in interest income and other, net in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily due to lower interest
income as a result of a reduced level of interest-carning investments during the current year-than in the prior year. Qur

financing strategy has been to prioritize the use of cash to reduce our long-term debt over investing those funds in interest-
" earning investments. We recorded expense related to market value decreases of two interest rate collars in fiscal 2008
which was largely offset by gains from the sale of shares received in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 as consideration for a
license fee relating to a patent cross licensing agreement.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

The decrease in interest income and other, net in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was mai'nly due to a $1.3 million
payment received from a funded benefit trust and a $0.7 million refund received from the IRS for FICA withholding during
fiscal 2006. Fiscal 2007 had lower interest income due to lower interest-earning investments during the year than the prior
year. ' '

Interest Expense

For the year ended March 31, + Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
. Y of % of % of
{dollars in thousands} ‘revenue revenue revenue

Interest expense $58,627  6.0% $ 40,748 40% $ 9976 1.2% § 17,879 43.9% 530,772 308.5%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Interest expense increased in fiscal 2008 primarily due to costs related to retiring our prior debt facility, inctuding
recognizing the remaining $8.1 million outstanding balance of capitalized debt costs and $4.5 million in prepayment fees.
Also contributing to the increased interest expense was a higher average balance of long-term debt during fiscal 2008. Our
average debt balance was lower for fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2008 because we did not draw upon our debt facilities
until August 2006 to fund our acquisition of ADIC., For additional information related to our.long-term debt, refer to Note
11, “Convertible Subordinated Debt and Long-Term Debt” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

The increase in interest expense in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was primarily due to interest incurred on the August
2006 debt facilities entered into in connection with the ADIC acquisition. We initially borrowed $496.5 million under these
facilities in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, increasing our outstanding debt balance and associated interest expense from
the prior year. Interest expense in fiscal 2007 also included the amortization of debt issuance costs for the August 2006 debt
facilities as well as the write off of $8.1 million in unamortized debt issuance costs related to a prior credit facility that was
terminated during the second quarter of fiscal 2007. '

Looking Forward

In fiscal 2009, we anticipate our quarterly interest expense will continue to decrease as' we continue'to pay down our debt
balance. We also expect lower interest expense in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 due to lower interest rates; however, we
cannot predict interest rates on our term debt for the remainder of fiscal 2009. As of March 31, 2008 the interest rate on our
term debt was 6.2%, which is lower than interest rates werg on our term and revolving debt during fiscal 2008.
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Income Taxes

For the year ended March 31, . . -'Change

008, 2007 ' 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
. %o of % of % of
(dollars in thousands) pre-tax loss _pre-tax loss pre-tax loss '

Income tax provision (beneﬁlr)
$¢482) 08% $4938  83% $1,398 3.5% $(5,420) (109.8 )% $3,540 253.2%

L

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

In fiscal 2008, we recorded an income tax benefit of $0.5 million compared to tax expense of $4.9 million for fiscal 2007.
The decrease in tax expense in fiscal 2008 was primarily due to closure of the examination of certain foreign subsidiaries
that resulted in favorable settlement of tax positions.

In connection with the disposition of our hard-disk drive business, HDD, to Maxtor, we entered into a Tax Sharing and
Indemnity Agreement with Maxtor, dated as of April 2, 2001 (the “Tax Sharing Agreement”) that, among other things,
defined each company’s responsibility for taxcs attributable to periods prior to April 2, 2001. Pursuant to a settlement
agreement entered into between the companies dated as of December 23, 2004, Maxtor’s remaining tax indemnity liability
undér section 3(a) of the Tax Sharing Agreement was limited to $8.8 million. As of March 31, 2008, $6.0 million remains
as the indemnity liability. We believe that this amount is sufficient to cover the remaining potential 1ax liabilities under this
section of the Tax Sharing Agreement.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

" The tax expense recorded for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 was $4.9 miilion compared to tax expense of $1.4
million for the fiscal year. ended March 31, 2006. Foreign taxes were higher in fiscal 2007 due to increased foreign profits
and withhelding tax on dividend distributions. - ‘

Amortization of Intangible Assets

The following table details intangible asset amortization expense by classﬁ' canon w1th1n our Consolidated Statemients of
Operanons (m thousands):

For the year ended March 31, Change
. 2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
Cost of revenue $30,825 $26,567 516,222 $ 4258 ° § 10,345
Research and development .o 1,032 - 999 . 581 ) 33 418
Sales and marketing : 16,754 - 14,217 4,290 2.537 9,927

General and administrative : - 100 1209 585 - (109) (376)
' $48,711  $41,992 $21678« . § 6,719 $ 20314

Purchased.technology intangible assets and other intangible assets, such as customer lists and trademarks, increased in
fiscal 2007 from our acquisition of ADIC in' August 2006. The increase in fiscal 2008 amortization compared to fiscal 2007
is mainly due to recording amortization expense for approximately seven and a half months in fiscat 2007 compared to
twelve months of expense in fiscal 2008. The increase in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 is primarily due to the "
‘amortization of ADIC telated intangible assets.

Intangible assets.are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from one to seven years. Intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate impairment might exist in accordance with SFAS

No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets. Pro_lccted undiscounted net cash flows expected
to be derived from the use of those assets are compared to the respective net Larrymg amounts to determine whether any
1mpalrment exists. lmpalrment if any, is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets. We
had no intangible asset impairménts in fiscal 2008, 2007 or 2006. Refer to Note 9 “Goodwill and lntang:ble Assets” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.
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Share-Based Compensation

We adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”) in the first quarter of fiscal 2007
which requires us to expense share-based comperisation. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we accounted for our
equity incentive plans under the intrinsic value recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations. Accordingly, share-based
compensation for fiscal 2006 related only to the issuance of restricted stock awards since they were issued at a discount.
Share-based compensation recorded for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $14.0 million, $9.0 million and $0.9 million,
respectively. '

The following table summarizes the share-based compensation from the application of SFAS No. 123R to options and
restricted stock awards and units granted under our stock incentive plans and rights to acquire stock under the our employee
stock purchase plan (in thousands):

For the year ended

March 31,
\ Change
2008 - 2007 2008 to 2007

Share-based compensation expense included in operations: . '

Cost of revenue | o ' $199 srist § 738
Research and devélopmem ' 3,778 2,544 : 1,234
Sales and marketing . 3,269 1,965 1,304
General and administrative 5,022 3272 1,750

$13,998 $8,972 § 5026

The increase in share-based compensation expense in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 is primarily due to increased
grants of restricted stock units. Commencing in fiscal 2007, we began granting restricted stock units as our primary method
of equity compensation rather than granting stock options to our existing employees. The increase in restricted stock
outstanding, which is expensed over the requisite service period to receive the restricted shares, is the primary reason share-
based compensation expense increased in cost of revenue as well as operating expenses. General and administrative share-
based compensation also increased in fiscal 2008 due to the modification of the vesting and exercise periods of stock
awards held by certain employees. For more information regarding share-based compensation, refer to Note 4 “Stock
Incentive Plans and Share-Based Compensation™ to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Recent Accounting Pronouncements in Note 3 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”™ to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a full description of recent accounting pronouncements
including the respective expected dates of adoption and effects on results of operations and financial condition.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

. As of or for the year ended March 31,
{In thousands, except DSO and Inventory turns) Lo . 2008 . 2007 2006

Cash and cash equivalents . $93,643 $ 59,926 $122,690
Marketable securities . ‘ — 35,000 99,975
Total cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities S 93,643 $ 94,926 $222,665
Days sales outstanding {DSO) ' © 625 58.7 ©53.2
Inventory turns C : - 7.9 C 78 7.7
Net cash provided by operating activities ‘ $ 25741 § 63,762 $ 28Il
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $°21,507 $(489,504) §$(115,038)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $(13,531) §$ 362978 § 9,781
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Fiscal 2008 Y
The difference between reported net loss and cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to non-cash items
such as amortization, depreciation, and share-based compensation related to stock incentive plans. The cash used to fund
operations during the period was primarily due to an increase in accounts recewable and service parts for maintenance and .
a decrease in accrued warranty. This was partially offset by increases in deferred revenue and accounts payable, net of the
sale of subsidiary. Accounts receivable increased primarily due to slower collections in fiscal 2008 after particularly strong
collections during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. Service parts for maintenance increased in order to support our growing
installed base. Accrued warranty decreased primarily due to decreases in our installed base of products under warranty in
addition to improved quality and lower failure rates on certain products. Increases in defefred revenue are primarily related
to increased sales of service contracts. Accounts payable increased primarily dué to the timing of payments to our veridors.

" Cash provided by investing activities during fiscal- 2008 reflects proceeds from the sale of marketable securities and
investments of $105.4 million offset in part by $65.0 million in purchases of marketable securities. In addition, we -
purchased $21.1 million of property and equipment,during fiscal 2008 primarily comprised of hardware and software
related to our computer system conversions to bring us onto a single platform for our enterprise resource planning system
and engineering test equipment for our DXi-Series products. We received $2.2 million in net proceeds from the sale of a
Malaysia subsidiary in the second quarter of fiscal 2008. ) ]

Cash used in financing activities during fiscal 2008 was primarily related to repayment of our August 2006 credit facility in
addition to principal payments on both the August 2006 credit facility and our current credit agreement. The repayment of -
the August 2006 credit facility was largely offset by borrowings on our current'credit agreement net of loan fees.
Additionally, we received $17.0 millidn in net proceeds from the issuance of comrmon stock related to employee stock

[

incentive and stock purchase plans ) : "

Fiscal 2007 S . .

The difference between reported net loss and cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to non-cash 1tems
such as depreciation and amortization, in-process research and development and share-based compensation related to stock
incentive plans. The cash used to fund operations during the period was primarily due to an increase in service parts for
maintenance and payments on accrued restructuring. This was more than offset by a decrease in accounts receivable and
inventories. Service parts for maintenance increased in order to support our growing installed base and meet the Restriction
of Hazardous Substances (*“RoHS”) compliance requirements in Europe. The cash outflow related to accrued restructuring
was primarily due to severance payments made during the year related to restructuring obligations from our acquisition of
ADIC. Accounts receivable decreased primarily due to strong collections in fiscal 2007. Inventories decreased as a result of
ongoing inventory reduction efforts and reduced inventory levels of certain-end of 11fe products These decreased mventory
levels also decreased accounts payable. . : :

[N

Cash used in investing activities during the year ended March 34, 2007 reflects $545.4 million of cash paid, net of cash
acquired, for.our acquisition of ADIC. Proceeds from the sale of marketable securities of $781.8 million were largely offset
by purchases of marketable securities of $714.8 million- Additionally, we purchased $17.2 million of property and
equipment and received $6.0 million in proceeds from the sale of our Ircland facility.

Cash provided by financing activities during the year ended March 31, 2007 was primarily'reiated to borrowings of $496.5
million on our August 2006 facility, less loan fees of $9.8 million. Additionally, we received $10.3 million in net proceeds
from the issuance of common stock. These cash proceeds were pamally offset by debt repayments of $134.0 million.

Fiscal 2006

Cash provided by operating activities reflected changes in working capital that provided more cash than was used by the
loss from operations, adjusted for non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization, deferred income taxes and
compensation related to stock incentive plans. The cash that was provided by working capital during the year ended

March 31, 2006 was primarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable primarily due to lower revenues in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2006 and improved DSOs, a decrease in other assets and liabilities primarily due to receipt of various tax refunds,
and an increase in accrued restructuring charges. These changes were partially offsct by other working capital usages
primarily due to a decrease in accounts payable and a decrease in warranty reserves due to a lower installed base and
improved product quality. The cash that was used by the loss from operations, adjusted for non-cash items, included $20,
million used to pay for the StorageTek legal settlement and cross license.
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Cash used in investing activities during the year ended March 31, 2006 was primarily due to net purchases of marketable
securities, purchases of property and equipment and approximately $20.0 million in payments made in relation to the
Certance acquisition.

Cash provided by financing activities during the year ended March 31, 2006 related to net proceeds from the exercise of
employee stock options and actwtty related to the employee stock purchase plan, partialty offset by payments of short-term
debt. '

Acgmsmo

On August 22, 2006, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”), dated May 2, 2006, we
completed our acquisition of ADIC. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each outstanding share of ADIC commeon stock
was converted into the right to receive, at the clection of the stockholder, cither (a) $12.25 in cash or (b) a number of shares
of Quantum common stock equal'to the number of ADIC shares of common stock multiplied by 3.461. Substantially all
stockholders elected to receive cash, and in fiscal 2007 we paid $545.4 million in cash, net of cash acquired. We also issued
1.9 million shares of Quantumn common stock to those electing shares. The cash portion of the merger consideration was
funded in part from borrowings under the loans described in the “Long-Term Debt” section below.

1

Capital Resources and Financial Condition

We have made progress in reducing operating costs. We will continue to focus on improving our operating performance,
including increasing revenue and improving margins in an effort to return to consistent profitability and to generate positive
cash flows from operating activities. We belicve that our existing cash and capital resources will be sufficient to meet.all
currently planned expenditures, repayment of debt, and sustain operations for at least the next 12 months. This belief is
dependent upon our ability to maintain revenue around current levels, to sustain or improve gross margins, and to control
operating expenses in order to provide net income and positive cash flow from operating activities in the future. This belief
also assumes we will not be forced to make any additional significant cash payments or otherwise be impacted by
restrictions of available cash associated with our existing credit facilities. We expect capital expenditures in fiscal 2009 will
be relatively srmr]ar to recent fiscal years. '

Should any of the above assumptions prove incorrect, either in combmatron or individually, it would likely have a material
negative effect on our cash balances and capital resources. As of March 31, 2008, we had credit available-on our credit
facility, described further in the-“Long-Term Debt” section below.

Generation of positive cash flow from operating activities has historically been an important source of our cash to fund
operating needs and, prospectively, will be required for us to fund our business and to meet our current and long-term
obligations. We have taken many actions to offset the negative impact of increased competition in the backup, archive and
recovery market. We cannot provide assurance that the actions we have taken in the past or any actions we may take in the
future will ensure a consistent, sustainabie and sufficient level of net income and positive cash flow from operating
activities to fund, sustain or grow our businesses, Certain events that are beyond our control, including prevailing
economic, competitive and industry conditions, as well as various legal and other disputes, may prevent us from achieving
these financial objectives. Any inability to achieve consistent and sustainable net income and cash flow could result in:

(i}  Restrictions on our ability to manage or fund our‘existing operations, which could result in a materia! and adverse
effect on our future results of operations and financial condition.
(i)  Unwillingness on the part of the group lenders who provide our credit facility to do any of the following;

. Provide a waiver or amendment for any covenant violations we may experience in future periods, thereby
triggering a default under or termination of the revolving credit line and term loans, or

. Approve any other amendments of our credit facility we might seck to obtain in order to improve our business.

Any lack of renewal, waiver, or amendment, if needed, could result in the revolving credit line and term loan
becoming unavailable to us and any amounts outstanding becoming immediately due and payable. In the case of our
borrowings at March 31, 2008, this would mean $340 million would be immediately payable.

(iiiy Further impairment of our financial flexibility, which could require us to raise additional funding in the capital
markets sooner than we otherwise would, and on terms less favorable to us, if available at all.

Any of the above mentioned items, individually or in combination, would have a material and adverse effect on our results
of operations, available cash and cash flows, financial condition, access to capital and liquidity.
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Convertible Subordinated Debt

On July 30, 2003, we issued 4.375% convertible subordinated notes in the aggregate principal amount of $160 million in a
private placement transaction. The notes are unsecured obligations subordmated in right of payment to all of our existing
and future senior indebtedness. The notes mature on August 1, 2010 and are convemb]e at the option of the holders at any
time prior to maturity into an aggregate of 36.8 million shares of Quantum common stock at a conversion prlce of $4.35 per
shar¢. We cannot redeem the notes prior to August 5, 2008.

Long-Term i)ebt ) . .'

To fund the acquisition of ADIC in August 2006, we entered into a secured senior credit facility (“August 2006 credit
facility™} with a group of lenders that provided a $150 million revolving credit line, a $225 million term loan and a $125
million second lien term loan with maturity dates of August 22, 2009, August 22, 2012 and August 22, 2013, respectively.

On July 12, 2007, we refinanced our August 2006 credit facility by entering into another sentor secured credit agreement
(“current credit agreement™) with a different group of lenders, providing a $50 million revolving credit facility and a $400
million term loan. We borrowed $400 million on the term loan to repay all borrowings under our August 2006 credit
facility. We incurred and capitalized $8.1 million of loan fees related to this current credit agreement which are included in
other long-term assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet. These fees are being amortized to interest expense over the
respective loan terms, In conjunction with the repayment of our August 2006 credit facility, the unamortized debt costs of
$8.1 million refated to that borrowing were written off to interest expense in the second quarter of fiscal 2008 and are -
included as a component of amortization in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. Additionally, we incurred $4.5
million in prepayment fees when we repaid our August 2006 credit facility.

Under the current credit agreement, the $400 million term loan matures on July 12, 2014, but is subject to accelerated
maturity on February 1, 2010 if we do not repay, refinance to extend the maturity date or convert into equity the existing’
$160 million convertible subordinated debt prior to February 1, 2010. Interest accrues on the term loan at our optien based
on either, a prime rate plus a margin of 2.5%, or a three month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) rate plus a
margin of 3.5%. The interest rate on the term loan was 6.2% at March 31, 2008. Commencing September 30, 2007, we
began to make required quarterly principal payments of $1.0 million on the term loan and we-will make & final payment of
all outstanding principal and interest at maturity. The term loan may be prepaid at any time, subject to an additional
payment of 1.0% of the principal amount being prepaid for any prepayment made before July 12, 2008. In addition, on an
annual basis commencing with our fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, we are required to perform a calculation of excess
cash flow which may require an additional payment of the principal amount. The fiscal 2008 calculation of excess cash
flow did not require additional principal payments. During fiscal 2008, we made principal payments of $60 mllllon on the
term loan and incurred $0.6 million in prepayment fees.

Under the current credit agreement we have the ability to borrow up 1o $50 million under a senior sccured revolving credit
facility which expires July 12, 2012. We currently have letters of credit totaling $2.3 million, reducing the available
borrowings on the revolver to $47.7 million. Interest accrues on the revolvmg credit facility at our option based on either, a
prime rate plus a margin of 2.5%, or a three month LIBOR rate plus a margin of 3.5%. Annually, we are required to pay a
0.5% commitment fee on undrawn amounts under the revolving credit facility. ) . .

The revolving credit facility and term loan are secured by a blanket lien on all of our assets and contain certain financial
and reporting covenants which we are required to satisfy as a condition of the credit line and term loans including a ‘
limitation on issuing dividends. As of March 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the debt covenants. We did not borrow
on the revolving credit facility in fiscal 2008. Our outstanding term debt was $340 million at March 31, 2008.

Derivatives

Since the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we have had an interest rate collar instrument with a-financial institution that fixes the
interest rate on $87.5 million of our variable rate term loan between a three month LIBOR rate floor of 4.64% and a cap of
5.49% through December 2008. Whenever the three month LIBOR rate is greater than the cap, we receive from the
financial institution the difference between 5.49% and the current three month LIBOR rate on the notional amount.
Conversely, whenever the three month LIBOR rate is lower than the floor, we remit to the financial institution the
difference between 4.64% and the current three month LIBOR rate on the notional amount. During the fiscal 2008, the
three month LIBOR rate was within the floor and cap.
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Under the terms of the current credit agreement, we are required to hedge floating interest rate exposure on 50% of our
funded debt balance beginning December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2009. During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, we
entered into a separate interest rate collar instrument effective as of December 31, 2007 with another financial institution
that fixes the interest rate on an additional $12.5 million of our variable rate term loan between a three month LIBOR rate
floor of 2.68% and a cap of 5.25% through December 2008 and fixes the interest rate on $100 million of our variable rate
term loan between the same floor and cap from December 31, 2008 through Decernber 2009, Whenever the three month
LIBOR rate is greater than the cap, we receive from the financial institution the difference between 5.25% and the current
three month LIBOR rate on the notional amount, Conversely, whenever the three month LIBOR rate is lower than the floor,
we remit to the financial institution the difference between 2.68% and the current three month LIBOR rate on-the notional
amount. The three month LIBOR was within the floor and cap from inception through March 31, 2608, '

Our interest rate collars did not meet all of the criteria necessary for hedge accounting prescribed by SFAS No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. We record the change in fair market value in other accrued
liabilitics and other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in interest income and other, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.- As of March 31, 2008 and 2007, the cumulative loss on the interest rate collars-was
$2.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively.

We do not engage in hedging activity for speculative or trading purposes. We did not utilize foreign currency forward
exchange contracts in fiscal 2008, 2007 or 2006 and there were no foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as of
March 31, 2008, 2007 or 2006. . _ .

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Lease Commt!mems

We lease certain facilities under non-cancelable lease agreements. Some of the leases have renewal options ranging from
one to len years and others contain escalation clauses and provisions for maintenance, taxes or insurance. We also have
equipment leases for various office equipment. Future minimum lease payments under these operating leases are shown
beiow in the “Contractual Obligations™ section.

Commitments for Additional Investments . ‘ : .

As of March 31, 2008, we had commitments to provide an additional $1.3 million in capital funding towards investments
we currently hold in two limited partnership venture capital funds. We will invest funds as required until our remaining
commitments are satisfied.

Commitments to Purchase Inventory

We use contract manufacturers for certain manufacturing functions. Under these arrangements, the contract manufacturer
procures inventory to manufacture products based upon our forecast of customer demand. We are responsible for the
financial impact on the contract manufacturer of any reduction or product mix shifi in the forecast relative to materials that
the contract manufacturer had already purchased under a prior forecast. Such a variance in forecasted demand could require
a cash payment for finished goods in excess of current customer demand or for costs of excess or obsolete inventory. As of
March 31, 2008, we had issued non-cancelable puruhase commitments for $53.9 million to purchase finished goods from
our contract manufacturers.

Stock Repurchases

As of March 31, 2008, there was approximately $87.9 million remaining on our authorization to repurchase Quantum
common stock. No stock repurchases were made during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 Our abllny to repurchase
common stock is restricted under the terms of our credit facilities.
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Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 3- More than
" 1 year years S years * Syears Total
Convertible subordinated debt 7§ 7000  S170,500 @ § — s — $177,500
Long-term debt, including current portion ' 26,356 49,389 48,398 345,538 469,681
Purchase obligations . ) . . 53,916 — — — 53,916
Operating leases - - 16038 26022 .. 16250 28,910 87,220

Total contractual cash obligations $103,310 $245.911 $64,648 $374.448 $788,317"°

The contractual commitments shown above include $147.2 million in interest payments on our various debt obligations
based on current interest rates as of March 31, 2008. Included in the interest payments amount is $1.3 miliion related to our
$87.5 million notional interest rate collar due to the LIBOR interest rates resetting below the floor for this interest rate
collar effective the first quarter of fiscal 2009. Due to the nature of our agreements, the interest rate can vary over the terms
of the loans.

As of March 31, 2008, we have $!2.3 million of long-term deferred tax liabilities for uncertain tax positions under FASB
Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpr'etati'()n of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes (“FIN No. 48”), for which we cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of
payment. ’ . )

Fair Value : '

Certain of our assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value. Generally, fair value is determined from market pricing. For
other items, such as values of assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations or fair value of options or awards
granted, we have disclosed how fair value is determined for those items. For further information regarding fair value see
Note 3 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, Note 4*Siock Iricentive Plans’
and Share-Based Compensation™and Note 5 “Acquisitions,” in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. '

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations is based on the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.
The preparation of these statements requires us to make significant estimates and judgments.about future uncertainties that
affect reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the event that estimates
or assumptions prove to be different from actual results, adjustments are made in subsequent periods to reflect more current
information. We believe that the following accounting policies require our most difficult, subjective or complex judgments
because of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain, The judgments and
uncertainties that affect the application of those policies in particular could result in materially different amounts being
reported under different conditions or using different assumptions.

1

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of hardware products to distributors, VARs, OEMs and end-users is recognized when the criteria of
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, have been met: when passage of title and risk of ownership are
transferred to customers; when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; when the price to the buyer is fixed or
determinable; and when collection is reasonably assured. When significant post-delivery obligations exist, the related
revenue is deferred until such obligations are fulfilled. If there are customer acceptance criteria in the contract, we
recognize revenue upon end-user acceptance, which typically occurs after delivery and installation are completed.

In the period when the revenue is recognized, allowances are provided for estimated future price adjustments, such as
volume rebates, price protection, and future product returns. These allowances are based on the customers” master
agreements, programs in existence at the time the revenue is recognized, historical information, contractual limits and plans
regarding price adjustments and product returns. Since we have historically been able to reliably estimate the amount of
allowances required for future price adjustments and product returns, we recognize revenue, net of projected allowances,
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upon shipment to our customers. If we were unable to reliably estimate the amount of future price adjustments and product
returns in any specific reporting period, then we would be required to defer recognition of the revenue until the right to
future price adjustments and product returns lapsed and we were no longer under any obligation to reduce the price or
accept the return of the product.

We license certain intellectual property to third party manufacturers urider arrangements that are represented by master
contracts, allowing these third party manufacturers to manufacture and sell certain of our products. As consideration for
licensing the intellectual property, the licensees pay us a per-unit royalty for sales of their products that incorporate the
licensed technology. On a periodic basis, the licensees provide us with unit reports that include the quantity of units sold to
end-users subject to royalties. We recognize revenue based on the unit reports, which are provided to us in a timely
fashion. The unit report substantiates that the delivery has occurred. Royalty revenue is measured by multiptying the units
sold as reflected in the unit reports by the royalty per unit in accordance with the royalty agreements. Royalty payments are
made to us on a per unit basis at a stipulated per unit amount.

Revenue equal to the separately stated price of extended warranty and preduct service contracts for our hardware products
is initially deferred and recognized as revenue ratably over the contract period in accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin
90-1, Accounting for Separately Priced Extended Warranty and Product Maintenance Contracts. For other arrangements,
when elements such as hardware and services are contained in a single arrangement, or in related arrangements with the
same customer, we allocate revenue to the separate elements based on relative fair value, provided we have fair value for all
elements of the arrangement. If in an arrangement we have fair value for undelivered elements but not the delivered
element, we defer the fair value of the undelivered elements and the residual revenue is allocated to the delivered

elements. Undelivered elements typically include installation and services. If fair value does not exist for undelivered
elements, then revenue for the entire arrangement is deferred until all elements have’been detivered.

Revenue from software sales is recognized when the criteria of Statement of Position No. 97-2, Software Revenue
Recognition (“SOP 97-2"), have been met, These criteria are; when passage of title and risk of ownership are transferred to
customers; when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; when the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable; when
collection is reasonably assured; and when vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value for undelivered elements exist.
Vendor-specific objective evidence is typically based on the price charged when an element is sold separately or, if an
element is not sold separately, on the price established by authorized management, if it is probable.that the price, once
established, will not change before market introduction. We recognize revenue from software sales upon delivery provided
that there is no customer acceptance clause in the purchase order or contract, there are no significant post-delivery
obligations remaining, the price is fixed and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. When significant
post-delivery obligations exist, the related revenue is deferred.until such obligations are fulfilled. If there are customer
acceptance criteria in the contract, we recognize revenue upon end-user acceptance, which typically occurs afier delivery
and installation are completed. Revenue from postcontract customer support agreements, which entitle customers to both
support and upgrades during the-term of the agreement, when-and-if available, is recognized ratably over the life of the
agreement. EITF Issue No. 03-5, Applicability of AICPA Statement of Position 97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an
Arrangement Containing More-Than-Incidental Software (“EITF 03-57"), affirms that the revenue recognition guidance tn
SOP 97-2 also applies to non-software deliverables, such as computer hardware, in dn arrangement if the software is
essential to the functionality of the non-software deliverables. We do not currently have any non-software dellverables for
which software is essential to the functionality.

Service Revenue and Service Cost of Revenue

Service revenue is derived from contracts for field support provided to our branded customers, in addition to installation
and integration services and repair services that are not otherwise included in the base price of the product. Service cost of
revenue excludes costs associated with basic warranty support on new branded and OEM products.

H
We classify expenses as service cost of revenue by estimating the portion of our total cost of revenue that relates to
providing field support to our customers under contract, installation, integration and repair services. These estimates are
based upon a variety of factors, including the nature of the support activity and the level of infrastructure required to
support the activities from which we earn service revenue. In the event our service business changes, our estimates of cost
of service revenue may be impacted.
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Share-Based Compensation

Effective April 1, 2006, we adopted the'provisions of SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R requires employee stock optlons
and rights to purchase shares undér stock participation plans to be accounted for-under the fair value method and requires
the use of an option pricing model! for estimating fair value. Accordingly, share-based compensation is measured at the
grant date, based on the fair value of the award. The exercise price of options is equal to the market price of our common
stock on the date of grant. in prior fiscal years, we accounted for awards granted under our equity incentive plans under the
intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Emplovees (“APB No.25”), and related interpretations, and provided the required pro forma disclosures prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 1237), as amended. Prior to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123R, only share-based compensalion related to the issuance of restricted stock awards was recognized in the
Consolidated Statcments of Operarlons since the restricted stock awards were rssued ata dlscount

In the first quarter of f scal 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modiﬁed prospectlve method and therefore were
not required to restate prior periods’. results. Under this method, for atl awards subject to service vesting conditions that are
expected to vest, we recognize compensation expense (a) for all equity incentive awards granted prior to, but not yet vested
as of April 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS

No. 123 and (b) for all equity incentive awards granted, modified or setiled subsequent to April 1, 2006, based on the grant-
date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. We recognize the fair value of stock options
on a ratable basis over the requisite service periods, which are generally the vesting periods.

Determining the appropriate fair-value model and calculating the fair value of share-based awards at the date of grant
requires judgment. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to estimate the fair value of-employee stock
options and rights 1o purchase shares under stock participation plans, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, The
Black-Scholes-Merton model requires the use of input assumptions, including expected life, expected volatility, expected
dividend rate and expected risk-free rate of return. We estimate expected life of the award based on historical experience
with similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules and pre-vesting and post-vesting
forfeitures. We estimate the volatility of our common stock based on the historical volatility over the most recent period
corresponding with the estimated expected life of the award. Higher volatility and expected lives resuit in a proportional *
increase to share-based compensation determined at the date of grant. The expected dividend rate and expected risk-free
rate of return are not as significant to the calculation of fair value. Although the fair value of our share-based awards is
determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing modeél requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, and other reasonable assumptions could provide differing results.

Under the provisions of SFAS 123R, the fair value of share-based grants with a market'vesting condition must be modeled
and valued with a path-dependent valuation technique. We valued certain restricted stock with both market and service
vesting conditions that was granted in fiscal 2007 utilizing a Monte Carlo simulation model, and the stock price was
simulated using Geometric Brownian Motion, a widely accepted model of stock price behavior used in option pricing
models. The prlmary,assumptlons used in the valuation models to value our restricted stock with market and service vesting
conditions included the time.frame of the simulation, the volatility rate, the risk-free interest rate and dividend yield. The
time frame assumption is based on the grant spec:f’ cations. We estimated the volatility of our common stock based on the
historical volatility over the.most recent period corresponding with the time frame assumption. We estimated the risk-free .
interest rate based on the zero coupon treasury constant maturity rate correspondmg with the time frame assumption,
Dividend rates were based on our historical experience. The fair value of this restricted, stock with market and service
vesting conditions is recognized ratably over the three and four years correspondmg with the derived requisite service
periods for these restricted shares. .

In addition, SFAS No. 123R requires us to develop a forfeiture rate which is an estimate of the number of share-based ‘
awards that will be forfeited prior to vesting. Quarterly changes in the estimated forfeiture rate are recognized in thé period
the forfeiture estimate is changed. The estimation of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment, and to the
extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates, such amounts are recorded as a cumulative
adjustment in the period estimates are revised. We consider many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including
types of awards and historical experience. Actual results, and future changes in estimates, may differ substantrally from our
current estimates.
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Warranty Expense and Liability

We generally warrant our. hardware and software products against defects for periods ranging from three to 36 months from
the date of sale and provide warranty servicé on tape drives ona return-to-factory basis. Qur tape automation systems and
disk systems may carry service agreements.available to customers to extend or upgrade the warranty service. We perform
hardware systems warranty and service from our facility in Colorado Springs, Colorado. Jabil Global Service provides
screen and repair services in Reynosa, Mexico and in Szombathely, Hungary for our,products. Benchmark Electronics, Inc.
{“BEI"} also provides repair and warranty service for our products in Penang, Malaysia, Angleton, Texas and Huntsville,
Alabama. In addition, we utilize various-other third party service providers throughout the world to perform repair and
warranty services for us.

We estimate future failure rates based upon historical product failure trends as well as anticipated future failure rates if
believed to be significantly different from historical trends. Similarly, we estimate future costs of repair based upon
historical trends and anticipated future costs if they are expected to significantly differ. We use a model and exercise
considerable judgment in determining the underlying estimates. Our model requires an element of subjectivity for all of our
products. For example, historical rates of return are not completely indicative of future return rates and we must therefore
exercise judgment with respect to future deviations from our historical return rate. When actual failure rates differ
significantly from our estimates, we-record the impact of these unforeseen costs or cost reductions in subsequent periods
and.update our assumptions and forecasting models accordingly. As our newer products mature, we are able to improve our
estimates with respect to these products. It is reasonably likely that assumptions will be updated for failure rates and,
therefore warranty expense llablllty estlmate could change i In the future.

We are in the process of consohdatmg and outsourcing manufacturing repair sites, which affect the future costs of

repair. Our expected costs associated with this outsourcing initiative consist of outsourcing product repairs to third parties,
with whom we negotiate on-going outsourcing arrangements, as well as transition costs from in-house repair to :
outsourcing. If the actual costs were to differ significantly from our estimates, we would record the impact of these
unforeseen costs or cost reductions in subsequent periods.

ln'ventory Valuation wo - g . ' '

Our inventory is'stated at the lower of tost or market, with cost computed on a first-in, first-out basis (“FIFQO”),
Adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory to its net realizable value, if required, are made for estimated excess, obsolete
or impaired balances. Factors influencing these adjustments include decline in demand, rapid technological changes,
product life cycle and development plans, component cost trends, product pricing, physical deterioration and quality issues.
Revisions to these adjustments would be required if these factors differ from our estimates.

i

Service Parts for Maintenance |,

We value our service parts for maintenance at amortized cost kess adjustments for excess or obsolete parts, if any. We carry
service parts because we generally provide product warranty for 3 to 36 months and eamn revenue by providing enhanced
warranty and repair service outside this warranty period. Service parts consist of both component parts, which are primarily
used to repair defective units; and finished units, which are provided for customer use permanently or on a temporary basis
while the defective unit is being repaired. Cost includes direct material, direct labor, overhead and other direct costs.
Estimates of excess and obsolete parts involve significant estimates and judgments about the future, including the estimated
amount of component parts expected to be consumed in the future warranty and out of warranty service and the estimated
number of parts required to meet future customer needs. Amortization of the aggregate service parts is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of eight years. Should the technology or our customers’ service needs
change ‘and cause an increase or decrease in the estimated useful lives of such semce parts, an adjustment to expense would
be recorded.

¥ S '

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We have a significant amount of goodwill and intangible assets on our balance sheet related-to acquisitions. In applying
SFAS No. 142, we review our goodwill annually for impairment in the fourth fiscal quarter, or more frequently when
indicators of impairment are present, Intangible assets are carried and reported at acquisition cost, net of accumulated
amortization subsequent to acquisition. [ntangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful lives, which generally
range from one to seven years. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate
impairment might exist in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Projected undiscounted net cash flows expected to be derived
from the use of those assets are compared to the respective net carrying amounts to determine whether any impairment
exists. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets.
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The determination of the net carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets and the extent to which, if any, there is
impairment are dependent on material estimates and judgments on our part, including the useful life over which the
intangiblé assets are to be amortized, and the estimates of the value of future net cash ﬂows which are based upon further
estimates of future revenues, expenses and cuperatmg= margms b

ta

il

Restructuring Charges ) T

In recent periods and over the past several years, we have recorded sxgmﬁcant restmctunng charges related to the
realignment and restructuring of our business operations. These charges represent expenses incurred in connection with
certain cost reduction programs and acquisition integrations that we have implemented and consist of the cost of
involuntary termination benefits, separation benefits, famhtles charges asset write-offs and other costs of exmng‘ activities
or geographies. :

The charges for severance and exit costs require the use of estimates, primarily related to the number of employees paid
severance, the amount of severance and related benefits 1o be paid; primarily based on years of service or statutory
requirements; and the cost of exiting facilities. Facilities exit costs typically require estimates and assumptions relatecl to

our ability to secure a sub-tenant, if apphcable and any subleasc incomie to be received in the. future

We account for severance and other postemployment benefits resulting from mvolumary terminations in accordance with
SFAS No. 112, Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits, (“SFAS No. 1127)) because we maintain a benefit
plan with specified termination benefits from which payment amounts are reasonably estimable. Under SFAS No. 112, we
record a severance lability at the time management commits to a plan with sufficient detail to reasonably.estimate benefits.

We account for facilities and all other restructuring charges not subject to SFAS No. 112 in accordance with SFAS

No, 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS No. 1467). SFAS No. 146 requires that a
liability for a cost associated with an-exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred rather than at the
date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS No. 146 establishes fair value as the objective, for initial measurement
of the liability. Any employee benefit arrangements not subject to SFAS No. 112 that require future service beyond a
minimum retention period are recognized over the future service period. Restructuring charges we have incurred under
SFAS No. 146 in recent years include facilities charges, noncancellable purchase commitments and fixed asset write-offs.
Only costs resulting from an exit plan that were not associated with, or that did not benefit, activities that would be
continued, were eligible for recognition as liabilities at the commitment date. oo o

Iy . .
.

Income Taxes . ' : . ' St ’

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Acbounting Jor Income Téxes (“SFAS No. 109”) and
FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accountinig for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an intérpretation of SFAS No.'109, Accounting
Jor Income Taxes (“FIN No. 48”), SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recogmzed for the effect
of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpeses and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. SFAS No. 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuatlon
allowance if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. el

Following the guidance of FIN No. 48, we recognize the bcneﬁt from a tax positioh only if it is more-likely-than-not that .
the position would be sustained upon audit based solely on the technical merits of the tax position. The calculation of our
tax liabilities requires judgment related to uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. As a result of the
implementation of FIN No. 48, we recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on the two;step process prescribed
in the interpretation. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available

evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related -

appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit as the largest
amount that is more than 50% likely to be reatized upon ultimate settlement. It is inherently difficult and subjective to
estimate such amounts, as we have to determine the probability of various possible outcomes. We reevaluate these
uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis. This evaluation is based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in
facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues under audit, and new audit activity. Such a change in
recognition or measurement would result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision.

.

I '
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FIN No. 48 also addresses when a company should record interest and penaltles related to tax posntlons and how the interest
and penalties may be classified within the income statement and presented in the batance sheet. We had historically
classified unrecognized tax benefits in current income taxes payable. As a result of adopting FIN No. 48, we reclassified
unrecognized tax benefits to other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax provision (benefit) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
To the extent accrued interest and penalties do not become payable, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a
reduction of the overall income tax provision in the period that such determination is made

We have provided a full valuation allowance agamst our U.S, net deferred tax assets due to our history of net losses,
difficulty in predicting future results and our conclusion that-we cannot rely on projections of future taxable income to
realize the deferred tax assets. In‘addition, we have provided a full valuation allowance against certain of our international
net deferred tax assets. Due to reorgamzanons in thesu _}UT]SdlCtlonS it is unclear whether we will be able to realize a benefit
from these deferred tax assets.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our, deferred tax assets and liabilities and valuation allowances
for purposes of assessing our ability to. realize any future benefit from our net deferred tax assets. We intend to maintain
this valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support the reversal of the valuation allowance. Future
income tax expense will be reduced to the extent that we have sufficient positive evidence to support a reversal or decrease -
in this allowance. We also have deferred tax assets and liabilities due to prior business acquisitions with corresponding
valuation allowances after assessing our ability to realize any future benefit from these acquired net deferred tax assets. If
sufficient positive evidence becomes available to support a reversal'or decrease in the allowance related to acquired net
deferred tax assets, we will record the change in goodwill in the period such evidence becomes available.

We believe that, based on current applicable tax laws, we have provided adequate amounts and recorded liabilities for
probable and estimable tax adjustrents that may be proposed by various taxing authorities in the U.S. and foreign
jurisdictions. These estimated liabilities are recorded on a quarterly basis and estimates are revised based upon new
information that was not available at the time of prior estimdtes. Qur estimate$ have in the past been subject to change and
we expect that some of our estimates will be subject to change in the future. While our estimated liabilities are recorded
based upon existing tax laws, events may occur in the future that indicate payments of these amounts will be less than
estimated, in which event, reversals of these labilities would create tax benefits that we would recognize in the periods
when we determine that the liabilities have been reduced. Conversely, events may occur in the future that indicate that
payments of these amounts will be greater than estimated, in which event we would record tax charges and additional
liabilities. For example, we may in the future, decide to negotiate with tax authorities regarding our tax liability in a
particular jurisdiction, which could result in a different outcome than our estimated liability. In addition, the regulatory
audit statute of limitations for a particular jurisdiction may expire without us becoming subject to an audit by that

- jurisdiction or an audit may occur but result in a smaller tax llablhty than we had esnmated and we would no longer be
required to incur any or all of the liability for that audit, as the case may be.

[tem 7A, Quanﬁtative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are exposed to a variety of risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency fluctuations.
Market Interest Rate Risk ' '

Changes in interest rates affect interest income earned on our cash equlvalents and marketable securities and interest
expense on our term debt. -

Our cash equivalents and marketable securities consisted solely of money market funds at March 31, 2008 and consisted of
money market funds and auction rate securities at March 31, 2007. All auction rate securitics owned by us at the end of
fiscal 2007 were liquidated during fiscal 2008 at par value. The main objective of our marketable securities is safety of
principal and liquidity while maximizing retumn, without significantly increasing risk. A hypothetical 100 basis point
decrease in interest rates would have resulted in an approxnmately $0.5 million and $0.6 million decrease in interest income
in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. :

As of March 31, 2008 and March 3 1, 2007, our outstanding convertible subordinated notes in the aggregate principal
amount of $160 million have a fixed interest rate of 4.375% paid semi-annually in February and August, and mature on
August 1, 2010. Refer to Note 11 “Convertible Subordinated Debt and Long-Term Debt” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information on our convertible subordinated debt.
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Interest accrues on our term loan at our option, based on either, a prime rate plus a margin of 2.5%, or a three month
LIBOR rate plus a margin of 3.5%. We have selected the LIBOR rate plus 3.5% since inception; however, we have no
limitation on selecting either the prime or LIBOR rate plus applicable margin. The interest rate on the term loan was 6.2%
at March 31, 2008. Commencing September 30, 2007, we began to make required quarterly principal payments of $1.0
million on the term loan and we will make a final payment of all outstanding principal and interest-at maturity on July 12,
2014. ‘ ! . . - ' -

Under the terms of our current credit agreement, we are required to hedge floating interest rate exposure on 50% of our
funded debt balance beginning December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2009. We have two interest rate collars that meet
this requirement. We have an interest rate collar that fixes the interest rate on $87.5 million of our variable rate term loan
between a three month LIBOR rate floor of 4.64% and a cap of 5.49% through December’2008. We have another interest
rate collar that fixes the interest rate on an additional $12.5 million of our variable rate term loan between a three month
LIBOR rate floor of 2.68% and a cap of 5.25% through December 2008 and fixes the interest rate on $100 million of our
variable rate term loan between the same floor and cap from December 31, 2008 through December 2009. During fiscal
2008, the three month LIBOR rate was within the floor and cap on both collars; therefore there was no impact to our
interest expense from this interest rate collar.

The following table shows the total impact to interest expense from a hypothetical 100 basis point increase and decrease in
interest rates (in thousands):

Hypothetical 100 basis peint  Hypothetical 100 basis point

increase in interest rates decrease in interest rates
2008 2007 2008 2007
Interest expense increase {decrease) on term debt % 3,809 $ 3,135 $(3,809)  $(3,135)
Interest expense increase (decrease) from collars (625) (282) 399 g8
Net interest expense increase (decrease) ‘ $3,184 $2,853 3(3,410)  %(3,047)

Except for the interest rate collars noted above, we did not enter into derivative transactions related to our cash equivalents
or marketable securities nor for any other existing or anticipated-liabilities during the years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007. We do not engage in hedging activity for speculative or trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

As a multinational corporation, we are exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates. These exposures may change over
time and could have a material adverse impact on our financial results, During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2008 and
2007, we did not utilize foreign currency forward contracts or other currency derivatives to manage the risk of exchange
rate fluctuations because we believed that we had a natural hedge through our worldwide operating structure,
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QUANTUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In thousands; except per-share data)
Far the year ended March 31,

.. - 2008 2007 2006
Product revenue o 8$714,837 $ 780,323 $610,463
Servig:c revenue . 160,920 121,933 95,143
Royalty revenue 99,945 113,918 128,681

Total revenue . : ) 975,702 1,016,174 834,287
Product cost of revenue 531,937 630,307 538,828
Service cost of revenue 124,424 51,582 63,019
Restructuring charges related to cost of revenue 237 500 512

Total cost of revenue 656,598 722,789 602,359

Gross margin 319,104 293,385 . 231,928
Operating expenses: .

Research and devetlopment 89,563 « 107,546 . 100,165

Sales and marketing o 149,367 123,134 82,251

General and administrative 78,789 63,251 52,358

Restructuring charges - 9,482 11,908 18,118

In-process research and development — 14,700

Loss on litigation settlement — — 20,517

327,201 320,539 273,409
Loss from operations . (8,097) (27,154) {41,481)
Interest income and other, net 6,008 8,746 11,376
Interest expense ’ (58,627) (40,748) {9,976)
Loss before income taxes (60,716) (59,156) . (40,081)
Income tax provision {benefit) (482) 4938 - 1,398
Net loss ' $(60,23) % (64,094) $(41,479)
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ 03 3 0.33) § (0.23)
Basic and diluted weighted-average common and common equivalent shares 202,432 192,236 184,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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QUANTUM CORPORATION
+ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except par value)

March 31, March 31,
) 2008 2007
. Assets
Current assets: . . '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 93,643 $ 59,926
Marketable securities ) — " 35,000
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 5,746 and $6,431,
respectively 182,998 150,090
inventories 75,995 91,153
Deferred income taxes . 12,060 17,137
Other current assets _ 30,601 33,155
Total current assets ‘ 395,297 386,461
Long-term assets: ) -
Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation 39,271 " 50,24]
Service parts for maintenance, less accumulated amortization 77,211 . 82,361
Purchased technology, less accumulated amortization 74,667 . 106,524
Other intangible assets, less accumulated amortization 75,223 92,077
Goodwill ., ~ 390,776 390,032
Other long-term assets ' 13,280 18,133
Total long-term assets . 670,428 739,368

$ 1,065,725 3 1,125,829

. Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities: .

: Accounts payable . 3 97965 s 92292
Accrued warranty W 19,862 30,669
Deferred revenue, current . 73,525 , 57,617
Current portion of long-term debt 4,000 25,000
Accrued restiucturing charges - 3,834 13,289
Accrued compensation 32,397 . 32,814
Income taxes payable o 3,515 15,490
Other accrued liabilities R ) 47,085 62,279

Total current liabilities ) 282,183 329,450

Long-term liabilities: .

Deferred revenue, long-term 31,152 27,634
Deferred income taxes 13,640 16,751
Long-term debt 336,000 337,500
Convertible subordinated debt 160,000 160,000
Other long-term liabilities 14,746 53

Total long-term liabilities 555,538 541,938

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders” equity:
Preferred stock:
Preferred stock, 20,000 shares authorized; no shares issued as of March 31, 2008 and
March 31, 2007 -_— —
Common stock:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; 206,927 and 197,817
shares issued and outstanding as of

March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively 2,069 1,978

Capital in excess of par value 337,332 306,409
Accumulated deficit (119,49%) (60,472}

Accumulated other comprehensive income 8,102 6,526

Stockholders’ equity 228,004 254,441

$ 1,065,725 $ 1,125,829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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QUANTUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands) ' e

For the year ended March 31,

2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities: '
Net loss . . $ (60234) § (64,094) S (41,479
Adjustments to_reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities: C
Depreciation 25,184 ° 29,416 20,759
Amortization 74,713 55,784 © 22,665
In-process research and development — 14,700 —
Realized gain on sale of investment (2,122) — —
Gain on Ireland facility closure — . (476} —
Deferred income taxes {260) 1,006 (40)
Share-based compensatien 13,998 8,972 901
Fixed assets written off in restructuring 568 1,229 —
Common stock received for license fee — < (3,319) —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisition and sale of ’
subsidiary: . : ’
Accounts receivable (32,908) 47,620 13,999
Inventories : 8,126 26,430 (21,872)
Service parts for maintenance ) . (10,957) (19,767) (2,100
Accounts payable ' ’ ' 13,978 {4,914) (14,141)
Accrued warranty (10,807} (8.698) (5,316)
Accrued compensation 432 {6,742) (3,163)
Income taxes payable (234) 1,305 (1,374)
Deferred revenue 19,426 . 8,425 1,618
Accrued restructuring charges (8,953) {13,515) 5,315
Other assets and liabilities (4,209) (9,600) 27,041
Net cash provided by operating activities 25,741 63,762 2,811
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘
Purchases of marketable securities (65,000} (714,758) (1,748,925)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 100,000 781,834 1,673,950
Purchases of property and equipment ’ (21,110} (17,195) (20,024)
Proceeds from sale of facility ' N — 6,000 —
Proceeds from sale of investment 5,441 — . —
Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary, net of cash sold 2,176 —_ —
Payments made in connection with business acquisitions, net of cash acquired
— (545,385) (20,039)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  * ° 21,507 (489,504) (115,038)
Cash flows from financing activities: Coe
Borrowings of long-term debt, net : i 441953 | 486,683 —
Principal payments on debt ' ‘ ’ {472,500) 134,000y . {1,488)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 17,016 10,295 11,269
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (13,531) 362,978 9,781
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . 33,717 (62,764) (102,446)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . 59926 122,690 - 225,136
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ) §  93.643 $ 59926 § 122690
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: ,
Cash paid during the year for: .
Interest L% 46323 %5 34962 S 10,732
Income taxes, net of refunds § (4273 8 2,515 3 (1,663)
Deferred gain on sale-leaseback 3 — b — s 3,140
Fair value of stock and options issued in connection with business acquisitions 5 — $ 14,541 $ —
Value of commeon stock tendered in satisfaction of employees’ income taxes on .
vesting of employee restricted stock 3 1,343 3 213 5 351

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Balances as of March 31, 2005
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss
Other comprehensive loss:-
Foreign currency translation
adjustments '
Comprehensive loss
Shares issued under employee stock
purchase plan ‘
Shares issued under employee stock
incentive plans, net
Share-based compensation expense

Balances as of March 31, 2006
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Comprehensive loss
Shares issued under employee stock
. purchase plan
Shares issued under employee stock
incentive plans, net )
Shares issued in connection with
business acquisitions
Stock options assumed in
connection with business
acquisition ]
Share registration costs
Share-based compensation expense

Balances as of March 31, 2007
Comprehensive loss;
Net loss
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Comprehensive loss
Impact of adoption of FIN No. 48
Shares issued under employee stock
purchase plan
Shares issued under employee stock
incentive plans, net
Share-based compensation expense

Balances as of March 31, 2008

QUANTUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

Accumulated
Common Stock Capital Retained Other
in Excess of Earnings Comprehensive
Shares Amount Par Value (Deficit) income Total

183,875 $1,839 $ 260,570 $ 45,101 b 3,173 - $310,683
— — - (41,479) — (41,479)

— — — — (303) (303)
(41,782)

2,148 22 5,145 — — . 5,167
2,818 28 6,074 —— —_ 6,102
— — 901 — — 901
188,841 1,889 272,650 3,622 2,870 281,071
— — — (64,094) — (64,094)

— — — — 3,656 3,656
’ (60,438)

2,451 24 4,110 — — 4,134
4,650 46 6,921 — — 6,967
1,875 19 4,051 — — 4,070
— _ 10,471 _ — 10,471
— — (806) —_ — (806)

— — 8,972 — — 8,972
197,817 1,978 306,409 (60,472) 6,526 254,441
—_ _ — (60,234) — (60,234)

— — — — 1,576 1,576
- (58,658)

— — — 1,207 — 1,207
2,615 26 5,409 — — 5,435
6,495 65 11,516 — — 11,581
— — 13,998 . . — — 13,998
206,927 $2,069 . $337,332  §(119,499) $228,004

$ 8,102 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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. QUANTUM CORPORAT[ON
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note t: Description of Business

Quantum Corporation (“Quantum”, the “Company” “us” or “we”) (NYSE: QTM), founded in 1980, is a leading global
storage company specializing in backup, recovery and archive solutions. Combining focused expertise, customer-driven
innovation, and platform independence, we provide a comprehensive, integrated range of disk, tape and software solutions
supported by our sales and service organization. We work closely with a broad network of value-added resellers (“VARs”),
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) and other suppliers to meet customers’ evolving data protection needs. Our
stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange.

Note 2: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Quantum and our wholly-owned o
sub51d|anes All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Prior to ﬁsca] 2007, we reported two data storage business segments: Tape Drive and Storage Systems. As a result of
organizationai changes, we began reporting one business segment the first quarter of fiscal 2007. These organizational
changes included the integration of marketing, sales and research and development functions to enhance the product
positioning and to lower the cost platforms within our business. As a result of these integration efforts, discrete financial
information for these former segments is no longer tracked below the gross margin level; management no longer measures
operating performance nor makes resource allocation decisions on a segmented basis.

On August 22, 2006, we completed our acquisition of Advanced Digital Information Corporation (“ADIC”). ADIC’s
results of operations and cash flows are included in our Consolidated Statements of Operatlons and Cash Flows from this -
date forward.

. Id . N
During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we changed our accounting estimate related to the valuation of service parts for
maintenance. Previously, we amortized the value of our finished goods service parts over a five year period and evaluated
the difference between cost and market value for our component service parts on a quarterly basis, recording write-downs if
the cost exceeded estimated market value. Beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we are amortizing all of our
service parts for maintenance on a'straight-line basis over a total life of eight years and will record additional write-downs -
when excess and obsolete parts not covered by the amortization are identified. This change in estimate reflects our usage of
service parts, which are used to support our products during their life cycles as well as generally five years after a product
reaches end of life. In addition to this change in estimate, we also reclassified service parts for maintenance from current
assets to long-term assets to reflect the expected life of these assets. During the year ended March 31, 2007, we estimate
both our cost of revenue and net loss were higher by $5.5 million compared to what would have been recorded using
previous estimates. Our net loss increased $0.03 per share for the year ended March 31, 2007 using the changed estimate.
See Note 3 below for a description of our accounting policy regarding amortization of service parts for maintenance.

Certain prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation including the service parts for
maintenance reclassification described above. In the Consolidated Statements of Operations we began presenting revenue
and cost of revenue separately for products and services in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 because our service revenue
exceeded 10% of our total revenue. We have made a corresponding reclassification adjustment to the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for fiscal 2007 and 2006. Our accounting policy for service revenue and cost of revenue is
described in Note 3 below. For fiscal 2007 and 2006, we reciassified $7.7 million and $7.2 million, respectively, from
research and development expense and $3.7 million and $3.1 million, respectively, from sales and marketing expense to
general and administrative expense to conform to the fiscal 2008 presentation of the allocation of information technology
expenses within operating expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. In the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
March 31, 2007, we reclassified $6.5 million from accounts payable to other accrued liabilities.

.t

Note 3: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reportéd amount of revenues and expenses during the period. We base estimates on
historical experience and on various assumptions about the future that are believed to be reasonable based on available
information. Qur reported financial position or results of operations may be materially different under different conditions
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or when using different estimates and assumptions, particularly with respect to significant accounting policies, which are
discussed below. In the event that estimates or assumptions prove to differ from actual results, adjustments are made in
subsequent periods to reflect more current information. : :

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of hardware products to distributors, VARs, OEMs and end-users is recognized when the criteria of
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Reventie Recognition, have been met; when passage of title and risk of ownership are
transferred to customers; when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; when the price to the buyer is fixed or
determinable; and when collection is reasonably assured. When significant post-delivery obligations exist, the related
revenue is deferred until such obligations are fulfilled. If there are customer acceptance criteria in the contract, we
recognize revenue upon end-user acceptance, which typically occurs after delivery and installation are completed.

In the period when the revenue is recognized, allowances are provided for estimated future price adjustments, such as

volume rebates, price protection, and future product returns. These aliowances are based on the customers’ master

agreements, programs in existence at the time the revenue is recognized, historical information, contractual limits and plans .
regarding price adjustments and product returns. Since we have historically been able to reliably estimate the amount of
allowances required for future price adjustments and product returns, we recognize revenue, net of projected allowances,

upon shipment to our customers. If we were unable to reliably estimate the amount of future price adjustments and product
returns in any specific reporting period, then we would be required to defer recognition of the revenue until the right to

future price adjustments and product returns lapsed and we were no longer under any obligation to reduce the price or

accept the return of the product.

We license certain intellectual property to third party manufacturers under arrangements that are represented by master
contracts, allowing these third party manufacturers to manufacture and sell certain of our products. As consideration for
licensing the intellectual property; the licensees pay us a per-unit royalty for sales of their products that incorporate the
licensed technology. On a periodic basis, the licensees provide us with unit reports that include the quantity of units soid to
end-users subject to royalties. We recognize revenue based on the unit reports, which are provided to us in a timely
fashion. The unit report substantiates that the delivery has occurred. Royalty revenue is measured by multiplying the units
sold as reflected in the unit reports by the royalty per unit in accordance with the royalty agreements Royalty payments are
made to us on a per unit basis at a stipulated per unit amount.

Revenue equal to the separately stated price of extended warranty and product service coritracts for our hardware products

is initially deferred and recognized as revenue ratably over the contract period in accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin

90-1, decounting for Separately Priced Extended Warranty and Product Maintenance Contracts. For other arrangements,

when elements such as hardware and services are contained in a single arrangement, or in related arrangements with the

same customer, we allocate revenue to the separate elements based on relative fair value, provided we have fair value for ali
clements of the arrangement. If in an arrangement we have fair value for undelivered elements but.not the delivered

element, we defer the fair value of the undelivered elements and the residual revenue is allocated to the delivered

elements. Undelivered elements typically include installation and services. If fair value does not exist for undelivered

elements, then revenue for the entire arrangement is deferred until alt elements have been delivered. -

Revenue from software sales is recognized when the criteria of Statement of Position No, 97-2, Software Revenue
Recognition (“SOP 97-27), have been met. These criteria are: when passage of title and risk of ownership are transterred to
customers; when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; when the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable; when
collection is reasonably assured; and when vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value for undelivered elements exist.
Vendor-specific objective evidence is typically based on the price charged when an element is sold separately or, if an
element is not sold separately, on the price established by authorized management, if it is probable that the price, once
established, will not change before market introduction. We recognize revenue from software sales upon delivery provided
that there is no customer acceptance clause in the purchase order or contract, there are no significant post-delivery
obligations remaining, the price is fixed and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. When significant
posi-delivery obligations exist, the related revenue is deferred until such obligations are fulfilled. If there are customer
acceptance criteria in the contract, we recognize revenue upon end-user acceptance, which typically occurs after delivery
and installation are completed. Revenue from postcontract customer support agreements, which entitle customers to both
support and upgrades during the term of the agreement, when-and-if available, is recognized ratably over the life of the
agreement. EITF Issue No. 03-5, Applicability of AICPA Statement of Position 97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an
Arrangement Containing More-Than-Incidental Software (“EITF 03-5™), affirms that the revenue recognition guidance in
SOP 97-2 also applies to non-software deliverables; such as computer hardware, in an arrangement it the software is
essential to the functionality of the non-software deliverables. We do not currently have any non-software deliverables for
which software is essential to the functionality. '
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Service Revenue and Service Cost of Revenue f

Service revenue is derived from contracts for field support provided 16 our branded customers, in addition to installation
and integration services and repair services that are not otherwise included in the base price of the product. Semce cost of
revenue excludes costs assoctated with basic warranty support on new branded and OEM products

We classify expenses as service cost of revenue by estimating the portion of our total cost ‘of revenue that relates to
providing field support to our customers under contract, installation, integration and repair services. These estimates are
based upon a variety of factors, including the nature of the support activily and the level of infrastructure required to
support the activities from which we eam service revenue. In the event our sérvice busmess changes, our estimates of cost
of service revenue may be- 1mpacted ' - : : -

Warranty Expense and Liability

We generally warrant our hardware and software products against defects for periods ranging from three to 36 months from
the date of sate and provide warranty service on tape drives on a return-to-factory basis. Our tape automation systems and
disk systems may carry service agreements available to customers to extend or upgrade the warranty service. We perform
hardware systems warranty and service from our facility in Colorado Springs, Colorado. Jabil Global Service provides
screen and repair services in Reynosa, Mexico and in Szombathely, Hungary for our products. Benchmark Electronics, Inc..
(“BEI"”) also provides-repair and warranty service for our products in Penang, Malaysia, Angleton, Texas and Huntsville,
Alabama. In addition, we utilize various other third party service providers thmughoul the world to perform repair and
warranty services for us. . : . . .

v

N . ' LY ) * .
We estimate future failure rates based upon historical product failure trends as well as anticipated future failure rates if”’
believed to be significantly different from historical trends. Similarly, we estimate future costs of repair based upon
historical trends and anticipated future costs if they are expected to significantly differ. We use a model and exercise
considerable judgment in determining the underlying estimates. Qur model requires an element of subjectivity for all of our
products. For example, historical rates of return are not completely indicative of future return rates and we must therefore
exercise judgment with respect to future.deviations from our historical return-rate. When actual failure rates differ
significantly.from our estimates, we record the impact of these unforeseen costs or cost reductions in subsequent periods
and update our assumptions and forecasting models accordingly. As our newer products mature we are able to improve our
estimates with respect to these products. It is reasonably likely that assumptions will be updated for fallure rates and,
therefore, warranty expense liability estimate could change in the future, L

We are in the process of consolidating and outsourcing manufacturing repair sites, which affect the future costs of

repair. Our expected costs associated with this outsourcing initiative consist of outsourcing product repairs to thlrd parties,
with whom we negotiate on-going outsourcing arrangements, as well as transition costs from in- -house repair to ’
outsourcing. If the actual costs were to differ significantly from our estimates, we would record the impact of these
unforeseen costs or cost reductions in subsequent periods.

.

Share-Based Compensation

Effective April 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statemient of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004),
Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS No. 123R requires eniployee stock options and rights to purchase shares
under stock participation plans to be accounted for under the fair value method and requires the use of an option pricing
model for estimating fair vatue. Accordingly, share-based compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the fair
value of the award. The exercise price of options is equal to the market price of our common stock on the date of grant. In
prior fiscal years, we accounted for awards granted under oyr equity incentive plans under the intrinsic value method
prescribed by Accounting Principles Beard Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued 10 Emplovees (“APB No. 25”),
and related interpretations, and provided the required pro forma disclosures prescribed by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock- Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 1237), as amended. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, only share- based
compensation related to the issuance of restricted stock awards was recognized in the Consolldated Statements of
Operations, since the restricted stock awards were issued at a discount.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective method, and therefore were
not required to restate prior periods’ results. Under this method, for all awards subject to service vesting conditions that are
expected to vest, we recognize compensation expense (a) for all equity incentive awards granted prior to, but not yet vested
as of April 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS

No. 123 and (b) for all equity incentive awards granted, modified or settled subsequent to April 1, 2006, based on the grant-
date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. We recognize the fair value of stock options
on a ratabie basis over the requisite service periods, which are generally the vesting periods.
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Determining the appropriate fair-value model and calculating the fair value of share-based awards at the date of grant
requires judgment. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to estimate the fair value of employee stock
options and rights to purchase shares under stock participation plans, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. The
Black-Scholes-Merton model requires the use of input assumptions, including expected life, expected volatility, expected
dividend rate and expected risk-free rate of return, We estimate expected life of the award based on historical experience
with similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules and pre-vesting and post-vesting
forfeitures. We estimate the volatility of our commeon stock based on the historical volatility over the most recent period
corresponding with the estimated-expected life of the award. Higher volatility and expected lives resuit in a proportional
increase to share-based compensation determined at the date of grant. The expected dividend rate and expected risk-free
rate of return are not as significant to the calculation of fair value. Although the fair value of our share-based awards is
determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123R, the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, and other reasonable assumptions could provide differing results.

Under the provisions of SFAS 123R, the fair value of share-based grants with a market vesting condition must be modeled
and valued with a path-dependent valuation technique. We valued certain restricted stock with both market and service
vesting conditions that was granted in fiscal 2007 utilizing a Monte Carlo simulation model, and the stock price was
simulated using Geometric Brownian Motion; a widely accepted model of stock price behavior used in option pricing
models. The primary assumptions used in the valuation models to value our restricted stock with market and service vesting
conditions included the time frame of the simulation, the volatility rate, the risk-free interest rate and dividend yield. The
time frame assumption is based on the grant specifications. We estimated the volatility of our common stock based on the
historical volatility over the most recent period corresponding with the time frame assumption, We estimated the risk-free
interest rate based on the zero coupon treasury constant maturity rate corresponding with the time frame assumption.
Dividend rates were based on our historical experience. The fair value of this restricted stock with market and service
vesting conditions is recognized ratably over the three and four years corresponding with the derived requisite service
periods for these restricted shares.

In addition, SFAS No. 123R requires us to develop a forfeiture rate which is an estimate of the number of share-based
awards that will be forfeited prior to vesting. Quarterly changes in the estimated forfeiture rate are recognized in the period
the forfeiture estimate is changed. The estimation of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment, and to the
extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates, such amounts are recorded as a cumulative
adjustment in the period estimates are revised. We consider many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including
types of awards and historical experience. Actual results, and future changes in estimates, may differ substantially from our
current estimates.

1

Shipping and Handling Fees

Shipping and handling fees are included in cost of revenue and were $42.6 million, $34.8 million and $25.4 million in fiscal
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. .

Advertising Expense

We expense advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended March 31, 2008 2007 and 2006 was
$4.1 million, $9.3 miilion and $11.0 million, respectively.

"
Research and Development Costs .

Expendltures relating to the development of new products and processes are expensed as incurred. These costs include
expenditures for employee compensation, materials used in the development effort, other internal costs, as well as
expenditures for third party professional services. We have determined that technological feasibility for our software
products is reached shortly before the products are released to manufacturing. Costs incurred after technological feasibility
is established have not been material and we have expensed all soﬂware related research and development costs when
incurred.
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Cash Equivalents, Marketable Securities and Other Investments

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are carried at fair value, which approximates their cost.

Investments in marketable debt securities with maturities of greater than three months at the time of purchase are classified
as marketable securities. These investments generally consist of highly marketable securities that are intended to be
available to meet current cash requirements. Historically, all of our investments have been classified as available-for:sale
and are carried at fair market value. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary are
recorded in interest income and other, net. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. '

We also hold investments in private technology venture limited partnerships. These investments individuaily represent
voting ownership interests of less than 20%. Ownership interests in these limited partnerships are accounted for under the
equity method unless our interest ts so minor (typically iess than 5%) that we have virtually no influence over the
partnership operating and financial policies, in which case the cost method is used. Currently, our investments in these
limited partnerships are accounted for using the equity method,

Investments we hold in privately held companies are accounted for under the cost method unless we hold a significant
stake. We review non-marketable equity investments on a regular basis to determine if there has been any impairment of
value which is other than temporary by reviewing their financial information, gaining knowledge of any.new financing or
other business agreements and assessing their operating viability. .

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and generally require no collateral from our
customers, These evaluations require significant judgment and are based on multiple sources of information and analyze
such factors as our historical bad debt experiences, industry and geographic concentrations of credit risk, current economic
trends and changes in customer payment terms. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical
experience and expected collectibility of outstanding accounts receivable. We record bad debt expense in general'and
administrative expenses.’ ’ o

Inventory Valuation

Our inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost computed on a first-in, first-out basis (“FIFO™).
Adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory to its net realizable value, if required, are made for-estimated excess, obsolete
or impaired balances. Factors influencing these adjustments include decline in demand, rapid technological changes,
product life cycle and development plans, component cost trends, product pricing, physical deterioration and quality issues,
Revisions to these adjustments would be required if these factors differ from our estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carricd at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, computéd ona stra{ght-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: . :

Buildings ' - 25 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
ERP software 10 years
Other software ‘ : : © 3 years
Furniture and fixtures ' 5 years
Other office equipment o 5 years
Leasehold improvements ' . ' Life of lease

. . [
f 1

Service Parts for Maintenance

We value our service parts for maintenance at amortized cost less adjustments for excess or obsolete parts, if any, We carry
service parts because we generally provide product warranty for 3 to 36 months and earn revenue by providing enhanced
warranty and repair service outside this warranty period. Service parts consist of both component parts, which are primarily
used to repair defective units, and finished units, which are provided for customer use permanently or on a temporary basis
while the defective unit is being repaired. Cost includes direct material, direct labor, overhead and other direct costs.
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Estimates of excess and obsolete parts involve significant estimates and judgments about the future, including the estimated
amount of component parts expected to be consumed in the future warranty and out of warranty service and the estimated
number of parts required to meet future customer needs. Amortization of the aggregate service parts is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of eight years. Should the technology or our customers’ service needs
change and cause an increase or decrease in the estimated useful lives of such service parts, an adjustment to expense would
be recorded.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

I applying SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we review our gooedwill annually for impairment in the
fiscal fourth quarter, or more frequently when indicators of impairment are present. Intangible assets are carried and
reported at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization subsequent to acquisition. Intangible assets are amortized over
their estimated useful lives, which range from one to seven years. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate impairment might exist in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-lived Assets. Projected undiscounted net cash flows expected to be derived from the use of those assets
are compared to the respective net carrying amounts to determine whether any impairment exists. Impairment, if any, is
based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets.

Restructuring Charges

. In recent periods and over the past several years, we have recorded significant restructuring charges related to the
realignment and restructuring of our business operations. These charges represent expenses incurred in connection with
certain cost reduction programs and acquisition integrations that we have implemented and consist of the cost of
involuntary termination benefits, separation benefits, facilities charges, asset write-offs and other costs of exiting activities
or geographies,

The charges for severance and exit costs require the use of estimates, primarily related to the number of employees paid
severance, the amount of severance and related benéfits to be paid, primarily based on years of service or statutory
requirements, and the cost of exiting facilities. Facilities exit costs typically require estimates and assumptions related to
our ability to secure a sub-tenant, if applicable, and any sublease income to be received in the future.

We account for severance and other postemployment benefits resulting from involuntary terminations in accordance with
SFAS No. 112, Emplovers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits, (“SFAS No. 1127} because we maintain a benefit
plan with specified termination benefits from which payment amounts are reasonably estimable. Under SFAS No. 112, we
record a severance liability at the time management commits to a plan with sufficient detail to reasonably estimate benefits.

We account for facilities and all other restructuring charges not subject to SFAS No. 112 in accordance with SFAS

No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS No. 146”). SFAS No. 146 requires that a
liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred rather than at the
date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS No. 146 establishes fair value as the objective for initial measurement
of the liability. Any employee benefit arrangements not subject to SFAS No. 112 that require future service beyond a
minimum retention period aré recognized over the future service period. Restructuring charges we have incurred under
SFAS No. 146 in recent years include facilities charges, noncancellable purchase commitments and fixed asset write-offs.
Only costs resulting from an exit plan that were not associated with, or that did not benefit, activities that would be
continued, were eligible for recognition as liabilities at the commitment date,

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, dccourting for Income Taxes {(“SFAS No. 109”), and
FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting
Jor Income Taxes (“FIN No. 48”). SFAS No. 109 requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized for the effect
of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. SFAS No, 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Following the guidance of FIN No. 48, we recognize the benefit from a tax position only if it is more-likely-than-not that
the position would be sustained upon audit based solely on the technical merits of the tax position. The calculation of our’
tax liabilities requires judgment related to uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. As a result of the
implementation of FIN No. 48, we recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on the two-step process prescribed
in the interpretation. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available
evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related
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appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit as the largest
amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upen ultimate settlement, It is inherently difficult and subjective to
estimate such amounts, as we have to determine the probability of various possible outcomes. We reevaluate these
uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis. This evaluation is based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in
facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues under audit, and new audit activity. Such a change in
recognition or measurement would result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision.

FIN No. 48 also addresses when a company should record interest and penalties related to tax positions and how the interest
and penalties may be classified within the income statement and presented in the balance sheet. We had historically
classified unrecognized tax benefits in current income taxes payable. As a result of adopting FIN No. 48, we reclassified
unrecognized tax benefits to other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax provision (benefit) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
To the extent accrued interest and penalties do not become payable, amounts accrued will be reduced and reﬂected asa
reduction of the overall income tax provision in the period that such determination is made.

Concentration of Credit Risk

We currunt{y invest our excess cash in deposits'with major banks and in money market funds. In the past, we have also held
investments in short-term debt securities of companies with strong credit ratings from a variety of industries and we may
make investments in these securitics in the future. We have not experienced any material losses on these investments and
limit the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer and to any one type of investment.

We sell products to customers in a wide variety of industries on a worldwide basis. In countries or industries where we are
exposed to material credit risk, we require collateral, including cash deposits and letters of credit prior to the completion of
a transaction. We do not believe we have significant credit risk beyond that provided for in the financial statements in the

ordinary course of business. '

Sales to our top five customers in fiscal 2008 and 2007 represented 42 % of reventie compared to 49% of revenue in fiscal’
2006. Sales to Dell were 16% of revenue in fiscal 2008, compared to 20% of revenue in fiscal 2007 and 18% of revenue in
fiscal 2006. Sales to Hewlett-Packard {(“HP”) were 8% of revenue in fiscal 2008, compared to 9% of revenue in fiscal 2007
and 18% of revenue in ﬁsc.a'l 2006. These sales concentrations do not include revenues from sales of media that were.sold
directly to these customers by our licensees, for which we earn royalty revenue, or revenues from sales of tape libraries sold
directly to these customers by our other OEM tape drive customers.

Foreign Currency Translanon and Transactions

Assets, liabilities and operations of foreign offices and subsidiaries are recorded based on the functlonal currency of the
entity. For a majotity of our material foreign operations, the functional currency is the U.S. dollar. The assets and liabilities
of foreign offices with a local functional currency are translated, for consolidation purposes, at current exchange rates from
the local currency to the reporting currency, the'U.S, dollar, The resulting gains or losses are reported as a component of
other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity. Assets and liabilities denorninated in other than the functional
currency are remeasured each month with the remeasurement gain or loss recorded in interest income and other, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Foreign currency gains and losses recorded in interest income and other, net were a
$1.8 million gain in fiscal 2008, a $0.4 million loss in fiscal 2007, and a $0.8 million loss in fiscal 2006.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In accordance with SFAS‘No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity (“SFAS No. 133%), all
derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. If the
derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged item are
recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are
recorded in other comprehensive income and are recognized in the income statement when the hedged item affects
earnings. Derivatives not designated or qualifying as a hedging instrument are adjusted to fair value through earnings. We
may, from time to time, enter into derivative instruments to hedge against known or forecasted market exposures. We may
also enter into derivative instruments to meet the requirements of our credit facility.
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Fair Value of Fmancral Instruments - . .

Following i isa summary table of f‘arr value and the related can‘ymg amounts of financial instruments (in thousands)

o

As of March 31, 2008 ’ As of March 31, 2007
Carryirig Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Assets : i . - . . . '
Cash and cash equwalents . o T 8. 93,0643 5 93,043 $§ 359926 § 59926
" Marketable securities 1 : v ‘ — — "o 35,000. . 35,000
Liabilities - . ! " : L - . —
* Convertible subordmated debt - : : 160,000 136,386 . 160,000. 148,800
Revolving credit facility L ' ' - o — 125,000 25,000
Term loans . © 340,000 340,000 337,500 337,500
Derivatives - . 2,188 2,188 94 94

The fair values for the marketable securlttes convertible subordinated debt and the derivatives are based on the quoted
market price at the balance sheet dates. The farr value of the revolving and term loans approximates the carrying value due
to frequent interest, rate resets on these instruments.

Risks and Uncertainties

As is typical in the information sforage industry, a significant portion' of our customer base is concentrated among a small
number of OEMs and large VARs. The toss of any one of our more significant customers, or a significant decrease in the
sales volume with one 6f these significant customers, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition. Furthermore, if general economic conditions were to worsen, the resulting effect on IT spending could
also have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. We also face additional competitive
pressure since our competitors in one area may be customers or suppliers in another.

A lrmtted number of tape drivé storage praducts make up a significant majority of our sales; and due to increasingly rapid -
technologtcal change in the mdustry, our future operating results depend on our ability to develop and successfully
introduce new products.

1,

We utilize contract manufacturers to produce certain of our products and have suppliers for various components, several of
which have operations located in foreign counties including China, Indonesia, Japan, Malaysia and Singapore. Political
instability, trade restrictions, changes in tariff or freight rates or currency fluctuations in any of these countries could result
in increased costs and delays in shipment of our products and could materially and adversely impact our.operating results

We have outsourced a s1gn1ﬁcant pomon of our manufacturing to a small number of eontract manufacturers. This
concentration presents risks of component shortages or other delays in customer deliveries, mcreased costs for products
manufactured for us and risks associated with unacceptable quality of the products

Accumulated Other Comorehenswe Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income consisting of foreign currency translation adjustments was $8.1 million and $6.5
million as of March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Co e ‘ .

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring-fair value in generally accepied accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and is effective for us beginning in fiscal 2009. Adoption of this standard for financial assets-and
liabilities is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial position or results of operations. FASB Staff Position
{“FSP) No. 157-1, Application of FASB Statenient No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting -
Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification of Measurement Under
Statement 13, excludes leases from the scope of SFAS No. 157. FSP No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157
(“FSP No. 157-2"), defers for one year the effects of SFAS No. 157 on nonrecurring transactions on nonfinancial assets and
liabilities. When we adopt SFAS No. 157 we intend to use the deferral provision from FSP No. 157-2 related to
nonfinancial assets and liabilities. We are evaluating the impact of implementing the nonfinancial assets and liabilities
portion of SFAS No. 157 on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
This-statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value’”
Unrealized gains and losses for which the fair value option has been elected will be reported in eamings. This statement is
effective for us beginning in fiscal 2009 and is not €xpected to have a significant impact on our financial position or results
of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, Business Combinations — a Replacement of FASB Statemenr

No. 141 (“SFAS No. 141R”). The statement is to be applled prospectlvcly for fiscal years begmmng on or after
December 15, 2008; therefore it applies to future business combinations. Thé statement requires more-assets acquired and ..
liabilities assumed in future business combinations to be measured at fair value as of the acquisition date. In addition,
expenses incurred for all acquisition-related,costs are to be expensed and liabilities related to'contingent cons1deranon are
to be remeasured to fair value each subsequent reporting penod We will adopt SFAS No. 141R at the beginning of our
2010 fiscal year, or April 1, 2009. We are currently evaluating the 1mpact this statement may have on our consol:dated

fi nanCIal posmon or results of operations.

il

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an
amendment of ARB No. 31 (“SFAS No. 160”). The statement changes how noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries are
measured and classified; noncontrolling interests are initially measured at fair value and presented as a separate component
of equity. SFAS No. 160 establishes a single method of accounting for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary, that do not result in deconsolidation. No gains or losses will be recognized on partial dtsposals of a subsidiary
where control is retained. In addition, in partia] acquisitions, where control is obtained, the acquiring company will
recognize and measure at fair value all of the assets and llabllltleS including goodwill, as if the entire target company had
been acqutred The statement is to be applied prospecnvely for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We
will adopt the statement on April 1, 2009, which is the beginning of our 2010 fiscal year. Adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a significant impact on our financial position or results of operations. '

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Diselosures about Derivative Instrumerits and Hedging Activities (“SFAS
No' 1617).'SFAS No. 161 is mtended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by
requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors to befter understand the effects of the derivative instruments on an
entlty s financial position; financial performance and cash flows. It is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years and tntenm periods beginnirig after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. Adoption of this standard
is required in our fourth quarter of ﬁscal 2009 and is fot expected to have a s1gmﬁcant impact on our financial position or
results of operatlons

In April 2008, the FASB issued-Staff Position No. 142-3, Determmanon of the Usefu[ Life of Imangtb[eAssets (“FSP
No. 142:3”). FSP No. 142-3 amends the factors to be considered in assumptions used to determine the useful lives of
recognized intangible assets recognized under SFAS No, 142:The new guidance applies to intangible assets with
contractual lives that are acquired individually or with a group of assets as well as those assets acquired in & business
combination. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and interim periods. We
will adopt the statement on April 1, 2009 which is the beginning of our 2010 fiscal year. We are currently evaluating the
1mpact this position will have, if any, on our consolidated financial position and results of operatlons

Note 4; Stock Incentive Plans and Share-Based Compensatiun

Description of Stock Incentive Plans

Long-Term Incentive Plan

We have a Long-Term [ncentive Plan (the “Plan”) that pr0v1des for the issuance of stock optmns stock apprec1at1on rights,
stock purchase rights and long-term performance awards to our employees, consultants, officers and affiliates. The Plan has
authorized 76.5 million shares of stock of which 21.8 million shares of stock were available for grant as of March 31, 2008.
There are 23.9 million options and restricted shares outstanding under the Long-Term Incentive Plan. :

Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2007, under the Plari we began granting restricted stock units with a zero purchase
price rather than stock options in most cases to our existing employees. We continue to grant stock options to our existing
employees in certain circumstances.. Newly hired employecs are typically granted stock:options under the Plan, Stock
options. granted to newly hired employees in ﬁscal 2007 and ﬁscal 2008 generally vest 25% on the first anniversary of the
grant date with the remainder vesting monthly at the rate of 1/48 over the, following three years and have contractual terms
of seven years. Stock options granted to, existing employees in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008 generally vest monthly over four
years and have contractual terms of seven years. Grants in prior fiscal years typtcally had ‘similar vesting terms and
contractual terms of seven to ten years. Options under the Plan are granted at prices ‘determined by the Board of Directors,
but at not less than the fair market value. Restricted stock awards and units (“restricted’ stock”) generally vest over two to
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four years. Both options and restricted stock granted under the Plan are generally subject to forfeiture if employment
terminates. We do not have any performance-based awards outstanding as of March 31, 2008. In fiscal 2007, we granted
restricted stock with both market and service vesting conditions that, upon meeting certain market conditions over one and
two year periods from initial grant, begin to vest over the two years following the grant date. .

Supplemental Stock Plan

We have a Supplemental Stock Plan (the “SSOP”), which is not approved by our stockholders, that provided for the
issuance of stock options and stock purchase rights to our employees and consultants. The SSOP was terminated effective .
April 1, 2003, from which time no new stock options or stock purchase rights have been or will be granted under the SSOP.
Qutstanding stock options and stock purchase rights granted under the SSOP prior to April 1, 2003 remain outstanding and
continue to be governed by the terms and conditions of the SSOP. Options under the SSOP generally vested over two to
four years and expire ten years after the grant date. Restricted stock granted under the SSOP generally vested over two to
three years. Options and restricted stock granted under the SSOP are generally subject to forfeiture if employment -
terminates. There are 1.5 million options outstanding under the SSOP as of March 31, 2008, which expire at various times
through January 2013,

Assumed Stock Option Plans

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, in connection with our acquisition of ADIC, we assumed 14.7 million outstanding
stock options granted under the four stock option plans of ADIC (“assumed option plans™). Qutstanding options are
governed by the Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”) and generally vest over four years from initial -
ADIC grant. No additional options will be granted under these assumed option plans, There are 6.5 nuillion options
outstanding under the assumed stock option plans as of March 31, 2008 which expire at various times through May 2015.

Other Stock Option Plans

We have other stock option plans (the “Other Plans™) under which stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock purchase
rights, restricted stock awards and long-term performance awards to our employees, consultants, officers and affiliates have
been authorized. Restricted stock granted under the Other Plans generally vests over two to three years. Options granted
under the Other Plans generally vest over two to four years and expire seven years after the grant date. Many of the Other
Plans have been terminated. Qutstanding stock options and stock purchase rights granted under those certain Other Plans
that have been terminated remain outstanding and continue to be governed by the terms and conditions of the respective
other stock option plans. Terminated plans included in Other Plans typically granted options which generally expire ten
years from grant date. Options and restricted stock granted under all of the Other Plans are generally subject to forfeiture if
employment terminates. Options under the Other Plans are granted at prices determined by the Board of Directors, but at
not less than the fair market value. We have 6.1 million shares authorized under the Other Plans, of which 1.1 million .
options and restricted shares are outstanding, and 1.9 million shares were available for grant.

Stock Purchase Plan

We have an employee stock purchase plan (the “Purchase Plan™) that allows for the purchase of stock at 85% of fair market
value at the date of grant or the exercise date, whichever value is less. The Purchase Plan is qualified under Section 423 of
the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Stock Purchase Plan, rights to purchase shares are only granted during the second
and fourth quarter of each fiscal year. There were 11.1 million shares available for issuance as‘of March 31, 2008.

Employees purchased 2.6 million shares, 2.5 million sharés and 2.1 million shares of common stock under the Purchase
Plan in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The weighted-average price of stock purchased under the Purchase Plan
was $2.08, $1.69 and $2.40, in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. " :

.Determining Fair Value Under SFAS No. 1_23R
Stock Options |

+

We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model for estimating fair value of stock options granted under our plans
and rights to acquire stock granted under our Purchase Plan. We amortize the fair value of stock options on a ratable basis
over the requisite service periods, which are generally the vesting periods. The expected life of awards granted represents
the period of time that they are expected to be outstanding. We determine the expected life based on historical' experience
with similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules, exercise patterns and post-vesting
forfeiturcs. We estimate volatility based on the historical volatility of our common stock over the most recent period
corresponding with the estimated expected life of the ‘award. We base the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes-
Merton option valuation model on thé implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an
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equivalent remaining term equal to the expected life of the award. We have not paid any cash dividends on our common -
stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Consequently, we use an expected dividend
yield of zero, We use historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures and record share-based compensation for
those awards that are expected to vest. [n accordance with SFAS No. 123R, we adjust share-based compensation for
changes to the estimate of expected equity award forfeitures based on actual forfeiture experience. The effect of adjusting
the forfeiture rate is recognized in the period the forfeiture estimate is changed.

The weighted-average estimated fair values and the assumptlons used in calculatmg such values for stock options durmg
each fiscal period are as follows . ‘

For the year ended March 31,

. - 2008 2007 2006
Option life (in years) ‘ 38 - 4.2 3.2
Risk-free interest rate . 4.51% 4.94% 3.88%
Stock price volatility, , ) : 0.45 0.60 0.67
Dividend yield - : . : — — —
Weighted-average grant date fair valuc . $1.24 $1.13 $1.32

The above assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of options granted under the Long-Term [ncentive Plan and
Other Plans. In fiscal 2007 we also assumed options in connection with our acquisition of ADIC. The fair value of the
assumed options was calculated using a Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model with the following assumptions for
vested and unvested options assumed, respectively: expected life of 1.4 and 2.7 years, risk-free interest rate of 5.22% and
5.07%, expected volatility of 36.8% and 45.8% and no dividend yield. The portion of the estimated fair value of unvested
optlons related to future service was allocated to future share-based compensat:on and is being recognized over the -
remnaining vesting period.

Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Purchase Plan, rights to purchase shares are granted during the second and fourth quarter of each fiscal year. The
weighted-average fair values and the assumptions used in calculating fair values during each fiscal period are as follows:

For the year ended March 31,

: . . : 2008 - 2007 2006
Option life (in years) ' ' s . ) 0.50 050 °  0.50
Risk-free interest rate L B 3.93% 517% 3.99“/9
Stack price volatility =~ _ ' U 3 0.41 0.41
Dividend yield ) ) ) . — —
Weighted-average grant date fa1r value . ) .30.79 $060  $0.84
Restricted Stock

Following the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, the fair value of the majority of our restricted stock is the intrinsic value as of
the grant date. During fiscal 2007, certain restricted stock was granted with both market and service vesting conditions that,
unider SFAS No. 123R must be modeled and valued using a path-dependent valuation technique. The restricted stock with a
market and service vesting condition was valued utilizing a Monte Carle simulation model, and the stock price was
simulated using Geometric Brownian Motion, a widely accepted model of stock price behavior used in option pricing
models. The fair value of this restricted stock with a market and service vesting condition is recognized ratably over the
three and four years corresponding with the requjsite service pertods for these restricted shares.. The primary assumptions
used in the valuation models to value the restricted stock-with a market condition were as follows:

Time frame of simulation . 2 years
Risk-free interest rate ‘ 4.77%
2-year historical volatility ‘ ' , 0.43
Dividend yield L " ' =

Weighted-average grant date falr value . ¥ o025
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Share-Based Compensation Under SFAS No. 123R R : .

The following tables summarizZe share-based éompensation recorded following SFAS No. 123R (in thousand.s):

For the year ended For the year ended
' S March 31,2008, March 31, 2007
Share-based compensation expense included in operations: . .
Cost of revenue $ 1929 $ 1,191
Research and development 3,778 2,544
Sales and marketing . 3,269 1,965
General and administrative 5,022 3,272
Total share-based compensation expense S 13,998 $ 8,972
For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
Share-based compensation (by type of award): '
Stock options $ 5911 3 5,330
Stock purchase plan A ‘ ' 1,769 1,340
Restricted stock ‘ _ ) , 6318 2,302

Total share-based compensation expense ' - 8 13,998 3 8972 -

The total share-based compensation cost capitalized as part of inventory as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 was not material.
The total share-based compensation cost that would have been capitalized as part of inventory as of March 31, 2006 would
also not have been material, if we had applied the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, no tax
benefit was realized for the tax deduction from optmn exercises and other awards due to our net operatmg losses and tax
benefit carryforwards.

As of March 31, 2008, thece was $9.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options granted
under our plans. This unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0
vears, Total intrinsic value of options exercised for the year ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $5.4 million, $4.1
million and $1.7 million, respectively. We settle stock option exercises by issuing additional common shares,

As of March 31, 2008, there was $10.0 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted
stock granted under our plans. The unrecognized compensation cost for restricted stock is expected to be recognized over a
weighted- average period of 2,0 years. Total fair value of awards released during the year ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006 was $4.3 million, $0.9 million and $1.3 million, respectively, based on the fair valie of our common stock on the date
of award release. We issue additional common shares upon vesting of restricted stock units.

Pro Forma Information Under SFAS No. 123 . .

+

Prior to fiscal 2007, we accounted for our share-based compensation plans using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
APB No. 25 and related Interpretations. Only share-based compénsation relating to restricted stock was reflected in net loss
in the year ended March 31, 2006, as generally all other stock options granted-under our share-based compensation plans
had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market vatue of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Had
compensation cost for the plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under our plans -
consistent with the method of SFAS No. 123, ouf net loss and basic and diluted net loss per share would have been changed
to the pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands, except per-share data):

* 2006

Reported net loss $ (41,479
Add back employee stock option expense ' —
Share-based employee compensation determined under the fair value method for all

awards, net of tax effects . . .- (87D
Pro forma net loss $(50,196)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share $ 0.27)
As reported basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.23)
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Stock Activity
Stock Options

A summary of activity relating to all of our stock option plans is as follows (options and intrinsic value in thousands):

Outstanding as of March 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Forfeited
Outstanding as of March 31, 2006~
Granted and assumed
" Exercised
Expired
Forfeited
Outstanding as of March 31, 2007
Granted
Exercised -
Expired
Forfeited
QOutstanding as of March 31, 2008

Vested and expected to vest at March 31, 2008

Exercisable as of March 31, 2008

Weighted-
Weighted- " Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Contractual Term Intrinsic Value
31,432 $ 5.52
6,645 2.51 ‘
(3,141) 2.10
(5,619 7.60 '
(1,549) 3.29
27,768 4.90
20,269 1.73
- (4,854) 1.48
(1,096) 2.96
(5,828) 5.14
36,259 3.62
4,985 3.15
(5,847} 2,21
(283) 11.42
(6,947) 5.54
28,167 % 3.27 426§ 4,097
26751 $ 331 423§ . 3952
17,956 8 3.70- ' 396 S 2,640

Included in stock options granted and assumed in ﬁscal 2007 were 14.7 million stock options assumed in connectlon with
our acquisition of ADIC during the second quarter of fiscal 2007. The following table summarizes information about
options outstanding and excrcisable as of March 31, 2008 (options in thousands):

Range of Exercise Prices

Options
- Outstanding ,

$ 0.88 - $ 1.33
£ 1.39 .- $ 201
$ 2.05 - $ 3.0t
$ 3.02 $ 454
$ 455 $ 6.82
3 685 $10.24
§10.37 $1537
$15.75 $20.30

426
5,861
12.453
6,574
804
1,204
584
261

28,167

Weighted-
Weighted- Average /,
Average Remaining
Exercise . Contractual Life " - Options -
Price - (Years) . Exercisable
$ 097 4.80 371
1.53 4.04 3,762 -
2.56 3.93 8,152
3.44 567 2,818
6.65 3.73 804
. 9.26 . 265 1,204
12.18 262 . . 584
17.81 0.67 261
$ 327 4.26

C 17,956

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

5 0.94
1.57

C 263
3.71
6.65
9.26
12,18
17.81

$ 370

Expiration dates ranged from April 2008 to August 2015 for options outstanding at March 31; 2008. Prices for options
exercised during the three-year period ended March 31, 2008, ranged from $0.03 to $3.44.
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Restricted Stock

A summary of activity relating to our restricted stock follows (shares in thousands):

Weighted-
. ‘ Average
B . Grant Date Fair
. . ) . Shares Value

Nonvested as of March 31, 2005 - 4859 5 2.78
Granted 563 2.83
Vested (447) 2.74
Forfeited ' (4,186) 2.78
Nonvested as of March 31, 2006 ) 789 2.82
Granted 3,811 1.59
Vested (373) 2.81
Forfeited ’ . (513) 1.83
Nonvested at March 31, 2007 3,714 1.69
Granted 3,471 3.01
Vested (1,355) 2.28
Forfeited \ (922) 1.61
Nonvested at March 31, 2008 : 4,908 $ 2.48

Note §: Acquisitions

Acquisitions are recorded using the purchase method of accounting and the results of operations are included in our
consolidated results as of the date of each acquisition. We allocate the purchase price of our acquisitions to the tangible
assets, liabilities, and intangible assets acquired, including in-process research and development (“IPR&D”), based on their
estimated fair values. The excess purchase price over those fair values is recorded as goodwill. The excess fair values over
the purchase price is allocated as a pro-rata reduction of the amounts that otherwise would have been assigned to all of the
acquired assets except (a) financial assets other than investments accounted for by the equity method, (b) assets to be
disposed of by sale, (c) deferred tax assets, (d) prepaid assets relating to pension or other postretirement benefit plans and
(e) any other current assets,

Advanced Digital Information Corporation

On August 22, 2006 (the “Acquisition Date”}, we completed our acquisition of ADIC, a publicly traded provider of storage
solutions for the open systems marketplace, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger
Agreement”), dated May 2, 2006. ADIC’s results of operations are included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows from the Acquisition Date. We acquired ADIC to expand our global sales force, market access and product
offerings into the enterprise and data management software space. :

The total purchase price for ADIC'is comprised of (in thousands, except share and per-share data):

Acquisition of 63.4 million shares of outstanding commeon stock of ADIC at $12.25 per share:

In cash (62.9 million shares) " $770,612
In exchange for Quantum stock (0.5 million ADIC shares converted to 1.9 mitlion Quantum shares) 4,070
Fair value of ADIC stock options assumed 10,471
Acquisition related transaction costs 7,791

Total purchase price ‘ $792,944

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, each outstanding share of ADIC common stock was converted into the right to receive
either (a) $12.25 in cash or (b) a number of shares of Quantum common stock equal to the number of ADIC shares of
common stock multiplied by 3.461, with ADIC stockholders given the choice to elect to receive cash, stock or a
combination of the two. '
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As of August 22, 2006, ADIC had approximately 2.5 million stock options outstanding. Based on the exchange ratio of .
5.9756 calculated in accordance with the formula in the Merger Agreement, we assumed the outstanding options of ADIC,
which are exercisable for an aggregate of 14.7 million shares of Quantum common stock. The fair value of options assumed
was calculated using a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model with the following assumptions for vested.and unvested
options assumed, respectively: expected life of 1.4 to 2.7 years, risk-free interest rate of 5.22% and 5.07%, expected | -,
volatility of 36.8% to 45.8% and no dividend vield. The pomon of the estimated fair value of unvested ADIC optlons
related to future service is being recognized over the remaining vesting period.

The total purchase price was allocated to ADIC’s net tangible and identifiable intangible assets based on their estimated fair
values as set forth below. The excess of the purchase price over the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets was
recorded as goodwill, The estimates and assumptions undetlying the fair values below are subject to change with regard to
completion of the ADIC integration plan and finalizing restructuring costs (in thousands):

Current assets - % 390,262
Property and equipment 29,758
Service parts for maintenance 16,067
Long-term assets ‘ 7 ' 2,349
Intangible assets 190,278
Goodwill 343,598
Current liabilities * (156,183)
Long-term liabilities . . « {37,885)
In-process research and development 14,700
Total purchase price $ 792,944

’

* Current liabilities include approximately $13.6 million of a restructuring liability related to the acquisition. The
restructuring liability is primarily related to the severance benefits for pre-merger ADIC employees at the time of the
acquisition.

Goodwill related to the ADIC acquisition has increased a net $5.4 million from our original preliminary purchase price

allocation. Goodwill increased due to a decrease of $6.7 million in the estimated fair value of certain IT assets, $2.1 million

due to a changed estimate of deferred tax liabilities associated with Australian taxes and $0.6 million related to a net change
in the estimate of amounts to be paid to certain vendors and service providers. This was partially offset by a $2.2 million
net decrease in the estimate of severance benefits paid to certain pre-merger ADIC employees, $1.0 million due to
settlement of a German tax contingency and $0.8 million of other items.

In performing our purchase price allocation, we considered, among other factors, our intention for future use of acquired
assets, analyses of historical financial performance and estimates of future performance of ADIC’s products. The fair value
of intangible assets was based, in part, on a valuation using a discounted cash flow approach and other valuation techniques
as well as estimates and assumptions provided by management. The following table sets forth the components of intangible
assets associated with the acquisition and the weighted-average amortization period (fair value in thousands):

Amertization

. Fair \f'alm.: (Years)
Purchased technology $ 92,493 4.7
Customer lists 92,600 7.1
Trademarks 4,700 . 58
Non-compete agreements 485 5.0

Total intangible assets acquired $190,278 5.9

Purchased technology, which comprises products that have reached technological feasibility, includes-products in most of
ADIC’s product lines, principally the ADIC Scalar i2000 and Scalar 1500 libraries and StorNext data management software.
It also includes a combination of ADIC processes, patents and trade secrets related to the design and development of
ADIC’s products. This proprietary know-how can be leveraged to develop new technology and improve our products.
Customer lists represent the underlying relationships and agreements with ADIC’s installed customer base.

We expensed IPR&D upon acquisition as it represented incomplete ADIC research and development projects that had not
reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use as of the Acquisition Date.
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Technological feasibility is established when an enterprise has completed all planning, designing, coding and testing
activities that are necessary to establish that a product can be produced to meet its design specifications including functions,
features and technical performance requirements. The value assigned to [PR&D of $14.7 million was determined by
considering the importance of each project to our overall development plan, estimating costs to develop the purchased
IPR&D into commercially viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from the projects when completed and
discounting the net cash flows using a discount rate of 18% to their present value based on the percentage of completion of
the IPR&D projects. Purchased IPR&D relates to projects associated with the ADIC Scalar 12000 and Scalar 1500 products
that had not yet reached technological feasibility as of the Acquisition Date and have no alternative future use.

Certance Holdings

On January 5, 2005, we acquired all of the shares of Certance Holdings and its subsidiaries (“Certance™), a privately held
supplier of tape backup drives and data protection solutions, for $60 million in cash paid to the Certance shareholders plus
$2.5 miltion for the direct costs of the acquisition. Under the terms of the acquisition, the total consideration of $60 million
payable by us upon acquisition was paid as of March 31, 2006,

With the acquisition, we offer end-users a broad range of tape technology choices for meeting their individual backup,
recovery and archive needs. The acquisition also enhanced our tape drive and media business by expanding our product and
intellectual property portfolio, broadening our end-user customer base and further strengthening our revenue and cash
generating foundation.

The purchase price at the time of the acquisition was allocated based on the estimated fair value of net tangible and
intangible assets acquired, and liabilities assumed, to the following assets and liabilities {in thousands}):

Current assets $ 69,311
Property and equipment 4,248
Long-term assets 2,261
Intangibles ' ’ 25,070
Current liabilities * : (36,605)
Long-term liabilities (1,980)

Total purchase price : ' $ 62,305

* Current liabilities included approximately $3.7 million of a restructuring liability related to the acquisition as of
March 31, 2005. The restructuring liability related to the severance benefits for pre-merger Certance employees at the
time Ofthe acquisition and the facﬂlty charges for certain vacant facilities in the United Kingdom. There was no
remaining restructuring liability related to Certance as of March 31, 2007 or 2008.

Note 6: Sale of Malaysia Subsidiary

On July 1,.2007 we sold a Malaysia subsidiary to a third party contract manufacturer (“the Purchaser”) for approximately
$8.3 million in cash. We effectively sold the assets of our Malaysian manufacturing operation, including the facility,
inventory and other assets, and the Purchaser assumed certain liabilities in the sale. There was no gain or loss from this sale,
We received net proceeds of $2.2 million, net of cash sold. In connection with the sale agreement, a workforce of
approximately 600 employees empioyed by us at June 30, 2007 transferred their employment to the Purchaser on July 1,
2007. The value of asscts sold to and liabilities assumed by the Purchaser on July I, 2007 was as follows (in thousands):

Amount
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 6,140
Inventories 7.031
Property and equipment, net 5,111
Other assets 422
Accounts payable {8,305)
Other accrued liabilities - (2,083)

s 8316
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Note 7: Cash, Marketable Securities and Other Investments .. - . . R

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities ‘ . . L

The foltowing is a summary of our cash,.cash equivalents and marketable securities (in thousands):

- . As of March 31,

v o 2008 007

Cash : _ ' ' $24.428 $ 39,467
Certificates of deposit . } 9,230 T =
Money market funds : 59,985 20,459
Auction rate securities - . — 35,000

) - §$93,643 $94926.
Included in cash and cash equivalents o $93,643 $59,926
Included in marketable securities ‘ — 35,000

$93,643 39492

A substantial portion of cash was invested in overnight interest-bearing accounts as éf March 31, 2008. There were no-+ -
marketable securities as of March 31, 2008. As of March 31, 2007, all auction rate securities were classified as available for
sale. During fiscal 2008 and 2007, sales of marketable securities resulted in no realized gains or losses.

Other Investments

Other investments constst of private technology venture limited partnerships and privately held technology companies that
are recorded in other long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, At March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2007, we
held $2.1 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of investments in private technology venture limited partnerships that are
accounted for under the eqiity method. We recorded a $0.4 million and a $0.2 million net gain for the twelve months ended
March 31,2008 and 2007, respectively, related to our investments in private technology venture limited partnerships. These
gains were primarily based on the general partners estimates of the fair value of non-marketable securities held by the
partnerships and, to a lesser extent, realized gains and losses from the partnerships’ disposal of securities. We did nof have
investments in private technology venture limited partnerships in fiscal 2006.

At March 31, 2008, we did not hold any investments in privately held technology companies compared to $3.5 million as of
March 31, 2007. During fiscal 2008, we recognized a net gain of $2.1 million from the sale of shares in a privately held
technology company that completed an initial public offering during June 2007. Additionatly, during fiscal 2008, we -
recognized a net $0.3 million loss due to an other-than-temporary impairment of an investment in a privately held
technology company that had been accounted for under the cost method., In fiscal 2007 we realized $0.4 million in net

. gains related to other investments.

Gains and losses realized from these investments are included in interest and other income, net on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 gross realized gains and losses From other mvestments were
as follows (in thousands): : oo .o

- Gross Realized Gross Realized . Net .

. Gains Losses Gains
2008 : . : ' , $ 299 . $ . (706) . $2.284
2007 B 617 C— ; 617
2006 . ‘ _ —
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. Note 8: Inventories, Property and Equipment and Service Parts for Maintenance. '~ .. .

Inventories consisted of (in thousands):

' o "' AsofMarch3l,
) 2008 2007
Materials and purchased parts $ 28,499 $ 45,011
Work in process . : ' 3,256 7,234

Finished goods ' 44,240 38,908
' $ 75,995 $ 91,153

Property and equipment consisted of (in thousands):

As of March 31,

o - 2008 2007
Machinery and equipment $ 170,071 $ 167,564
Furniture and fixtures 8,687 9,208
Buildings and leasehold :mprovements S ‘ b 23,103 24,276

' | R ~ 5 201,861 $ 201,048
Less: accumulated dépreciation ' (162,590) (150,807)

$ 39271 $ 50,241

L

Service parts for maintenance-consisted of (in thousands): :
, A )

. . " As of March 31;
Yy o o ; v ' 2008 2007

Service parts for maintenance ' ’ ' ' 5 12'3,492 $ 114,016
Less: accumulated amortization I . o (46,281) (31,655)

5 77,211 $ 82361

-

- . -

Sale of Ireland Facility

In May 2006, we completed the sale of ‘our facility in Dundalk, Ireland, where we performed service ‘operations for several
products. We sdld the facility for $6.0 miillion, and the total gain on this asset held for sale was approximately $3.2 million *
which was recorded during fiscal 2007 in interest income and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

LI 1] . i

Asset Retlrement Obll,tzatmns

We have asset retirement obhgat]ons related to certain leased facilities where we have contractual commitments to remove
leasehold improvements in certain cases and return the property to a specified condition when the lease terminates. At
March 31, 2008 and 2007, the estimated value of these obligations was $2.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively, and is
classified in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. At March 31, 2008,
the net book value of the asset rélated to our asset retirement obligations approximated $0.8 million. The accretion
associated with our asset retirement obligations for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $1.1 million, $0.3
million, and $0.5 million respectively.

¥
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Note 9: Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Net goodwill and intangible assets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 represented approximately 51% and 52% of total assets,
respectively. The goodwill and intangible asset balances, net of amortization, as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 were $540.7
million and $588.6 million, respectively.

Acquired intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which generally range from one to cight years. In
estimating the useful lives of intangible assets, we considered the following factors:

. The cash flow projections used to estimate the useful lives of the intangible assets showed a frend of growth
that was expected to continue for an extended period of time;

. QOur tape automation products and our disk-based backup products, in particular, have long development cycles;
these products and our seftware products have experienced long product life cycles; and

. Our ability to leverage core technology into backup, recovery and archive solutions and, therefore, to extend
the lives of these technologies.

Following is the weighted average amortization period for our intangible assets:

Amortization

{Years)
Purchased technology 6.2 :
Trademarks ] ' 1.5
Non-compete agreements 5.0 |
Customer lists ' : 7.0 '
All intangible assets y : 6.6

Intangible amortization within our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006 follows (in thousands):

For the year ended March 31,

: 2008 2007 ©T2006
Purchased technology L o ' C $31,857  $27,712  $17,388
Trademarks © 3457 0 3,347 3,007
Non-compete agreements ' 100 " 63 —

Customer lists . ' 13,297 10,870 1,283
' $48.711 '$41992  $21,678

The following tables provide a summary of the carrying amount of intangible assets that will continue to be amortized (in
thousands): : ’

As of March 31, 2008 As of March 31, 2067

Gross Accumulated Net | Gross Accumulated Net

Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Purchased technology $188,619 $ (113,952) § 74,667 $189,119 $  (82,595) $106,524
Trademarks 27,260 (22,678) 4,582 27,260 (19,221) 8,039
Non-compete agreements 500 (168) 3132 - 2,000 (1,568) 432
Customer lists 108,218 (37,909) 70,309 108,272 {24,666) 83,606

$324,597 S (174,707) $149.890  $326,651 $ (128,050) $198,601

In fiscal 2008 we wrote off $1.5 million of non-compete agreements and $0.1 million of customer lists intangibles and their
associated accumulated amortization because these intangibles had no future value. These intangibles were related to
business acquisitions completed several years ago. These intangibles were fully amortized and their write off did not impact
our results of operations. Also during fiscal 2008, the purchased technology intangibles related to a software intangible
purchased in fiscal 2007 intended to be used in future product development was determined to have no future value to our
planned future operations. We accelerated $0.3 million of amortization to bring the net book value to zero and subsequently
wrote off $0.5 million of purchased technology intangible and accumulated amortization in fiscal 2008.
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The total expected future amortization related to intangible assets is provided in the table below (in thousands):

Amortization

Fiscal 2009 ' o S 40,203

Fiscal 2010 36,113
Fiscal 2011 : . 28,679
Fiscal 2012 ‘ o . 20,498
Fiscal 2013 , 12,904
Fiscal 2014 and thereafter , . S 11,493
Total as of March 31, 2008 . - $ 149,890

Note 10; Accrued Warranty and Indemnifications

Accrued Warranty
The following table details the change in the accrued warranty balance (in thousands):

For the year ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Balance as of April 1 $ 30,669 § 32422

Warranties assumed from ADIC —_ 6,945

Additional warranties issued 27,307 21,937

Adjustments for warranties issued in prior fiscal years (1,441) 1,271

Settlements (36,673) (31,906)
Balance as of March 31 ' ' $ 19,862 $ 30,669

We generally warrant our products against defects from three to 36 months. A provision for estimated future costs and
estimated returns for credit relating to warranty is recorded when products are shipped and revenue recognized. Our
estimate of future costs to satisfy warranty obligations is primarily based on historical trends and, if believed to be
significantly different from historical trends, estimates of future failure rates and future costs of repair including materials
consumed in the repair, labor and overhead amounts necessary to perform the repair.

If future actual failure rates differ from our estimates, we record the impact in subsequent periods. If future actual costs to
repair were to differ significantly from our estimates, we would record the impact of these unforeseen cost differences in
subsequent periods. : )

Indemnifications

We have certain financial guarantees, both express and implied, related to product liability and potential infringement of
intellectual property. Other than certain product liabilities recorded as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, we did not record a
liability associated-with these guarantees, as we have little or no history of costs associated with such indemnification
requirements. Contingent liabilities associated with product liability may be mitigated by insurance coverage that we
maintain. '

In the normal course of business to facilitate transactions of our services and products, we indemnify centain parties with
respect to certain matters. We have agreed to hold certain parties harmless against losses arising from a breach of
representations or covenants, or out of intellectual property infringement or other claims made against certain parties. These
agreements may fimit the time within which an indemnification claim can be made and the amount of the claim. In
addition, we have entered into indemnification agreements with our officers and directors, and our bylaws contain similar
indemnification obligations to our agents.

It is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the limited
history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement.
Historically, payments made by us under these agreements have not had a material impact on our operating results,
financial position or cash flows.
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Note 11: Convertible Subordinated Debt and Long-Term Debt
Our debt includes the following (in thousands):

As of March 31,

: 2008 '. 2007
Convertible subordinated debt $ 160,000 $ 160,000
Revolving credit facility — 25,000
Term loans 340,000 337,500

$ 500,000 §522,500

Weighted-average interest rate for the year ended March 31 7.77% 8.11%

Convertible Subordinated Debt

On July 30, 2003, we issued 4.375% convertible subordinated notes in the aggregate principal amount of $160 million in a
private placement transaction. The notes are unsecured obligations subordinated in right of payment to all of our existing
and future senior indebtedness. The notes mature on August 1, 2010 and are convertible at the option of the holders at any
time prior to maturity into an aggregate of 36.8 million shares of Quantum common stock at a conversion price of $4.35 per
share. We cannot redeemn the notes prior to August 5, 2008. :

Long-Term Deb

To fund the acquisition of ADIC in August 2006, we entered into a secured senior credit facility (“August 2006 credit
facility™) with a group of lenders that provided a $150 million revolving ¢redit line, a $225 million term loan and a $125
million second lien term loan with'maturity dates of August 22,2009 August 22,2012 and August 22, 2013, respectively.

On July 12, 2007, we refinanced our August 2006 credit-facility by entering into another senior secured crédit agreement

“current credit agreement”) with a different group of lenders, providing a $50 million revolving credit fac1llty and a $400
million term loan. We borrowed $400 million on the term loan to repay all borrowings under our August 2006 credit
facility. ' We incurred and capitalized $8.1 million of loan fees related to this current credit agreement which are included in
other long-term assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheet. These fees are being amortized to interest expense over the
respective loan terms. In conjunction with the repayment of our August 2006 credit facility, the unamortized debt costs of
$8.1 million related to that borrowing were written off to interest expense in the second quarter of fiscat 2008 and are
included as a component of amortization in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. Additionally, we incurred S4 5
mllhon in prepayment fees when we repaid our August 2006 credit facility.

Under the current credit agreement, the $400 'million term loan'matures on July 12, 2014, but is subject to accelerated
maturity on February 1, 2010 if we do not repay, refinance to extend the maturity date, or convert into equity the existing
$160 million convemble subordinated debt prior to February 1, 2010. Interest accrues on the term loan at our option based
on either, a primg rate plus a margin of 2. 5% or a three month LIBOR rate plus a margin of 3.5%. The interest rate on the
term loan was 6.2% at March 31, 2008. Commencmg September 30, 2007, we began to make required quarterly pnnelpal
payments of $1.0 million on the term loan and we will make a final payment of all outstanding principal and interest at
maturity. The term loan may be prepaid at any time, subject to an additional payment of 1.0% of the principal amount being
prepaid for any prepayment made before July 12, 2008. In addition, on an annual basis commencing with our fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008, we are required to perform a calculation of excess cash flow which may require an additional
payment of the principal amount. The fiscal 2008 calculation of excess cash flow-did not require additional principal
payments. During fiscal 2008, we made principal payments of $60 million on the term loan and incurred $0.6 million in
prepayment fees. o "

Under the current credit agreement we have the ability to.borrow up to $50 million under a senior secured revolving credit
facility which expires July 12, 2612. We currently have letters of credit totaling $2.3 million, reducing the available
borrowings on the revolver to $47.7 million. Interest accrues on the revolvmg credit facility at our option based on either, a
prime rate plus a margin of 2.5%, or a three month LIBOR rate plus a margin of 3.5%. Annually, we are required to pay a
0.5% commitment fee on undrawn amounts under the revalving credit facility,

The revolving credit facility and term loan are secured by a blanket lien on all of our assets and contain certain financial
and reporting covenants which we are required to satisfy as a condition of the credit line and term loan including a
limitation on issuing dividends. As of March 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the debt covenants. We did not borrow
on the revolving credit facility in fiscal 2008. Our outstanding term debt was $3440 million at March 31, 2008.
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Debt Maturities

A summary of the maturities for our convertible subordinated debt and outstanding term loan follows (in thousands):

Fiscal 2009 $ 4,000

TFiscal 2010 4,000
Fiscal 2011 164,000
Fiscal 2012 . 4,000
Fiscal 2013 4,000
Fiscal 2014 and thereafter : : 320,000

Total as of March 31, 2008 ' - © 7 $500,000

Note 12: Derivatives

Since the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we have had an interest rate collar instrument with 4 financial institution that fixes the
interest rate on $87.5 million of our variable rate term loan between a'three month LIBOR rate floor of 4.64% and a cap of
5.49% through December 2008. Whenever the three month LIBOR rate is greater than the cap, we receive from the
financial institution' the difference between 5.49% and the current three month LIBOR rate on the notional amount.
Conversely, whenever the three.month LIBOR rate is tower than the'floor, we remit to the financial institution the
difference between 4.64% and the current three month LIBOR rate on the notional amount. During the fiscal 2008, the
three month LIBOR rate was within the floor and cap.

Under the terms of the current credit agréement, we are required to hedge floating interest rate exposure on 50% of our
funded debt balance beginning December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2009. During the third quarter of fiscal 2008, we
entered into a separate interest rate collar instrument effective as of December 31, 2007 with another financial institution
that fixes the interest rate on an additional $12.5 mitlion of our variable rate term loan between a three month LIBOR rate
floor of 2.68% and a cap of 5. 25% through December 2008 and fixes the interest rate on $100 million of our variable rate
term loan between the same floor and cap from December 31, 2008 through December 2009. Whenever the three month
LIBOR rate is greater than the cap, we receive from the financial institution the difference between 5.25% and the current
three month LIBOR rate on the notional amount. Conversely, whenever the three month LIBOR rate is lower than the floor,
we remit to the financial institution the difference between 2.68% and the current three month LIBOR rate on the notional -
amount. The three month LIBOR was within the floor and cap from inception through March 31, 2008.

Our interest rate collars did not meet all of the criteria necessary for hedge accounting prescribed by SFAS No. 133. We
record the change in fair market value in other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and in interest income and other, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of March 31, 2008 and 2007,
the cumulative loss on the interest rate collars was $2.2 miltion and $0.1 million, respcclwely :

We do not engage in hedging activity for speculative or trading purposes. We did not utilize foreign currency forward
exchange contracts in fiscal 2008, 2007 or 2006 and there were no foreign currency forward contracts outstanding as of
March 31, 2008, 2007 or 2006.

Note 13: Restructurmg Charge

In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we took steps to reduce costs.in an effort to return to proﬁtablhty and rationalize our
operations following acquisitions. During fiscal 2007, management approved and began executing plans to restructure
certain operations of Quantum and pre-merger ADIC to eliminate redundant costs resulting from the acquisition of ADIC,
implement strategic roadmap decisions and improve efficiencies in operations. The restructuring charges that resulted from
these cost reduction efforts relate to the outsourcing of certain manufacturing, repair and service operations, consolidation
of our operations and partnering with a third party on certain research and development efforts. Substantiatly all
restructurmg, efforts related to the ADIC and Certancc acquisitions have been completed as of March 31, 2008.
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The following tables show the type of restructuring expense (reversal) for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):

For the year ended March 31,

2008 2007 2006
By expense type T 7 ' ‘ c
Severance and benefits $5,778 $11,150 $15,259
Facilities 2,957 {1,701) 2,359
Fixed assets , . 568 1,220~ —
Othér ’ ' 416 2,130 512
Total . T 89,719 $12,808  $18,630
By cost reduction actions
Outsource certain manufacturing, repair and service functions : " — $ 2,561 $ 9,027
Consolidate operations supporting our business : . ©4,155 - 10,247 - 9,603
Partner with third party on certain research and development efforts ) 5,564 — C—
Total | $9,719 . $12.808  $18,630

Fiscal 2008

During fiscal 2008, our restructuring severance and benefits resulted in a net expense of $5.8 million primarily due to our
decision to partner with a third party on certain research and development efforts and to a lesser extent actions to improve
efficiencies in operations. The net restructuring expense was offset in part by reversals, primarily due to severance and
benefits costs for employees whose positions were retained in a variety of functions throughout the world. We expect the
remaining accrued severance and benefit restructuring charges to be paid to the impacted employees during fiscal 2009.

We continued activitigs to consolidate our operations into fewer locations during fiscal 2008, Qur facility restructuring
charges were the result of consolidation actions in Boutder, Colorade and consolidating our European locations and service
operations as well as early termination fees on telephone and data services. We also recorded $0.6 million in‘fixed asset
write-offs in fiscal 2008 related to disposal of fixed assets due to consolidating operations within our European locations.
Other restructuring charges were generally moving costs to consolidate inventory into fewer locations.

In addition to the restructuring charges incutred in fiscal 2008, we had $0.5 million in net reversals related to restructurmg
costs associated with exiting activities of pre-merger ADIC in the first quarter of fiscal 2008, These reversals were
primarily due to severance and benefits costs for employees whose positions were retained in a variety of functions
throughout the wortd. These reversals were recognized in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 as a reduction of the liability
assumed in the purchase business combination that had been included in the allocation of the cost to acquire ADIC and,
accordingly, resulted in a decrease to goodwill rather than an expensc reduction.

Fiscal 2007

We recorded expenses of $11.2 million for severance and benefits associated with eliminating redundancies and
streamlining operations identified in all areas of our business during the year ended March 31, 2007 resulting from our
evaluation and integration of ADIC and the strategic direction of our business. Approximately 23% of our severance and
benefits restructuring charges were related to outsourcing certain manufacturing, repair and service functions, the largest of
which was due to closing our Scotland operation. Substantially all severance and benefits restructuring charges were paid to
the impacted employees during fiscal 2007 and 2008.

The $1.7 million facilities reversal resulted from the decision to use a previously vacated Colorado facnhty in Wthh to
consolidate our U.S. manufacturing, repair and service operations. We incurred a $1 2 miilion charge related to ]
noncancellable purchase commitments related to research and development projects that were cancelled as we implemented
strategic roadmap decisions. In addition to the research and development costs, we had $0.9 million of noncancellabie
purchase commitments for inventory related to planned future generation products that will not be produced We also had
$1.2 million in fixed asset write-ofTs for tooling and related CIP assets 1mpacted by implementation of our strategic
roadmap decisions.
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In addition to the restructuring expenses in fiscal 2007, the net restructuring costs associated with exiting activities of pre-
merger ADIC were $14.1 million, consisting primarily of severance and benefits costs for employees in a variety of
functions throughout the world and, to a lesser extent, excess facilities obligations in the U.S. These costs were recognized
as a liability assumed in the purchase business combination and were included in the allocation of the cost to acquire ADIC
and, accordingly, resulted in an increase to goodwilt rather than an expense in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2006

In fiscal 2006, a total of $9.0 million in charges were recorded as severance as a result of the closing of the site in Dunda]k,
Ireland, and the outsourcing of repair operations in the European region. We classified $0.5 million of the charges
associated with this closure as a component of cost of revenue during fiscal 2006. This closure was completed during fiscal
2007,

A charge of $6.7 million was recorded as severance as part of the continuing effort to streamline our I'T, product
development and marketing processes following product platform transitions and consolidation of the marketing function.
In addition, a charge of $2.9 miliion was also recorded for our facility in Colorado Springs, Colorado to reflect changes in
lease assumptions as a result of the completion of the sale-leaseback transaction. This facility was subsequently used for
operations and some of these charges were reversed in fiscal 2007,

The following tables show the activity and the estimated timing of future payouts for accrued restructuring (in thousands):

Severance and Fixed '
benefits Facilities Assets Other Total
Balance as of March 31, 2005 $ 3,656 $4048 § — §F — $ 7,704
Restructuring costs 15,704 3,013 _ 512 . 19,229
Cash payments : (8,736) (3.895) - —_— — (12,631)
Non-cash charges and other (151) (21) — (512) (684)
Restructuring charge reversal (427 (172) — — (599)
Balance as of March 31, 2006 10,046 2,973 — — 13,019
Restructuring costs 29,243 {98 1,232 2,130 33,503
Cash payments (23,759) (1,378) — (292) (25,429)
Non-cash charges and other 150 — (1,232) 8%  (1,170)
Restructuring charge reversal (4,933) (1,701) — — (6,634)
Balance as of March 31, 2007 | 10,747 792 — 1,750 13,289
Restructuring costs 9,110 3,368 568 562 13,608
Cash payments (15,619) (1,023) — (755) (17,397)
Non-cash charges and other 99 6 (568) (812) (1,275)
Restructuring charge reversal {3.834) (411) — (146) {4,391)
Balance as of March 31, 2008 5 503 52,732 5§ — $ 599 § 3,834
Estimated timing of future payouts:
Fiscal 2009 3 503 5 1,684 $ — $ 599 § 2,786
Fiscal 2010 to 2013 — 1,048 — — 1,048
' $ 503 $2732 0§ — % 599 § 3834

The $3.8 million restructuring accrual as of March 31, 2008 is comprised of obligations for severance and benefits and
vacant facilities in addition to noncancellable purchase obligations. The severance and benefits charges will be paid during
fiscal 2009. The facilities charges relating to vacant facilities in Europe and the U.S. will be paid over their respective lease
terfns, which continue through fiscal 2013. Other restructuring accruals relate to contractual termination fecs and are

expected to be paid 'in fiscal 2009,

’

Additional charges may be incurred in the future related to these restructurings, particularly if the actual costs associated

with restructured activities are higher than estimated.
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Note 14: Patent Cross-License Agreement

During fiscal 2007, we recorded a $3.3 miilion license fee as royalty revenue relating to a patent cross-license agreement
with Data Domain, a privately held company at the time. The cross-license agreement provides each party a license to the
other’s patents covering data de-duplication and certain other non-tape data storage technologies. Under the terms of our
agreement, Data Domain paid the license fee with shares of its common stock. In fiscal 2008, we sold these shares of
common stock in Data Domain’s initial public offering and recognized a gain of $2.1 million from the sale.

Note 15: Stockholder Rights Agreement, Common Stock and Common Stock Repurchases

We have a stockholder rights agreement {the “Rights Agreement™) that provides existing stockholders with the right to
purchase preferred stock in the event of certain changes in our ownership. Specifically, existing stockholders will have the
right to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock for each share of commeon
stock held, or, under certain circumstances, shares of common stock with a market value twice the exercise price of such
right. The purchase price in either case is determined by the Board of Directors, subject to adjustment.

On October 28, 2002, we amended our Rights Agreement to allow Private Capital Management to acquire up to 25% of our
outstanding common stock without triggering the issuance of the preferred shares in exchange for its entering into a
Stockholder Agrcement with us that places certain restrictions on Private Capital Management with respect to its ownership
and control of its shares of our common stock. The effect of both amendments to the Rights Agreement on holders of our
common stock is that it is less likely that the preferred shares under the Rights Agreement will be issued to the holders of
our common stock.

On November 1, 2006, we amended our Rights Agreement in a second amendment such that the beneficial ownership by
any person or entity of up to 25% of our common stock (including ownership of convertible notes or other securities
convertible into our commen stock) will not trigger a distribution pursuant to the Rights Agreement, provided that such
person or entity beneficially owns no more than 20% of our outstanding common stock (including ownership of securities
convertible into our common stock, but excluding ownership of notes convertible into our common stock).

Subject to certain exceptions, including the first amendment discussed above with respect to Private Capital Managerment,
these rights may be exercised the tenth day after any person or group becomes the beneficial owner (or makes an offer that
would result in such beneficial ownership) of 20% or more of the outstanding common stock. If such change in beneficial
ownership is combined with a merger of Quantum or a sale of more than 50% of our assets, then the existing stockholders
have the right to purchase, for the exercise price, a number of shares of common stock in the surviving entity having a
market value of twice the exercise price of such right. The Rights Agreement may serve as a deterrent to takeover tactics
that are not in the best interests of stockholders. There are 1,000,000 preferred shares reserved for issuance under the Rights
Agreement.

During fiscal 2000, the Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to $700 million of our common stock in open
market or private transactions. As of March 31, 2008 and 2007, there was approximately $87.9 million remaining on our
authorization to repurchase Quantum common stock. Our ability to repurchase our common stock is restricted under our
credit facility covenants. '

Note 16: 401K Plan

Substantially all of the U.S. employees are eligible to make contributions to our 401(k) savings and investment plan. We
match a percentage of our employees’ contributions and may also make additional discretionary contributions to the plan.
Employer contributions were $3.3 million, $3.2 million and $2.1 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Note 17: Income.Taxes .

Income'tax provision (benefit) consists of the following (in thousands):

As of March 31,
2008 2007 2006
Federal: . ‘
Current ' , ‘$ 150 $(765) § —
Defetred : . — . —
' 150 (765) —
State: _ . o
Current . 699 626 464
Deferred — — —
699 . 626 464
Foreign: ' ) ' .
Current : {1,191 4,071 1,005
Deferred _ ' S (140) 1,006 (71)
(1,331) 5,077 934

Income tax provision (benefit) _ § (482) 34,938 $1,398

The income tax provision {benefit) from continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the federal
statutory rate of 35% to loss before income taxes as follows (in thousands):

As of March 31,

R 2008 007 - 2006
Benefit at federal statutory rate : . . $(21,251)  $(20,704)  $(13,909)
State taxes : : ' : 641 - 626 464
Unbenefited losses and credits ' ‘ 21,836 25,425 15,118
Net release of contingent tax reserves (1,558) - —
Taxes on'dividend repatriation — (765) —
Other (150) 356 (275)

§ (482) $ 4938 § 1,398

-

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
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Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

As of March 31,
. 2008 2007

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation methods o $ 19,093 $ 18,989
Accrued warranty expense ' . v 8,044 12,322
Distribution reserves ‘ _ o 5,442 5,743
Loss carryforwards ) 53,851 55,103
Foreign tax and research and development credit carryforwards . . . 242,470 223,792
Restructuring charge accruals 1,416 4271
Other accruals and reserves not currently deductible for tax purposes 30,735 25,782
Depreciation and amortization methods 29,486 34,128

S ' 390,537 380,130
Less valuation allowance o L Co o 278,290) (263,437)
Deferred tax asset ) . $ 112,247 . § 116,693
Deferred tax liabilities: ' ' ‘ L S
Acquired intangibles ) : ’ $ (59,006) $ (75,402)
Tax on unremitted foreign earnings (19,673) (25,492)
Other : . ) . : , (35,148) (15,413)
Deferred tax Hability : - : ' $(113,827) $(116,307)
Net deferred tax asset(liability) ‘ ' $ (L,580) $ 386

Pretax loss from foreign operations was $11:9 million for fiscal 2008 compared to pretax income of $17.1 million and
$10.2 million i in fiscal 2007 and 2006 respectively.

As a result of our implementation of FIN No. 48, we recognized a $1.2 million decrease to the April 1, 2007 accumulated
deficit balance due to adjustments for certain unrecognized tax benefits. At April 1, 2007, we had approximately $26.0
million in total unrecognized tax benefits, $12.4 million of which was accounted for as a reduction to the April 1, 2007 net -
deferred tax asset and valuation allowance balances. We have historically classified uarecognized tax benefits in current
income taxes payable. As a resuit of adoption of FIN No. 48, we reclassified unrecognized-tax benefits to long-term
deferred income taxes whichi is included in other long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

A reconciliation of the gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at April 1, 2007 ‘ £26,010
Settlement and effective settlements with tax authorities and related remeasurements (2,926)
Lapse of statute of limitations : (631)
Increase in balances related to tax positions taken in prior period 631
Decreases for tax positions taken in prior year (512)
Increases in balances related to tax positions taken during current period —
Balance at March 31, 2008 : $22,572

During fiscal 2008, we recorded a net decrease in our unrecognized tax benefits primarily due to closure of the examination
of certain foreign subsidiaries. The total unrecognized tax benefit remaining at March 31, 2008 amounted to $24.7 million,
including interest and penaities. Of this total, $18.3 million, if recognized, would favorably. affect the effective tax rate.

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. To the extent accrued interest
and penalties do not become payable, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a reduction of the overall income
tax provision in the period that such determination is made. At March 31, 2008 accrued interest and penalties totaled $2.2
million. ‘
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We file our tax returns as prescribed by the laws of the jurisdictions in which we-operate. Our U.S. tax returns have been
audited for years through 2002 by the Internal Revenue Service. In other major jurisdictions, we are generally open to
examination for'the most recent three to five fiscal years. Although timing of the resolution and closure on audits is highly
uncertain, we do not believe it is reasonably possible that the unrecognized tax benefits would materially change in the next
12 months.

In connection with the disposition of our hard-disk drive business, HDD, to Maxtor, we entered into a Tax Sharing and
Indemnity Agreement with Maxtor, dated as of April 2, 2001 (the “Tax Sharing Agreement”) that, among other things,
defined each company’s responsibility for taxes attributable to periods prior to April 2, 2001, Pursuant to a settlement
agrecment entered into between the companies dated as of December 23, 2004, Maxtor’s remaining tax indemnity liability
under section 3(a) of the Tax Sharing Agreement was limited to $8.8 million. As of March 31, 2008, $6.0 million remains
as the indemnity liability. We believe that this amount is sufficient to cover the remaining potential tax liabilities under this
section of the Tax Sharing Agreement. '

As of March 31, 2008, we had federal net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards of approximately $149.7 mitlion and
$185.2 million, respectively. Qur federal net operating loss cartyforwards include $30.2 million attributable to excess tax
deductions from stock option exercises, and are not included in the deferred tax assets shown above. The benefit of these
Joss carryforwards will be credited to equity when realized. The net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards expire in
varying amounts beginning in fiscal 2009 if not previously utilized, the utilization of which is limited under the tax law
ownership change provision. These carryforwards include $11.9 million of acquired net operating losses and $9.9 million
of credits. ' ‘ '

Our manufacturing operations in Malaysia operated under a tax holiday which expires in fiscal 2016. We sold this Malaysta
subsidiary in fiscal 2008 and had no material tax holiday benefits in fiscal 2008. The net impact of the tax holiday in fiscal
2007 was to decrease our net loss by approximately $2.7 million, or $0.01 per share, diluted. We had no material tax
holiday benefits during fiscal 2006. ’

Due to our history of net losses, and the difficulty in predicting future results, we believe that we cannot rely on projections
of future taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets. Accordingly, we have established a full valuation allowance
against our U.S. net deferred tax assets. Significant management judgment is required in determining our deferred tax assets
and liabilities and valuation allowances for purposes of assessing our ability to realize any future benefit from our net
deferred tax assets. We intend to maintain this valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support the
reversal of the valuation allowance. Our inconme tax expense recorded in the future will be reduced to the extent that
sufficient positive evidence materializes to support a reversal of, or decrease in, our valuation allowance. We also have
deferred tax assets and liabilities due to prior business acquisitions with corresponding valuation allowances afier assessing
our ability to realize any future benefit from these acquired net deferred tax assets. [f sufficient positive evidence becomes
available to support a reversal or decrease in the allowance related to acquired net deferred tax assets, we will record the
change in goodwill in the period such evidence becomes available.

Note 18; Net Loss Per Share .

The following table set forth the computation'of basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands, except per-share data):

For the year ended March 31,

2008 2007 2006
Net loss . : ‘ $(60,234)  $(64,094) §(41,479)
Weighted-average shares outstanding used to compute basic and diluted net loss

per share - 202,432 192,236 184,063

Basic and diluted net loss per share , $ 3 § (033 §$ (023

The computations of diluted net loss per share for the periods presented excluded the effect of the following because the
effect would have been antidilutive:

. 4.375% conventible subordinated notes issued in July 2003, which are convertible into 36.8 million shares of
Quantum common stock (229.885 shares per $1,000 note) at a conversion price of $4.35 per share.

. Options to purchase 28.2 million shares, 36.3 million shares and 27.8 million shares of Quantum common
stock, which were outstanding as of March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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. Unvested restricted stock of 4.9 million shares, 3.7 million shares and 0.8 million shares outstanding at
March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note 19: Litigation ) .

On May 18, 2006, a lawsuit was filed in King County Superior Court, Seattle, Washmgton, naming ADIC and its directors
as defendants. The lawsuit is a purported class action filed by Richard Carrigan on behalf of an alleged class of ADIC’s
sharcholders. Plaintiff alleged, among other things, that the director defendants breached their fiduciary duties in approving
the proposed acquisition of ADIC by Quantum that was publicly announced on May 2, 2006. The suit sought to enjoin the
defendants from consummating the proposed acquisition and other relief. Though the acquisition was consummated, the
lawsuit remained pending after acquisition and we continued discussions with the plaintiff to reach a resolution. In January
2007 the parties entered into 3 memorandum of understanding to settle the litigation and submitted a settlement agreement
to the Court for approval in May 2007, which was preliminarily approved. We received final approval of the terms of
settlement during fiscal 2008.

On October 9, 2007, we filed a lawsuit against Riverbed Technology, Inc (“Riverbed”) in the U.S. District Court in the
Northern District of California, alleging Riverbed’s prior and continuing infringement of a patent held by Quantum related
to data de-duplication technology. On November 13, 2007, Riverbed filed a countersuit against Quantum aileging our
infringement of a data de-duplication patent held by Riverbed. The parties are currently preparing for trial, which is
scheduled for February 2009. Each suit seeks a permanent injunction against the other party, as well as the recovery of
monetary damages, including treble damages for willful infringement. We believe that Riverbed’s claims are without merit,
that Riverbed’s patent is invalid and we intend to defend ourselves vigorously, Due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation
we cannot identify probable or estimable damages related to either lawsuit.

Note 20: Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

We lease certain facilities under non-cancelable lease agreements. We also have equipment leases for various office
equipment. Some of the leases have renewal options ranging from one to ten years and others contain escalation clauses and
provisions for maintenance, taxes or insurance. These leases are operating leases as defined by SFAS No 13, Accounting
Jor Leases.

In February 2006, we leased a campus facility in Colorado Springs, Colorado, comprised of three buildings in three
separate operating lcases with initial teems of five, seven and 15 years. The future minimum lease payment schedule below
includes $47.5 million for this location. A portion of this location is subleased and we expect to receive approximately $1.4
million under noncancellable subleases through fiscal 2010. .

Rent expense was $17.3 million, $17.6 miilion and $13.8 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Sublease
income was $1.2 million, $1.5 million and $1.6 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases and sublease income are as follows (in thousands):

Lease Payments Sublease Income
For the year ending March 31,
2009 $ 16,038 $ 1,065
2010 13,853 788
2011 12,169 107
2012 10,163 44
2013 6,087 —
Thereafter 28,910 —

' 3 87,220 b3 2,004

Commitments for Additional Investments

As of March 31, 2008, we had commitments to provide an additional $1.3 million in capital funding towards investments
we currently hold in two limited partnership venture capital funds. We will invest funds as reqmred until our remaining
commitments are satisfied. :
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Commitments to Purchase Inventory

We use contract manufacturers for certain manufacturing functions. Under these arrangements, the contract manufacturer
procures inventory to manufacture products based upon our forecast of customer demand. We are responsible for the
financial impact on the contract manufacturer of any reduction or product mix shift in the forecast relative to materials that
the contract manufacturer had already purchased under a prior forecast. Such a variance in forecasted demand could require
a cash payment for finished goods in excess of current customer demand or for costs of excess or obsolete inventory. As of
March 31, 2008, we had issued non-cancelable purchase commitments for $53.9 million to purchase finished goods from
our contract manufacturers and had accrued $1.1 million and $2.8 million as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectlvely, for
finished goods in excess of current customer demand or for the costs of excess or obsolete inventory.

Note 21: Geographic and Customer Information

Revenue and long-lived assets (property and equipment, service parts for maintenance, goodwill and intangible assets) by
region was as follows (revenue is attributed to regions based on the location of customers) (in thousands):

7 For the year ended March 31, .
2008 2007 2006

Long-Lived . Long-Lived : Lang-Lived
. Revenue Assets Revenue Assets Revenue Assets
Americas $645,264 $ 644,045 . % 675755 $ 696,891 $559272 . § 178,785 .
Europe 263,624 2,417 259,071 9,613 196,378 16,191
Asia Pacific . 66,814 10,686 81,348 14,731 78,637 4,075

$975,702 $ 657,148 $1,0l6,174 $ 721,235 $834,287 § 193,051

The following table shows two customers that accounted Ior 10% or more of our revenue in current or prior years
- (in millions):

For the year ended March 31,

2008 2007 2006
e Revenue %% of Revenue Revenue % of Revenue Revenue % of Revenue
Dell - $ 1555 16% b 198.8 20% - § 1524 18%
Hewlett-Packard $ 826 8% $ 92.2 9% $ 1498 18%

Note 22: Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

(In thousands, except per-share data)

For the year ended March 31, 2008

Ist 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue $245,768 $248,507 $252,511 $228.916
Gross margin . ' § 78,057 $ 78,275 $ 87,173 $ 75,599
Net loss $(22,585) S$(20,467) § (2390) §(14,792)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ @I $ 01 % ©OoH § (0.08)
For the year ended March 31, 2007
1st 2nd 3rd 4th
. Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenue $186,595 $250,370 $301,899 £277,310
(Gross margin $ 52,025 $ 70,613 $ 89,016 $ 81,731
Net loss $ (3,576) $(30,676) $ (9,524) §5(20,318)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (©02) $§ (©16) $§ (005 5 (0.10)

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, we completed our acquisition of ADIC and expensed $14.7 million of in-process-
research and development. This transaction is reflected in the net loss and the basic and diluted loss per share for the second
quarter of fiscal 2007.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of '

Quantum Corporation |

We have auditcd the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Quanturn Corporation as of March 31, 2008 and 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of thé three years in the
period ended March 31, 2008, Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at Item 15(a)(2).
These financial stitements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s managément. Our responsibility is to ’
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our gudits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a rcasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Quantum Corporanon at March 31, 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash
flaiws for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related fi nanclal statement schédule, when considered in relation to the
basic financial Statements taken as a whole presents fairly in all materlal respects the mformanon set forth therein.’

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal 2007, Quantum Corporation changed its method of
accounting for stock-based compensation in accordance with guidance provided in Statement of Financial Accounting '
Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. Furthermore, as discussed in Note ! 7 to the consolidated financial
statements, effective April 1, 2007, Quantum Corporation adopted the provisions of Financial Accountmg Standards Board
lnterpretatlon Ne. 48 Accoummg Jor Uncertainty in Income Taxes.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
Stdtes) Quantum Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008, based on criteria established
in Internal Control -~ Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsormg Orgamzanons of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated June 11, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/st ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Palo Alto, California

June 11, _2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Stockhelders of Quantum Corporation

We have audited Quantum Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Quantum Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Managément’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of thé Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the ass'essed'risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opiniot.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemnal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Quantum Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of March 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the 2008 consolidated financial statements of Quantum Corporation and our report dated June 11, 2008 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Palo Alto, California

June 11, 2008
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QUANTUM CORPORATION
SCHEDULE 11
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Allowance for doubtful accounts (in thousands)

Additions Additions
Balance at assumed in {Releases) .
beginning of . ADIC charged to Balance at end
period Acquisition expense Deductions (i) of period

For the year ended: .
March 31, 2006 $ 8962 = — 8§ (581) $ (538) § . 7.843
March 31, 2007 $ 7843 £ 1446 8 133 $ (2991 % 6,431
March 31,2008 $ 6431 — S 444 S (11290 $ 5746

(i)  Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable,

e

ITEM 9A. Contrels and Procedures "

Attached as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are certifications of our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and

_ Chief Financial Officer (“CFO™), which are required pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as -
amended (the “Exchange Act™). This “Controls and Procedures” section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K includes
information concerning the controls and controls evaluation referenced in the certifications. This section of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K should be read in conjunction with the certifications and the report of Ernst & Young LLP, as
described below, for a more complete understanding of the matters presented.

a

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls

We evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This control evaluation was performed under the supervision and with
the participation of management, including our CEO and CFO. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange
Act, such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. Disclosure controls are also designed to ensure that
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based on the controls evaluation, our CEQ and CFO have concluded that, subject to the inherent limitations noted below, as
of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our disclosure controls were effective to provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC, and that material information relating to us is made
known to management, including the CEO and the CFO, particularly during the time when our periodic reports are being
prepared.

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our CEQ and CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of March 31, 2008 based on the guidelines established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on the results of our
evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of March 31, 2008
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Emst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report regarding its
assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008, as set forth at the end of Part
11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Qur management, including our CEQ and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal control over
financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A controt system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered
relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These
inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Additional controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls also is
based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design
will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of
the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected.
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Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control-over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors . - s

Sections 201 and 202 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“the Act™), sq,ned into law on July 30, 2002, require that al] audit
services and non-audit services by our independent auditors, Emst & .Young LLP, must be pre-approved by our Audit
Committee. Furthermore, the Act prohibits an auditor from performing certain non-audit services for an audit client
regardless of the Audit Committec’s approval, subject to certain exceptions issued by the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board.

‘.

Aldl services performed by Ernst & Young LLP in fiscal 2008 were approved by our Audlt Commmee consistent with our

internal policy. e
ITEM9B. Otherinformation ’ ' ' " L. r
None. :

PART Il

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item with respect to our directors, audit committee and audit committee financial expert is
incorporated by reference to the information set forth in our proxy statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of*Stockholders
to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. For information
pertaining to our exccutive officers, refer to the “Executive Officers of Quantum Corporanon section of Part I, Itern | of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have adopted a code of cthics that.applies to our principal executive officer and all members of our finance department,
inciuding the principal financial 6fficer and principal accounting officer. This code of ethics is posted on our Website. The
[nternet address for our Website is: http://www.quantum.com, and the code of ethics may be found by clicking *About Us”
from the home page, selecting “Investor Relations” and then choosing “Corporate Governance.” Copies of the code are
available free upon request by a stockholder.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a
provision of this cade of ethics by posting such information on our website, at the address and location specified above. |

We have adopted Corporate Governance Principles, which are available on our website at http://www.quantum.com, where
they may be found by clicking “About Us” from the home page, sclecting “Investor Relations” and then choosing
“Corporate Governance.” Copies of our Corporate Governance Principles are available free upon request by a stockholder.
The charters of our Audit Committee, Leadership and Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance and
Neminating Committee are also available on our website at http://www.quantum.com, where they may be found by
clicking “About Us” from the home page, selecting “Investor Relations™ and then choosing “Corporate Governance.”
Copies of these committee charters are available free upon request by a stockholder.

ITEM 11.  Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in our proxy statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008.

ITEM 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in our proxy statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008.
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in our proxy statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commiss:on within 120 days aftér the end of our fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in our proxy statement for
the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Commlssmn within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year
ended March 31, 2008. :

PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Upon written request, we will provide, without charge, a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the
Consolidated Financial Statements, financial statement schedules and any exhibits for our most recent fiscal year. All
requests should be sent to:

Investor Relations

Quantum Corporation

1650 Technology Drive, Suite 800
San Jose, California 95110
(408)944-4450

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements—Our Consolidated Fmancnals Statements are listed in the Index to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

2. Financial Statement Schedules — Our consolidated valuation and qualifying accounts (Schedule 1) financial
statement schedule is listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements. All other schedules have been
omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the
Consolidated Financiai Statements or the notes hereto.

(b) Exhibits
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit .
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit(s) Filing Date
3.1 Amended and Restated Centificate of Incorporation of 8-K 001-13449 31 August 16, 2007
Registrant. ' : . : : SN
32 Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant, as amended. 10-K 001-13449 3.2 June 28, 2000
34 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated By- 8-K 001-13449 3.1 August 29, 2007
laws of Registrant, effective August 23, 2007. .
3.5 Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and S-3 333-109587 47 October 2, 2003
Privileges of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock.
41  Amended and Restated Preferred Shares Rights Agreement 'S-4/A 33375153 4.1 June 10,1999
between the Registrant and Harris Trust and Savings Bank.
4.2 First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Preferred 10-Q 00[_-[3449 4.1 November 13, 2002
Shares Rights Agreement and Certification Of Compliance
With Section 27 Thereof, dated as of October 28, 2002.
43 Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Preferred 8-K 001-13449 41 ' November 6, 2006
Shares Rights Plan, dated November 1, 2006.
44 Stockholder Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2002, by 10-Q 001-13449 42 November 13, 2002
and between Registrant and Private Capital Management, '
4.5 Indenture, dated as of July 30, 2003, between Registrant and S-3 333-109587 4.1 October 9, 2003
1J.S. Bank National Association, related to the Registrant's
convertible debt securities .-
10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Registrant and 8-K 001-13449 104 April 4, 2007
the Named Executive Officers and Directors. *
10.2  Form of Amended and Restated Officer Change of Control 8-K 001-13449 ,10.4 ~ November 15, 2007
Agreement between Registrant and the Executive Officers : .
(other than the Chief Executive Officer). * ' '
10.3 Form of Amended and Restated Chief Executive Officer 8-K 001-13449 10.3 November 15, 2007
Change of Control Agreement, between Registrant and the
Chief Executive Officer. *
104" Form of Amended and Restated Director Change of Control 8-K 001-13449 i0.5  November 15, 2007
Agreement, between Registrant and the Directors. (Other ‘ :
than the Chairman and the CEG) *
10.5  Amended and Restated 1993 Long-Term Incentive Plan 8-K 001-13449 10.1  November 15, 2007
effective November 10, 20067. * . . .
10.6 1993 Long-Term Incentive Plan Form of Restricted Stock 8-K 00l-13449 10.3  March 3, 2006
Unit Agreement. *
10.7 1993 Long-Term Incentive Plan Form of Stock Option Schedule TO 005-35818  99%d)(5) June 4, 2001
Agreement. *
10.8  Amended and Restated Nonemployee Director Equity 8-K 001-13449 10.2  November 15, 2007

Incentive Plan effective November 10, 2007. *
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Incorporated by Reference

Offer Letter of Mr. Dennis P. Wolf, dated July 12, 2007 *

90

Exhibit N .
Number Exhibit Description Form File No.  Exhibit(s) Filing Date

169  Form of Director Grant Agreement under the Amended and Restated  8-K  001-13449  10.2 - August 23, 2007
Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan, effective November
10, 2007. * -

10.10 Amended Employee Stock Purchase Plan. * 8-K  001-13449 103 August 23, 2007

10.11 Termination Agreement and General Release of All Claims, dated 8-K 001-13449 10.1  March 22,2007
March 17, 2007, between Registrant and Howard L. Matthews I11. *

10.12 Employment Offer Letter, dated August 31, 2006, between 8-K - 001-13449 10.1  September 7, 2006
Registrant and William C. Britts. * ' ' :

10.13  Employment Offer Letter, dated August 28, 2006, between ,. 8-K 001-13449 103  September 7, 2006
Registrant and Jon W. Gacek. *

10.14 Chahge of Control Agreement, dated as of May 14, 1999, between 8-K  001-13449 0.1 September 7, 2006

: - ADIC and William C. Britts. *
10.15 Change of Control Agreement, dated November 3, 1999, between 8-K 001-13449 10.1  July 25, 2006
' ADIC and Jon W. Gacek. * o
© 10.16  Offer Letter, dated May 25, 2007 between Registrant and Joseph A, 8K 001-13449 10.1 May 25,2007
* Marengi. * :

10.17 Transaction Benus and Severance Protection Agreement, dated 8-K  001-13449 10.3  June 2, 2005
January 4, 2005 between Certance, LLC and Howard L. Matthews
I *

10.18. Senior Secured Credit Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and 10-Q 001-13449  10.8  August9, 2007
among the Registrant, Credit Suisse, as Collateral Agent, '
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and an L/C Issuer, and the
other Lenders party thereto,

10.19 Securit.y Agreemént, dated July 12, 2007, among the Registrant and 10-Q 001-13449 109  August 9, 2007
the other Grantors referred to therein.

10.20 _ Stock Purchase Agreement, dated July 1, 2007, between Registrant 10-Q 001-13449 | 10.7  August 9, 2007
and Benchmark Electronics Netherlands Holding B.V.

10.21 Offer Letter of Mr. Bruce A. Pastemnack, dated July 12, 2007 * 8-K 001-13449 10.1  July 18, 2007

10.22 8-K 001-13449 10.2  July 18, 2007




Incorporated by Reference

i Exhibit
l Number Exhibit Description Form File No.  Exhibit(s) Filing Date
| 10.23  Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property, dated as 8-K  001-13449 10.1 February 10, 2006
November 18, 2005, among Registrant, SELCO Service Corporation
and CS/Federal Drive LL.C, as amended by Amendments | through 6.
10.24 Lease Agreement, dated February 6, 2006, between Registrant and 8-K 001-13449 10.2 February 10, 2006
CS/Federal Drive AB LLC (for Building A).
10.25 Lease Agreement, dated February 6, 2006, between Registrant and 8-K  001-13449 10.3 February 10, 2006
CS/Federal Drive AB LLC (for Building B). .
10.26  Lease Agreement, dated February 6, 2006, between Registrant and 8-K  001-13449 10.4 February 10, 2006
CS/Federal Drive AB LLC (for Building C). ' ‘ |
10.27  Patent Cross License Agreement, dated February 27, 2006, between 8-K  001-13449 10.1 March 3, 2006
Registrant and Storage Technology Corporation.
10.28 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Registrant, Agate 8-K  001-13449 2.1 May 3, 2006
Acquisition Corp. and Advanced Digital Information Corporation,
dated May 2, 2006. .
10.29  Form of Voting Agreement entered into with certain Directors and 8-K  001-13449 10.1 May 5, 2006
Officers, dated May 2, 2006.
10.3¢  Particulars and Cenditions of Sale between Quantum Perepheral 8-K  001-13449 10.1 May 9, 2006
Products (Ireland) Limited (as Vendor) and Ronan Egan (in Trust) (as . . :
Purchaser).
10.31 License Agreement, between Quantum Perepheral Products (Ireland)  8-K  001-13449 102 'May 9,2006
Limited (as Licensee) and Ciaran O' Donoghue and Nuiall O ’
Donoghue (as Licensor).
10.32 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger and 10-Q  001-13449 10.1 February 14, 2001
Reorganization dated as of October 3, 2000 by and among Registrant, '
Maxtor Corporation, Insula Corporation and Hawaii Corporation
{excluding exhibits).
10.33  Tax Sharing and Indemnity Agreement by and among Registrant, 8-K  001-13449 10,1 December 29, 2004
Maxtor Corporation and Insula Corporation, dated April 2, 2001.
10.34  Mutual General Release and Global Settlement Agreement, dated as  10-Q  001-13449 10.4  February 2, 2005

of December 23, 2004, betwecn Maxtor Corporation and Registrant.
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Exhibit
Number ) Exhibit Description Form File No.  Exhibit{s) Filing Date

10.35 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 20,-2004, 8-K  001-13449 10.t October 25, 2004
among Registrant, Certance Holdings, an exempted company
organized under the laws of the Cayman Islands, New SAC, an
exempted company organized under the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the principal stockholder of Certance, and Quartz
Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned
subsidiary of Registrant.

10.36 Letter Agreement, dated December 19, 2005, between 8-K  001-13449 10.1 December 22, 20065
Registrant and New SAC.

10.37 Offer Letter, dated August 20, 2007, between Registrant and B-K  001-13449 10.1 August 29, 2007
Paul Auvil. *

12.1  Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. {

21 Quantum Subsidiaries. § i
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. §

24 Power of Attorney (see si_gnature page).

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section
302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, §

31.2  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 1

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley act of 2002. T

32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursvant to 18 US.C.
. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley act of 2002. ¥

* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
1 Filed herewith.
1 Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reglstram has duly caused this report to be SIgned
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authon?ed

{QUANTUM CORPORATION

/s/ JON W. GACEK '

Jon W. Gacek
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: June 13, 2008
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints
Richard E. Belluzzo and Jon W. Gacek, jointly and severally, his attorneys-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for
him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with
exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that each of said attoneys-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done
by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following
persons in the capacities and on June 13, 2008.

Signature Title

/s/ RICHARD E. BELLUZZO Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Richard E. Belluzzo (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ JON W.GACEK Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Jon W. Gacek Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ PAUL R. AUVIL 1II Director

Paul R. Auvil III

/s MICHAEL A, BROWN Director
Michael A. Brown

ls/ THOMAS S. BUCHSBAUM Director
Thomas S. Buchsbaum '

/s/ EDWARD M. ESBER, JR. Director
Edward M. Esber, Jr

/s/ ELIZABETH A. FETTER Director
Elizabeth A. Fetter

/s/  JOSEPH A. MARENGI Director
Joseph A. Marengi

/s/ BRUCE A. PASTERNACK Director
Bruce A. Pasternack '

/s DENNIS P. WOLF Director
Dennis P. Wolf
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' ' Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302(a)
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

L, Richard E. Belluzzo, certify that:
Iy I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K-of Quantum Corporation; .

2) . Based on my knowledge, this repoﬁ does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary:to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under whlch such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; * - : :

''3) - Based on.my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all'material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; - - :

4)  The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
- controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e}4 and 15d-15{¢)4) and internaj control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant and have:

a) +  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such’disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision ta ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared; -

* b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial )
" reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness ofithe disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and .

d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occufred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably llkely to materlally affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; oo

5)  The registrant’s other certifying officers and I bave disclosed, based on our most recent cvaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit comm1ttee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions);

a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in.the design or operation of internal control aver

- financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the reglstram ] ab:hty to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b}  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting. .-

Date: June 13, 2008

/s/ RICHARD E. BELLUZZO
Richard E. Belluzzo

- Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302(a)
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jon W. Gacek, certify that: .

1)
2)

3)

4)

3)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Quantum Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) and internal control over

- financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
" be designed under our supervision; to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles; :

¢)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) .disclosedin this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
. accurred during the regisirant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evatuation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

~a) - all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial repomng which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ab:liry to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)  any.fraud, whether or not.material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 13, 2008

/s/ JON W, GACEK

Jon W, Gacek

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION.OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED.PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard E. Belluzzo, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Quantum Corporation; on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,
2008 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,-as amended,
and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K falrly presents in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of Quantum Corporation.

Date: June 13, 2008

QUANTUM CORPORATION

/8! RICHARD E. BELLUZZO
Richard E. Belluzzo
Chairman and

(I Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

" CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jon W. Gacek, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley: Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Quantum Corporation, on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2008
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
that information contained in such Annual Report on Form10-K fairly presents in ail material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of Quantum Corporation. - o

Date: June 13, 2008

QUANTUM CORPORATION

/s/ JON W, GACEK
Jon W. Gacek
: . Executive Vice President and
' Chief Financial Officer
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